To be filed with the financial statements for
Pearson Heinemann Ltd, company number
3099304

| Pearson plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

L=
]
w
w
= ‘LAGYPOST
L10 29/09/2015 #328

COMPANIES HOUSE

80 Strand
London WC2R ORL

Registered Number 53723 (England)



Pearson Annual report and eccounts 2014

Transforming
learning
together

IMAGE REMOVED

ALWAYS LEARNING PEARSON




Pearson at a glance

Financat highlights

oTo read ahoutour KMlsgo o pl4

Sales

£4.9bn
+276

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Adjusted operating profit

{excluding Mei ger marh.et}

£.720m
+8%

IMAGE REMOVED —I

{MAGE REMOVED

Awverage annual growth in
headiine terms 2009-2014

Adjusied enrrings per share

+04%

Operaung rash tiow

-6.6%

Orndend

+/.5%

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Tiwoughout dus reper g row thrates a e stated 0n a Fonsty Texchangn rate {CER) bass unfessatheewise statee Ywiere quoten urede lyng grow th s ates exclude
boeh Cunrency movsinents and porfolio chunpes Unfess othervase stated sales evcudn Pengun and Morgermurkel winle adjuste d opersting profissindude

Ponginn Pengun Random House and Meegr rmarket. Conrung opa iions exdude bor Poigun and Mergermarie.




Ahout Pearson

Section 110 Famesy

Pearson is the world's leading

learning company, with 40,000
employees in over /0 countries
working to help people of all ages to
make measurable progress in their
lives through all kinds of learning,

We provide learning materials,
technologies, assessments and
services to teachers and students

in order to help people everywhere
aim higher and fulfil their potential.

We put the learner at the centre
of everything we do.

Responding to new recommendatians and best practice, every effort has
been made to ensure ths report s fair balanced and understandable
MNotably, our 'Responisible bxsiness” section has been reshaped around
our 'Seaal impact, wo ceflect a new and broader commumment to makung

2 pOosiuve coat ibution to society

Together with 'Qurbusness’ and 'Qurperformance’ these diree secaons
of this document (p2-56} form our strategic report, wiich was approved

forssue by the board on 9 March 2015 and signed onits b

r IMAGE REMOVED

Robin Freestone Chief frmmctat oficer /,———-'/
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Chairman’s introduction

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Mot eno
Charman

“The most difficult phase of our
transformation has now been
completed. . one which has laid
the foundations to strengthen
our position as the world's
largest education company.”

Share price performance

+32.0%

FTSE 100 +2 0%
FTSE All Share +2 3%

Parformante over 12 montha o announceinent ol
prefintnary re sults cddose of 27 Fehruacy 2015)

Scurge Datastream

Read our full Gover nance section p57-112Q
LEADERSHIP & £FFECTIVENESS p60-6 Q)
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77Q
ENGAGEMENT 078-81 ©
REMUNERATION pB2-106 Q)
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES pl07-112Q

Dear shaieholder s,

We conunue to make this report as helpful as possible

to our shureholder s and everyone interested in our
company We are guided by the lIRC and FRC's prinaples,
and wherever possible, we will conunue to move towards
those over the next few years Our ambition ths year s

to tell 2 more transparent, concise, and joined-up story

of the jouney we are on Lo create value

in 2013 we rmade a senes of commitments designed to
measure and increase the company’s impact on learning
outcomes around the world 1n 2014, john Falton and bis
teadership team have embedded efficacy — the idea that
each product or service we tnvest in 1s jJudged by the
cutcomes it helps learners achieve - as the defiring
principle around which Pearson s organised We also,
as an organisation, reaffirmed the values that we stand
for. which John taliks about in mare depth on page 4
This report is the story of how these comptments will
result n a more sustainable and profitable company

Read mo e about this in our Chief executive’s strategic
overview on p4-9, and our Efficacy section on p38-43

Transforming for long-term success

The most difficult phase of our transformation has now
been completed This has been one of the most significant
restructures In our long and varied history, one which has
taid the foundauons to strengthen our position as the
world's fargest education compary The benefits of thes
restructure are already being felt. as Pearson becomes
more digital, more service driven and more capable

of improwving educauan in the world's great econormes
They are also visible in the way we are organised the
strategres behind which we are roarshalled, and our
emergng culture Thisis explained and exernplified
throughout this report

Transformations of this scale cannot succeed without

the commitment of all our stakeholders, and | am very
grateful to our shat eholders and employees for the
confidence and patience they lave placed i our long-term
vizon Althoughin 2014 our share price saw some
volatdity, at the tme | wiite tus (having just announced
our prehmmary results) it hasrecovered sgnificandy
rising 32% over the last {2 months Over the ten years to
December 20{4 1t had almost doubled (89 3%), during
which bme the total sha eholder return has increased

by 182 6% Moreover, 'm delighted that, for the 23rd
consecutive year we've been able to increase our dividend
per share We have confidence that these trends will
contiue, thanks to the steps we have taken inthe fast
TWI Years




Secuon | Our oamres 03

Shar e price perfor marnce

IMAGES REMOVED

Source Thtarucunto 3 Derember 2014

Total shareholder retur n (TSR)

IMAGES REMOVED

Source Tlarastrears ¢ 31 Dceomber H)H

TSR 15 one of owr KPfs

More on pl4

Building a balanced and strong team

Though oursmmediaie transforinauon has been
completed, we will, of course, contnue to adapt and
IMprove Lo ensure ou ongomng success We conunue (o
build a balanced, experienced team, welcorming Elizabeth
Cortey and Tim Score ta the board, and a number of
hughly regarded industry specaahsts 1o the executive
management team

This year we have also held our tnennal external board
review and alongside that we have established a process
for long-term succession planning, which we'll unde: take
annually | would like to take this oppornity to thank our
chief financial officer, Robin Freestone, for bus enormous
contrbution to Pearson over the fast ten years We look
forwar d to Coram Williams joting us in that role on

| August 2015 Read more about our board on page 60,
and the executive team on page 9

Loolang forward

These are excting umes for everyone involved at Pearson,
as we begin to see the opportumnues created by two
years of very substanual wansformaton ithas beena
challenging journey at tmes, but worthit We now move
into our next chapter, better prepared than ever to helfp
peopie all over the world progress in their lives through
fearmung, and in so doing, create a growing sustamnable
company for the benefit of oui-shareholders

iMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno, Charman
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Chief executive's strategic overview

IMAGE REMOVED

Iohn Fallon
Cholevecutne

“For education to really work it needs
to not only provide access, but
ensure progress. . by standing at the
Intersection of new technology and
good teaching practices, we can help
to make learning more accessible
and more relevant for more people
around the world.”

Short stories of impact

Dear shai eholde: s,

Pearson's purpose s to empower people to progress n
then lives through learming, and that means we put the
fearner at the hear t of everydung we do Through this
reviaw, you'll see five stories from students that flustrate
how we've been dong over the [ast year

Fach story demonstrates the comnutment and abdity
of the young woman involved, each a great source of
nspiration to all of us Each showcases one of Pearsons
most commer cially successful products (MGI, BTEC,
Connections, Wall Street English, MyLabs) of recent
years And they all llustrate thatthe bigger Pearson’s
soaalimpact — in improving access to good quality
education and ensuring that transfates mnto mearungful
learmng outcomes for far more people — the more we
can create a faster growing and more profitable company,
and do so In a sustainable manner

Last Qctober Malata Yousafzal accepted her Nobel Peace
Prize on behalf of the 66 million guls around the world
who don't go to school Inthis same spait {'ve chosen five
stories that are about the achtevements of young women
around the world You'll find more stones reflecung the
full diversity of what we do at www pearson com

Positoned to make a greater impact

The transformation programime we launched in February
of 2013 is now complete Over the course of two years
we carited out as much restructui ing, interms of activity
and costs incurt ed, as we'd carned out n the previous six

Rozannd's story

IMAGE REMOVED

iMAGE
REMOVED

Rezanna has beaten overwhelmng odds Borninto a
famuly in Zimbabwe in which netther parent had taken
A-levels, et alone attended unrves sity she wasnota
typical candidate for hgher education Insecunty, ladk
of aceess ta technology, and fear about personal safety
were some of die barners she faced Buther thirst

for educaunn led her to enrolin Pearson’s Midrand
Graduate institute (MG in South Afnca Rozannais
now a third-year psychology major with a drive for
achievement that has inspired us afl at Pearson She
praises herlecturers and credies mudh ofher success with
the personalised iearming technology she uses at MGl
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That programime has been all about setung Pearson up
10 be able 1o demonstrate the impact of what we doin
education around the world ttis abaut enabling us to

do right ac oss Pearsan the thing that we have done
ncreasmgly well in many parts of the company, and wiich
our staries of peaple tearming all help to demonstrate
That s, we stand at the intersection of new technology
{with its ability to engage, personahse and chagnose) and
new, more effective, ways of teaching This posinon allows
us to develop products and services that enable the
benefits of nicher, deeper learming to be more widely felt

We've had to conduct this accelerated programme of
change whilst dealing with cyclical and policy related forces
wn our biggest marikets, which | described in fast year's
report, and which continued to hurt us i 2014 In spite

ot these challenges, 'm pleased to report that we did
meet the financial expectauons that we set publicly for
the company at the start of the year Overall ataume

of muchinternal disruption and upheaval we putina
generally good compettive performance There were

a couple of areas of under-performance, too, and we're
waortarg hiard to do better i these acovines in 2005

{t wasn'tjust Pearson’'s educauon related businesses that
performed well through this perad of change Penguin
Random House, the company we own with Bertelsmann,
wrned in a best-selling performance whilst integratng the
two companies And the Finanaal Tines, now parcof our
professional education business, continued to deliver the
world's best news and nformauon 1o «s audiences whilst
acceleraung its own digital transition

Short stories of mpact

tn 2015 we expect Pearson’s pr ofits 1o start to grow
agan, as the forces that have been worlung againstus
over the [ast two years start to ease, and as we benefic
from the cost savings achieved by out restructurng and
the revenues generated by our new investrents

A growing global demand

We'll be working hard with our customers to tackle what
we thinlis one of the mostimportant challenges i the
world today For globahsation and the distuptive powers
of technology mean we hive n a ‘Second Machine Age’

i which, as my colfleague, Lanel Barber (editor of the
Fiancial Temes) puts it “leverage in the workplace 1s best
achieved through knowledge " This means that equipping
every global citizen with what are sometimes described as
*21st century slulls' 1s mor e important than ever Inother
wards, for educatton to really work, it needs to not only
provide access, but ensure progress

To prosper in career and college, all young people need to
feave school iter ate and numerate with good knowledge
of soence, technoiogy and theiberal arts and being able
to apply that knowledge 1o solve t eal world problems
They also need to be profiaent n the lands of less tangible
slafs that will help them succeed in the workplace ~crnical
thinlang, adaptability, team-warlang, and digital fluency

They need the grit resthence and deternination to
persevere and succeed —and, most of all, they need
the capacity 1o carry oniearning throughout their lives
These are all tings that can be taught

Bethany's story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Bethany 1s a UK student who did not take A-fevels, but
nstead went aftar a BTEC qualificavon She, like so
many recent. 8TEC applicants, appled to unversity wath
a different skdlset, but not wath any less determinauan
or ability MHerhard worl and credentals weie
recosrised when she was accepted to study Psychofogy
and Linguistics at Oxford Uriversity Bethany's story
tughlights that a slafis-based qualfication like a BTEC ks
aot a ‘lesser credential but one that can set a student
up for success in higher educaon and a career
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Chef executive’s strategic overview continued

Meeung the need

For the two bilhon pecple learning Enghsh as a foreign
tanguage, or the 300-400 mdlion more people enrolling in
higher educaton over the next 30 year s, and all the other
students of all ages around the world the need for effectve
and relevant teaching and fearning will continue to grow

Ofcourse there ar e challenges to meeting this need
Fragmented and sioed approaches to educauon, changes
in government pohcy and regulanons, and widely diverse
economic and sociat conditions, make our work and that
of educators worldwide, much more complex Butwe

are confident that by standing at the ntersecuon of new
technology and good teaching pracuces, we can help to
nnake learning more accessible and more relevant for more
people around the world

in 2015, five priorues, outlined here, are guiding our work

‘IMAGE REMOVED

Short stories of impact

2015 prionites

A business mode! focused on helping more
people achieve better learning outcomes

Qur efficacy mwauve, first outined in fast year's report, 15
no longerjust aframework Efficacy 1s now at the centre
of our business model and a major part of how we create
value This year, we'll embed it even more deeply into the
fabric of everything we do so thati reaches more products
mfiuences more people and transforms more processes
As our customers become ever more focused onachieving
better returns on educavon refated spending, Peai sonis at
the forefront of a great global growth cpportunity And it
enables us to put our social impact at the very heart of our
business This applies to our Project Literacy campaign
{page 54) and the renewed investment in our Pearson
Affordable Learning Fund {page 56) just asitdoes to the
research and development of new products and services
and the way we engage with our customers each day

ILis the means by which we ensure that educationis

meore accessible, impactful and affordable, and delivers
those outcomes to people regardless of location

Crur business model

Qu offi Aoz anme
assessing and improwng
the impact of ru

jr Oduchy SO ETE RO
vl e <t edbian tnoctel

IMAGE REMOVED

Zurels story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Zuriehis an ambitious [2-year old documentary
filmmaker orignally frorm Nigera, who now livesin
Calforma Shes enrolied n Pearson’s enurely online
Cornecuons Academy, which she says alfows her o
"do extt acurnicudar actvities even when travellng
overseas, ¢t eatng documentanes, and interviewang
Africanlcader s,” warhout oussing important
schoolwork Zuret recently taunched the “Speak Up,
Stand Up' project to inspire girls on the African
conunent to “stay n school geta good educanon,
and afso to accomplish therr dreams ™ VWe can safely
say sheisleading by example
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2 MNew digital praducts

To further this work, we'll be laundung new global
products te imeet the need formuch better learring
outcomes They connect content with assessment and
feedback They use analytics and big data to personalise
learrung - malung 1t a far more collaborative and effective
expenence for students and teachers They alt draw on
world-class research into the science of teaching and
{earning In the end they Il alt be mobile first and device
neutral And they ai e all designed to take full account of
justhow ‘'messy" educanon can be, how importantitis
to deliver large and complex projects, and how to deal
with ‘fast mile’ issues Our customers ali know that the

1 eal problem in educaton s not finding a greart teacher
ara really good school, but being able to replicate that
excelience at scale All our new digital products are
focused on meeung that need

Qur priondles

3 A mare focused company

We re bullding these products ©t a modutar and scalable
way, and deploywng themn on a stmaller number of global
platforms This improves the customer expertence
makes st much easter to shat e assets and resources across
the whole company, and s also much more cost effecave
It1s one example of how we are snplifying our company
We ve already reduced the number of applicauons and
systems used across the company by 10%. and we will
continue that work this year Ve have already sold a
number of businesses where either we ladked scale or
we saw lirited scope for us to have a more directimpact
onlearming outcomes This work wilt continue, as we
focus our resources and energy on the biggest education
challenges we see around the world ltis where we can
mafke the biggest impact, and where, by runnung Pearson
as one company we see the biggest opportunity

Ou operating structure
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Juha's story

IMAGE REMOVED

{MAGE
REMOVED

Juha s tearning English at one of Pearson's Wall Streer
£nghish centres in Shanghar | met with her durng my wisit
there and was ingpued by ber drive She nowlves far
firom herparents' farmin south China, and {ar from

the norms of rural ke juba’s deasion to leave home 1o
connnue intugher education mught have come as g shodk
to her family, but she s determined to improve her
Enghsh fanguage capabrlines in order o further her caresr
prospects and, one day, find work vath a global company
She liles to engage on soaal medea with friends she's mat
wirtually around the world —and she wants to use her
English language skulls 1o spread the word tat asshe
puts it, “there's more to my country than air pollegon
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Chuef executive's strategic overview conunued

A mare consistently high
perfoi ming culture

At its best, Pearson has abways champtoned high
performance, we're now taking a whale series of
actions {including how we recrurt, appratse and reward
everyone who worlks for Pear san) to make this a feature
of everything we do We've reaffii med, and amphified,
our tong held values of ‘brave, imaginative and decent’,
whuch are parucularly impor tant at a ume of great change
(Of the top 100 executives in the company, 70 are i the
fast two years, new to thewr roles or to the company )
We've also added ‘accountable’ as afourth core value

Thus is tmportant to ensure that, in our new more ‘'matrix’

style organisation, we all actively help each other to
achieve our collective goals It also recognises how
importantitis to be accountable to the public trust
for ali we do in education around the world

IMAGE REMOVED

Short stories of impact

5 A stronger brand

Thus accountabiiity extends to our willingness to engage
in the public debate Educauion s one of the most
important areas of public Iife and evokes strong
emouons and opmions in a field where data and
evidence as Lo 'what works' can be difficult to come

by Qur focus on educauonal impact and learning
cutcomes - and our openness and transparency in
holding ourselves ta account in achieving these goals -
1s vital to address these concerns Taday, public
awareness of Pearson as the world sleading tearning
compariy, i§ stll relatively limuted If we are going to
achieve our full potenual, we need to buid Pearson,

as a plobal educauon brand that is known for our work
in empowelring more people to progress in their lives
through learning This means, for example, that we
need to be much less muted n our engagementin the
circa 78 mullion voice strong “global conversation’ that
our research telfs us s currently taking place atound the
topics of ‘educanon’ and learning’ And we also need
to ot ganise our product marketing so thal we positian
Pearson, especally online and through social media,

in 2 much mor e coherent way

Taylor's story

MAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Taylor s a student at the University of Nor th Texas
who was not thrilled that Stansucs was a required
course for her magor She ladked confidence it math
and nearly let that fear cause her to change course
and quither degree pragranwne altogether ' thought
{ didn t have the ability to do maths, she totd us
Taytor was then introduced to Pear son'’s MyStatsLab
and deaded 10 push through her fear Instead of failure,
she found success through using the tool to reinforce
learmung and pracuce in difficuit areas She completed
her Staustcs class with the highest possible grade
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Looking ahead

in accepting her Nabel Pedce Prize, Malala Yousafza: satd
‘fammany [ am not rasing my voice, itis the voice of
thase 66 million girts * At the same event her fellow
recipient, Katash Satyarthi set us all the task of
‘urwversalising knowledge'

All 40,000 Pearson colleagues are tackhing these prionties
m that spirtc of 'lam many ' worting with each other and
with the mifions of students, teachers and schools we
serve We'll grow by helping more of our fellow ciozens
to grow, by universalising the knowledge (and the slails)
they'll need to succeed in this ncreasingly hurman capital
drven world Worlung with the communities in which
we operate, we'll combine new technology and new
teaching to enable the world o earn a far greater return
on the $5 trdlion and more that s spent on education
each year Aswe succeed, we'll grow our market
opportunity and help many more people make progress
in their hves through tearning As a result, we'll start 1o
grow agamin 2015, and mare importantdy wwill setus
up to be afaster growing, feaner, more profitable and
cash-gener atve comparty for yea s to come We'llbea
company deploying less capital and capable of eat ning
higher returns

My executive team

| thanlc all my cofleagues for their hard worlk and
commitment And [ thank our shareliolders for their
supportand patience We are already better placed to
help more learners around the world to achieve therr
own personal aspiratans

IMAGE REMOVED

John Falion Chief executive

Lines of Business

Doug Kubach Presdent, School

1w Bozile, P1resdent, Hyher Faucanon
{abny Rudding Presdent Professionaf

Enabiling lunctions

Robin Freestone, Clvel financal officer

Corum Wikarns, Quef finanad oficer from [stbgaee 1015
tichas! Barber Clwel education 2dwser

Kate Jaces Civel corpurate affan s offices

Geogy aphies
Donkilburn Presdent, Nord Anrenca

Rod Brstow President, Core
Tamara Minck Scokalo, President, Growth

Luyen Chou, Cluel product officar

Albert Hichcode Chiefinformaunn officer

Melinda Wolfe Cluefhuman resources officer

Prul Hoffman Chuef c orporate finance & st ategic cevelopment officer
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Financial overview

IMAGE REMOVED

Robin Freesione Chief financial officer

Sates {1 CFR)

+2%

Adjusrad carnings per share

-0%

Operaing cash flow

+10%

Dividend per share

+67%

“In 2014, revenues were up 2% at
constant exchange rates to £4 9bn,
and level in underlying terms, but
declined 4% in headline terms due to
the negative impact of exchange rates.”

Business pei for mance Y ie “Ghowmi chowh | Growrh
Sales 4,874 5,069 (4)% 2% 0%
Adjusted oper ating profit

(excluding Mergermarket) 720 710 1% 8% %
Adjusted operatng profit 722 736 {(2)% 5% 5%
Adjusted earmngs

pel share 667p 70 1p (5%

Operating cash {flow 649 588 0%

Free cash flow 413 269 54%

Free cash {low pershaie 509 333p 53%

Return on invested capital S6% 54% 02%pts

Net debt 1639 | 379 (1%

Statutot y results

Sales 4874 5069 4)%

Operating profit 398 458 (i3)%

Profit befor e tax 305 382 {20¥%

Basic earauings per share S81(p 666p (3%

Cash generated in

operations 704 684 3%
Dividend per share S10p 480p &%
Note

0G0 v Futes asg stated ot LSt int es erange 1t (CEF 13 1stsin ess atheswnse st d Where
quots d L nderlyng rawt rates exciudt both cuuicy Mevmw st ind por diliochanges Un'ess
othe rw ye st 10d salet exciudt Pengunand | lerpone ket wale ad nst d epur iling prnsn dude
Pengua. Eengin Fanden Horte w1 Pimpesmarhoy Vonttiarng uper o w exdude Loty fengine
snd Mergerongr e

D) Trie s pees powtnr anre 1 asures are a0 GAAE metores audie coochal 0 o Hie rgrvesnt
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Profic & loss statement

Restructusing

I 2014, Pearsen sales dechned £195m, 4% i headline
reirms, to £4 9bn Total adjusted operating profit fell
£14m, 2% m headhine terms, 1o £722m after £44m of
net rest uctuning charges (2013 £135m)

Currency movements, primarily from the strength of
Sterling refative to the US Dollar during the year, reduced
sales by £272m and operaung profits by £49m At
constant exchange rates {ie stripping out the impact of
those currency movementis), our sales and adjusted
operating profit grew 2% and 5%, respectively

Acquisiuons and disposals contributed £79m to sales and
a net zero to aperating profits at constant exchange rates
Thus includes integration costs and investmernts refated

to our newly-acquired compantes, which we expense
Penguin Random House was reported post tax for the

full year in 2014, compared to only the second halfin 2013
following the cormbination of Penguin with Random House
on | July 2013, and resulted n a £7m reduction in the
contribution to operating Income with an equal benefit

to our tax charge

Stripping out the impact of portfolto changes, Pengumn
Random House and the impact of currency movements,
revenues were level in underfymg terms while adjusted
operatng profit (excludng Mergermarket} grew by 5%

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m, compared to
£72mn 2013 This decrease s mamly due to the mpact
of foreign exchange translauon and addiuonal interest
recewvable on cash balances held overseas which offset
the effect of higher average net debt levels in the period

Our tax rate n 2014 was {79% compared to 14 6% i
2043 reflecting tax settlements in 2013

Adjusted earnings per share were 66 7p (2013 70 Ip)

Net restructuring charges were £44m (2013 £135m)

and included portfoho, utle markeung and technology
rationalisation in North America, the consolidation and
integration of our operauons in cet tain Growth markets
and a move to a distributor model in South Korea, the
exit of non-strategic business ines in certain Core and
Growth markets, and, across all of our businesses,
technology platform and operasons smplification and the
ongoing transforimation of our supply chain and customer
contact operations (Gross restructuring costs were £84m
in 2014 (2013 £176m} offset by esumated net benefits
n-year of £40m (2013 £41lm}

Cash generation

Headline operating cash flow mcreased by £61m to
£649m benefiting from improved worling capital from
deferred revenue growth and an ncreased dvidend
from Penguin Random House, party offset by increased
nvestment fevels and ongoing restructuring charges

£ ee cash flow increased by £144m 1o £413m, addtionally
reflecung lower tax payments Ou average working
capital to sales ratio improved by a further | { percentage
points to |2 3% helped by lower mventory levels and the
absence of Penguin

Return on invested capital

Our return on average invested capal was 5 6% (2013
5 4%) Despite lower repor ted profit. ROIC benefited
from lower cash tax paid We expect ROIC ro start 1o
mmprove againin 2015
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Financial overview continued

Statutory 1 esules

[ 2014, our statutory operaung profit was £398m aftera
£77mwite down of the balance sheetvalue of intangibles
i our indran business, a £38mloss on disposal of our
stake in Nook Medta and a £40m gain on the disposal

of our stake in Safai t Books Online and CourseSmart
Qur statutory ea nings were £470m, induding a £/98m
gain from the disposal of Mergermarket and a £29m
adyustment to the Penguin disposal, primarily m relation
Lo penstons

I 2013, our statutory oper ating profit was £458m
Our statutory earntngs were £53%m, including a £217m
gamn fiom the disposal of Penguin

Balance sheet

Our net debtincreased 1o £1,639%m (£1 379min 2013)
primarily reflectng the strengthening of the US dollar
relative to Sterling and the acquisition of Grupo Mult
party offser by the disposal of Mergermaricet, fewer
restructuring charges mproved worlang capital, the
growth n deferred revenue and an increased dwidend
from Penguin Random House Pearson’s net debt/
EBITDA rato increased from | 6xin 2013 to 1 9x1n2014
and our interest cover inareased from 10 2xto }] 3x

Dividend

The board s proposing a dividend increase of 6% to 51 Op.

subject to shareholder approval 2014 will be Pearson’s
23rd swraight year of increasing our dividend above the
rate of inflauen Overthe past ten years we have
increased our dividend at a compound annual rate of

%, returrming more than £2 9bn to shareholders We
have a progressive dvidend policy we intend to build
our dividend cover to around 2 Ox over the long term,
increasing our dividend more m ine with earnings growth
from then

2015 outlook

in 2014, we completed the major rostructuring and
product nvestment programme, iniuated in 2013,
designed o accelerate Pearson's shuft towards significant
growth oppor tunities in digital, services and fast-growing
econonies Ve believe this will provide Pear sonwith a
significantly larger market opportunity, a sharper focus
on the fastest-growing marikets and stronger financial
rewrns n 2015, we are returnung to more normal levels
of restructuring expenditure

Based on 21 January 2015 exchange rates, we expect (o
report adjusted earmings per share of between 75p and
80pin 2015 The major factors behind thus guidance are
as follows

Trading conditions

We continue to expect that cycheal and policy related
factors stabiise n 2015

inNorth America oul largest market, we expect growth
n onbine higher education services and VUE and, with
more stable coflege enrolments and a slower new ediion
year, learning services to be broadly level In school,
white the possibiity of further policy related disruption
remamns, we expect greater stabifity in learming services
and assessments with growth in virtual schools

In aur Core markets {which include the UK, ltaly and
Australia), we expect trading conditions to stabilise in the
UK growthin nside services to broadly offset dechnesin
learrung services n Austrahia, and sustained share in lraly
following share gamns in 2014 We expect the Finanaal
Tirnes to continue to benefit from, and nvest i, its

digital transition
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In our Growth markets {(wihichinclude Brazd, China, India
and South Africa). we expect good growth in Chinamn
our Enghsh Language Learning adult and test preparation
businesses and contnued stabifity in fearning se1 vices, in
Brazil, we expect a better year i our Sistemas busimess
and good growth i our Enghsh Language Learming
franchises, and in South Africa we expect a more stable
yearinlearming services with modest growth m higher
education direct delivery

Por tfolio changes

We benefited for many years from the synergies

created by integrating Penguin into our shared services
operations Following the transiuon of Penguin iom
Pearson services dunng 2014, some shared services

costs t emain with Pearson without assocrated revenues
We esumate these shared services costs at approximately
£30m We can reduce this somewhat over time which
will be captured in our normal levels of restructurng

Pearson hasinitiated a process to explore a possible sale
of PowerSchoo! and our ather Student information
Systerms businesses including PowerSchool SMS,
Gradespeed, and e5IS Forms This process is at an early
stage and there isno cel tainty that it will lead to a
transacuon (02014, PowerSchool contnbuted $97m of
revenues and $20m of operating ncome Qur guidance
assumes ownership of PowerSchool for all of 2015
Pearson has apponted Evercore to advise on the process

Currency mavements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of its sales n the
US A five centmove in the average £ § exchange rate for
the full year (which in 2014 was £1 $1 65) has an impact of
approximately | 3p on adjusted earnings per share

The benefit from the weakening of Sterling against the
US dollu on our reported operaung income will be
partly offset by the strength of Sterling aganst a range of
non-US dollar currencies, ncluding the euro, Australian
dollar and certam emer ging markets currencies, and a
higher interest charge as Sterling weakness agamst the
US dollar ncreases the Sterling value of our US dollar
denominated debtand interest payments

Restructurmg

We will benefit from the absence of £44m of exceptional
net restructuring charges expensed in 2014 and we still
expect 1o generate £45m ofincremental cost savings

n 2015

These benefits will be partdy offset by normal levels of net
restructuring of approximately £30m in 2015

Interest and tax

We expect our interest charge o be tugher than 2014,
reflecung higher average netdebt levels, primardy as a
resutt of the strength of the US doltar agamst Steriing

We expect a tax rate of approximately 7% on our total
profit before tax (which includes the post tax cont tbution
from Penguin Random House)
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Key performance indicators
Five-year performance

Pei {o mance

Financial objectives «KPI . _
Maintain o

Sales rose 25 at CER w1 2014 and have grown over the last
lo ng_te rim five years at an average annual 1 ate of over 3% reflecung

growth

guodlong term growth mdigital and services businesses and
atgnsinons m the global educauon mark et pat ualty offset by a
shift 1o subscripuon revenues 1 vcent cycheal and pohicy factors
and adverse exchange rate movements

+3.7%

Learn mat o about link to
1emuneration on pBé

Totd adjusted oper aung profic

Tatal adjusted operatng prohiose 5%1n 2014 at CER and has
falien at a comnpound annual1ate of 3 4% since 2009 1 efllecting
good lang-term growth in digital & services offset by the sale of
businesses £xceptionals estructuring costsin 2014, recent cychcal
and policy factars and advet se exchange 1 ale movements

-3.4%

Deliver
sustainable
returns

Manage our
cash position
effectively

Totdl adiusted em nings

Total adjusted earmings per shat e s down 5% yeat on year in
2014 reflecung portfolio dianges exchange rale movements
and a higher taxrate Over five years EPS has gownaat an

aver age annual rate of 0 4% reflecung good long term growth

in out digrtal and se vices businesses offset by declines inprnt,
portiolio changes recent exceptional 1 estructur ing costs cyclicat
and poticy facrors and adverse eadhange rate movements

+04%

. (o}

L eatnmore abouthink to
remunes aton on pBo

Retur i onwnvested capitdl

ROIC grew 0 2% to 5 6% in 2014 and was flected by lower
reported profit and a highet tax charge ROIC has fallen from

8 9% 1 2009 We expect ROIC 10 startto imprave agan in 2015

-3.3

petcentage Pomts

Lerrn more about link to
remuneraton on pBb

Total shai eholder reun

TSRin 2014 was 7% which compares o a 1% rewmn on the
FTSE 100 Index of large UK hsted compantes Over {ive years
Pear son has 1 eturned appt owmately 62% well ahead of the
return on the FISE 100 index of 45% over the same penod

+61.9%

Learnmore about hnk ro
remunet ation on p8&

Dhvidends per share

We inct eased dividends in1 espect of 2014 by 6% 1o 3ip ow
23rd straight year of inci easing our dividend above the tate
of inflavon

+/7.5%

Qperanng cash {iow

Oper atng cash flow s ase 1o £64%m 0 2H4 up more than (0%
benefinng from fower restruciunng charges, mproved working
capital, defen ed tevenue growth and anwicreased dividend from
Pengun Raraom House, pardy offset by increased investment
levels Over five years aperabng rash flow bas deciined i an
average annual rate of over 6% per annum reflecung good fong
revm groewthin ow digital and services businesses oifsetby dechres
n prnt portfoko changes, recent prceptional restruCiung Costs,
cycheal and policy {actors and adve se exchange ate inoverments.

-6.6%

Lentnmore abouthnli 1o
renneraben on pBé
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Secuon 2 (1 pniom e

Strategic objecuves

DarafProgress

TranSform Revenue chare
to digital and Eg‘rg’f’“ £3 O b N
services 40N '
2004 - 62 1%
(_S-rOW - Rev_emuc share B -——
2000 - 109%
presence N rage o £794m
emerging ot to 3
markets

Non financal measures

+ Review programme on track
De[lver » Pians 1o repoi t hrst piton impacr
measu rab’e vesults in 2006 on terget
mpact
(fficacy) 200
Dehver- Gender dveruty
d MEN WOMEN
genaer Board 7 70% 3 30%
balance Senior managers
(exd executive
board direciors) 84 65% 35 3%
All employees 17064 42% 23470 58%
Reduce our Sl Shoemors
carbon S04
footprint 129,742 -11%
03
145, /16
Maintain
communlty
investment IMAGE REMCVED
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Section 2 Our pr riorirangs

Developing for access, delivering for outcomes

Qur strategy centres on a significant and exating
long-term opportunity: the sustained and growing
global demand for greater affordability. access, and
achievernent in education. We can meet this demand
by accelerating our shift to digrtal, to services and to
fast-growing economies, and committing to deliver
measurably mproved learning outcomes through
our efficacy framework.

Our primary segments for management repotting
are Geographies (North America, Core and
Growth) as this 1s how we drive business
performance This is how we reach learners, through
content and digital services in individual classrooms:
through broad partnerships with public and private
education institutions and, in certain markets, by
directly expanding capacity through our own schools
and cofleges.

This geographical structure 1s wholly dependent upon
a parallel product development strategy, in which we
organise by learning ages and stages - School, Higher
Education and Professional,

By focusing our product development around the
needs of the learner; we are able to centre evidence
and expertise where it can be best applied to
rmnproving outcomes for people.
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Section 21k n o it P ]

Oper ating per formance contmued

Geoagraphy

North
America

Sales Adjusted operating pi ofit

£3.0bn £464m

Revenues dechned 3% n headline terms, due
to the strengthening of sterling against the
US dollar, but increased by 2% at both CER
and in underlying terms Revenue growth in
Connections Education, VUE, Clinical and
Higher Education was parually offset by
dedines in School learning services and State
Assessments Adjusted operating profits
dedlined 2% in headline terms due to currency
movements, but grew 5% at both CER and
underlying, reflecting revenue mix, lower
returns provision, reduced US pension costs
and lower restructuning charges

In our statutory results, we recognised a £38m
loss on disposal of our 5% stake in Nook Media
and a £40m gain on the disposal of our stakes
in Safart Books Online and CourseSmart

HMAGE REMOVED

Our new operating and repo! ting Structiv e

North Amerca (O fa Jon mre  agew  mng
for Glimus pew negsis X

Learn more about Ows operatig struciure on p7 °
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Operaung performance continued

North America
continued

School

In School, good growth in Connections Educauon, our
virtual schools business, was offset by dechines inour
State Assessments business due to the impact of legslative
changes in Texas and Calformia, and in learming services,
due to some loss of market share (as reported at the half
year), revenue deferrat on blended programmes and
softness in the Open Territories

Connections Education served over 62,000 Full Time
Equivalent students during 2014 through full-ume virwal
and blended programimes, up more than 15% from 2013
Thrree new full-ume virtual public schools were launched in
2014 and an additonal one will iaunch in 2015 At full-ume
virtuat schaols supported by Connections Educauon,
students consistently outperfor m then virtual school
peers on state standardised tests Students at College
Park Academy, a blended school in Maryland using the
Connections Education curriculum scored significanty
lugher than their in-state peers in reading and math in
the Maryland School Assessiment (MSA) for 6thand

7th Grades

In State and National Assessments, high stakes online test
volurnes grew strongly, up 40% on 2013 to 11 million, as
customers transitioned to computer-based testing Paper
based hugh stakes test volumes dedined 17% 1o 32 million
in part due to the growth of computer-based tesung, but

IMAGE REMOVED

Connecsons Education served over 62,000 (+15%}) full aume
equivalent students during 2014 drough (ull-time virtual and
blended programmes Ar {uil tme ve tuat schools supporced
by Connecaons Lducation students consistently outperform
ther wirtual suhool peers on siate stindardised tes.

Logmumere at copnectonsedur suen com

also the impact of legistauve changes in Texas and Califorria
We were awarded contr acts to administar Partnership for
Assessment of Readiness for College and Car eers (PARCC)
assessments in i states and extended our contracts

1o adrimister Virginia Standards of Learnmg (SOL)
Assessments and the Maryland High School Assessment
We will conunue to administer the Florida Comprehensive
Assessment Test (FCAT) unul summer 2016

Choncal Assessment grew strongly, benefitng from the
launch of the fifth editon of the Wechsler Intelligence Scale
for Childh en (WISC-V) and strong growth in Q-Interacuve
where early studres are shawing good smprovements in
mental health professional productivity and student
engagement fevels

PowerSchoof supported almost §3 midlion students {in
more than 70 countries), broadly level with 2013, wile
heensed Schoolnet student counts 1 ose more than 10% to
over 10 milhon In Mew Jersey we launched Scheolnet in 27
school districts, with [4 more implementations i progress,
and have delivered over 400,000 assessments since faunch

L earning services revenues declined due to the impact of
revenue defer rals from blended digitaf programmes and
aloss of market share, with a weaker performance in
Grades 6-8 Science and Math in Texas, and Grades 6-12
Literature and Grades 6-8 Math in Flonda only partly
offset by a stronger performance in K-6 Mathn Texas,
Grades 6-12 Soaial Studies in Tennessee and Grades

-6 Math in Califormna We won an esumated 25% of
the total new adoptions market (of $910min 2014)
enVistonMATH, which now has the largestinstalled base
of elementary students in the US, continues to drive
significant mproverments i student computation and
probiem solving

IMAGE REMOVED
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Higher Education

in Higher Educanon, total college enrolments fefl, as
expected, by | 3% Career enrclments in two-year public
{commurtity) and four year for-profit colleges declined
3%, with nsing employment rates and t egulatory change
affecung the for-profit and developmental learning seciors

Learnung services grew modestly, primarily due to market
share gamns, continued growth in digital courseware
registranons, a stronger new edition cycle and less
pronounced seasonality MyLab registrations in North
America prew 3% to afmost || mulion Lecturer generated
case studies indicate that the use of MyLab programmes,
as part of a broader course redesign, can support

1mpt ovements in student test scores {(http //pearsn/
1ZxLE) Welaunched REVEL, which combines trusted
content with interactive videos, guizzes, a mobile user
interface study tools assignment calendar and
performance dashboard for 17 humanities and social
saiences subjects The launch of REVEL s the first of
numerous proguct ines taking advantage of our new
cloud-based, mobile-ready, and data analytcs capabihities
MNew editons launched in 2014 indluded Tro The Structures
and Properties of Chenustry: Acemoglu Latbson and List,
Econorcs, and Pearson Whter, an application buitt for
mobile devices that helps students i developing wriong
skills We published a range of digital utles for The Boy
Scouts of Amenica and implernented a new digal

cur nculum incorporating enhanced Ment Badge
programmes in subjects including Robotcs, Digital
Technalogy and First Avd for the organisauon's 2 7 enillion
youth members

(MAGE REMOVED

In 2014, we launchied REVEL combiaing trusted content
with rich interactiviry and content across {7 humanines
and soaal suences sulbjects REVEL 1w the firse of our
product nes taang ifl advintage of our new doud based
rachbile-ready and dara analytics capabriucs

Learn more at pear sontvghered com A evel

Pearson On Line Services where we run fully onhine
undergraduate and graduate learning pt ogramies and
eam certain revenues based an the success of the students
and the instituuion, grew course enrolments by 22% during
the year with continued strong growth in prograrmmes

at Arizona State University Online and University of
Flonda Online We signed new programmes with

Bradley University, 1o create five online graduate degree
prog ammes in nursing and counselling and University of
Texas at Austin, Dana Center where we are partnenng for
the web delivery of math courses for s New Mathways
Project (NMP), which will become part of a state wide
1eform initative ina collaboravon between Dana Center
and the Texas Associaton of Community Colleges

We expanded our collaboranon with the American
Health Information Management Association {(AHIMA)

to administer its online educauon business, which serves
AHIMA's 71,000 merbers including 10,000 tugher
education students each year We now provide our
learning management system hosung (00 courses based
on AHIMA content technecal support, a next generation
Virtsal Lab Product, and are launcting a Coding Basics
course combining AHIMA and Pearson content

Professional

Ar VUE, global testvolumes grew 9% year-on-yeat to
almost 13 mithon boosted by conunued growthm {T,
State Regufatory and Professional certficauons

New contracts include a deal to adrunister the Microsoft
Cerufied Professional (MCP) Program globally, which
significanty expands our exisung partnership with
Mierosoft through Certiport’s Microsoft Office Specialist
{MQOS}) and Mia osoft Technology Assoaate (MTA) exams

IMAGE REMOVED

M L b reqso auons in Morth America
y a grew 3% to almost | mithon
Lecesrer punerated case studies tndicate that

the use of Myl ab programmes can support
IMpI CVETIENTs IN TesL 5c0re*

L garn mor ¢ at pearseamylabandmastermng com
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Oper oting performanee (onimued

Geography

Core

Sales Adrsie d operaung profit

£1.2bn £152m

Revenues dechined by 8% in headline terms and
by 5% at both CER and in underlying terms
Modest growth in ltaly and good growth at
VUE was offset by dechines in UK assessment
revenues, due to the impact of policy changes
on our UK school qualifications business, and
reduction in partner market revenues, due to
divestments and a move to distributor models
implemented in 2013 FT revenues were
broadly level at CER, with digital content
growth offset by dechnes in pnnt content and
advertising Adjusted operating profit (excluding
Mergermarket) increased by £32m to £152m,
driven by the benefits of restructuring actions
taken over the last two years in all markets and
by profit growth at the FT

IMAGE REMOVED

Qur new operating and reporung structure

Core L fagarst € oo mnarkets retne UL Amtrala Cramany
Frame Benehis ol Bolv addnnnaly aebhave arouns 10 parpa
prarhe s whe e we Lo nothie seale nurzetses, s ae cQllebouate
A

Learn mare about Our operaong structure on pf °
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Operating performmance continued

Core continued

IMAGE REMOVED

We connnue to invest to build Pearson College in the
UK, and graduated ow first 32 swudents during the year
Pearson College was one of only fow privare colleges to
pans Qualty Assurance Agenry (QAA) review first tine

Learn more at pearsoncollege com

School

In the UK, qualfications have been impacted by
government policy, where changes to accountabibty
measures and a shift to end of course assessments i
GCSE have led to a 21% dechne wn BTECs and 1% dedine
n General Qualificatrons in the year We marlked almost
four milhon National Curnculum Tests, up 24% on 2013
QOur contract to admnister the Nauonal Currtculum Test
{NCT) was extended to 2017 More than 4,600 schools,
with aimost 850,000 children. now subscribe to atleast
one of the Bug Club services, our prmary school blended
1eading programme

In Austraha, we benefited from a stronger adopuon year
and the launch of the locally standardised version of the
Wechsler Pre and Primary Scales of intefhigence (fourth
ediuon) In ltaly, we gamned share in both primary and
secondary with new titfes combined with professional
developrment and online cross-curricula support
Inprimary we developed Top Secret and adapted

Qur Discovery Istand English Language Learning
programmes In secondary we extended our market
leaderstip in the Humaniwes

Revenues dechned significantly in our partner markets due
to challenging market conditions in Afica and Scandmavia
and the move 1o a distributor model in certain markets
We disposed of our tocal schools lists in the Canbbean

as we contnue to focus on our largest global geogt aphic
opportunities

Higher Educanon

in the UK, our learning services revenues declined,
primarily due to enrolment contracuon following policy
changes m the vocaucnal markets We continue 1o
mvest to build Pearson College and graduated our first

IMAGE REMOVED

Maore than 4,600 schaols in the UK, wath
amost 850,000 children now whserbe
to at teast one of the Bug Club services
ow primary school reading programme

Learn more at bugdub co vk
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32 students duning the year Pearson College was one
of only four prvate colleges 1o pass Quality Assurance
Agency (QAA) 1eview first ume

{n Austraka, learning services revenues grew modestly
benefiting from growth in core subjects, such as Brology.
and direct to nsttution sales of digital learning products
offsetby our exit from vocatonal publishing Monash
Oniine, our collaboranon with Monash University,
cortinues to show good growth and will laundh additonat
coursesinthe second half of 2015 Inaddionwe
collaborated with another leading university in Austraha
to provide course development, recruitment, enrolment,
and student support services for post-graduate courses

Professional

At VUE, test volumes grew strongly following the
successitllaunch of a new contract with CPA Austraha

to deliver Professional level exams and continued good
growth in UK Driving Theory test volumes We will
conunue to delver our UK contract to admsmister the
Drwing Theory test for the DVSA untd September 2016
VUE entered into ten year partnerships with the
Chartered institute of Management Accountants (CIMA)
and the Associaton of Chartered Cerufied Accountants
{ACCA) in the UK 1o transform a selectton of their exarns
from pen and paper to computer-based testing

The contribution from The Economist Group was lower
due to a dechine in advertising revenue, a weaker US dollar
and lower profits at CQ Roll Call The circulation of The
Economust remains robust at | 6 milkon, wath anincrease
of 23% i digita! subscripuons The Economist’s new daily
app, Espresso, was downloaded almost 400.000 bmes
The Group's content marketmg services continue to
grow with revenue mncreasing by 20% at CER

Financial Times Group

At the Financial Times Group, the FT grew its total
areulation by 10% year on year 1o arecord twgh of
nearly 720,000 across printand online Digital
subscrptions increased 2% year-on-year w almost
504,000 and now represent 70% of the FT's total
paymng audience The strong digital arculation growth
offset cantinued stiuctural declines in print content
and adverusing, where the FT continues o tale
market shaie

Product nnovation and launches, including an FT
Weekend app, daily FirstF T briefing with edrtors'
selecuon of essential news and comment from across
the web, follow the author” alerts and anew FT
Android App continue to resultin steady growth in
mobile usage and time speaton FT com Mobiles
the fastest growing channel We launched the FT {IE
Corporate Learning Allance, a joint venture with IE
Business School, wiich provides premum custom
learmuing to business teaders around the globe The
partnership connects the acadeimic excellence of
prominent business schools with the FT's award-
winring journalism and insight mto real world and
real-ume business challenges

IMAGE REMOVED

Rranaal Times® product innovarons
include the FT Weekend web app
and FirstfT, a dady emad briehng

of musr reads flanuts website and
other soutres

Learn imore atft com

FT dyptal subscrpoont
tncroased

+24%

504,000
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Operatng performance conbnued

Geography

Growth

Sales Adsusted opriating profit

£/46m  £35m

Revenues grew 1% in headline terms, despite the strength of
sterling against key emerging market currencies, grew by 1% at
CER, benefitng from the acquisiton of Grupo Muly, and were
down 1% in underlying terms, primarly due to the phasing of
purchasing and a stronger School textbook adoption in South
Africain 2013 Growing English Language Learning enrolments in
China and college enrolments in Saudh Arabia and South Africa
were offset by a smaller School textbook market in South Africa,
and lower revenues in Brazi from Sistemas, and ELT and Higher
Education textbooks Excluding the textbook impact in South
Africa, revenues grew 4% in underlying terms. Adjusted operating
profit dechined by £3m to £35m reflecting a benefit from the
acquisition of Grupo Mulu offset by a slower adoption year in
South Africa, launch costs associated with our new vocatonal
colleges and a contract provision in Saud: Arabia, and weaker
revenues and restructunng costs in Brazi

in our statutory resuits, we wrote down the balance sheet value of
our Indian business by £77m largely reflecting the reduced value of
online tutonng which was primarily focused on the US market

IMAGE REMOVED

Our new opes 3tng and 1 eporrng structure

Growth Ot p1o whimerkels are, maae i of Bia? L bowth Afnce Chowa fodia v otk
'L g owngz cosnomes Arsaad eoethirg of oo rplaeesre s v <mthe priuToes

Learn more about Qur operanng structure on p? O
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Operating performance continued

arowth continued

School

Professional

{n South Africa, we performed well, competuively
matrtatmng our mariket share of the School textbook
market, but volumes declined significantly to more normal
levels following a farge adoption year, and significant share
gans, n 2013

In Brazl, enrolments i our Sistemas were down 3% to
481,000 with growth in our public Sistemas (INAME)
offset by dechnes in our private Sistemas as we combined
our three sales forces mto one 72% of the municipahues
that adopted NAME for lower secondary education
showed improvement in their {DEB score, Brazl's
{federally established measure of educauonal quality

{nIndia, DigiClass our multimedia reaching solution 1s
now mnstalled in more than 26,000 dassrooms, up more
than 10% on 2013 We par inerred vath 1BM to further
accelerate our deployment across the country

Higher Education

In South Afitca, student enrolments in CTE/MGH our
private network of higher educauon institutions, grew
by 5% to {3,400 across 13 campuses

in Mexico, our fully accredited online university
partnership, UTEL, mcreased the number of students
enrolled from under 5,000 last year to moi e than 3 000
in 2014 as a result of improved consumer marketng
efforts and better student retention

Inindia, Higher Education revenues declined due to
gh levels of returns

IMAGE REMOVED

DigClass, our mutumedsa teachmg soluton
now nstalled i more than 26,000 dassrooms
mindra uprmore than 10% on 2013

Lems nmore at digidass i

In Pearson English, good growthin direct debvery n
Chma and mstde services in Brazl due to the acquisiuon
of Grupo Mult was pai tly offset by dedlines in learning
services in Brazil and Mexico

Globai student registrations for MyEnghshiab grew
15% to more than 460,000 with strong growth in
Latin America

We launched the Giobal Scale of Enghsh (GSE), a new
giobal standard for scoring English language proficiency
on a prease, numenic uriversal scale for businesses,
governments and acaderic institutions  The scale is being
embedded into all Pearson Enghsh products and services

In China, Enghsh direct delivery enrolments grew at
both Walt Street Enghsh (WSE), up 2% to 66,000, and
Global Educatron up 7% to 117,000 To suppor tlong-
ter m growth, we consolidated our ERP systems in China
and deployed a Salesforce com CRM system in WSE
We divested oul online vocational training operauons

{r Brazil, we completed the acquisivon of Grupo Mult,
the largest provider of prvate language schools n
Brazil We successfully integrated the business despite
challenging market condiwons and disruption caused
by the Worid Cup and Presidental elections

iMAGE REMOVED

Student enrolments wn CTIMGH ow
prvate networle of bugher educanon
msuwuons acrass South Afrea, grew

by 15% ro 13 400 acrast {2 campuses

Leai nmare at creac zaared g ac 22
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F’_enguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the first
truly global consumer boolc publishing company Penguin
Random House was reported post-tax for the full year n
2014, compared to only the second halfin 2013 following
the combination of Penguin with Random House on

| july 2013, which resulted ina £7myeducuonin the
contributon to operating ncome with an equal benefit
to our tax chat ge

Penguin Random House performad well in 2014,
benefiting particularly from a strong publishing
performance m Children s around the world and
mult-midhon-copy film and television tie ms

The US business published 760 New York Times print and
ebook bestsellers in 2014 (2013 full year pro forma 790},
enjoying exceptional success in children’s pubbisting with
John Green's The Fault n out Stors (29 weelks atnumber
one on the New York Times bestsellers fist and nearly eight
mihon copres sold) and four milhon copies of his backiist
titles, ve-in utles from Disney's Frozen film (more than

17 mifiion copies sold), Dashner's The Maze Runner
Forman's if! Stay and continued strong sales of LEGO®
movie te-in ttles MNotable Adult udes incduded Grishamss
Gray Mountam, Child's Persenal, Mok Kidd's The Invention
of Wings, Follett's Edge of Etermity, Bush's 41 A Portsart of
My Father, along wath surong film and television ue-ins,
such as Flynn's Gone Gul, Hillenbrand's Unbroken, and
Maruns's Song of Fte and Ice novels The UK business

published 206 Sunday Tinies bestselles s {2013 pro forma
207). also enjoying outstanding sates of john Green,
along with the conunued strength of Kinney's Wimpy
Kid franchuse Key Adult utles imciuded Brown's Infeeno,
Oliver's Janve’s Comfort Food and Girf Online by YauTube
sensation Zoella, which became the fastest-selling debut
UK novel ever

Penguin Random House has a strong publishing
programme for 2015, mduding new ntles from john
Grisham Jarmie Ohver, Torm Marrison, James Patterson,
Sylvia Day Lee Child, Nick Hornby Harlan Coben,
Danelte Steel, john Sandford, Janet Evanovich, Gayle
Forman, Enuly Giffin and Nora Roberts, as well as film
tie-1ns for 50 Shades of Grey, John Green's Paper Towns,
the sequel to [ames Dasher’s The Maze Runner, and
Star Wars

The mtegrauon of the two businesses 1s progressing

well and i1s on track to deliver net benefits in 2015 and
beyond Organisational structures have been aligned,
systerns ntegration s well underway and consolidaton
of North American warehousing will be completed in
the first half of 2015 InMarch 2014, Penguin Random
House acquired Santillana Ediccones Generales, a leading
trade book publisher in Spain, Portugal and across

Latin America, consohdanng its leaderstup in Sparush
language publishmng

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

We launched Global Scate of English, A npw
gicbat standaed for sconng Enghshlanguage
probcency o be embedded mo aft Fearson
Enghsls products and services

Leam man at english comigse

Student enrclments ar Wall Su ect Enghish

wn Cluna grow o 66,000 (+2%5)

Learn more wwellstrestenglsh com

We completed the acquisition of
Grupo Mun, the bar gest prawder of
private lanuage schools n Braal
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Other financial information

Net finance costs

g e —— o r————

Al figuresin £ nudhons ) 2014 ) 08
Net interest payable o {64} {72)
Financeincome/(costs)

in respect of employee

benefitplans b3
Other netfinance costs (30} ()
Totai net finance costs {93) {76)

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m comparedto
£72min 2013

Although our fixed rate policy reduces the impact of
changes m market inter est rates, we were still able to
benefit from low average US dollar and sterfing nterest
rates during the year Year-on-year, average three-month
LIBOR {weighted for the Group s net borrowings m US
doliars and sterling at each year end) fell by 0 1% t0 0 2%
This decrease in floating market interest rates, along with
the impact of foreign exchange translation and additional
interest receivable on cash balances held over seas, more
than offser the effect of higher levels of average net debt
in the pertod These factars contributed to the overall
decreasen the Group's average netnterest payable
from 4 8% to 3 6% The Group's average net debt rose
by £260m, largely as a result of net acquisition actvity
and the transtavon of our predomunantly US dollar debt

Finance income and costs relatng to retrement benefits
have been excluded from our adjusted earmngs as we
believe the income statement presentauon does not
reftect the economic substance of the underlying assets
and habilittes Also mciuded in the statutory defintuon of
net finance costs (but not in our adjusted measure) are
finance costs on put options and deferred consideration
associated with acquisiuons, foreign exchange and
other gains and losses Finance costs for put opuons
and deferred consideratcn are excluded from adjusted
eariungs as they relate to the future potential acquisiion

of non-contrallmg interests and don'ti eflect cash
expended Foreign exchange and other gains and fosses
are exduded from adjusted earnings as they represent
short-term fluctuations in market value and ar e subject
1o signuficant volaulity Other gains and icsses may not
be realised in due course as itis normally the intention
to hold the related mstruments to maturity

In 2014, the wotal of these items excluded from adjusted
earnings was a loss of £29m compared to aloss of £4m

m 2013 Both thelossesin 2014 and 2013 manly relate to
foreign exchange differences on un-hedged cash and cash
equivaients and other financal mstruments

Funding position and hquid resources

The Group finances its operations by a mixture of cash
flows from operations, short-term borrowangs from
banks and commeraal paper markets, and longer-term
loans from banks and capital markets Our objective is

to secure conunury of funding at a reasonable cost from
diverse sources and with varymng maturives The Group
does not use off balance sheet speaal purpose enuties as
a source of hquidity orfor any other financing purposes
The net debt position of the Group s set out below

Allfigures in £ mitkons 2014 2011

Cash and cash equivalents 53G 729

Marketablesecures 16 6
Net denvative assets ) ) —é_E)_M N ____?_6_
Bonds L
Bankfoans and overdrafts  (42)  (47)
Fanceleases (10} (ID
Netdebt C__Gem) s
Netcash classfiedas

held for sale e - 36~
Totalnetdebt (1639)  (1.379)
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tNet acquisizon actvity and foreign exchange rate
movements are the fargest contributors to the mncrease

in the Group's netdebt Reflecting the geographical and
currency spht of our busmess, afarge propor tion of our
debt s denommated i US dolfars {see note {9 for our
pohecy) The strengthemng of the US dolfar against sterimg
during 2014 (from $1 66 to $! 56 £1) mcr eases the sterling
equivalent value of our reported netdebt

The Group's & edit raungs remained unchanged durmng
the year The long-term raungs are Baal from Moody's
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor’s, and the short-term
ratings are P2 and A2 respectively Injanuary 2014,
Moody's changed the outlook on its short-term and
long-term raungs from ‘Stable’ to 'Negauve' InMay 20§4,
the Group accessed the capital markets, raising €500m
through the sate of notes matunng in May 2021 and
bearing mterest at | 875% The notes were swapped

to floatng rate in US dollars 1o conform wath the

policy described in note 19 The Group has a2 $1.750m
committed revolving credit facdity whuch was

refinanced m August 2014 and matures in August 2019

At 31 December 2014 s faclity was undrawn The
facility s used for short-term drawings and providing
refinancing capabifities, nduding acting as a back-up for
ourUS commercial paper programme This programime
15 primas dy used 1o finance our US working capital
requirements, in partcular our US educavonal busmesses
which have a peak borrowing requirement in June

At 3| December 2014, no commercial paper was
outstanding The Group also maintains other commutted
and uncommitted facilies to finance short-term worlang
capital requirements in the ordinary course of bustness
Further details of the Group's approach to the
management of financial risks are set outn note |9

to the financial statements

Taxauon

The effecuve tax rate on adjusted earmungs n 2014 was
179% as compared to an effecuve rate of 14 6% 2013
Our overseas profies which arise marnly in thelJS, are
largely subject to tax atbugher rates than that in the UK
(which had an effecuve statutory rate of 21 5%in 2014
and 23 25% n 2013) These higher tax rates were largely
offset by amorusanon-refated tax deductrons and by
adjustments ansing from settements with tax authonues
Both these itemns were less significantin 2014 than they
had beenin 2013

The reported tax charge on astatutory basis in 2014 was
£63m (207%) compared to acharge of £87m (22 8%) in
2013 The decrease i the statutory rate is mainly due to
tax benefits ansing on the increase i mtangble charges
only partly offset by the factors affecting the adjusted rate
as described above

Tax paid in 2014 was £163m compat ed to £246min 2013
Tax paid i 2013 was unusually bugh as a result of the
permitted deferral of US tax payments in 2012 following
Hurricane Sandy These paymenits were subsequently
made n 2013 and were accompanied by additional
payments arising from settlernents with tax authorities,
ncluding £55m refating to prior year disposals

Eiscontinued operations

In Qctober 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann announced
an agreeiment to create A new consumer publishing
business by combining Penguin and Random House
The transaction completed on | fjuly 2013 and from that
pont, Pearson no longer controlled the Penguin Group
of companies and has equsty accounted for1ts 47%
assocate interestin the new Penguin Random House
{PRH) venture
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Other financial informaton continuad

The loss of conu ol resulted in the Penguin business being
classified as held for sale on the Pearson balance sheet at
30 June 2013 and a subsequent gain on sale of £202m was
reported i the second half of 2013 Induded in the gain
reported in 2013 was a proviston for amounts payable to
Bertelsmann upon setdement of the (ransfer of pension
habuives to PRH During 2014, twas deaided that this
wansfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have
been credited back in the £29m gan reported against the
cisposalin 2014

The results for Penguin in the first hatf of 2013 and the
gains reported in both 2013 and 2014 have beenmncluded
in discontnued operations The share of results from the
associate interest in the PRH venture anising m the second
half of 2013 and 1 2014 has been included in operating
profitin contnuing operations

Addinanally, on 29 November 2013 we announced

the sale of the Mergermarket Group to BC Pat tners
The sale was completed on 4 February 2014 and resulted
n a gain of £198m after tax The Mergerimarket business
was classified as held for sale on the balance sheet at

31 December 2013 and the gam and the resuits for both
201(3 and 2014 to the date of sale have been induded m
disconunued operations

Non-controlling interest

There are non-controlling interests in the Group’s
businesses in South Africa, China and India although none
of these are material to Group numbers During 2013
some of the mmoriues in South Africa and India were
bought out further reduang the impact of these interests
in 2014

Other comprehensive mcome

induded in other comprehensive income are the net
exchange differences on translauon of foreign operations
The gain on wransiauon of £{75m 0 2014 compares 1o a
loss in 2013 of £2[7m and 1s prinaipally due to movements
i the US dollar A sigruficant proportion of the Group s
operations are basedn the US and the US dollar
srengthened m 2014 from an operung rate of €1 $1 66

to a closing rate at the end of 2014 of £1 $I 56 Atthe end
of 2013 the US dollar had wealened m companson to the
opersng rate moving from £f $1 63 to £1 $1 66

Also nciuded m other comprehensive income in 2014 1s

an actuarial gan of £8m (after offsetting a £15mloss n
respect of assacrates) t relation to post-retirement plans
This gan anses from changes in the assumptions used to
value the habdimes and from retums on plan assets that are
in excoss of the discount rate The gam compares to an
actuarial gain 1n 2013 of £79m

Dividends

The divdend accounted for in our 2014 financial
statements totabing £397m 1 epresents the final dvidend
in respect of 2013 (32 Op) and the interim dividend for
2014 (170p) We are proposing a final dividend for 2014
of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and payable in respect
of 2014 to 51 Op, a 6% ncrease on 2013 Ths final 2014
dividend which was approved by the board in February
2015 1s subject to approval at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and will be charged agamnst 2015 profits
For 2014, the dwvidend 1s covered | 3 umes by adjusted
earnings

We seek to mantain a balance between the requirements
of our shareholders for a msing stream of didend ncome
and the reinvestment opportunities which we identfy
around the Group and through acquisitions The board
expects to raise the dwidend above nflation, more m line
with earnings growth, thereby mamtaning dvidend cover
at &1 ound two times earnings in the long term

Post-retrement benefits

Pearson operates a variety of pension and post-
rewrement plans Qur UK Group pension plan has by
far the largest defined benefit section We have some
smaller defined benefit sections in the US and Canada but,
outside the UK, most of our companies operate defined
contrbunon plans In addiuon to pension plans we also
operate post-retrement medical benefit plans (PRMBs),
the most significant of which s inthe US in 2014 we
amended the eligibtity critera for the US PRMB plan
This amendment resulted in a curtadment gam and a
reduction in the ongong service cost of the plan
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The charge to profitin respect of worldwide pensions and
retm ement benefits for continuing operanons amounted
1o £83min 2014 (2013 £96m) of which a charge of £84m
{2043 £93m) was reported in adjusted operaung profit
and anincome of £1m (2013 charge £3m) was repor ted
aganst other net finance costs The reduced charge n
20141510 part due to the US PRMB curtailment gain

and also 1o a reducuon in costs refating to our defined
contnbutton plans

The overall surplus on the UK Group pension plan of
£86mat the end of 2013 has increased 1o a surplus of
£190m at the end of 2014 The moverment has anisen
principally due to continwing asset rewurns and defiat
funding which was only partially offset by an unfavourable
movement In the discount rate used to value the habilities
In total, our worldwide deficitin respect of pensiens and
other post-retrement benefits decreased fiomanet
deficr of £56m at the end of 2013 to a netasset of £27m
at the end of 2044

Acquisiions and disposals

The acquisiion of Grupo Mulu, Brazil s teading adutt
Enghsh fanguage training company, for £437m {plus £49m
in net debt assumed) was announced in December 2013
and completed on || February 2014 There were no
other sigmificant acquisisons i the year We recorded
£240m of goodwilt on the Grupo Mults transaction
together with £254m of intangibles relating to trade
names, content, franchises and technelogy Intotal,
acquisitons completed in the year contnibured an
additional £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted
operaung profit

The sale of the Mergermarket group of companies to

BC Parmersfor £375m was completed on 4 February
2014 and reahsed a profit before tax of £244m In additton
our North America business disposed of its joint venture
interests n Safart Books Onfine and CourseSmart,
realsing a profitbefore tax of £40m and its investment

in Nook Media, realising a loss before tax of £38m

Retui it on tnvested capitaf (ROIC)

Our ROIC is caleultated as total adpusted operaung profit
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average gross
invested capital ROC increased from 5 4% 10 203 1o
56%in 2014 Increased profit and reduced tax payments
are the main reasons for the moverment

Related party transactions

Transacuans with related parties are shown in note 37
of the financral statements

Post balance sheet events

There were no sigrificant post balance sheet events
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Idennfying and assessing nisk

Our prnapal nsks and uncertanties are outlined below
These are the most sigrificant nsks that ray adversely
affect our business strategy, financial position or future
performance The nisk assessment process evaluates the
probability of the nsk matenahising and the finanaal or
strategic impact of the risk Those risles winch have a
higher probabiity and significant impact on strategy
reputation o1 operauons, or a financial impact greater
than £40m are dentified as principal risks

The nslk assessment and reporung critera are designed

to provide the board with a consistent, Group wide
perspectve of the key risks The reports to the board,
winch are subrmutted twice per year; include an assessment
of the probability and impact of risks materiahsing, as welt
as rislk miiganion initratives and their effectiveness

The idenuficanion of the prinapal Group risks s mformed
by discussions with each Line of Business, Geography and
key enabling funcuions, identifying key risks and assessing
the adequacy of mitigaung conrols

The Pearson executve members have oversight of risks
relevant to each of theur areas of responsibility This isnow
inciuded in thesr poals and objecuves

The audit committee provides oversight and s eassurance
to the board with regard to the procedures for the
identificanon, assessment and repor ung of sk See page
71 for the commuttee’s 1isk-refated acuviues during 2014,
including deep dives mto selected principat nisks

Management s responsible for constdering and execuung
the appropnate action to mitigate these nsks whenever
possible Itis not possible to idenufy every risk that could
affect our businesses, and the actions taken to mitigate the
risks described below cannot provide absolute assurance
thar a nisk waill not materialise and/or adversely affect our
bustness or financial performance

Rislc appetite There are certam areas where we do not
have any appetite to take risks, such as complymgz with
laws on anti-bribery and corruption or the safety and
secunity of learners In other ar eas, such as strategy and
change, we recogruse the importance of managed risl-
taking m order to achieve business objectives and goals
During 2015, further work 1s being done to define nsk
appetite and tolerance and to embed this more formally
into deasson-making and day-to-day bustness activities

OUR PRINCIPAL GROUP RISKS

Qutlined here are the most significant
risks that may affect our future. VWe
assess the probability of the risk
materalising and the financral or
strategic impact of the risk The risks
with greatest potential impact are
identified as principal risks

Learnmot e about Principal 1isles
and ncet tanbes on p36 37 Q)

@) Governmenc regulation and decisions

€ Digiat and services evolution and market foices

€) Acquisions, divesements and joint ventures

STRATEGY AND
CHANGE

o Business transformation and change

€ Talenc

@ Customer facing systems

€ Tesung faluie

RISKS

16 ] Safery safeguarding and ptotecoon

0 Tax

@ inretiectual property
g (@ Data prvacy and cyber secunty
= (D Ano-briber y and corrupton

LEGALAND FINANCIAL OPERATIONAL
RISKS

COMPLIANCE




Qur principal risks

Rusk categories To aid in the idenuficanon of risks and
development of associated mitigating actions, risks are
categonsedinto four main areas strategy and change,
operanonal, financial, and legal and compliance

Key changes to Group risks in 2014 As set outn the ‘our
performance’ section, 2014 was a year of considerable
change across the Group These changes prowde the
foundauon for significant rmitigation of strategic and
market risks, including the shift to digital and services
Butwith change ther e can be an increase in risk in the
shortterm Addwonal governance and oversight was
putinplace to metigate these change-related risks As the
new organisation st ucture stabdised, there was resulung
clarity n roles and responsibilities This, together with the
appointment of management and staff to key positions,
assisted m mitigaung risk in a number of key areas

RISK ASSESSMENT

MPACT
hnanclal, rzpuratany strategic operatonal]

FROBABILITY

Secuon 20 pwrioum alce 35

With the ncreased focus on growing our direct delivery
business actitias, there has been a need tomprove

the effective management of related operational s sks

Thus mcludes the safety and secunity of our learners which
isreflected as a new principat 1isk  Specific rofes have been
created and filled to ensut ¢ there 1s expertse to deal

with these areas and this will continue to be a focus area

n 2015

With the acceleraung shuft to digital products, we

continue to locle at ways that we can improve our
customers' expertence of our pr oducts and ser wices

Thus 15 parucularly the case for products where there are
pertods of peak demand on our systems, such as ‘back to
school’ tmes A dedicated cross-busiess task force has
been putin place to ensure thatroot causes are addressed
and improvements implemented

Learn more about Risk Governance on p76 @

e
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Principal risks and uncertanties continued

STRATEGIC & CHANGE RISKS
Risk

Mitigaton

Government r egufation and decisions
Changes m{unding policy and/o regulations
impact business model and/or content
deaslons acnss ali mai bets

In the US we actw ety momstor changes through pat uaipation in advisory
hoards and 1 epresentation on standard seLung commurtees Oen customet
relationship teams have deladed knowledge of each state market We work
through cur owi cot pot are affairs team and ourindustry trade associauons
including the Assocanon of American Publishers We are also monnening
mumapal funding and the impact on our education recavables

I the LK we mantam refatonships with those government departments and
agencies that are responsible for policy and funding We work proactively
with themn i ensure our prog ammes meet eisting and new government
objecuves at the right quahity level

Across all of our othet markets, local management monitor and respond
to potential and actual changes inregufations supported by our global
corpor ate affars tearn This includes Growth markets of Chuva, India,
Brazil und South Afnca

Oigial and services evolution and mariel
forces Failure to successfully nvestin and
defiver the right products and seivices

Our global educaton strategy will drive a faster move to dygital and services,
recognising that this 1s a significant opportunity for Pearson asweilas a
porenualtisk We are b ansforming our products and services for the

digital environment along with managing our print inventaries

Our content 1s beng adapted 1o new technologies across our businesses
and s priced to drive demand We develop new distiibution channels by
adapting owr product offering and nvesting 0 new formats

As setouton page 38 43 oul focus on efficacy 15 dnving our decisions on
hiow and where we mvestin products and services

Acquismons divestinents and jont veriu es
Falure to generate anucipated revenue
growth synergies and/o1 cost savings from
acquistuons mergers and other business
commnatrons could lead to goodwill and
mtangible asset impairments

We pet form pre transaction dee dihigence and dosely momitor actual
performance to ensut e we are meeting operational and financial Largets

Any divergence from these plans will resultin management acuon ro improve
per formance and mininuse the rsik of any impan menis Executive management
and the board receve regular reparts on the swatus of acguisitions and
mergers with a formal review once per year

Business uansfor mauon and change

The pace and scope of curbusiness
transformation gutiatves ncrease the
execution risk that benefits may not be fully
1ealised, costs of these changes may it ease,
or that our business as usual activites do not
perform ih line with expectauons

As noted in the Chairman s introducuon the most difficult phase of our
wransformation has now been completed There remainanumber of
important change mitiatives in progress such as the Enabling Programme,
which will dehiver sustainable mprovements in finance, human resources and
operations In addstton o usual geod pracuces in place forproject and change
management there is enhanced governance monitoringand 1 eporangm place
for these mest sigrificant change inbatives

Talent Fatdure 1o attract retan and develop
staff including adapoing to new skl sets
required to run the business

QOPERATHONAL RISKS
Rusk

Tiw suph the changes during 2013 and 2014 we have been successful in
promoting our best nternal talent and reo uiungindividuals whe are global
feaders m their speafic field

As part of our transformation we have made and contnue to make
improvementsin a number of areas that are ey 1o ritigating talent risk
These indude clear employee objectves and development plans an alt
employee engagement survey with achon plans as appropriate, sUCCession
planning and talent management and compettive remuneration plans

See page 65 for derails of heboard's talent review

Mingadon

Customer faang systems Fagure Lo mantatt
and support customer fagng serwces
systerns and platforms ancluding quabty

and pmely executon of nuw products

and enhancements

Eifecuve project management disciphnes are in place to ensu e that
enhancements and new products meet the required standards Red-ume
momntoring and reportingof operavotal performanca s used (o denufy
any 1ssues and direct appt opnate responses

A Quality Task [orce (QTF)sin place 1o oversee improvements to ensure
GUI CUSTOIMErS expenerce s one hatis expected fnom a digtal business
Fhvs nitiauve has already defivered significant tacucal improverments and

1s drving longer term strategc impravements




OPERATIONAL RISKS
Risk

Section 241 pridciiance 37

Migation

Tesung faiure A controt breakdown or
serace {akurs in our school assessment
and quahfications businesses could resuht
wn finangsal loss and repurational damage

Our professional services and school
dssessment businesses mvolve compley
contractual refatnnsh,ps with both
government agencres and commerciat
customers for the prowsion of vanous
testing set vices Qui financal results,
growth ptospects and/o! reputation may
be adves sely affected 1f these conty acts
and relationships are poorly managed

We seek to minimmse the nsk of a brealdownin our student martung wath the use
of robust quality assurance proceduses and controls and oversight of contract
performance combined with our nvestmentintedhnology projectmanagement
and slulls development of ot people

In additon to the mzer nal business procedures and cantrols implemented to
ensure we successiully delivet on our contractudl commutments we alsa seek

1o develop and maintain good 1 elationships with our customers to rmimmise
associated rishs

We alse look to diver sify our por tiefia to runurie: reliance onany single
contract

Safety safepuarding and protecuon
failure to adequately protect children
and learners partcularly in our direct
delivery businesses

Rusk

Recogrising the importance of managmg evolving riks associated with our dinect
delivery business models, we created and filled the rofe of a head of safeguarding
and protecnon See page 49 for further details

Migation

Tax Rusk that changes intax law or
perceptions on tax planning su ategies
lead to hugher effective tax tate or
negstive reputational impact,

LEGAL RISKS
Fusk

OQur tax strategy reflects our business su ategy and the locations and financing
needs of our operavons In comimon with many cornpanies, we seek 1o manage
out tax affairs Lo protect value for our shareholders 1nboe wath our broader
fiduoa y duties We are commutied to complying with al statutory obligations
10 under Latez il disclosure 10 tax authot mes und 1 folfow agreed polices and
procedures with regard to tax planming and strategy

Oversight of tux sirategy 15 within the rermit of the audit committes, wiich
receives a reporton this topic at least once a year All of the audit cornitiee
members are Independent non-executive directors The chief finanaat officers
responsible for tax swrategy the conduct of our taxaffars and the managemern
of tax risk a1 e defegated to a global team of 1ax professionals

Miuigatron

Intellecteal property if we do not
adequately protect ous ntellectual
prope: ty and proprieta y rights our
compettive posiion and resufts may be
adversely afecied and imivour abihty
10 grow

We seek to rmugate this type of risk through general vigilance co-operation
with other publishers and ti ade assoqations advances in technology, as well
a5 recourse 1o law as necessary Digital mghts management standards and
morktaing pr ogramimes have been developed We have a piracy task force

to wdennfy weaknesses and remediate breaches We monitor activenes and
regulanons in each market for developments in copyright/intellectual prope: ty
law and enforcement and take legal action where necessary

Data privacy and cyber securny Failure ro
comply with data privacy regulatons and
standards or weakiiess i normacon
secunty mduding a falure to prevent ol
detecta malicrous attack on our systems
could result s amaor data prvacy breach
ceusingy eputanonal damage to ourbrands
and financal Toss

Through owr global enterprise miormaiton secunty and compliance progranime
we have established 4 gover nance model security and privacy frameworkand
policies a global secunty and privacy argarusatonal medel and standard based
infarmaten secur ity and privacy cong ols and practices

We constantly test and re evaluate our data secut ity procedures and controls
across all our busnesses wath the an of ensunng personal data 1s secuf ed and
we comply wath retevanttegisation and contractuat requirernents We pursue
appropnate prvacy accreditanons e g TRIUSTe Prvacy and Safe Harbor Sexd
We regularly monitor regufauon changes to assess the unpact on exising
processes and progranaites We have estabhshed & gobal secunty operavons
cent e that prowdes engoing nronttorng of potenaal smalicious attacks on our
wfrastructyee and systems

Aqu b ibery and corruption Falure to
effecavely rnanage 1sis assoaated with

comphance (o global and local ABC legislation

Our ABC compliance programmme was rolled outin 204 1o supporr compliance:
wath UK Bnbery Act inline with "adequate procedures gidance Ow rero
tolerance’ approachis also designed wo comply with il other globat andlaca!
ABC laws and regulations We has e ansk-pased programime of training {onine
and face-to-face) Qur ABC policy 1s commuswcated to third pivttes and forms
part of our contracwal terms for bugher riske third parses
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Efficacy

|. Introduction

“A deceptively simple but incredibly
powerfuf idea’ that every product
we sell can be measured and judged
by the outcomes it helps the learner
to achieve.” John Fallon, Chief executve

Measuring outcomes

At the tme of writng last year's Annual report, we had
Just announced a new commitment to what the company
calls efficacy The goal was simple, but also tcredibly
challenging we would move to define measurable learner
outcomes for Pearson products and services, and to
report publicly on the learner outcomes delivered by

our products i early 2018

We ware also extremely aware that efficacy 1n education s
not a challenge we can tackle alone We will need to share
what we are finding out, and be prepared to histen to all
the feedback And we will need 1o be willing tolearn from
others as they pursue thewr own methods YWereman
absolutely commutted to this community approach

Review process and result

When we began efficacy was merely a conceptand a
fofty goal We had developed a framework which could
evaluate the ikelihood that 2 product or service will deliver
its ntended outcomes, and had designed a process 1o
apply the framewori within the Lines of Business via
efficacy reviews Since 2012, we have completed 200
reviews This process has provided snapshots of the state
of efficacy in differ ent parts of Pearson, as well as what
investments we need to make in order to move towards
greater efficacy, at a praduct and service leve!

Reporung on efficacy progress

2. Makihg the cha nge

Developing our strategy

T he commitiment to efficacy has emerged as the central
theime to Pearson's strategy and culture Ouremployeces
are driven by the mussion of helping learners male progress
ntherlives, it provides meaning to our work Theres also
a clear business and commercal case for the learner-centric
approach we are now taking to run our company Pearson’s
scale means we are in the strongest position it the global
market to evaluate the effectiveness of different educauonal
products across many populations, and to develop and
implement new evidence-based models We are the first

i the market 1© cormmit to reporting on product efficacy,
and the fit st to engage outside partners who will
independently validate the rigour and objectivity of our
efficacy measurement This feedback toop will make our
products betterand strengthen our relauonships with
customers and end learners, and will yield meanngful
results for the business i the conung years We also hope
that through this approach we will nfluence the education
sector more broadly

Embedding efficacy

Culture We also know that our commitment to efficacy s
ruch more than a strategy - to be truly effective itneeds to
become a way of working for every one of our employees
To malke this happen we have putin place a giobal efficacy
network of Pearson experts who are dedicated, most of
them full-rme, to embedding efficacy into the way we do
business as a company Theirefforts will ensure all our
employees are driven by the mission of helping learners
to make progress in thetr lives The team s matched to
Pearson's new orgarisational structure we have efficacy
leaders (0 each global Line of Business as well as the

Malung the change in 2014

We are commuized 10 reporung on learner ouitomes by 2018
Putlishean 2043 The mcomplcte gurde to delverip lanics outcomes
caplamed e prog amme and s (1 ansformauve poterss’ The reponse
was overwhicmingly pasitive from nternal and external siakehiolders
and over the pastyear we ve made furdher mindes Alongside this Annual
repo t we are publistdng (n the rood to debvering
{ocuner ontcenes winchreporis
tiwg progress

Read the reports online ar

efifcacy pearsen com

200

SlicaLy teviews

20,150

{.mployees have ong iged m efficary trwning

88

Hicacy leaders sc10ss Petrson
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Geog aphies, working cross-funcuonally to impact global
and iocal product development and the way we market,
sedl and measure our products and services

Traming Efficacy depends on the cormmitment of every
employee - not only those occupyng these new postuons
So we have also rofled out broadscale efficacy tramning on
the topic throughout the company We have created an
online course on efficacy, which was added to the new
hure orientation package and 1s avalable to everyonen
the company via our internal learrng portal Over 20,000
employees have talen the course naddition efficacy
leaders are 1 unning worlkshops and trainings in person

alt over the world to build awa eness and understanding

External engagement We know that going this alone ss
notanoption The solutans to the efficacy challenge will
emerge from many corners, from different professions,
and also from different sector s That's why we have
contirued our public engagements, to help play our part

1n this global community of changemakers We partnered
with the RSA 1n the LUK on a seres about learner
outcomes, and contributed to the Shared Value Inmuative’s
conference on the Role of Business in Educauon We have
emphasised efficacy in our presence at nnovation events
such as New School Venture Fund's annual conference
and SXSWedu Efficacys also a central partof our
commutment to the Global Partnership for Education,

of which Pearson is the only corparate member; we will
be offening in-lund workshops and efficacy reviews to
member countries, and giving GPE members accessto
our growing body of research on learner outcomes

LEADERSHIP: EiF.CACY EAFERTS

“Efficacy s the reason why [ work in educaton —long
before I'd ever even heard of that word Asa South
African, {live in one of the most wonderful but also
one of the most uneqg:al countries in the world
Everyday | am confronted with examples of how
people have either benefited from a strong education
or been severely disadvartaged by the lack of one
Through offering good quality educaton,

with measurableimprovement of

learner outcoines we canhelp bring

about change *

IMAGE REMOVED

Marion Smatibones
Loavaty duector, Schad!

“Tome efficacy means that we care enough about the
customer expenence and the wust they place inus,
that we're willing to reorganise our company to make
sure we deliver the outcomes we're promising it
means bemg personally accountable for my actions
and askang myself each day, "How can!

male a difference to students and

teachers today”™

IMAGE REMOVED

Karen Mullane

Yoo presalere flicacv ety
Peatcon Idortl, Rroeica

Learn about our aperating structure on p7 @

“Before hearing about efficacy,
| thought my job was just to drive;
| thought, sn't 1t the same to
be a truck driver who deltvers
books and a trudk driver

“.. Now | realse my job has to do with
education |am a partof the educational
process in my country. My children,
and even my grandchildren, will be
benefited by the job I do™

who delivers alcoholic

drinks or tobacco? .” IMAGE REMOVED

Juzn Hernandez a Pearson t ucl dnverwho paruapated
in a workshop cafled Fficsoa para todos {ackeated by
Vergriea Valges Efficacy manager LavnAowncaHub
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Efficacy continued

3. Efficacy In action

Efficacy s changing the way we
operate and develop our business,
alongside our employees, customers,
and the broader education market
We have early evidence of the
impact of the products and services
we deliver to customers

Efficacy approach and activities

Efficacy reviews, studies and implementaton

Our efficacy review process provides a ngorous way Lo
evaluate whether a given pi oduct or service is pesitioned
to deliver learner outcomes and to identfy how it should
be improved ltis being used m every Line of Business

{soe framewarlc befow) Efficacy stwrdies evaluate the
efficacy of a product or service in the market, conducted
In partnershup with customers, learners, and increasingly
third-party acaderuic instuuions We are starting to worls
with customers to ensure that Pearson products and
services are used and implemented in ways that maxirmise
theirefficacy based on this research

Efficacy in the product ifecycle

Define intended learner outcomes

Rewview products to ensure they are positioned to
deliver on those outcomes, and put in place efficacy
IMprovement prog ammes

Conduct research to measure the efficacy of products
and feed insights badk inwo product development

Support customers to effectively implement the
products to get the best cutcomes possible

Starung from outcomes

in 2014 we further defined the standards for these
assessments of our products. creatng a more detarled
descrption of the outcomes Pearson products and services
deliver as well as the relauve strengths of different types
of evtdence used in our studies The 1able opposite shows
our proposed framework for the types of outcornes that
customers desire

Efficacy review framework

Our efficacy framework examines different
aspects of our product performance

I Qutcomes 2 Bwvidence

3 Planning and 4 Capaaty to delver

implementation

Our efficacy frimework s ako being used by athrs {warh our suppor )
and theirfeedback has helped to rehne it View our onbine tool 27
efficary pearson com/ow -path to-efficacy/how Lo raview

Peat son products at all stages of matunty will be
incerporaung efficacy nto therr development via a formal
global product hfecyde which 1s being rofled out across
the busmness New products or featut es will need to be
justified by educatonal researdh supporung their design,
products m growth mode will be gathering mct easingly
robust evidence that the product s improving learnet
outcomes and evolve accordingly Mature products

will continue to sustam and monitor efficacy evdence
alongside financial metrics Further, efficacy requirements
are now mcorporated nto aur acquisitions and
investments processes, from the Pearson Affordable
Learning Fund to traditional M&A

Shaping Pearson products

In addiuon to the huge strides on culture and processes
described above, we have a plan in place 1o guiddy impact
arange of Pearson products and to prepare the company
to report publicly on efficacy in 2018

Making the change in 2014

“We are enthusiastic supporters
of the efficacy approach
in 2014 tbecame the
way we work and plan.
it's not a review
process, it Is a way

of doing business.” IMAGE
REMOVED

Caspar de Bono
I oragng on o0 Finanzal Tirme {2
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EFFICACY: TYPLS OF QUTCOMES

Defintion

Example outcomes

The degree Lo whichfearners can
accessa product (e g accessto
technology and socio economig
access)

The level of fearner sausfacuon

The fevel of motivation and
confidence that the learner gains

Alllearners can access digital
learmng materals from a
personal computer tablet
or smart phone at anyume

Learmers have i postive
learming experience

The progress that the leai ner
imakes through the course

The time taken to achieve the
standard or competence

Learners complete course of
work within one semester

Quatficavon ganed

The level of performance ana
standandised test

Course-specific competences
demonstrated

The acquisinion of specific skills

Lenner earns 2 bacheior's
degree

The learner wili be able 1o
demonstrate mastery of
the English course matenal

tevel of aspiration
Category and value
Access Uskey
Thelearner access
and experience
N Usage rhythm
Completion | &
The umeliness
of completion
| Competencies
Achieverment | come
The standard of achievement achieved
ot level of competence
' ‘Door
Progression | Peer .
Learner progression
-

Malang the change in 204

Ability oflearnerto p1 ogress to
next course of study trainmg
or employment

Learner gets ganful
employmentin freld of study

" Akey client was delighted to hear about our interestn
thelping bun1 focus on actieving the outcomes he had set
Although he wasn't used 1o having such a conversation
with 2 publisher (hus admission] he was very open about
what they need to do with the vanous schools and
programmes they manage Through the course of our
conversanon hemade « dear that he wanted to buiid a
new ‘premuer’ partership with us What really sorudik
me s how a conversauon on efficacy and outcomes
areated an almost kud-in-a-candy- store response from
such a seasoned executve "

“What really struck me
IS how a conversation
on efficacy and outcomes
created an almost
lud-in-a-candy-store
response ”

MAGE
REMOVED

Bruce Bergwall
usresed welpaient o 0
i-ghwer Cducay r
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Efficacy continued

4. Early impact in 2014

The first wave

{n 2044 we identfied a fi st wave' of products with

which to inmate our work in efficacy The st was chosen
based on a set of business and efficacy criceria, including
market positen, product and data matus ity, strategic
importance, and the scale of customer base and 1 evenue
The products and services represent a mix of geographies
and targetlearner populations They will be the focus of
the fi st externally-audited efficacy reportin 20(8

Key achievements so far

We ve achieved the following milestones i our tineline for
impacung the full range of Pearson products and set vices

Al of the ‘fir st wave' products have defined the [earner
outcomes they are positioned to deliver, as well as the
metrics they wilf use to measure those outcomes

Pearson products in all categories are steadily prog essing
through efficacy reviews, we are developing mechanisims
for dassifying and tracking products’ progress on efficacy
throughout the company next yeat

A majority of the products whuch have undergone efficacy
reviews are on the path to efficacy, meaning they are
conunually worlang to complete the acuons identfied
during efficacy reviews to increase the efficacy of the
product are demonstraung progress on gathering
efficacy evidence, and are refining thesr efficacy plans
through follow-on reviews and dralogue with customers

Each Line of Busmess has at least one 'first wave’ product
that s in a posiwon to report on efficacy iImpactwith a
view towar ds external reporting in 2018 Weare sharing
these publicly alongside this Annual report

Learn about our Lipes of Businessin
our operating structure on p7 €

EFFICACY: PRODLCT PROGRESS IN 20,4

As evidence of the p1 ogress we have made, we are
publicly shaning details of efficacy pr ogress for five of
our products on an online site This data s preliminary,
we do not yet have fully validated evidence of outcomes
with customers, because of the lead ume that rigorous
studies require We are eager, however, to test early
restlts with our customers and other stakeholders to
inform the development of our research and repol tng
processes We invite you to read the full repot ts at
efficacy pearson com/progress

enVisionmath 2 01c a comprehensive next generation elementy ¥
marthematics curmeulum that has resew o based msirucnonal

pt acuces and & hased onthe ighty successful enVisionMATH that
reaches over s mitlion learners enVisonMATH user s achieve
sigeficantly greater growth in math proficency Lempared te oties

pi ogrammes as evidenc ed by an nde pendent randonused contr ol

Wali Street Enghsh pr ovdes prommm Enghsh language progrmmes
foryoung professiondls In aepth efficacy i eviews of opcrations were
carned out in four countries and have led 1o avanety of improvements
fromn helpmg iearners w better difine therr goals to measuring then
progress against these

MyEnglishLab provides learners in secondary schoot and highe!
education with interactive online practice, homewot k and
assessments, and teachers with a range of diagnostic tools for English
language blended-learning programmes Mare than 450 000 new
learnet s in 25 countries used MyEnghshiabs in 2014 The efficacy
review has led to a variety of improvements from UX to curriculum
design Efficacy studies were also complered with more than

25 instatutions a1 ound the world

MasteringChemsstry for General Chemustry 1s sn online homewush
wirorial and assessment programme serving up to 250 000 learners
annuatly tn the United States with 30 000 leamers annually across

60 other counries For sevenyears, cur product ieam «nd the cificacy
results team in North Amcrnica have worked with educator sto collcel
evidence about the nmpact of MastennpChemistry on learming and
have penermed 17 sets of user generatedresols naddiion scverdl
independent peer reviewed academic arucles have documented the
rficacy of MastenngChenmistry bath in and ouside the US We are
mobxksmg a wade r sz, of efficacy acwtiesm 2015 10 suppot tlus e
product inmprovemeids and deoumentinpacs nofea nen outomes
acrass abrosdurserof geopraphies

CTlend MGI provede patdwvays for the emcorgent pddle clars o gam
acce i 1o hyphereducation  South Afnca and the ecanomic and
personal advancement opportumies that this prowdes Currendy
they serve 14 000 students awoss 12CTHand 3 MGleampuses Our
rficaty efiarts prowde objectrve evidence of these oppor twoniues o
date and oun angemy efficacy programmie s focused on constantly
mproving oppurtuiities for our students and graduawes




5. Momentum

Masntaining progress through 2015

Section 2 Ciut jror i 43

A globat resear ch programme

We take the view that 2015 1s a crinical year for malang
progress on operavonahsing efficacy Our prionty will
be on delivering efficacy 1n our suraregic products, from
end to end

Key aims for 2015

The first wave’ of products will continue to make
cemonstrable progress on the path 1o efficacy

We are continually working to complete the actions
rdentfied during efficacy reviews to inci ease the
efficacy of the product, demonstrating progress

on gathering efficacy evidence, and refining ther
efficacy plans through follow-on reviews and
dialogue with customers

Read the first reports online at
eflicacy peai son corm/progress

We will idenufy the next set of products to
be the focus for efficacy efforts

This will be the ‘second wave', and the 1 elevant teams
will have identified clear outcomes to be delivered
by therr products. as well as having gone through
cfficacy reviews

We wili have evidence of increased awareness
and adopuion of efficacy internally

Tius will cover alt functions and geographies and we
will have reworked myajor internal processes to align
with the efficacy agenda (including, for example,
partnerships acquisitions, and product strategy)

We wll continue to incr ease the external
awareness of efficacy

through our ongong worlo with stakeholders, and w0
promote the adopuon of outcomes-based approaches
to educaton i the market

A successful future for Pearson hinges onmsightinto - and
response to — fundamental questions n educavon For
that reason, we are bulding global research capabihues
This will enable us to participate deeply tn the worldwide
conversation about learner outcomes, and tonform
business leadet s of effective educational pracuces

In addition to efficacy studies and market research, which
are based in bustness units, our new research capabilives
will iook into broad and global educauon themes, that
could m tum drve speafic product innovations

The global research team waill asm to uncover clear and

rephcable findings to eight key unanswered questons in
education, ranging from the micro (how children learn)
ro the macro thow education systems work effectively)

Learn more at research pearson com

IMAGE REMOVED

no

SSANISHA 4

o]
[
-
-
m
ol
A
O
ol
X
»
=z
(]
m

1O¥d I I¥ID0% ¥NO

IDNVMNYIADD

SENIPIALVAS TVIDNYNIS




44 Pearson ple & mal v poact and 2ueourts o)

Our socia
mpact




Section 3 M Lomepact 45

The single most imporrtant contribution that Pearson can
make to socety 1s to equip people with the access and
skills they need to progress Our commitment to efficacy,
(p38) 15 the means through which we will achieve this

Learning empowers people, and it defines our company
purpose. Acting responsibly is central to achieving this
purpose and to our business strategy, and how we deliver
is as Important as what we achieve.

ft shapes the deasions we malke, the culture and values
we promote and sustan, the relationships we foster,
and the ways we treat our planet Ultimately, operating
responsibly helps us to better deliver outcomes for
people, and to better meet the expectations of al

of society

IMAGE REMOVED

Robin Freestone Chiefl financial officer
{1md bo v d Rrember responaible for corporate rerpansbibiy)

Our socal impact strategy

In2014 we reviewed and redefined out socal imp It strategy
We have wlennfied three o gassing ideas that struciure our reporung

Standards Impact Innovation

Our standards work sces We planto make a sgrficans Phroughumnuvation we will
US LONTHIE EO anves E h ot comrbuuon hrough pariner o help find sohiions
pecple and o work hird to campaigning and programme 1e some of the biggestunmet
reducs ur envirolmental wawity witlra parucufarfoces educanonal needs

faenpnnt on bteracy
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Overview

Standards

Our commercial success ts
dependent on us operating in a
responsible way. VWe report our
approach and the progress we
are making across five areas’

Standards

I Our responsibifity See p47 @
2 Qurvalues and behaviou Scepd8Q
3 Our relatonships See pd5 @
4 Our planet See p52 ()
5 Qur performance See p53 ©

Also in this section

tmpact Project Literacy Secp54 @
Soaal innovaaon Sea ph6 ©

Woe will report on our progress in all these aleas
ur our 2014 Sooal Impact report availlable on
pearson com/socal-impact

|. Our responsibilif)_/_

Defintions

Pearsan has adopted a broad defimuon of responsible
busiress and has established a set of commitments
across a range of social, community and human rights
principles to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive,
appropt iate in content to the age, locauon and ability
of the learner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Respect and protect how we use and share data
entrusted to us by feat ners and our customers

fnform, support and equip colleagues o work
collaboratvely

Encourage and reward high performance nurturing talent
and creatng a culture where afl are able to realise thow
indvidual potential

Prowvide a safe and healthy workplace for ou employees
and the iearners of all ages we directly serve

Extend our commutiments on labour standards, human
rights and environmental responsibility to indude our
suppliers and business partners

Provide opportumties for Pearson people to be good
ciizens and to get tnvolved mn therr local commiunities

Dehver agamst our targets on our response to chimate
change and to make more efficent use of resources

Responsibility at Pearson

Environment and supply chain

Climate change

Responsible resource use

Responable procurenyoni

Orange = part of ow risk 2nd complance agenda
See: 71 &
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Based on these commitments, the broad ‘responsible
business’ issue map for Pearsonis set out befow ltreflects
a series of priortues that are common across many sectors
and individual companies These are the 1ssues that we
focus on when thinking about responsible business

Some of these 1ssues ar e central to our business success,
others may be small based on our commercial operations
but have the potential to significantly affect our impact
and reputaton The prionties in orange afready form
part of our risk and comphance agenda described on p7}
The relative significance of 1ssues varies based on courtry
operational, political and 1 egulatory envir onments as well
as learner expectations The piemise of our socml impact
strategy 15 that, m moving towards a single operating
company madel this i1s underpinned by dlear, consistent,
global policies and standards across the entire responsible
busmess agenda

Governance

Corporate responsibility cannat be separated from
our business and reputatton Qur board of directors
has ulumate responsibility for constdenng issues of
responsbility as part of setung business strategy

The reputaton & responsibiity committee, a formal
comnittee of the board provwdes ongoing oversight,
scrutiny and challenge across the entire responsible
business agenda Inaddmon, the board considered a
detailed review of the corporate responsibility strategy
at the June 2014 meeting Learn more onp78 Q)

The Pear son executive drives implementation of business
strategy, Including our r esponse to the key issues and
opportunities we face

This year. we established a single responsible business
leadership busmess council to oversee the deveiopment
and implementation of aur overarching responsible
business strategy on behalf of the board feis chared by
our chief corporate affars officer and comprises sentor
executives from across the global business

Stakeholders

Pubhic and private sector customers regularly seelc
information from us about how we go about our business,
while many learners and emplayees want to understand
our approach to sustanability Socrally responsible
investors, and non-governmental orgamisations loolc
atissues such as supply chain standards and ethics

Qur approach to responsible business is informed by

the priorties and views of our many stakeholders

Peopie Learners

Corporate culture and values l Affordatulity and pricing

Communities Values and

governance

Active atizenship [ Tax

Editorial independence
and integrity

Dwversity and indusion

Edvucal conduct

Campaigns ang partnet ships
(Code of Conduct)

Peoplerecrntment and Appropriateness and Polincal engagement Combatting corruption
development accessibiity of content {Anu bribery and corruption)
Remuneraton and Safeguarding and protection

compensation

[Heaith & safety Data privacy and security
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Standards continued

2. Our values and behaviour

Pearson employee survey

Pearson employee survey Our people told us

in 2014, Pearson put in place a new orgamisatronal structure
for the company that reflects our am to shift froma
portiolio of businesses towards a single operating mode!
with standard systems, clear accountabihity, a flatter,

more mentocratc culture and quicker deaision-making

Change can be both exhilaraung and inspiring, but

also brnings operauonal risk We recognised this and
throughout the year we conunually acked reaction to
change to understand how best to support our people

Most notably, we asked colieagues to tell us how they
felt about working at Pearson, and over 24.000 people
completed the engagerment survey YWe thenshared
the findings The lkey messages are outlined in the
next column

Code of Conduct

Our values are remforced by our Code of Conduct that
covers among other thungs mdividual conduct, learners
employees. community, the environment and our social
obligaucns Ve make sure everyone is aware of the Code
and this forms part of the induction process This year, we
started a process to review the Code to make sure that t
prowides the level of guidance and case study support that
our employees need to live by the standards we set for
ourselves The updated Code will be airculated early in
2015 1o everyone working at Pearson and they wili be
asked to confirm they have read it. understand it and
provide a check that the company comphes wath it

Issues and concerns

We operate a free, confidenual telephone helphne and
website for anyone who wants to 1 aise a concern and we
have a dear non-retzhation policy in place to encourage
people to share the issues they have in 2014, we had 112
concerns 1 aised through the ethics reporung process
These wei e investigated and where possible the outcome
shared with the whistleblower Tins year, as i most years,
the majonty of the concerns related to HR practces
Matenal concerns raised are reported to the Pearson
audit committee

That our purpose to empowerhuman progress

through learming was dear and compeliing, and
that our focus on efficacy is improving our products
and services Over 90% of our employees agreed that
the work of Pearson to improve the ives of other s was
ymportant to them But, we could do more tobe
clearer about how we achieve that purpose and how it
translates into every day planning and investment

That values and behaviour are criucal to our

success We responded to feedback from the
survey through a global programme of focus groups
and consultation with the executive team to look at
ourcurrent values to be brave, magnative and decent
n hght of our orgarsational structure Our amwas to
understand how we could help our people to apply,
bring alive and extend the values as the touchstone
on how we behave, zct and work together

That in this ume of change our leaders and

maanagers could do mol e to communicate more
often and more clearly their expectauons of working
together n amore joined-up way We will seia
performance goal for each Pearson executive member
toimprove on the results of the 2014 survey and will
contnue to support teams and supportleaders to be
role models for our values and behaviours as they
embed new ways of working Cur performance
assessment process has been idenufied as a means to
embed ourvalues and behaviours and help people
create clear career paths

More work s needed to express how the new
structure works and to challenge that it
is helping deliver for learners Consequently, we are
doing more work on the Pearson brand to dardy
who we arc and how our products are effective
avmproving learmng i ways that promote
human progress
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3.0ur rélationships

Helping learners to learn and
progress is both the focus of our
business strategy and the single
most Important contribution
we can make to society.

Leai ners and customers

Qur section on efficacy descnbes the commuitments and
progress we are making on our responsibiiines towards
the [earner A global challenge s to extend access to
affordable quahity education

An important new way of warking it oduced this year is
the Pearson product lfecyde framework for managing all
Pearson products, services and platforms Thisintroduces
a common fanguage and vocabulary to help us take a view
oninvesting in our products This1s part of a wider focus
on product and customer expenence thar wilt aliow us

to better hsten and respond to what our learners and
customers need As partof this approach, we introduced
the Net Promoter Score system into Pearson, one of the
meost recognised methods for measunng customer loyalty
We used this to assess how customers viewed some of
our most important products, along with a global brand
survey through which we will measure ourselves annually

As weincreasingly own and operate learning institutions,
sO we are active in serving learners of all ages mcluding
chuldren, young people and vulnerable adufts This
introduces new responsibiiies to safeguard and protect

Arnzona State University — Starbucks — Pearson

the best interests of our learners ~ providing a safe,
supportive and age appropriate fearning environment
whetherina classroom oronline This year, we adopted
a global policy on safeguar ding and protecuon and
appointed a new head of safeguarding to lead this
wnportant new area of work

Our people

We continued our focus on our broader responsibilives
as an employer Dunng the year

We introduced for the first ime a single global

approach to performance assessment This 15
designed to help our employees know what s expected
of them and o incentivise people 1o act consistently with
our values and business strategy VWe cascaded goals from
the top down with the executive team sharing thewr 2014
objectives with all employees

We consclidated the use of Milo as our single platiorn
to deliver traning to provide access to learning and
development, and 1o support performance assessment
Thists the first arme that Pearson has used a single
platform for these acovities

Employees completed approximately {10,000 courses,
with the new ‘one Pearrson - Exploring how we world
betng the most popular Through Milo we delivered a
new global employee induction called “VWelcome to
Pearson’, popular programmes on 'Efficacy for Everyone,
and a suite of management modules on performance
conversations Employees and managers also used Milo
to record theirindmadual goals, montor their progress,
and assess thewr performance

In june, ASUU and Starbucks
announced a unique partnership to
offer opportunities for the more than
{00,000 Starbucks employees to
access affordable higher education.

{MAGE REMOVED

ASU online offers Starbucks employees who work more than
20 higurs 3 week affcrdabie access to over 40 undergraduate
degree programmes in a survite povered by Pearson

IMAGEREMOVED ‘]

100,000 40

LInderp aduare
degree progrunmes

Swarbucks employees
te access affor dable
tugher educauon
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Standards continued

3. Our relationships continued

As part of our commitment to helping our employees
be safe, resiient and productive, we introduced a
common global nadent reporting system for heafth
& safety Ouroverall goalis to achieve zero harm o
employees worling hard through traiming and
communication to prevent madents before they occur
Our performance s reviewed by the audit committee

We made sure that our people understand how we

are doing as a company, including how world and
sector trends right affect them and the business We
provide comptehensive refevant informaucon induding
presentations, messages and webinars with senior
executives and consult where appropriate so that we
cait learn and take mnto account the perspectives of our
people in developing our brand strategy, we opened a
survey to all our employees with 3,000 shaning thewr
views on the direction we should take

Drversity and mclusion

We are commuitted to attracting retaining engaging and
developing the best people We know thai creating and
sustaining an inclusive work environment s criucally
important, offening equal opporwnity from the
boardroom down regardless of race, gender, gender
rdenuty or reassignment, age, disabiliry, refigion or
sexual orentation

On gender diversity, we conunue to seelk to support
women to advance n management and senior roles
We remain an enthusiastic supporter of the 30% Club
which brings together chairs and CEOs who worlc to

Diversity performance (as at 3| December 2014)

encourage a better gender balance across thew

companies During 2014, we actively supported the
Mentor ing Programme set up by the 30% Club which
provides talented mid- career women access (o €ross-
company, cross sector mentoring At board level, Pearson
appointed Ehzabeth Corley as a non-executve director
and has exceeded the target to have at least 25% female
directors ahead of the 2015 timeframe set by Lord Dawvies

We also supplemented the diversity toolikitlaunch last
year by launching Women in Learning and Leadership
(WiLL} a global employee networlain Pearson To date,
over 2,000 employers have joined as members of
WILL chapters around the world The ambiion of the
12 chapters established in 2014 s 1o proacuvely drive
change in support of women at Pearson

At the end of 2014, 58% of our global workforee was
fernale Women represent 35% of our sentor leadership
team The gender balance based on our orgarusatonal
structure can be seen in the table below

We continued to progress on supporting the Lesbian,
Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) community at
Pearson During 20i4, Spectrum was launched asa
global employee resource network dedicated to support
the advancement of LGBT colleagues across Pearson
Pearson agan received a perfect score of 100% in the
2014 Corporate Equality index recognising excellence

in corporate poliaes and practice in supporting LGBT
employees m the US, adnuristered by the Hurnan Rights
Campaign Inthe UK, we are members of the Stonewall
Diwversity Champions programme

Commumty mvestment

WomeninPearson {%) 2013 2014
Baoard of Owrector: 2i% 30%
Senwo loadersnp team

Gwareporsagloes ot CEO) 3% 35%
All employces 57% 58%
Employees by pender (number) tMen Wenten
Bowd ol Dnectorr 7 3
Semot leader st ream {two reporung ines

ropCEO excudmg Owetuive Board Die crory) 64 35

All employees 17066 23470

IMAGE REMOVED
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Disability forms part of our wider commitment to equal
oppotwmty We work to ensure that appropriate
policies, procedures, tawning and support are available
for people with disabilises to ensure fair access to caree
oppot tunities to realise thewr talent

Supply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and services valued at over
£2bn each year This total includes ournvestment in
research and development of new digital products and
services as well as advances to authors Pearsonwasa
founder signatory to the UN Glabal Compactin 2000
We were dlear from the outset that we would use our
nfluence with our supphers to improve standards for their
employees and the communities in which they operate
Ever since, we have momnitored our performance against
both the Global Compact principles and a set of
commiuments we made to them, reporong annually on
our progress The scope of the UN Global Compact
covers tabour standards and human nghts, combatting
corruption as well as environmental responstbility Speaific
dauses relating to these standards are an integral part of
our contracts for key suppliers These standards include
the rejecuon of forced and compulsory labour, arespect
for diversity a munmum age to work on Pearson projects
and complhiance with employment laws and regulations

Communities

Not for profit partners help us to extend our reach and
imnpact helping further learning - especially for the most
disadvantaged or hard to 1 each — in ways that are
complementary to our business objectives We therefore
partner with a number of chantable organisations and for
adecade, the Pearson Charnable Foundation has been
the largest of these

During 2014, we reviewed our community investment
actmvity and concluded that we could greatly increase our
1mpact by adopting a more integrated approach that
places socral impact at the heart of the business model
The Pearsen boai d approved in june 2014 a new strategy
which established increasing iteracy rates worldwide as
our anchor social impact carnpaign issue for the next five
years Qur section on Project Literacy explains more
about our new strategy In 2014, our comnunity
mvestment was £14 4m, or 2% of pre-tax profits

As part of this review, we assessed our existing chanty
partners and their it with our new approach and strategy
A number of these, mast notably, the Pearsen Chantable
Foundation, no longer ahgn with cur approach Therefore,
as of 2015, Pearson advised 1t would no fonger fund the
Foundation as the primary vehide for its phifanthropic and
community activities Having been informed of this change
i us funding, in Novernber the Foundation board of
directors passed a resolution to wind down its operations
and to close at the end of 2014 Pearson worked with the
chanty to ensure that new partners were found wherever
possible for the Foundarton programmes
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Standards continued

4. Our planet

VWe believe that better education

is crucial to building a better world.
To be passionate about a better
world goes further and we recognise
a shared responsibility to protect
the natural resources needed to
deliver learning today.

Chimate change

Pearson continues to be chmate neutral for our directly
controlled operauons, a commitment we firstachieved
i 2009 and have maintained ever since Ve have set
ambutious targets to reduce our operauonal emissions
by the end of 2020 and we work with employees and
supplievs to measure and reduce ca bon erussions
our value chain — from sourcing of raw materials to the
transport and distribution of our products

We continue to mantam our comymitment to cimate
neutrality through carbon reduction, purchase of
renewable energy, renewabie energy generation at our
sites and the purchase of carbon offsets We have also
started working on a carbon footpnnt anafysis of our
book publishing i the US and UK to help us target the
most effecuve reductions

Environment highlights

Highhights of owr actvities include

Pear son retaned global ceruficanon against the Carbon
Trust Standard We were the second ever crgamisation
10 secure the standard which recogruses leadershup

in measuring, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon erssions

We maintained our record of purchasing 100% of the
electricity we use from green power That represented
over 186 000 MWh of electricty in 2014

We opened a new solar instaflation at our distrbution
centre in South Africa We now have invested in
renewable energy generaton at five sites and have

2 6 Megawatts of wind and solar assets installed

Pearsonis certified aganst ISO14001 in the UK and
Australia Qur Hudson Streer offices in New York
became the latest to secure LEED certficanon, an
internaconally recogrised mark of environmental
excellence in fachties management Pearson occuples
740,000 square feet in LEED cernfied bulddings

Pearson wvests in forest-based carbon offsets for any
part of our climate footprine we cannot reduce or avoid
through ather means Since 2009, this programme has
sean over | 000 hectares of forest protected in Canada,
Colombia Costa Rica the USand the UK

Our approach to managing other materrally important
ermissions —such as embedded carbon dioxsde in
purchased raw materiafs as well as business travel by ar~
are detalled in our 2014 Enwironment report

Green powet

N 22%

Ous targen was 1o e ULe Gor Bpet ational eAissIons
trv 20% (he cod of 2045 based ona 200% base year
We acdweved 1 22% 1 cducnonin 2004 mpart due e
the @ €anon of POngun Randemioute

ISO14001

Peatson s cerified sgamst (5014004
try the UK and Auwstralia

100%

We maintanied cur recoid of
purchiasing {00% of the clecmaty
wit sse frorn green poves

IMAGE REMOVED
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Material use forests Qur socmal impact ranking a
As apurchaser of paper and newsprint for our books, One way we assess how weare doing asa responsible
magazines and newspapers, security and sustainability business 1s to mantain ow posiien 1 key indices and
of supply are very important to us Paper use remains benchmarks of social responsibifity
a priorty environmental issue and we conunue to focus e e e e e e mr e ¢ r r ae e =
on sustainabtity sour eing and being more efficent in how Indexfyear Lol 20t 013 2014
we use paper We Dowiones Globat Gotd Sdver Bronze o -
Sustanabifity Sector Cisss Class Class =
First adopted and publicly disclosed our paper Indices {eaces -
environrmental sourcing policy in 2003 BITC Corporae Plannum  Patnum  Plannum  Placmum a
Responsibiiity index {-etamed) (retatned) 9,
Collect and map data on the forest of origin, ceruficanen nd z
nOLLonin
systemns applicable and recycled content for the papers FTSE4Good Yes Yo Yes Yes E
we purchase T e S
Pearson contnues 1o score fughly 0 the Dow Jones
Talk about our guidelines with our key paper suppliers Sustanability Indices rating For the last decade, we have
when we meet and as part of our contract discussions been included i the DISt World index which includes only

the top 10% of companies i each industry and our bionze
class rating recognises companies within 0% of the
sector leader

Discuss our approach to paper purchasing with
customers, environmental groups smvestor analysts and
othernterested partes

We welcome feedbadck on thisaspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
peter hughes@pearson com with any questions
orideas you may have

Hold Forest Stewardship Counal (FSC) chan of custody
cernfication allowing books to carry the FSC [abel for our
businesses in Noi th America

0
<
-
w
Q
]
=
>
o
-

Are members of industry bodies dedicated o responsible
forest management We have been members of the
WWHF forest and wrade network for over a decade and
are a founder member of PREPS - the publishers database

for responsible environmental paper sourcing -~ which we 8
use across our global business A
"
Z
Visit pearson com/environment to learn more € >
a
Global Greenhouse Gas {GHG) emissions data (Metric tonnes of CO,e)
Cilendaryewr  Calendw yeal Calendar yerw  Calendaryesr
Emissions from 2063 2014 Intensity ratios 012 2004
Comburuen of furk and operanon of 30170 25,02 S.opes t ang & fonnes CO )/ 281 266 N
fachites {GHG Protocol scope §) V75 czles tevenue £ mlons) 55, T
e
Hectrtary hear steam and coohng 115 548 104,715 Scopes 1 and 2 tronnes COep I TE 319 117 %
purchasedfor own use {GHG Profocol o% RO change i
scope 2) s - T e e e x
17ad
Toml 145,718 129742 >
LA =
% [a)
e mm——— - e ——————- =4
Carbon ensissons The scope 1 and toope 2Lamon erysuons 4t cavu ied ;
-
v

10 g 1 Fhe G afouse Gas Prorece’ Conprorate Accounting a ul
Renctay Standavd (Revsrd Td vo i topedwr wihte Bistaa ssionlactors
{2y rrecopiar dsurces nouding butnet ke tod 1e DEFRA, tw Interaie ¢ 23°
Enersy Agency andthe UStavr npvental P orecr onAgency e materaiscoce
1 o cope 2 eness oms luve bren e udec from v regor ol GHG erLa ore
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Impact:

introducing our flagship campaign

Project Literacy

Pearson is committed to maximising
our impact through community
investment. in 2014 we reviewed our
approach and believe that we can
make more of a difference by focusing
and campaigning on a single issue that
has the potential to transform lives.

A clear focus will allow us to inspire our people o get
tnvolved, to harness our products and expertise and

to build partmerships and programmes that male a
mieasurable difference

{n June 2014, the Pearson board approved increasing
Iiteracy rates wortdwide as our anchor social impact
campaign issue for the next five years

Why literacy?

As we fight to end poverty, iteracy 1s criucal With werds
wie can make sense of the world around us, pursue life
changing opportunittes and stand up for the rights of
others to do the same

Despite rapid progress in the decade prior, illiteracy rates
for adults and children worldwide have hovered at around
800 mullion since 2000, with 781 million people dliterate
today Ofthose 123 mullion are young people under the
age of 24

Global demand far literacy

We lenow too that basicliteracy 1s only part of the story
The skills that wdwduals and econormies need Lo progress
and to p1 osper grow Increasingly complexin the face

of technology Funcuonal iifiteracy costs the world

%1 (9 tnllion per year - equivalent to the GDP of South
Korea or Mexico

Campaign goals

Project Literacy sets out to help make this the last
generation to be held back by poor literacy The new
Sustamable Development Goals, due to be signed at the
United Nauons General Assembly in September 2015,
will ser ambitious goals for educaton {or the next 15 years
We beheve that it is within reach to ensure that, by 2030,
every chitd born can grow up to be a hiterate adult
Furthermore, achieving this will be core to the success

of the ather development goals

Pearson’s contribution

Literacy is an area of need wher e we see dear overlap
between the opportunity for impact and Pearson’s
products, expertise and networks We have significant
experrence In providing resources to communites around
the world that help improve reading and wrniting skails

Qur lengstanding heritage in publishing and the tustory

of our community tnvesument makes ending global
ilireracy stand out for Pearsan as an area n which we

can contrbute a mix of product, content, employee time,
energy and interest to drive impact

MAGE REMOVED

60m  /8lm

chuldi en are notn prmal y schood  people s o dhiterate today

IMAGE REMOVED {MAGE REMOVED
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We envisage Pearson’s contribuuion in three broad
categories

We have a role to play in energising the debate

around hteracy We will act to identfy, celebrate
and suppot t good pracuce to scale, investin research
1o Lncover new opportunites and ta increase the
prominence of literacy i natonal and internatonal
policy discourse

We have a responsibility to activate our own busmness
assets and influence towards the themauc and
geographic areas where we see Oppartunity to improve
literacy We will place an emphasis on supporting our
employees to partcaipate and contribute to fiteracy
rubatives around the world, with the aim of Jaunching
a number of these opporturniies nudway nto 2045

We will invest in partnerships that pursue new

innovatrons in hteracy Where relevant, our product
development will also take account of and seek to address
barniers presented by poor hiteracy

Progress in 2014

Our Project Lizeracy campaign kicked off in late
Septemberwaith a global listening and awareness raising
exerase hosted on projectiteracy com We mvited
indwduals and organisations already working to
improve hteracy to highlight pubhicly on the webstte

the programmes and projects which inspure them

Taking literacy to the next level

We also asked that they share rssues where increased
action 1s needed and contribute 1o our goals by 1ssuing
achallenge to us To date, we've recewed 181 inspiring
literacy subrwssions via the website

These projects and chaflenges are fundamental to
mforming the now actviues, nvestments and partnerships
which we will be announang i the course of 2015 and
beyond Overume, projecthiteracy comwill actas the
one-stop shop for the campaign as a whole -- sharing
research, partnerships and reporung onimpact

Inlate 2014 we kicked off a first partnership with GOOD
158 GOOD The partnership has begun by 1ssuing hteracy
related stortes and engaging non-profit organisations who
understand the challenges of heracy ltwilt also bring
together Pearson employees and focal communities in
volunteer worl

Literacy 1s an issue on which many different not for profi,
community and commerciat organisatons a e already
working hard to make a difference As pa tof this
campaign we will bnng the private and public sectors
together with a single ambition to accelerate progress
and test new ideas

Visit projecthiteracy com tolearn more €@

QOur new social impact campaign ~
Project Literacy — builds on existing

IMAGEREMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

commurity activity

jurnpstart = Bead for the Record saw mere
than ? 4 méhon 1dutts ana childien om
topether toread Bunny Cakes by bestselkng
waber and dlustratar, Rosemary Wels

IMAGE REMOVED

Read o my School doubiled its parhitipanon
13tz on the previous year wath 212 600 pugals
across Enginnd together reading 876 000
books The compeauon encourages pLpils

to read as many books us possible ina two
month pertod drawng fiom an oofine free
fwrary ofbocks offered by Pear son and
Penguin Random House

For 2015 we will review how «e reporLon our commiurdty parmes shups i ight of our new approach

We hedp ed Book Aud Internationdl sapport,
the development of kb1 anes i schools and
cammumues acioss s Saharan Afoca
We were the fargest dahor pving a dard of
the ! mutfion boolrs suoplied by toe chanty
this year
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Social iInnovation

Extending access to quafity education to the poorest and
most marginalised families is a chalfenge, paracularly m
the most deprived countries of the world Pearsonis
commutted to playing our part and 1s active in helping
shape and inform the global debate a1 ound educanon
and learaing policy We represent the private sector
and charitable foundations on the board of the
Global Partnershup for Education (GPE) Alongwith
representauves from developing countries and donor
governments, the GPE aims to strengthen education
systems in developing countries Ve also continue to
champion the role of the private sector in education
as a founder member of the Global Business Coalition
for Educauon

Learn more about these activities at

) www globalpartnerstp org

© www gbc-education org

Key to our socialinnovation approach s our belief that
commercial solutions can accelerate access to quality
educatton Uncovering, developing and scahing sofutions,
espeaatly n places where education standards fafl

well betund the best i the world, canrequire us to
challenge the way we think about our business

Pearson Affordable Lear ming Fund (PALF)

Commeraal solutons mightinvolve new business models,
nvesting in new technology, o1 testing snovative
partnerships or distribution channels

Social minovaution in practice — the Pearson Affordable
Learming Fund

The Fund launched mn 2012 with $15 million of capital

It supports education for students from the poorest

and most marginalised familtes, and sets improvements

m learmng outcomes and market-based retrns as
condinons of continued investment The Fund has already
invested m minovative education start-ups in South Afica,
Ghana, India, and the Phiippines Half of the Fund s
currenty invested in comparites with female CECs

In fanuary 2015 we announced a new $50 milon
investment, through which we expect to reach mithons
of addizonal students and young pecple by 2020

in addition - by prowiding finanaial backsng, good
governance, and operational support to education
entrepreneurs — the Fund aims to foster and scale
mizovation throughout Africa, Asia and Latin Amenca
It15 also enabling innovauon from which governments
can learn, the cost per student in the schools in the Fund
portfolio is gener ally lower than in government schools

in December 20{3 the Pearson Affordable
Learmng Fund made a $300 000 investment
w Avant {ounded 1 2010 Avanu belps

10 prepale siudents fiomiow mcome
Backpreunds o indiz (thoce withy an annual
forruly teome of $5 000 o1 below) e cottege
el ance exam, {ocuung on the highly
compenve Lareer paths of engineening and
eediane Avanu’s appl oach emiphasises peer
fearming which takes the torm of small group
warle and concept tests Alongside ou financal
investnent we have supported Avann by
reviewng ther curnculym and content wacher

Lrar nmore atavanofelfows org o

trung and helpg o appoint 4 nev board
Aid UTIRICITAL & NEW FOVETITANCE STNUCTUre
The tesults thus fzr e beon extremely

wap gssve - over 40% of Avant « students
phaced wt the top L onrhe lIT [EE examingnion
@ 2011 and 2014 with {00% placng i the top
20% The JiT entrance exam s conpdered the
world s mnst rompetive wath over 500 000
students t2} ay the exam cach vearfora
unives uty sysiem with only 18 000 annuat
seats Avanu e.ts areless than 25% of thowe
trachnons dasses wath students charged only
$30 permonth

IMAGE REMOVED
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Governance overview

from Glen Moreno, Chairman

IMAGE REMOVED

Clear board roles and governance
processes offer balance and
experience to our strong, focused
executive team, helping to drive
strategic and performance progress.

In this Governance section

LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 ©
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 ©
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 ©
REMUNERATION p82-106 ©
ADDITIGNAL DISCLOSURES pl07-112©

Dear shareholders,

As you may have already seen elsewhere n this 1 eport
2014 was a year in which we completed the restructure of
Pearson, layng the foundations to strengthen our position
as the world's fargest educaton company and embedding
efficacy nto all we do | would like to tale this opportunity
to share with you some msights as to how our board

and governance framework has operated and evolved
throughout the year to complement our transformation
Learn more about our Transformation on p4-9€)

Gover nance principles

Our role and activities As a board we arganise our worl
around four major themes where we beheve we can add
value governance, strategy, business performance and
people Qurboeard calendar and agenda provide ample
time to focus on these themes and we have set outsome
examples of the business considered by the board, as welf
as the governance practices to which we adhere, onthe
pages that follow Learn more about Board meetngs and
acuvities on pé3 o

UK Corporate Governance Code Ths year, asis requi ed,
we are reporting aganst the 2012 edition of the UK
Corporate Govet nance Code {the Code} The board
beleves that during 2014 the company was in full
comphiance with the Code See page 73 for our postuon
on audit tenderng and rotauon A detaled account of the
provistons of the Code can be found on the FRC's website
at www frc org uk and we encourage readers to view

our comphance schedule on the company webstte at
www pearson com/governance

Board and management

The Pearson board consists of senor executive
management alongside a strong team of non-executive
directors drawn from successful intemational busimesses
and educaton nstitutions with expenence of corporate
strategy, education emerging markets, technology and
consumer markeung

Boaid changes As I1s best pracuce, we continually

assess and refresh de board to ensure we mamntan an
appropate balance and diversity of skills and experience
We will soan bid farewelt to two wrusted adwisers,

Dawd Arculus and Ken Hydon, who have signaited




thesr intentions to stand down from the board at the
upcoming Annual General Meeung (AGM), having each
served the company for mine years We will miss thewr
wase counsel and ngour as chairmen of the remuner aton
and audit committees 1 espectively, and we thank them
for their service to Pearson

During the past year we have also welcomed two new
non-execuuve directors to our board Elizabeth Corley
jomned us n May 2014 and in January 2015 we welcomed
Tt Score | am delighted 1o say that Elizabeth and Tim
are to be appowted as our new remuneratton and audit
commuttee chairmen respectively, followng the AGM m
April 2015 Between them, Elizabeth and Tim bring 2
wealth of business, finance and technology expertence
to Pearsors board, and will no doubt contribute fresh
perspectives to the board's deliberauons Learn more
about our Board of directors on p&0-6| ©

Boat d and executive structu e and balance Our board
consists primarily of non-executve directors, who

bring a strong independent viewpont, complementing
the executive perspectives of john Fallon and Robin
Freestone Inaddinon, we invite the Pearson executive 10
attend a number of the board's sessions to bring insights
and thoughts from across the business Learn more about
the Pearson executive on p9 @

Board evaluation During 2014 we undertook an
extermally-facihitated board evaluation process As always,
this assists us n idenufying opportuniues to refine our
processes, but the overall findings reflected a board which
funcuons well, 1s fit for purpose and which has a strong
sense of collegiality and support — something which has
served us well through our two-year transformation
Learn more about the Board evaluation on p67 €@

Accountability See full section on p70-77 @

Throughout cur transformation, our audit committee
has played a vital role in overseeing both risk and
reportng matters Qur refocused business has seen the
introduction of a new financial reporuing structure along
the lnes of our pnimary geographuc marlets, and our
shift towards digital, services and emerging markets

has brought new opportunities and risks - strategi,
operatonal and finanaal Learmn more about our Poinapal
nsk s and uncertamues on p34 €

Section 4 Lo iwngs 59

Engagement See full secuion an p78-81 @)

Engagement with sharehoidet s and society as a whole s
key 1o Pearson’s rmission to help people make progress in
therr lives through learning During the year, recognising
this, we formahised our reputaton & responsibiity
committee, headed by Vivienne Cox, whose focus
includes our reputation with stakeholders (inciuding
nvestors and the education community) and oversight
of Pearson's public commitments to society We also
welcomed a number of shareholders to our Annual
Generat Meeung which, as always, was a valuable
opportunity for our board and semor management to
respond to shareholders’ views and gquestions

Remuneraton See full section on p82-106 Q)

Our remuneration policy was reviewed last year to align
with the company's strategy and ot garisation and was
approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM We conunue
to operate executive 1 emuneration in line with the
approved policy and at present do not anticipate seeking
shareholder approval for our policy again unul required to
do so at the 2017 AGM

This year's report on directors' remuneraton refers to
the changes we made in line with policy in 2014 to better
align executive director compensation with the interests
of our shareholders and, 1o put our reportinto context
contains a summary of the approved directors’
rernuneranon policy reportfrom 20f3 whichis not
subject to a vote The report also deals with the significant
minerity vote agamst the 2013 annual remuneration
report which the company recewed at the 2014 AGM

Conclusion

{ hope dus report clearly sets out how your company is
run, and how we align governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We always
welcome questons or comments from shareholders,
either via our website (www pearson com) orin person
at our Annual General Meeting

(MAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno Chairman
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| eadership & effectiveness

Board of directors
Chati man Executive Directors
{MAGE REMOVED F IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno Charrman
aged 71 appomnted | October 2005

Chan man of the nommation committer and
merbes of the remuneration commitiee

Gien has more than fow decadas of
experence nbusiness and finance nd

15 currently non executive dwector and
chawrman designate of Virgm Meoney Holdings
(UK) pk and non executive director of
Mdelny Internausnal Limned Heisalsoa
sentor adviser to HSBC and chairman of

the Global Leadership and Technology
Exchange teadershup bord Previousty

Glen was deputy rhatrinan of The Finaneia
Reporung Counal Limited in the UK

deputy charman and senior independent
director at Lloyds Bank ing Gioup ple sentor
independent director of Man Gi oup ph and
acung charman of UK Finanoaf investinents
Lomited the comprany ser up by =M Treasur y
to manage the government s shar eholdings
in UK banks

John Fallon Cluef executive
aped 52 appointed 3 October 2042

johnbecame Pea son's chief executive on

I fanary 2083 Since 200B he had been
responsible for the company 5 cduratan
businesses outside North Amenca and

a member of the Pearson management
committee Hejoined Pearsonin (997

as director of commumcauens and wos
ippomted presdent of Pearsenine arole
he combined with bis commumnications
responsibiines in 2000 In 2003 he was
appomred CFO of Pearson s educanonal
publishing busincsses for Europe Middle

£ 151 & Africa (CMA) and g1 adually toahk on

a broaden internauonal educauon brief

Prior to yolmng Peatsen John was director uf
torporate aftairs at Powergen ple wherr he
was dlso a member of the company s exeaiive
commitice Earlier ntus carecr fobhn hiold
sefuor public policy and communications rofes
n UK local government. He s an adwsory
board member of the Glotet Business
Coaltion for Education

MNon-executve Directors

IMAGE REMOVED

Robin Frecstone Chief financiat officer
aped 56 appmnted {2 junc 2006

Robin s expenencein managementand
arcountng nckedas g provious rele as g oup
financtal controbler of Amersham ple inow

pat 1 of General Electric) and senor financial
positions with {CEpic Zenoca and Henkel

LK He was also a non executive director and
founder shareholder of eChent Lumited untl
May 2014 when the cornpany was sold Robin
sosnad Pearson in 2004 as depury chief finaneiid
officer and heeame chicd financeal officer

n june 2006 He quabfied asa chartered
accorniant with Touche Ross (now Deleutte),
and curt ently sus on the Advisory Group of
the {CAEW's Finanaal Reporting Faculty and
was uitd Decernber 2004, chairman of The
Rundred Group of Finance Directars He akto
o4 on the CBl s Economic Growth board

Pearson board members
bring a wide range of
experience, skills

and backgrounds which
complement our strategy.

IMAGE REMOVED

Ken Hydon Non-executive director
aged 70 appolnied 28 Febiuary 2006

IMAGE REMOVED

Josh Lew:s Nen-executive director
2ged 52 appointed | March 2014

Digieal experience
500/ IMAGE

© REMOVED
Emet ging market
experience IMAGE
25% REMOVED
Educanonfearning .
Secton experence MAGE
SO% REMOVED

MNote Graphic iusirates experonce
af non cupoume dirccilors

Chairman of the audis committee and
member of the nomination wnd remuneraton
colnmittees

Kens expenence i inance and business
inctudes worlangin the elecuomcs retal
consume producrs and healthea e sectors
Hrwoon executive dwector o eclat
Beadusir Groupplt one of the world s
{eading b anded consune: goods Lompanes
i heatth hygiene and home Heis zlso anon
exetunve dwector of MerimEnteriammenis
A, tre wierld 5 seLond fargest waiiot
atiraction operator From 2004 o 2H3 be
w 15 2 A execunve director of Tesco ple
Previousty Ken was chuel financal nificer

of Vodufone Group pic, the muftinatonat
telecomnaunications company and financeal
diector of subsidhanies of Racst Blectrones

Memboerof the normnavon and remuneration
rommitiees

losh s expenience spans finance, education
and the development of digital ente rprises

He 15 the founder of Satmon River Captal LLC,
a New York based private equity/ventn e
caprtaf fires focwsed on eehnology enitded
businesses tn educanon Gnanaa servces

and othersectors Overa X5 year careerm
actve prngpal mvestng bebas been nwolved
tn abroad range of successful compaties,
mduding several proneeting enterpses

m the educanon secior (naddinon. he has
longbeen acave m the non profit educduon
secior withassouatons mcudng New
Leaders New Chissrooms, and the Bift &
Melinga Gaies Foundanon Heisalseranon
execunve direcior of eVesument and Axioma
borh finanoal data/techrotogy compames

and Pandunent, an educaron credenuals
Managament Lompany




MNon-execuuve Dhrectors
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David Arculus Non-excoutve director
agied 68, apponted 28 Febx vary 2006

IMAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Colley CBE Non-executive director
aged 58 apponted | May 2044

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox Senios independent director
wgtd 55 apponted | january 2007

Chairman of the remuneration cotmmttee
and member of the audit and normimaucn
COIMITHTEr:

Dawd has expencnce Inbanking,
telecommunications and publiching in a lung
rareermbusmess Currentiy he s chairman of
Fnergy UK and Hassum Asset Management
andrs a memberef councik of Cranfield
University Dawid s previous 1odes inchude the
«han manstap of Aldermorc Bank plc Numis
Corporauonplr, ©2 ple, Severn Trent plc
IPC Group and the advisory beard of the
Biutssh Library aswelf as chiet operating
officer of Unined Business Media plc group
managing director of EMAF ple and a non-
executve ducctor of Telelonica § A Dawd
st ved from 2002 1o 2006 as chw man of the
UK gavernmen. s Better Reguluon Tash
Foree, which worled onreduting bur dens
on business

Member of the nomnation and L emuneranon
comITitLE 5

Chzabethis thief exocuve ofticer of Alhanz
Glubtllnvestors one of the world's {eading
nvestment organisations She was previously
at Mea it Lynch Investment Manager s and
Coopers & Lybrand Elrzabeth s a member

of the board of the {nvestment Assooation
amember of the European Secuntles and
Markets Authority s stakeholde rgroup an
adwisory countilmeinber of TheCuyUK and
1snon execuiwve director of the Financial
Reporting Councilin the UK She salsn a
meimber of the managementcomnutiee of the
Forum of Furopean Asset Managers a member
of the CFA Future of Rnance Counal and a
membur of the Commitiee of 200 Elizaberth
was appomnted Coramander of the Order of
the Brinsh Empire (CBE) mithe 2015 News Yo
Honouwrs for services 1o the finanual sectorn
Shes also a follow of the Royal Soaety of Arts
and an accomphished cnime fichen author

Charman of the reputauon & responsibificy
committee and member of the avdit
nommanon and 1 BMUNErduen commit.es

Vivienne his wide experience inenergy
natura resources and business nnovation
She worked for BP ple for 28 years, n Biitain
and Conunental Europe i posts including
evecutive vice president und chief executive
of BP s gas power and enewables busingss
and its alternatve energy uiit She s non-
cxecunive director of Stena it rnauona
and of eneigy company BG Graup plc

and chairman of the supervisory board of
Villourer which supplies tubular systems
for the encrgy industry Shes alsodead
nde.pr ndent chire ctor at the UK Depar timens
for Imernational Drevelopment Vivieaneisa
comprussionct of the Awpor ts Commsaon,
which was setup by the UK government 1o
exwnme any 1equiremonts for addimonat LK
airport capacity

IMAGE REMOVED

Linda Lorimer Man-execurive director
apged 62 appointed [ July 2003

IMAGE REMOVED

Hansh Manwim Non-executive director
aged 6! appomted | October 2013

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim Seore Non-exccutive director
aped 54 appoied | Janua y 2015

Member of the audit, nominaton and
1eputation &1 esponsibility commitiees

Member of the nominanon and 1 eputation &
rQSpOnSlDIlIt}’ cammitless

Member of the audit and norimation
commitees

Lindahas ¢ deep background in educauon
strategy adonm strauonard public affar s Shes
vice presdent o Global & Stratege Inivauves
at Yale Universny wher e her dunes indude
enirsgi of Yale s Office of internanonal
Afters and Office nf Exgtal Dissenmunauon
Oves a 30 year tareerinbughereducanon

she hasbeen: esponsitde fon tnany of Yale's
admunsirative ses vaves includig tie urkversiy -
public remmumncanons, wmm relatons and
Ofice of Susramabiiny Prewwusly Linda served
a« president of Randolph Macon Womar ¢
Coilege nVingrua and had eartter worled at
Yale inveveral sentor roles including assouste
provost. She 15 anon execuve director of Save
the Children (US) and was char of the boa 4
ofthe Assocaucn of Amencan Colleges and
Ursitres

Hanshhas ar exlensive background ; emerping
tnarkers and senicr expenencen a successiul
dobal orranisaton He was previously chvef
operaung oficer of consumer produrts
company Undever hanngtioned g company
i 197635 a markeung manegement ralee

n tadia, and freld servor managementioles
sround the world ndveding MosthAmenca
Latm America, Furope Afncaand Asd fHew
non execunive charman of Hinduttan Undever
Limsiedninda and serves on the boards of
‘Miwlpool Corporaton, Quakammine and
MNeetsen NV He s ofso on the board of the
{ndian School of Business and thre Cconoruc
Development Board (EDS) of ingapare

Tim biass been ctwef finanaiat o*ficer of

ARM Holdwygs pic the world s leading
senuenndusior IP company for 13 years
with extensive expund nee of the technology
e ctor and mbuth developa? and emerging
marlets particstardy Cluna Hesan
evpenented non Lxecunve director and
currenty sits on the board of The Brush
Land Company plc He served onthe board
afffanonal Lxpress Group pic {rom 200510
2014 induding wme as i darman and
six years as the seniorindependens direcior
Carlierin bus career Tun held semion finance
roles wath febus Group, Willam Ban d

BTR pic and others
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Leadership & effectiveness

Board governance

Board of directors

Composrtion of the board The board currently cansists
of the chawrman, Glen Moreno two executive director s
including the chief executive, John Fallon and exght
independent non-executive directors Following the
2015 AGM, the board will consist of six ndependent
non-executive directors, following the retrement of
Dawid Arculus and Ken Hydon

Charrman and chief execuuve Thereis 2 defined spin
of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive The roles and responsibilities of the charman
and chief executive are clearly defined, set out inwninng
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Charn man’s sigmificant commitments Dunng the course
of 2014, the chairman stepped down from his position as
deputy chairman of the Financial Reportng Counal and
with effect from | January 2015 has been appomnted as a
non-executive director and chairman designate of Virgin
Money Holdings (UK) ple

Independence of dn ectors All of the non-executve
directors who served during 2014 wet ¢ consider ed by the
board to be mdependent for the purposes of the Code

The board reviews the Independence of each of the non
executive dr ectors annually Thisincludes reviewing thew
external appointments and any potential confiicts of
interest as well as assessing their ndividual cn cumstances
w orderto ensure that there are no relavonships or
crrcumstances kely to affect thei character or judgement
fn addition to this review, each of the non-executive
directors 1s asked annually to complete an independence
questionnaire to sausfy requirements arising from
Pearson's US lisung

The board has in particuiar constdered the mdependence
of David Arculus and Ken Hydon who have each now
served for ;mne years Itis the mtention of both David

and Ken Loretire as directors at the 2015 AGM, but
nevertheless the board believes that both directors
continue to provide sufficient challenge to the
deliberations of the board as awhale, and that they ate
sufficienty independent i character and judgement to
continue to serve as independent non-exccutive dit ectors
for the remamder of their terms

IKey roles

ROLE NAME RESPONSIBILITY

Chatrman Glen Moreno The chairman s primartly responsible for the leadership of the board and
ensuring its effecoveness

Chief John Fallon The chief execuuve s responsible for the operatonal management of the

executive business and for the development and implermentation of the company's
strategy as agreed by the board and the Pearson executive

Senior Vivienne Cox The semor independent directar's role includes meeting regular ly with

independent the chairman and chief executive to discuss speafic issues, s well as being

director available to shareholders generally if they should have concerns that have

Gender spht of the board

B Mes, 7 Wiinder 3yens 1
W Woine) i IMAGE B 3obpers i MAGE
REMOVED o a— ; REMOVED
fipures as w3 Deocon per 2044

Folowrng 2005 AGHM spitwiibe o 3

not been addressed through the normal channels

The senior mdependent director has responsility for appraising the
performance of the chairman, including in relation to the effectiveness

of the nomination comnuttee, as part of the annual board evaluation
process The senior independent director would be expected to chair
the nomination commuttee in the event that 1t was considenng succession
to the role of chairman of the board

Lengthof tenuni e
of non-executive di ectors

Friemyasat 31 Erecembear 2004
Foliowrng 200 AGIHT 1atiow T be 42




Conflicts of incerest {Under the Comparues Act 2006
{the Act), director s have a statutory duty to avoud conflicts

Sertion 4 Ly vihuang 63

scheduled meetng The 1elevant director cannot vote on
an authonsation resaluton, or be counted n the quorum,
mn refation to the resolution relating to tus/her conflict or

of interest with the company The company's artucles of
assoaauon {Artcles) allow the directors to authionse
conflicts of interest. The company has established a
procedure to identify actual and potental conflicts of
mter est, incuding all directorships or other appointments
to, orielatonships with companies which are notpar t
of the Pearson Group and which could give nise to actual
or potental conflicts of nterest Once noufied to the
charman or company secretary such potenual conflicts
are considered for authonsation by the board atits next

Board meetngs during the year 20{4

potenual confhict The board reviews any authorsauons

granted on an annual basis

Board meetngs

The board held six full scheduted meetings 1n 2014, with
discussions and debates focused on the key strategic
1ssues facing the company Major stems covered by the
board in 2014 ar e shown in the table below

Feb 2014

London

GOVERNANCE

Apr 2014

London

Jun 2014

Washington DT

Jul 2014 Oct 2014

London London

Dec 2014

New York

> Annual review
of autho-sed
conficts of
Interest

» Review of diasion
of tesponsibiities
berween charman
and chief executne

STRATEGY

>Focut on
for dheonmng AGM
and review of
shareholder woues

10T Ubd¥ 5T DNILLIIWIVUINID TVYANNY

»Brand reputabon
nd US
government poficy
Read more enp78

» Update on
Pearson
Foundauun

» Approval of
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Leaderstup & effectiveness
Board governance continued

The tole and business of the board

The boar d 1s deeply engaged in developing and measuring
the company s long-term strategy, performance and
value Ve beheve thatit adds a valuabte and diverse set
of external perspectives and that 1 obust, open debate
about significant business issues brings a valuable
addonal distpline to major deasions

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decision and approval is avaiable on our website, at
WWW DBarson com/governance

The board receives umely, regular and necessary finanaal,
management and other nformation to fulfit 1ts dutes
Comprehensive board papers are circulated to the board
and committee members at least one weel in advance
of each meeting and the board receives regular reports
from the chief executive tnaddion to meeung papers,

a ibrary of current and fustoric corporate information is
made available to du ectors electronically to support the
board's deaston-making process Directors can obtan
independent professional advice at the company's
expense in the performance of their duties as directors
All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local semor
management every ume board and committee meeungs
are held at the locanons of operating companes, such
as dunng the board's 2014 tnp to Washington, DC

Thrs allows the non-executive directors to share their
expenence and expertse with servor managers as well
as allowmg them to better understand the abilines and
mottvations of senior management, which i turn will
help them assess the company's prospects and pfans

for succession

Standing committee

A standing committee of the board has been established
to approve certain ordinary course of business ttems such
as banlung matters, guarantees, intra-Group transactions
and routine matters relaung to employee share plans

The commuttee has written terms of reference, reviewed
and approved each year, which clearly set autits authonty
and duties These can be found on the company website
AL www pearsor com/governance

Culture and values of the board

As part of ts annual evaluauion, the board considered its
own culture and dynamics, and how these have evolved
alongside the wider transfor mation

The board sgreed thatsthas a1 eal sense of collegiality,
with an open and transparent approach where diversity
of opinion and challenge are encouraged and welcomed
As a whole and at an indwiduat tevel, the board feels
wholly committed to Pearson's values and mission, and
throughout 204 has received regular updates on the
transforrnation as it has progressed Learn more about
our Board evaluation on p67 €

Board attendance

The following table sets out the attendance of the company's
directors at scheduled board meeungs duimng 2014

Board

reetings
ateended
Charman
Glen Moreno 6/6
Execunve directors
john Fallon 6/6
Robin Freestone 6/6
Non-executve ditectors
David Arculus 6/6
Elizabeth Corley” 4/4
Vivienne Cox 6/6
KenHydon 6/6
Josh Lewis 6/6
Linda Lorimer 6/6
Harish Manwan 6/6

¢ Appotted on {2y 2014




Succession planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning -
notonly at board and executive management level but
for all key posiions tliroughout the business —as one of
its preme responsibiiies At boa d level, the primat y
focus m the fatter partof the year has been to denufy
suitable candidates for the role of chief financial officer

The company has formal conungency plans n place for
temporary absence of the chief executive for heaid or
other reasons The matter of chief executve succession
15 a standing teem for discusston and review by the
charmyan and chief executive annually Succession
planning for the boar d and chair are also undertaken
annually

Talent review

The board dedicated part ofits December 20i4

meetng to reviewing chief executive succession and the
leader stup talent pipeline at Pearson In pteparation for
that, the Pearson executive team undertook a rigorous
talentreview programme, assessing pet formance and
potental of its top 100 executives (thew direct: eports)
as well as the strength of the succession pipetine for thewr
own roles and therr team’s roles

All members of the executive team also took partina
mult-rater feedback process (360 feedback process),
receiving feedback from direct reports, colleagues
and the chief executive on key leadership traits and
behaviour s

* Atthe board meeuing, the board discussed chief

executve successton and together they reviewed
the 360 summary reports for the executives, as
well as overall themes from the 2014 employee
engagement sut vey

This discussion was {ollowed by a session on the

broader tafent process, loolang into succession for each
executive role, analysing diversity statistics and discussing
iey capabilities that will be crucat for the effecuve

deliver y of our strategy (pedagogy. technology and
productmanagement)

As aresult of this process we are designing strucrured
development plans for the top 100 executves in the
organisation and staruing a deeper assessment of our
capabihizes in the areas of pedagogy, tedinology and
product management

Section 4 Gerantpicnes 65

RISING STARS

SSINISNHE 4NO |

In addition to the board’s
established succession planning and
talent review process for senjor
roles throughout the business,

it was deaided in 2014 to initiate

a series of Rising Stars sessions

The first of these sessions wook place over informal
brealkfasts during each of the board's offsite meetings
n Washington, DC and London The pur pose of the
sesstons 15 to provide the board with the opporturity
1o meet a cross-secton of unior or mid-level
colleagues from the host country who have been
identified by senior executives as showing

real prormuse The board’s feedback on these
sessions in 2014 was overwhelmingly posiove --

they valued the opportunity to meet and

hear from colleagues from altlavels,

finding the sesstonis ich and

interesung, and talking away a

dearer sense of Pearson's

working culture
IMAGE REMOVED Rising Star s
gender split
B Male 47%
B Ferng'e 53%

asat 31 Dece mbes 1014

*The Rusing Stars offered the directors
ncredible insights into the workings of the
company's enterprises These men and
women are a key part of the future of the
company, and we were inpressed by their
sagacity and by thew passion for the mission
of Pearson - and by their good deas for our
coflective future.”

Linda Lonimei Non-execunve director
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

Drrectors’ traning and induction

Board committees

{Directors recetve a significant bespoke mduction
programme and a range of information about Peai son
when they join the board This includes background
mnformation on Peai son and details of board procedui es,
directors’ responsibilives and various governance related
1ssuees, including procedures for dealing n Pearson shares
and therr legal obligations as directors The induction
also includes a series of meetings with members of the
board, the Pearson executive and sentor management,
presemtatons regarding the business from senior
execuves and a brefing on Pearson’s investor relations
programme The induction programmes for Elizabeth
Corley and Tim Score are ongoing, tallored to their
specfic iInterests, and relevant to the board committees
they have joined

Al directors recerve traming in the form of presentations
about the company's operations tht ough board meetings
held at operational locations and by encouraging the
directors to vist local operatons and managerment as and
when their schedule allows, mduding if they are tr avelling
to A country of region on non-Pearson business The
company secretary and general counsel, in comuncton
with the Group's advisers, monitor legal and governance
developments and update the board on such matters as
agreed with the chasrman Directors can also make use of
external courses

Dwrectors’ indemnities

In accordance with seceion 232 of the Act, the company
grants an indemnity to all of ts dwectors The ndemmnity
relates to costs incui red by them in defending any cvil or
cniminal proceedings and in connection with an application
for retief under sections 661(3) and {(4) or secuons 157(1)-
{3) of the Act, solong as morves are repaid not later than
when the outcome becomes final if

{1} they are convicted in the proceedings
(1) judgment s given agamst them or
{m) the cou t refuses to gt ant the rehel sought

As permitied by Pearson’s arades of assoctauon, the
dn ectors have tie benefit of an mdemmury whichis 2
quahfying thurd party indemmity proviston as defined
by secuon 234 of the Act The indemnity was i force
th oughout the last financial period and 1s currently
n force

The company has purdhased and maintans directors’ and
officers’ insurance cover agamst certan legaf habilines and
costs for clams i connecton with any act or omission by
such directors and officers in the execution of their duties

The board has estabhshed four formal committees

the audit comnmttee, the nomINaton comntiee

the 1 emuneration committee, and the reputation &
responsibihity commuttee, which was for mally constituted
in 2014 having cperated on an Informal bass during 2043
The charrmen and members of these committees ate
appotnted by the board on the recommendauan

{where appropriate) of the nomination committee and
in consultation with each relevant comrmittee chairman
In addiuon to these formal board comimittees, the
standing committee also operates with board fevel input

More commuttee information

AUDIT COMMITTEE p70 Q)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE p68 @
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE p82 @
REPUTATION & RESPONSIBILITY

COMMITTEE 78 Q
STANDING COMMITTEE p64 ©

The approach adopted by the board 1s for committees to
focus on thewr own areas of expertise enabling the board
meeungs to focus on governance, strategy, performance
and people, thereby makung the best use of the board's
ume together as a whole The commuttee charmen
report to the full board at each meeting immediately
following their sessions, ensuring a geed commurucation
fiow whilst retaining the ability to escalate stems to the fuil
board's agenda f appropr iate

Board committee attendance

The following table shows attendance by directors at
committee meeungs throughout 2014

Riputar on 8

Audit Remuneration Nomnzvon  rerponsibrry
Glen Morenc - 4/4 6/6 -
johin Falloa - - 6/6 -
David Arculus 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
Ehzabeth Cortey - L 474 -
Vivienne Cox 5/5 4/4 6/6 3/3
Ken Hydon 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
Joshlews - 4/4 6/6 -
Linda Lonmer 5/5 - 6/6 73
H_a_::lﬂ\_f“_‘[ anwant - - 6/6 3/3

* Jorned pommevon conumiteson | May 2014 andronunerzt oncorm tree
o § August 201+




BOARD EVALUATION

A formal evaluaton of the board its committees and
indmidual directors’ performance was completed at
the end of 2014

{tis recommended by the Code that this processis
facilitated by a third party every three years This
effectiveness review was conducted by external
evaluator, JCA Group In addition to fachtating thus
1eview, JCA Group pt ovided benchmarkang and due
diligence services in connection with the appointment
of Blizabeth Corley as a non-executive director

JCA Group has no other conngction to Pear son
apartfrom in relaton to board evaluation and search
consultancy services

EVALUATION PROCESS

On|CA Group's recommendation, the process for
the evaluauon was as follows

Inttial briefing An initial brefing on the
company to provige contextand insights
ito the strategic priorities for the business
as well as any issues or concerns to address
more speafically

AV
Discussion guideline Development of a
“discussion guideline’ which was shared with
the participants ahead of one to-one meetings,
to address kkey topics butnot it the
discussion to only these, such topics mcluded
the organisaticn of the board, board and chair
succession, jJudgement of the strategy and
business performance the dynanucs and
composition of the board and feedback on
the comnuttees and individual directors

N
One-to-one meetngs One-to-one meetings
with each board member, both executive
and non-exeautive these conver sations
were conducted on a confidennal,
un-atoibutable basis

\’/
Effectiveness report Afull reportwas
presented to the board, contaiming the
icey findings. recommendations for actions
and suggested next steps

Section 4 Cuerowt fanges 67

Conclusion and recommendations

The review concluded that overall the board and

its commuttees rematin effecuve in fulfilling their
responsibiliues appropriately Actons agreedasa
result of the evaluaton ncluded ongoing review and
assessment of the strategy and 1ts success, given the
significant transformauon being undertaken by the
company The frequency of board meetings was judged
10 be appropriate However, bullding on the success of
the recommendation of the chief executive's monthly
fetter from last year's internal board review there was
also a suggestion to introduce additional board calls in
between board meetings to keep the board current on
1ssues and progi ess In addiwon, wwwas highlighted that
itss essental the board pays continuing attention to
cnsure all directors are well nformed and have a deep
understanding of the issues for the business and the
broader global education enviranment i order to
provide appropriate strategic direction and challenge
gong forward This might indude creaung ongoing
opportunities for board members to wisit Pearson s
operatons in diferent global veriues

Personal objectives

in addion 1o the evaluauon of the board as a whole,
executves are also evatuated each year on their
performance against personal objectives under the
company’s annual ncentive plan Learn more about our
Annual incentve plan on p104€)

The non-executive directors, led by the senior
ndependent director, also conduct a review of the
chairman’s performance

Commuttee evaluation

In addition to the review of the board and mdividual
directars, the audit and remunerauon committees each
undergo an annual evaluauan process to review therr
performance and effectiveness

The process mvolves distt ibution of questonnares to
audit and remuneraton commuttee meynibers, as well as
key stakeholders in each committee seeking views on
matter s induding commuttee roles and responsibilines,
quabty and ameliness of meenng matenals, opportunity
for discussion and debate, diatogue with management
and access to ndependent advice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respective commitiee at
a scheduled meeting, with key themes belng drawn out
for discussion

no
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nominatuan committee role and composition

Charman
Glen Mo eno The commitzee primal ly momtor s the compositon and
IMAGE REMOVED balance of the board and its comnittees, and identifies

and recommends to the board the appomntment of new
directors and/or committee members

Members David Arculus, Elizabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox john Fallon stepped down from the nominaton

Ken iHydon fosh  ewss, Linda Lonmer, Hatish Manwar, committee in December 2014, although he will continue

Gien Moreno and 1im Score to be available to attend committee meetings by

inwitanon Ebzabeth Corley and Tim Score joined the

nominaton commuttee following their appointments
Key acuvities in 2014 . PP

to the board
Obyecuves Acuans Committee meetings and appolntments
Idennfy and appoint additianal Appointment of
non-executive di eCtol s, at Elrzabeth Corley and The nominaton committee meets at least once a year and
teast one of whom to be female  Tun Score at other urmnes as and when required During 2014, the
Audit commurtee and Appomtment of Tim committee met six times with its primar y focus being to
| emuneraton commitzee Score and Blizabeth consider suitable candidates for the role of chief financtal
chair succession Corley as respactive officer and for non executive positions, including for the

comnuttee charmen

roles of audit and remuneration comimittee chawrmen in

Commence seaich for new Appontment of Coram
clmef financial afficer Wilhams announced — prepat aton for the returement from the board of Ken
to jotn board on Hydon and David Arculus duning 2015
! August 2013 The non-executive search culrminated in the successful
For nominauon commttee attendance appointment of Tim Score and Ehizabeth Corley to the
see ovel view table on p66 © board, who also joined the audit and remuneraton
committees respectively and will assume the
charrmanships of those committees followng the

AGMm April 2015
1. Appointments tdentufymg and nominaung

Having considered a range of external and internat
candidates for board vacancies g 8

candidates, we announced on 27 February 2015 that

2 Balance Ensuring that the board and its commuttees Coram Willams would succeed Raben Freestone as chiefl
have the appropiate balance of skifls experience, financial officer Coram will join Pearson as CFO designate
independence, diversity and knowledge to an | July 2015 and will replace Robin on the board on
operate effectively | August 2015

3 Succession planning Reviewing the company’s In addivon., the commttee continued to focus on the
leadership needs with 2 view to ensuning the continued search for anon executive director with nsights into
ability of the organisation to compete effecuvely n mobile and digital technology to further complement

the marlketplace oursu ategy




Pearson uses a number of leading firms i sts board

and executive search activiies An external search
consultancy, Odgers Berndtson was used during the
recrutment process for Tim Score Odgers Ber ndison
does not have any other connection to Pearson apart
from as a search consultancy

The committee identified Elizabeth Corley as a potential
non-executive candidate and an external search agency,
JCA Group, provided benchmarlang and due diigence
services in connection with Elizabeth’s appointment

In addition to these services JCA Group facilitated
Pearson's board evaluation 1 2014

Lcarn more about the Board of directors on p60 €

Chan man role

Although the chasrman of the board chairs the
nomination committee, he is not pet mitted to chair
rmeeungs when the appointment of his successor 1s
being considered or during a discussion regarding his
performance Atsuch tmes, the senior ndependent
director will chair the meetings

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set cut its authonity and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
WwWw pearson com/governance

Dwersity

The board embraces the Code's underiying principles
with regard to board batance and diversity, ncluding
gender diversity The nominaon committee, led by
the chairman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demenstrate a broad balance of skills, experience and
nauonality, to support Pearson’s strategic development
and reflect the global nature of the Group's bustness

The committee and the board always take account of
dversity in (ts broadest sense when considening board
appointments whilst ensuning that appointments are
made based on ment and relevant expenence

Section 4 Gover hunice 69

Lord Daweshas called for companies to target 25%

female representation on boards of FTSE 100 companies
by 2015 Pearson s committed to having at least 30%
fernale directors wathin Lord Dawies’ 2015 umeframe

and currently has three female directors on «s board

of eleven, representing 27% With the forthcorming

r etrement of David Arculus and KKen Hydon in the coming
roonths, this figure 1s expected 1o mcrease ta 33%

immediately below board level, the Pearson execuuve,
notwncluding the chief executive and chief financial officer
who are main board directors, has three female members
out of a total of 12 (represenung 25%) Our sentor
feadership team, up to and induding two repoi unglevels
from the chief executve, shows a strong pipeline of
female talent with women representing 35% of our

senior leaders

Pearson considers diversity as animportant Issue across
the Group, not just at board level One of the key aims
of Pearson's diversity policy 1s to increase the number
of leaders coming from a diverse background induding
advancing more women into {eadership postwons such
as thirough our- Women in Learning and Leadership
programme for employees

Learn more about Diversity throughout Pearson
onp50Q)

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno Chait man of nominaticn committee
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Accountability

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman

Ken Hydon
(stands downat
2015 AGM)

IMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon,
LndaLonmer TunScore

In my nine years as audit committee
chairman | have learned a lot about
Pearson, Its operations, its practices
and Its senior management and
have enjoyed the stimulation
generated by so much change

and world class colleagues

Ken Hydon Chau man of audit commutzee

For Audit committee meeung attendance
see overview table on p66 @

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE
OVERSIGHT GF:

| Reporung The quality and integrity of financial
reporung and statements and related disdosure

2 Pohicy Group pohicies incduding accounung poliaes,
and practices

3 External audrt External audit, including the
appomiment qualificaton, ndependence and the
performance of the external auditor

Audit committee role

The commttee has been established by the board
primartly for the purpose of over seetng the accounting,
finanaial repot tng, mternal control and sk management
pt ocesses of the company and the audit of the financial
statements of the company As acommitee, we aie
responsible for assisting the board’s oversight of the
quahty and integrty of the company's external financiat
reporung and statements and the company’s accounting
policies and pracuces

The Group's internal auditor has a dual reperting hne to
the chief finanaal officer and me, and external auditors
have direct access to the comnittee to rarse any matter

of concern and to report on the results of work directed
by the commuttee | report to the full board at every board
meeung immediately following a committee meeting

As a commitiee, we also review the independence of the
external auditors, ncluding the provision of non-audit
services {further details of which can be found on page 107
and note 4 to the financial statements), ensure that there
15 an appropnate audit relauonship ang that auditor
objectivity and ndependence are upheld

Audit committee changes

Linda Lormerjoined the audit committee in January 2014
and we have also recently welcomed Tim Score who
joined the committee upon hys appomtment to the board
on | January 2015 Following nine years with Pearson, and
as chairman of the audit comimittee, | will step down from
the board atthe 2015 Annual General Meeung Tim Score
will take over the chairmanship of the comimittee
following my retrement and | am sure Tim will bring hus
own challenge and ngour to the cormmittee’s deliberations
as an experienced audit committee chairman

Farr, balanced and unde: standable reporeing

4 Risk and internal control Rislk management systems
and internal control environment mcluding the
performance of the mter nal audiz funcuion

5 Compliance Complance with legal and regulatory
requirernents i cefaton to financial veportng and
accounting imatters

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authonty and duues These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance ©

We are mindful of the Code's revised prinoiple C 1
relanng Lo fan, balanced and understandable repor ting
and accordmgly we built i additional steps to our Annual
reportametable wo ensure that the full board was given
sufficent opportunity to review consider and cominent
onthe report asitpuogressed Learn nore about Far,
balanced and understandable repor ong on pl08Q




Rusk assessment, assurance and integrity

A key part of the role of the commitiee 1s m providing
oversight and reassurance to the board with regard to the
integnity of the company's financial repor ung, mternal
control polices and procedures for the identficauon,
assessment and reporong of risle. During 2014 we aligned
our risk and control processes with the new organisational
stiructure, and conducted a number of desp divesinto
selected prinaipal risks

Data securty

Ve view data privacy and cyber security breach as one of
our principal operauonal niskes, and this is aregular item on
the audit committee’s agenda During 2014 a new chief
nformation officer and a chief informauon security officer
were zppointed, and the commuttee met with both
shortly foflowing ther appointments to recerve therr wiual
assessments on Pearson’s data security programme and
subsequently for progr ess updates throughout the year
The comnuttee learned that the key areas of focus are to
ensure cansistendy secure applications and infrastructure
across all parts of the Group, wath the aim of adopting
best-n class pracuces for our customers and employees

Anti-bribery and corruption

Given our geographic focus and profile. and a number

of recent acquisthons In growth markets, anu-bribery
and corruption {ABC) 1s a specific risk for Pearson The
committee conducted a deep dive into ABC risk in 2014,
joned by legal advisers the SVP general counsel and SVP
internal audit and compliance The focus of the deep dive
mciuded the increasingly co-ordinated approach taken
by authonives in higher-risk junsidicuons in which we
operate, as well as a review of recent enforcement actions
elsewhere in the educaton sector The commuttee noted
that Pearson’s ABC policy 1s updated on an ongoing basis
1o reflectlegislatve changes, and learned more abour
how the mternal ABC tratming programme conunues to
evolve to reflect cur new business models and market
specfic risks

Healdh & safecy

One year on from theintroduction of our global health
& safety policy, the committee conducted a deep dve
reviewing implementation and findings to date As wel!
as reviewing tindings of audits at Pearson sites around
the world, the commuttee discussed the Group's health
and safety pnonties A primary focus is the safeguarding
and protection of our students and, to this end, a new
global safeguarding officer has been appainted and a
safeguarding and protecton policy ntroduced Qur wutial

Section 4 G otanee 7t

focus has been on our direct delivery businesses - the
areas of greatest sk — and a traming course 15 being
developed for those staff who have contact with students
We have also engaged throughout the Group to ensure
that our safeguarding 1s robust whenever we come into
contact with children, young people and vulnerable
aduits Corporate secunty 1s another key area of focus
partcularly n refation to the safety and securty of our
staff working in or t1avelling to, high-risk destinations
Sigrificant progress has been made i imptementation
of the new policies across our businesses, although
there remams work to be done and the commuttee
will mamtain oversight as we move forward with our
health & safety and safeguarding strategies

Audit committee meetings and activities

The commuttee met five tmes during the year with

the foliowing in attendance the chueffinancial officer,
SVP internal audic and compliance, members of the
senior management team, and the external auditor s
Addmonally, the chief executve and chairman perniodically
attended comnuttee meetings Since the rermit of the
SVP miternal audit and comphance expanded to include
compliance, the internal audic dn ector and the VP
compliance and risk assurance have also attended
meetngs, so the committee has direct contact with
those areas The committee also met regularly in
private with the externai auditors and the SVP internal
audit and complance

At every meeting the committee considered reports

on the actvities of the Group internal audit funcuon,
including the resuits of internal audus, sk reviews, project
assurance reviews and fraud and whustleblowing reports
The committee also monitored the company's finanaal
reportng, internal controls and risk management
procedures, reviewed the non-audit services provided

by PwC and considered any significant legal claims and
regulatory issues in the context of theirimpact on

financal coporatng

Finally, { would like to thanlk my fellow committee
members, the chiefl inanaa officer and the SVP intermnal
audit and compliance for thewr enthusrasny and suppot 1

Learn more about the Key acuvines of the audn
committee on p72 &)

IMAGE REMGVED

Ken Hydon Charman of audit commuttee
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Accountability continued

i

Audit committee meetings during the year

Every Feb 2014

Sep2014 I Dec 2014

meeting
REPORTING
» Accounting » The 2043 Annual »intenm >Review of the » Qverview of
and technical reportand accounts  mwnagement mtenm resufts 2014 Annual
updates prehnunary staternent and trading repol t process
announcement announcement
financial statements
» Impact of legal and income statement
darms and >Form 20 t and related
1 egulatory disclosuresingtuding :
1S5UBS 6N the annual Sarbanes
financal Oxley Act secuon 404
repoI Ung attestaton of financiat
reporung nternal
contiols
POLICY
» Accountng ¥ Tax reporung » Annual review and >y Annual ) eview of
matter s and process app oval of external treasury policy
Group auditor palicy and sirategy
At COUnDNg yinformation secut Ly
polices and polcy updaze
EXTORNAL AUDIT
s Provision of » Receipt of the external 32014 externat »Update onaudit
non aedic auditot s reporton audit plan iendenng requirements
SErvICES the farm 20-Fand on yRemuneravorand  »Reviewofthe
by PwC the year end audit engagement letter effectiveness of the
» Reappouument of the of the extermal exrernal auditor s
external audirors auditors ’
» Confirmauion of »Review opiron on
audior ndependence nterim results
RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
> Internal audit » Assessment of the > Rusle deep dive y Annual inernal »Risk deep dive » 2045 internal
acuvILy tepotts effectiveness of the tesong nsi audit plan ane bribery and audit plan
and review of Group sinternal Riske deep dive COFT UPTION »Crsismanagement
key findings conwrol environment business continuity »Rusl deep dive tax and ebolu
» Enterprise sk and risk management planning preparedness
nianagement systems yRisk deep dwva » Health & safety
» Datasecunty » Review of Growp lealth & safety
intermial audit rerms
of reference

COMPLIANCE AN GIVERNANCE

> Fraud + Comphance
whstleblowing wath the Code
reports and y Compliance with
Code of SEC and NYSE
Conduct requirements induding
maters Sarbanes Oriey Act

> Review of the commitee s
termns of1 eference

yReview of the
effectveness of the
committiea and the group
intermal audit funcon




Members

Al of the audit commuttee members are independent
neon-executive directors and have financal and/or related
busmess experience due 1o the sentor positions they hold
or have held in other isted or publicly traded comparues
and/or simifar public organisations Ken Hydon, current
chairman of the committee is the company's designated
financal expert He s a Fellow ofthe Chartered nstitute
of Management Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Cerufied Accountants and the Assocauon of
Corporate Treasurers He also serves as audit committee
charman for Reckict Bencluser Group plc and Merhn
Entertanments plc, and unel 2012 for Tesco plc and Royal
Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust Tim Score, who wall
assume the chairmanship of the committee during 2015

1s an Associate Chartered Accountant He aiso serves as
audit committee chairman for The Briush Land Company
plc and unat 2014 for National Express Group plc

The quahfications and relevant experence of the other
committee members are detaled on p6Q-61 O

Audit committee meetings during the year 2014

During the year the matters considered by the
committee mcluded those shown on the table opposite

in February 2015, the commuttee also considered the 2014
Annual reportand accounts, including the prelininary
announcement, financial statements, strategic report,
directors’ report and corporate governance comphance
statement

External audit

Based on management s recommendauons, the
committee reviews the proposal on the appaintment

of the external audiwors The commitiee reviewed the
effectiveness and ndependence of the external auditor s
during 2014 and remains satisfied that the auditors provide
effecuve independent chalfenge to management

The review was conducted by disinbuting a questonnau e
to ley audrt staleholders induding members of the audit
committee, the chief execunve, dueffinancal officer, SVP
company secretanal, SVP imernal audit and complrance,
SVP finance for each Geography and Line of Business and
heads of cor porate funcnons Feedbadk overall was very
posiave, indicating an effective external audit process

The lead audit partner explaned to the committee how
PwC were momitonng and reviewing each fughlighted area
and confirmed that they would consider how to adapt
their approach miight of specific comments receved

Sectuon 4 Lirt rnangss 73

{n addition, n accordance waith our external auditor policy
Group internal audit pet forms an annual assessmentof
audit fees, services and independence which forms the
basis for a recommendauon by the commuttee to the
board in respect of the appomtment and cormpensation
of our external auditor Learnmore about Auditors
independence on pl07 @

The commuttee will continue to review the performance
of the external auditors on an annual basis and will
consider their ndependence and objecuvity, taking
account of alt appropriate gudelines Thereareno
contractual obligattons restricting the committee's choice
of external auditors In any event, the external audnors
aterequired to rotate the audw partner responsible for
the Group auditevery five years The current lead audit
partner rotated onto the Group's audit n 2013

Pearson’s last audit tender was in respect of the 1996 year
end resulung in the appomntment of Price Waterhouse as
auditors We reported last year that a tender process
wotld commence no later than 2017 to ensure auditors
have been appointed in ume for the 2018 year end audit,
following the end of the currentlead pat ther's term, in ine
with the FRC's suggested transizonal arrangements on
auditiendenng Developments at an £U level regarding
mandatory audit rotation for listed companies have
changed the UK landscape on audit tendering and rotation
and, as a result, Pearson would be required to change
auditor s no later than the next audit appointment after

17 June 2023 The auditcommuttee will continue to monitor
devefopments in this area and to consider the uring of the
next tender so as to achieve the most efficient and effective
outcome and expects to have concluded on its planned
approach wathin the next year Once the nextaudit tender
occurs, the Group will adopt a policy of putung the audit
contract out to tender at [east every ten years

Audit committee traming

The commttee receves regular techmeat updates as
well as speafic or personal tramng as appropnate [n
September 2014, as part of a deep dive nto ant-brbery
and corrupuan (ABC) nsk, the commitee held a
sasston with tegal adwisers to better understand giobal
ABC developments

Committee members afso meet with focal management
on an ongoing basis \n order to gan a beteer
understanding of how Group pohicies are embedded
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Accountabiity continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Significant Issues

APLAOF FOCUS (SSUE

ACTION TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

OUTCGMF

New
organsation
STHuctute
and IFRS 8

Foliowing the ntroduction of the
new management structure and
operanng modet, the Group has
changed its externally reported
segmentsw 20141 accordance
with the guidance n IFRS 8
‘Operaung Segments’ As part
of the exercise to denhfy new
segments and restate financial
tepui ts undet lying cash
generating units (CGUs) were
also defined

f he committee reviewed 1 estated financials and
discussed the conclusion that the Gioup's primar y
segments were now made up of the businesses within
the three regions - Narth America, Core and Growth
The comnuttee confirmed that 1epor ting {or the new
segrnents was conastent with baard reporung for
internal purposes The commuttee also discussed the
definwon of CGUs and the allocauan of goodwill to
these CGUs for the purpose of impairmant testing

Segments and

CGUs redefined

Imparment
reviews

The Group a1 1es sgnificant
gaodwilf intangible asset balances
There 15 judgement exercised in
the identfication of CGUs and the
pracess of allocatng goodwill 1o
CGlJs and aggregate CGUs and
the assumptions underlying the:
Imparment review

[ he commuriee consider ed the results of the Groups
annual goodwill mpairment review in the hght of new
and agg egate CGUs The key assumptions aie
considered to be the cash flows derved from strategic
and oper ating plans, long term growth rates and the
weighted average costof capial The committee
consides ed the sensitvibies to changes in AssUMpuons
and the refated qisclosures required by AS 36
Impairment of Assets’ {n particular the comnuttee
reviewed the analysis and discloswr e 1 efating Lo the
Growth CGUs where valuatons indicated an impairiment
n the India business and sensitivity to assumpUons was
also reviewed in refation to other businesses

Annual

mpan ment
review
finalised with
confirmetion of
an impan ment
i incka and
sufficient
{readroomn all
other CGUs

Revenue
recognition

Pearson has a number of revenue
streams where revenue
recognHIon pr actices are complex
and management assumptions
and esumates are necessary

Vhe commuttee regularly reviews revenue 1 ecogmition
practce and the underlying assurptions and estimates
In addinon, the commttes has visthility of internal audit
findings relating 1o revenue recogriuen controls and
processes and routinely monstors the views of external
auditors on revenue recogniton ssues Dunng the yeal
the committee reviewed revenue recogmton in respect
of services prowided to umversiies and higher educavon
institutions to faciitate online courses and looked at
significant new schoal tesung and teacher cerufication
contracts The commuttee also discussed the impact of
the new revenue recogmtion standard IFRS [5 Revenue
from Cenu acts with Customers and noted that although
the standard would not be adopted by Pearson untl
2017 the comnutree would need to understand the
imphcations of the change well before that date

Assumplions
underlying
revenue
recogniuon were
reviewed and
challenged

Tax

Thet e are a number of issues

) deffet ent countetes where
management judgements and
assumptons are made as to the
correct tax weatment

The comnittee consdes ed the Group s appr oach Lo tax
provissomng The Group operatesn alarge number of
countnes and, accordingly (s earnings are sufyect to
taxin many junsdicitons  The udgementinrelation to
tax provisionng sc a combination of the commuttee’s
assessment of the specific pen taxssues and also a
review of the tine penods i windh the Group's tax
affaurs 2 e open to enquiry by local vax mspectors in
unsdictions where the G oup has a larger taxable
presence The commuttee addressed this matter
through the presentation of a management repor t
onthe Group's tax affars by the head of proup tax

and through a presentaiion of the external audnor's
assessment of the Gi oup’s tax provisionng

The committee
was satsiied
with the Group’s
aoproach (o tax
prowvsioning
tilking account
of the views of
management ang
the assessment
of the external
auditors




Sigruficant sssues conunued

Secuon 4 Gu Crnang 75

AREA OF FOCUS {SSUE ACTION TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE OUTCOME
GrupoMuln  Pear san acquired Giupe Muly The comimittee momitored progress on the acquiaition Acqusiion
acquisiion mkebruary 2014 for £437m accounting and fan value adjusiments proposed with accounting
Management assumptions and particular emnphasis on tax and legal provisions and on 1eviewed and
esymates wel e Necessat yin the externat valuation of intangibie assets sigrificant
establishing farr values for the judgements
assets and habilmes acquired expiained
Disposat Pearson disposed of its 100% e committee reviewed the disposal accounting and Accounting
accounting interest in Merges market, nsjoun  disclosure and considered the main judgementsielating  treatments
venturenter est i Safar Books to tax treatments, Pension accounong intelation © and valuations
confirmed

Ontne its 5% mvesimentin Nook  Penguin and conungent consideration refaung to Safan
The commuttee also discussed the valuauon of the Noolk

Media mvestment at various meetings during the year

Media and made adjustments to
the disposal of Penguin recorded

wn 2013 pr 1o toits eventual disposal n December 2014

Significant issues

During the year, the committee discussed the planning,
conduct and conciusions of the external audit asiL
praceeded

Az the fuly 2014 audit committee meetmg, the comnuttee
discussed and approved the auditors’ Group audit plan
and reviewed the key risks of misstatement of the
Group’s financal statements. which were updated at

the December 2014 commitiee meeung

The 1able opposite sets out the significant issues
considered by the audit committee together with detards
of how these items have been addressed The committee
discussed these ssues with the audirors at the time of
their review of the haif year intenim financial statements in
July 2014 and agam at the conclusion of their audit of the
financial staternents for the full year in February 2015

All the significant issues were areas of focus for the
audrors Learn more in the Independent auditors’ report

onpll4-121

In December 2014, the commuttee discussed with the
auditor s the status of thewr work, facusing in parucular
onmnternal controls and Sarbanes-Oxey testng and
covering the sizntficantissues outfined above

As the audiwors conduded ther audit, they explained to
dhe commuttee

» The worl: they had conducied over revenue, working
alongside management to assess several complex
revenue contracts

» The work they had done to understand the Group's tax
strategy and identdy business and legistative risks, to
evaluate key underying assumptions and assess the
recoverability of deferred tax assets

»> Thewr evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre-publication assets

» Their focus on segments, CGUs and goodwall impairment
and the impact of the Group's transformauon on those

» The results of thewr controls tesung 1o date for Sarbanes-
Oxley Act secuon 404 reporting purposes and in support
of their financial statements audit

» The review of the company s going concern’ reports
The auditors also reported to the committee the
musstatermnents that they had found in the course of ther
work, which were insigrificant, and the committee
confirmed that there were no material tems remaining
unadusted in these financial statements
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Accountability continued

RISK GOVERNANCE AND CONTROL

Internal control and 1 15k management

Contro! environment

The directors confirm they have conducted a review

of the effectveness of the Group's systems of nisk
management and internal controls, mduding strategic.
financial, operational and compliance contrels and risk
managerment systerms, in accordance with the Code and
Turnbull guidance These systems have been operating
throughout the year and to the date of this report

In September 2014, the Financial Reporung Counctl
published updared Guidance on Rislkc Management,
Internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporung, which takes effect for our 2015 year end

repor ung The changes were discussed by executive
management and the audit commuittee and a plan has been
developed to set a clear path to compliance with the new
requirements, including ongotng robust assessment of risk
and preparaton of a viability statement

An enterprise nsk managernent (ERM} frameworkisin
place to identfy, evaluate and manage nsks. mduding key
financial reporting risles Business areas undertake sem
annual nsk reviews to identfy new or potenteally under-
managed risks Throughout the year, nsk discussions are
facilitated by the sk assurance team with Group and
business area management to identfy the key nsks the
company faces m achieving its objectives, to assess the
probability and impact of those risks and to document the
actions being taken to manage those risis The Pearson
Executive reviews the output of these sessions. focusing
on the key risks facing the business Management has the
responsibility to consider and execute appropriate action
to mitgate these risks whenever possible The results of
these reviews are reported to the audit committee and
the board in detail

During 2014, the sermi-annual reporung of top risks

was reviewed by executive management as well as the
board and audit commitiee Duning the year, the audit
committee considered the oversight of speadic sefected
prnapal niskes, through a series of risk ‘'deep dives Thists
covered n more detail in the separate report on the audit
committee The key elements and procedures that have
been establshed to provide effecuve risk management
and inter nal control systems are described below
Durng 2014, we aligned these procedures Lo the new
organssauon structure

Learn more about our Prnapat riskks and mingatng
factors on p34°

The board of directars has overall responsibility for
Pearson’s system of nternal control, which is designed
to manage, and where possible nutigate, the nsks facing
the Group safeguard assets and provide redsonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material financial
misstaterment or loss

Responsibiity for momtoring financial management and
reporting and nsk management and internal controf
systems has been delegated to the audit commuitiee

by the board At each meeting, the audit committee
considers reports from management, Group internal
audit and the external auditors, with the amm of reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal financial and operaung
control environment of the Group

The identfication and miugation of significant business
risks 15 the responsibility of Group seror management
and the management team for each business area -
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geographies
and enabhing functions Each business area, nduding
the corporate centre mantams internal controls and
procedures appropriate 1o 1ts structur e, busness
environment and nsk assessment whilst complying
with Group policies, standards and gudelines

Financial management and reportng

There 1s a comprehensive strategic planning, budgeung
and forecasting systemwith an annual operating plan
approved by the board of directors Monthly finanaal
information, mcluding trading results, balance sheets, cash
flow statements, capital expenditures and indebredness,
1s reported against the corresponding figures for the plan
and prior years, with corrective acuon outhned by the
appropriate senior executive Group senior management
meet perwodically with business area management to
review then business and financial performarnce aganst
plan and forecast Major risks relevant to each business

a1 ea as well as perfor mance aganst the stated financial
and stratepic objecuves are reviewed in these meeangs

WWe have an ongotig process te moitor the nsks and
effectiveness of controls in refation to the financul
reportng and consolidasion process induding the refated
information systems  This includes up-to-date Group
finanacial policies, formal requirements for finance




funcuons, Group consohdauon reviews and analysis of
rmaterial vanances, Group finance technical reviews,
ncluding the use of technical spectalists, and review and
sign-off by senior finance managers These processes are
subject to reviews based on Group nternaf audit's risk-
based audit programme The Group finance function also
monitors and assesses these processes, through a finance
compliance funcuon

These controls nclude those over external financal
reporting which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of sectron 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxiey Act winchis refevant to our US histing
One key controbin this area s the disdosure committee,
which submits reports to the audit committee This
committee is chaired by the SVP internal auditand
compliance, and members include the chief financial
officer, general counsel, SVP investor relations, SVP
company secretaral as well as serior members of
financral management The primary responsibility of
dwis comrittee 15 to review Pearson’s publc reporung
and disclosures to ensure that information provided to
shareholders is complete, accurate and comphant with
ail appheable legislation and ksung regulauons

The effecuveness of key finanaal controls 1s subject
to management review and self-cerufication and
independent evaluation by Group internal audit

Groupinternal audit

The Group internal audit funcaon is responsible for
providing mdependent assurance to management and
the audit committee on the design and effecuveness

of mternal controls to mutigate strategic, financial,
operational and caomphance risks The risk-based annual
internal audit plan 15 approved by the audit commuttee
Management action plans to improve mternal controls
and to miugate nsks, or both, are agreed with each
business area after each audit Formal follow up
procedu es allow Group internal audit to monitor
business areas’ progress i mplemenang is
recommendations and to resolve any control deficiencies
Group mtemal audit has a formal collaboranon process
in place with the external audttors to ensure efficent
coverage of internal controls Regutar reports on the
woi k of Group internal audit are provided to executive
management and, via the audit committee, 1o the board

Section 4 Lrae tangs 77

The 5VP internal audit and cornphance oversees
comphance with our Code of Conduct and worles with
serior legal and human 1 esources pet sannel to invesugate
any reportad inadents including ethical, corruption and
fraud allegations The audit committee 1s prowvided with
an update of all significant matters received through

our whistle-blowing reporting system, together with

an annual review of the effecuveness of this system

The Pear son ant-bribery and corruption programme
provides the framewor to support aur compliance with
vanous ant-bribery and corruption regulations such as
the UK Bribery Act 2010 and the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasu y department operates within policies
approved by the board and its procedures are reviewed
regula ly by the audit committee Major transactions

are authonised outside the departmentat the requisite
level, and there 15 an appropriate segregation of duties
Frequent reports are made (o the clief financial officer
and 1 egular reports are prepared for the audit commitiee
and the board

Insurance

Pearson purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this 15 avadable on a cose-effective basts Pearson's
mnsurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance Company Limited,
1s used to leverage the risk r etenuon capability of the
Group and to achieve a balance between retaining
insurance risk and transferring o o external nsurers
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Engagement

REPUTATION & RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Charrman
Vivienne Cox

MAGE REMOVED

Members Vivienne Cox. Linda Lorirner, Harnsh Manwant

As Pearson takes a more active role
in education worldwide, we have a
responsibiity to our learners and
to our shareholders to grasp new
opportunities which have a positive
impact on society. VWe are working
to build our brand and to sharpen
our awareness and management
of anything that risks damaging it.

Vivienne Cox Chan man of | eputation &
responsibility committee

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES:

i. Reputation Pearson’s reputation among major
stakeholders induding governments, investors
employees, customers, learners and the
education community

2 Strategy Communicauons strategies, polices and
ptans related to reputational 1ssues

3. Socrzl Soaal mpactimuanves

4 Brand Brand and culture development

S Ethics Ethical business standards

6 Ruslc Oversight of reputational risk

Reputation & responsibility commictee role

The reputation & respansibiity committee became a

for mal commitiee of the board in 2014 This refiects the
board and Pearson executive's growing awareness and
ambition around Pearson's corporate reputation, and our
belefin the importance of fulfilfing our obligations to the
communities i which we work, and maximismg Pearson's
pOSitive iMpact on socety

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of refer ence
which clearly set out its authority and duties
These can be found on the company website at
WWW pearson com/govel nance ©

The commuttee’s responsibilities are shown in more
detall below

For reputauon & responsibility committee meeung
attendance see overview table on p6é (]

BOARD VISIT TO WASHINGTON, DC

In June 2014, the board visited
Washington, DC for a three-day
meeting to understand the forces
behind changes in the educaton
landscape across the US and the
implications for Pearson’s brand
and reputation In our largest, most
successful market. Specifically, the
presentations and discussions
focused on four key areas, outlined
opposite..




Key activities in 2014

Section 4 Gy trnange 79

Committee aims for 2015

in the second year of Peat son’s transformation, the
comimittee acted 10 scruanise and challenge the fong term
strategy and approach th: oughout 2014, meeting three
omes and receiving pr esentauons from business leaders
across anumber of key areas

In parucular, the commitzee reviewed and provided
nputon

» Our long-term wision for corporate t ansparency and
reportng, n partcular adopting oversight of aur polincal
contributions policy and spending

> The wind-down of the Pearson Charitable Foundation
and our revised approach to sociahimpact actvity

» The rationale and future st ategy for the Pearson
Affordable Learruing Fund

» The review of the Pearson master brand and employee
values and our approach to traclung the equity of the
Pearson brand glabally

{ How toincrease productivity and demonstrate returm
on investment in our schools and colleges, and how to

pt epare more students to compete and succeedna
2lstcenwry global economy

2 increasing polarisation and pelitosason of educaton
issues and how the explosion of socal media has altered
the public policy landscape and the rules of the game

3 Learning to engage with new players and new issues
that come {rom increasing private sector investmentin
education, particularly fr om venture capital and
philanthropy, and the shift rto new digital and services-led
businesses

4 Growing public scrutiny of Pearson's role in education,
m partcufar how our 9ze and our success makes Pearson
a target for crocs and competitors and how the public
demand for transparency and proof of posiuve socal
impact ts posing new chaflenges - and opportunites —~

for companies

In 2015 the committee wall continue to focus on how ouw
strategy for managing oul 1 eputation and Mmaximising our
cantrtbution to sociely s changing with the organisation
The comnuttee will adopt oversight of health & safety
management, policy and issues, reflecung its increasingly
significant role in safeguarding cur reputation as we
become more actve In the direct delivery of education
to students in parucular, the commuttee will review
prog ess on the integration of social impact into Pearson’s
business foliowing the dosure of the Pearson Chartable
Foundation, the developrment of our reputaton
managerment approach 1n our newer markets, and our
progress towards our 2018 efficacy commutment

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox Chairman of reputation &
responsibility committee

The board had a deep dive session exarmining how
Pearson was bulding and execuung a more robust,
proactive government relattons and reputation
managerment capabihity

The board spent sme getting a first-hand look at
biended learning in acuon meeting educators, parents
andiearners during a visit to College Park Academy, an
innovative charter school run by cur Connectons team
n partnership with the University of Maryland's School
of Educanon

There was an opporwnty for the board to engage with
lrey national opimon feaders, policymalcers. reformers
and mngvators n educavon, widuding Melody Barmes,
farmer domesac policy adviser to President Obama.
and Ted Muchell US Under Secretary of Educaaon

Finally, the board heard from thie Pearson executive
team about how our new operaung model was helping
to accelerate our shuft to digital and services business
across K-12 and higher educavon, followed by an update
on the efficacy mmnauve
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Engagement conunued

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT '

Engaging with shareholders

Pear son has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders - large and small, msututional
and prvate

Shareholder cutreach In 2014, we contnued with our
shareholder cutreach progr amme, seeing approximately
690 mnsutuuonal and private investors at more than 420
differentinsticutions in Australia, Brazil Brunes, Canada,
Greater China, Conunental Europe, Japan, Singapot e
South Korea, the UK and the US

Trading updates There are five trading updates each year
and the chief executive and chief financial officer present
our prefinunary and interim results updates They also
attend regular meetmgs throughout the year with
investors m the UK and arcund the world, talored to
investor requirements, to discuss the performance of
the company, the company's strategy, our rest tCturng
programme, suructural changes in our markets and risks
and oppor tunites for the {utui e

Chawman meetngs The charrman meets regularly with
significant shareholders to understand any issues and
concerns they may have This isin accordance with both
the Code and the UK Stewardship Code The non-
executive directors meet nformally with shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond to
shareholder quenes and requests as necessary The:
chawrman ensures that the board 1s kept informed of
principal investors’ and advisers’ views on strategy,

and corporate governance

Consultatons Duning the year we also consulted with our
major shareholde: s and with shareholder representative
bodies on our directors’ remuneranon palicy Read about
Remuneration on p82 €

Seminars Ve have an established programme of
educational seminars for our mstitutional shareholders
focusing on indwidual parts of Pearson These seminars
are available to all shareholders via webcast on

WWW pearsen com (5]

Private investor s represent over 80% of the sharehalders
on our register and we make a concerted effort to engage
with ther regularly Shareholders who cannot attend the
AGM are invited to emad questions to the charman in
advance at glenmoreno-agm@peal son com @

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have provided a wealth of
mformation on our website about managing Peat son
shareholdings. see www pearson com/investors/
shareholder mformanon hunl for fn ther informauon
or tun to page 212 ofthis report. We also encourage all
shareholders, who have not already done so, to registel
their email addresses through our website and with our
registrar This enables them to receive emiail alel ts when
trading updates and other important announcements are
added to out website

See additional Shareholder information on p212 €

AGM

24 Apri 2015

8 MNorthumberfand Aveoue
I ondon England WCIN S8Y

690

wcutugonal and private
mvestor meetings in 2014

Our programme of cducannnal
sermia ¢ 15 availble for
nsaiuacnaln vesiors vs
webcast on peas son com

IMAGE REMOVED




Share dealing

Section 4 Cyras pong= 8l

WIDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with all stakehelders

Due to its continued popularity we again provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to use
our registrar’s low-cost share dealing service, giving them
the chance 10 4dd 1o orreduce ther stake n Pearson at
sigrificantly reduced dealing rates. o1 to donate shares 1o
chanty with ease This service proved very popular with
sharcholders, and consequently we intend to offer this
service agam at a future date

WWe believe iwisimportant that cur employees have a
shared interest in the direction and achievements of
Pearson and are pleased to say that a fat ge number of
cur employees are shareholders in the company

Annual General Meeting

Our AGM, on 24 Apri 2015 15 an oppor winity for all
shareholders to meet the board and to hear presentations
about Pearson’s businesses and results

We post all company announcements on our website,
www pearson com, as soon as they are reteased, and
major shareholder presentations are made accessibie
via webcast or conference call Ourwebsite contains a
dedicated mvestor refations section with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
tistorical financial performance, share price data and a
calendar of events Italso indudes information about all
of our businesses, links to their websites and details of
our corporate responsibifity policies and activities

Learn more about our approach to corporate
responsibility in the Social impact section on p45-56 o

Visit pearson com for
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Report on directors’ remuneration

PART | —~ LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chairman
Dawd Arculus

IMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus, Elizabeth Coiley, Vivienne Cox,
en Hydon Josh Lewss and Glen Moreno

The committee believes that
Pearson's remuneration policy
supports the company’s strategy
to deliver sustained performance
and create long-term value in the
interests of all stakeholders.

Dawvid Arculus Charrman of remuneratton commitiee

In this remuneration section
PART | LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN p82

PART 2. REMUNERATION POLICY p85

PART 3 REMUNERATION REPORT p89

Terms of reference

The committee’s full charter and terms of reference
are available on the Governance page of the
company's website at www pearson com/governance

introduction

{ am pleased to present our report on directors’
remuneration for 2014

The 2014 annual remuneraton repart will be put forward
for your consderanon and approval by advisory vote at
the Annual General Meeung on 24 April 2015

in accordance with the Ui remuneraton reportng
requirements, this report Contans

» A summary of the durector 8’ remuneratian poticy on p85
The full policy was approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeung on 25 Aprl 2014 and can be
found on the Governance page of the company's website
At www peal son comfgovernance

s The annual remunerauon report, on p89-106, describing
all aspects of remuneration practice y 2014

We believe this report clearly demonstrates the hink
between our remuneration policy and pracuce, and the
company’s strategy and performance, as well as our
commtment ta shareholder engagement

Principles of remuneration pohcy

The purpose of the remunerauon policy 1s to
support the campany’s su ategy to deliver sustaincd
performance and create long term vatue jn the
mterests of all stakeholders Thisis summansed in
the panel overleaf

We conunue to keep our remuneraton palicy under
review in kght of the prevailing social and econamic
conditons and the impact of these on the company’s
objectives and strategy




REMUNERATION POLICY PRINCIPLES

SSANISNE dNo i
i

I Sustainabiity and affordabiity We seek a careful and
sustainable balance between market competitveness,
affordabikity and the long-term interests of the
company and its shareholders, whilst also being
mindful of pay conditions elsewhere i the Group and
the wider socal and economic context The process
for setting levels of executive remunerat:on 1s robust
and transparent

2 Pay for performance A high proportion of total
remuneration is delivered as vanable pay thats
directly Iinked to both short and long-term
performance of the company, through annual
cennves that reward the achievement of annual
strategic goals and long-term incentives that drive
long-term earnings and share price growth
Performance conditions are sufficiently stretching
and recogmise mdividuat contribution as well as the
company’s financal results

3 Ahgnment We encourage executives to acquire
and hold Pearson shares i line with shareholders’
mnterests Long-term incentves reward the
achievement of sustainable, long-term value creaton
that will be benefical to shareholders We actively
saek feedbaclc from shareholders on alt aspects of
executive remuneratton

Remuneration supporting strategy

Pearson’s executive remunerauon arrangements
were reviewed last year 1o align with and support the
company’s new strategy Executive remuneration
decistons have been made after consultation with
shareholders, careful consideranon of the needs of the
bustness, the transformation and reorgarsation of the
company. changes i roles and responsibiiies, the pay
markets in which Pearson operates and pay elsewhere
e organisation

Pear son's strategy iforms our r ermnuneration philosoply
and policy and complements our more tradinonal finanaal
goals which are to actieve sustainable growth onthree
key measures (earrings, cash, and return oninvested
capital} and to delver reliable cashi returns to our
investars through healthy and growing dividends

Saecton 4 G tung 83

We believe those are, 1n concert, good indicators that
we are bulding the long-termvalue of Pearson These
measures {or others that contribute to them) therefore
form the basis of our annua! budgets and strategic plans
and the basis for annual and long-term incentives

What we did in 2014

We consulted with our major shareholders and with
shareholder representatives on the directors’
remunerauon policy prior to its publication However,
following publicaon a number of shareholders expressed
concern that the policy allowed the committee to
exercise discreton to approve remuneraton elements
outside of the normal hmits in excepuonal and unforeseen
crcumstances |n response to this, pror to the Annual
General Meeting, on 9 April 2014, and following further
consultaton, we issued a RINS statement to clanfy the
basts on which certam elements of the policy would

apply and, m parucular, to define and fimit when and how
remuneration arrangements outside the normal terms

of the paticy might be apphed The policy was approved
at the Annual Genes al Meetng on 25 April 2014

Perfor mance in 2014 at 2 glance

tn 2014, despite continuing challenging market
conditions, we had a good compettive perfortnance
Overall, we saw

» Growth in sales of 2% and i adjusted operaung profit
of 5% at constant exchange rates

» Anmcrease in our dividend of 6% which was Pearson's
23rd straight year of increasing our dividend above the
rate of mflaton

Qver the past ten years we have increased our dividend
ata compound annual raie of 7%. returning £2 9bn

to shareholders

Remuneration in 2014 at a glance

Base salary +2%
Allowances and benefits MNo chiange i an ingements
from 2043

Regrement benefits
Annual ncentves
Long-termncentives

Pay out below target
Nif vesung

iNote Thes reflecta changes 1o remuneration for the chef ex e tutive and the
chrel finarzal officer nocfor 1he re 1oftle Pearson eve cutve
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Reporton directors’ remuneration continued

PART | ~LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Loolung back 1o some specific aspects of policy
and practicen 2014

> We established maximum opportunities for cach
element of remuneration

» We changed the weightng of the performance metrics
under the Pearson long-tet mincentive plan from one-
third on each measure to half on earnings per share
growth, one-third (no change) on return on Invested
capital and one-sixth on relavve total shareholder return

» We introduced a mandatory restriction on partcipants
ability to dispose of the 75% of vested long-term incentive
shares that are reteased after thi ee years (other than to
meet personal tax liability) for a further two years and
for the remaiming 25% of vested shares to be subject to
conunuing employment over the same period

» VWe increased the mandatory shareholding guidelines to
300% of salary for the CEO and 200% of salary for other
execuuve directors

s These shareholding puidelines were also extended to
other members of the Pearson execunve at 100%
of salary

» We clarified the arrangements for malus and
strengthened the clawback provisions

> The annual bonus share martching plan was ceased
The last award under this plan will vest or not, subject
to performance, during 2016

»We undertook a regular periodic review of base salar ies
for 2014 taking inte account general economic and
market condittons, the level ofincreases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneration of executives
n similar posiuons in comparable companies, and
individuat performance

> Annual incentves paid to executives for 2014 were
below target as they were in 2013, reflecting below
target performance in a tough trading environment

> There was the second consecutve nil pay-out onlong-
term incentives, reflecting below threshold performance
for 2014 agamnst the company’s theee-year targets for
earnngs per share growth, return oninvested capital
and refatve total shareholder return

» Toncrease alignment waith shareholder interests and
the long-term growth of the company. we reviewed the
aperaton of the long term incentive plan for the senior
leaderstup population below the Pearson execunive

For 2014 and beyond, awards for this group of employees
will be subject wo performance based on an earnings
pet share growth target

What we've planned for 2015

Loolang forward, for 2015

» We will continue to operate ditectors’ remuneration
w line with the app1 oved remuner dtton policy and
anuctpate putung the policy to shareholder vote next
at the 2017 Annual General Meeting

s As approved in the 2013 directors’ remuneration
report for performance related long-term incenuve
awards for 2015 and onwards the averaging period for
the catculanon of relative total shareholder return will
be moved to the perod 1 unning up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period will be increased to
three months

> Onlong-term incentives, we have reduced the
proporton of the maximum award that vests for
threshold perfot mance fi am 30% to 25% in line with
insttutional investors’ preferences

» Based on our guidance for 2015, we will face a chaillenge
in delivering a pay-out under the long-term icenuve
plan award for 2013

The commuttee welcomes the positive engagement with
sharehalders on our approach 1o this year's report on
directors’ remuneration and, speafically, on the issue of
the vote against our annual remuneration report at the
2013 Annual General Meeung

The committee is commutted to an ongaing dialogue
with shareholders regarding executive remuneration
and would therefore welcome any observations or
quesuons that ndvidual shareholders may wish to raise

| would hice to thank my feliow members of the
comimittee and the people who have assisted us for
theu contnbunon over the past year

Finalty as{ step down fi om the beard and from charng
the commnuttee, 1look forward e handing over the cemns
to my successor, Eizabeth Corley

Yours sincerely

IMAGE REMOVED

Dawnd Arculus Chanman of the remuneraton comemittee
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PART 2~ SUMMARY QF REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction to summary of remuneration policy

The company's policy on dit ectors’ remuneration was
approved by sha eholders at the Annual General Meeung
on 25 Aprit 2014 We issued an RNS statement of further
informauon on the r emuner aton policy on 3 Apid 2014,
to clarify the use of the commuttee’s discreton over
certain elements of remuneration in exceptional
arcumstances

To help shareholder s understand the context of
remuner ation practice repoarted n the annual
remuneration report that follows, and specifically the
firnuts applied to directors' remuneration, we have
tncluded below some key points and a summary of
perunent sectons of the r emuneration policy for
information only For further detal, please refer to the
full remuneranon policy and the clarficaiion statemeint
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
wWww peal son com/governance

Scope of policy
The policy apphes to executive directors, the chanman
and non-executive directors

Reference s also made to the remuneraton policy for
other members of the Pearson executive {currently

[2 in number} who are not directors but who fall within
the committee’s remut

Duration of policy

The policy took effect on 25 April 2014 and s expected to
lastuntd the next binding vote on our remuneration policy
which at presents planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretion

The committee has avotded, where possible, ncluding
general discrenions 10 the policy table However,
exceptional or genumnely unforeseen arcumstances may
anse in the future and wn those arcumstances it may be
in shareholders interests for Pearseon to put in place
remuneration arrangements that are outside the te1ms
of the pohcy {f s happens, the comnutree will be
permitted to implement remuneraton arrangements that
it considers approprate i the arcumstances inthese
circumstances, Pearson would consultin advance with
major shareholdersbefore it does so and would explain
the exercise of this discretion in the following year's
directors’ remuneratton report

As darified in the RINS statement of further information
on the remuneration policy on 9 April 2014 dys disceeton
would only be used i the very nan ow arncumstances

aruculated in the policy — thatis, in exceptional or
genumely unforeseen arcumstances The commuitee
considers that these circumstances would arise highly
infrequendy. if at all, in the hfeurme of the policy The
commuttee would regard rellance on this discretion as a
matter of utmost serousness and, i relation to our stated
obligaton to consultin advance with major shareholders,
would not proceed unless there was clear consensus in
favour among those consulted Further, the committee
would ensure that the value of the remunerauon
arrangement putin place in relance on this discretion
would fall within the normal hmut {as stated in the policy)
for the element of remuneraton w which the
arrangement relates

As part of the approved policy, the committee also has
discretion to award base safary increases aflowances and
benefits, and long-term mcentve plan awards i excess of
the normal maximum lints to current or new directors
As claried in the RNS statement, this discreton will

only be exercised in excepuonal circumstances other
than in the case ofincreases in the cost of benefits that
are outside Pearson’s control and chianges in benefit
providers Again, Pearson would consult with major
shareholders before exerasing any such discretion and
such exercse would be imited by reference to the
safeguards described above, induding only praceeding
where there was dear consensus in favour among those
consutted In these arcumstances, the committee would
ensure that the maximum value of the remuneravuon
arrangement ptrLin place in refiance on this discretion did
not exceed amargn of 25% over the normal maximum
fimit for the element in question {as stated in the policy)

lLegacy arrangements

Given the long-term nature of sorme of Pearson’s
remuneraton structures — ncluding obligations under
service contracts, mneentive plans and pension
arrangements - a number of p1 e-extsting obligatons
remained In place at the tme that the new policy became
effective, induding obligations thatare grandfathered’ by
vrtue of beng in force 21 27 fune 2012 Pearson s policy s
to henour all pre-exising obhigatons, commitmerits or
other enotlements that were entered into before the
effecove date of this policy

Summary of remuneratcn policy table

For mare informanon on how remuneration is operated,
please refer to the full remuneration policy on the
Governance page of the company's websrte at

www pearson com/governance
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 2 — SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Etement of
renunerac.an

Pui pose and hini 1o strategy

Performance tondnons

Marmai e

Exceptional it as clanfied in RINS
statenwne of ¢ Apnt 2014

Base salory

Allowances
and benefics

Retirement
benefits

Annual
Incennves

Long-term
meentives

Helpato recnme rewsndand
TOLAh

Reflecty compe niwe marker
fevel role shills expenence
andindividual contnibuuon

Hedp 1o recruitand retan
Renect the foeal campeitive
market

Help Lo recrut ind 1 etnn
Recopn e long tern
LOMmITIEMEnt

Maotiwvate achuev e i of
annual sirate g goals
Forus on key

Iraegial metr ey

Reward indwndual
contnbution

el 10 recruit reward
ndsetamn

Drive long termearnmgs
share price growth and
value crevion nd dgn
nterests of excunives
and shreholders

Cacotn ape lung 1erm
shareha'ding ard

COMM rent (o company
Linlenusiagement s fong
term reward and wealth
10 COrpnre te performance
1 4 flerile way

wone aithough ptrformance of borfy
the Lompay and the wirciMl are
raken pro account vihen derer mining,
anappropristc feveicThise safary
100 ease each year

INone

MNone

The coammtet hs the diso enonto
sefect the petformanee measures
targets and refatize weighungs from
yeartoyeir

Funded by Pearsan globa) ammii
Tmanai restlts and weighred

60" 0on wdjusted earninge per shorc
207 uonsies

20% on operatng cash flow

Pay outs take o account individual
performance agamst personat objectives

Tt commurter will dete cmune the
periormanie measures woghungs
2nd tatgers pover ning an award of
restnicied shares prie) 1o gramt te
enaur o Continung digamen with
steatogy and w ensure the rargets
aesufficenly srerching

Awe ards vest subjert 1o the folioweng
poriarmange condiwons one halfon
farrungts porshare growth one rhud
on return on mvestc d capital (ROIC)
one-sixih on relas e total sharcholder
rewurn (TSR)

Performant ¢ 1csted over thrge yous

B a5 salar pmcreuscs e
net ordinardy more then
V0% per aniun,

Toaal ridue not ordinanly in exess
of 15% of bisesalary o any gt

As setoutinapproved
FRMUNerUnN pohcy

Overalil nut 200°% of base sthary
2015 mgimum opporwunity s
$80% 1orthe chiel cxecutive and
o Mes ¢ than {70% for oxher
€20 Lutive drectod sand memiers
of the Pearsan executive

Max mumfare value of 400% of
base ualary

Other thanm excepuomal
CIFTUNIYSTANESS ON T ACFIHnent,

it the connpany & normal pokcy
not1o avward resiricted shares Lo
Fxecutve tirecrors and other
memibr e of the Pearson execotivi
withoutpin {ormance condinons

Up 1o 15% aver numd b
Areatcindvdud nustoncnduding
intermal premouons and materal
changes o he busnwss or the role

Up 1o 35% over honmat lemt m
speof pdvduat ausons nduding
chianges wv mdradoal cotumstun es
sty a5 hevith starus and chanzes
inthe sole such aselocavon

in eycess of 25% aver normral knwt
n the case of ncreases n the ¢ose
of benefis Jhat re o, tsue of
Pearsnn = conwrad s dhangas

in benef provders

None

N

Lip to 25% over narmaf bl m
exLeponal ureumstances for
exanmple (OFretenton purposes
ar to reflecl p srucdar busne s
swuatons The dsaetonto
award restneted thart s witoug
perierTance Londmons (o executve
direttors will not be used cther
than where ILs uppropraLL to
COMPETISITE d HEw rector ona
len frn e bass for i enoves
foregnne 1 a prevous employer

Fotal shaseholder return d T9R) e the reluen w shiv ebc [ders from any grawtha Pesonsshire prge and roinvested diede wit oven the performance perad
For long termyincentive awards T5Ras meazur ed relative te the Lorsttuents of the FT50 Wotld Mindia Index over athree yezt penod Compaties that drop

cutod theudes are nonwatly excluded 1e only companies inthendex “or the cnin e pe riod are counted Shaneprice)

vieraped over thigg months atthe

start nd endof the performance penod Dindends are tre ned a= 1envested nnthe ex divdend date mime with the Datasorcam e thodosog ¢+ The vestng of
shares based onelatnie T3R5 o, et Lo e cummutec satsd ang s et Vit the recor drd 1ol age whne s cPecie n of the underlwng tnancilt performanr e

of the buswness

oo o on swestee capr ol (ROIC) it adiusted operaneg profitless caslitax exprossed us aperwentage of procyinvested capid (1 upH ating dssets plue
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Adustrd earrengs per share (EPS)1. caleulated by diveang the adyustes eanyig,s atmbutabin to equry shiarehicdde rs of de company by the weighrd
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Non-executive directors and chatrman

Section £ Tur v paees &7

Pay and performance scenario analysis

Non-executive director remuneranion has been
designed to ateract and retam hugh calibr e ndividuals,
with appropriate experience or industry refevant skills
by offering market competrive fee levels

The structure of non-executive directors fees with effect
from | May 201415 as follows

Drrector {oe
Non-executive director £70.000
Chawrmanship of audit committee £27.500

Chawrmanship of remuneraton committee £22 000

Chairmanship of reputation &

responsibility comimittee £10,000
Membership of audit commutiee £15,000
Membership of remuneration committee £10,000

Memberstup of reputanon &
responsibiity committee £5,000

_ £22,000

Sentor independent director

The total fees payable to the non-execunve directors are
subject to the limit set outin the arucles of association

of the company (currendy £750,000} and are increased
by ordinary resoluton from tume to ume

The chairman’s fees remain unchanged at £500,000
peryear

For more information on non-executive directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneratcn pohcy
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
WWW pearson com/governance

The remunerauon policy approved by shareholders in
20i4 required a scenarto char tin the format set out
below for 2014 remuneraunon Although not required,
the company has updated the scenarso chat ts below so
as to apply to 2015 t emuneration

Consistent with its policy, the commuttee places
constderable emphasis on the perfor mance-linked
elements, 1 e annual and long-term incentives

The chart below shows what each director could expect
to receve in 2015 under different performance scenartos,
based on the following definiions of performance

Petiormance scenario Eiements of remuneratuen and assumprions

2015 base salary, allowances
benefits, and retrement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
asn 2014, maxemum individual
annual incentive as per polcy,
maxwnum value of 2014 long-terim
incentive award

Target 2015 base salary, allowances,
benefits and retrement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
asin 2014 wargetindmidual annual
incentive as per policy, target value
of 2014 long-term mcentive award
(Towers Watson's independent
assessment of the expected value
of the awatd, (e the netpresent
value takung into account all

the conditrons)

Maximum

2015 base salary, allowances
benefits and retrement benefits
at the same percentage of base
salary asn 2014, no annual or
long-term mcentives

Mintmum

Mote The value of long, term mcennves does RO TR 5o JCeot
dividend awards that ar e payabde on e refease of restnered share s
nor Ny cvenges w share p e

On tius basis, the relawve weighting of fixed and
performance related remuneraton and the absolute
size of the remunerauon packages for the chief executive
and the chief financaf officer (as represenced by the
current incumbent) are as follows on the next page
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 2 — SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

MAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

We will conunue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-linked remuneration on an annual basis
consistent with our overall policy

Recruitment

The committee expects any new executive directors
to be engaged on the same terms and to be awarded
vanable remuneraton within the same normal iinvts
and subject to the same conditions as {or the current
executve directors outiined i the policy As danfied
in the RNS statement of further information on the
remuneration policy on 9 Apnl 2044, this applies other
than in the arcumstances set out below where it s
approprate to take account of the terms of the new
dwectors’ existing employment and/or thew personal
arcumstances

The committee recognises that it cannot always
predict accurately the circumstances in which any

riew directors may be recruited The committee may
determune thatitis in the interests of the company

and shareholders to secure the services of a

partcular indwidual which may require the comrmittee
to take account of the termis of thatindmdual s existing
employment and/or thewr personal arcumstances
Examples of circumstances in which the commutree
expects it might need to do tus are outhned m full i the
remuneravon pohicy an the Governance page of the
company's website at www pearson com/governance

in tight of the various legacy pension arrangements
enjoyed by the ncumbent executve directors, n
derermiung the pension arrangements for any new
recruit, the committee expects to offer a defined

contribunion arrangemeant with company contributions
nat exceeding those setin our approved policy on

the Governance page of the company s website at

www pearson.cornigovernance but would have regard
for the recruit s existing arrangements, the market norms
in the home country and the exisung pension vehicles
avatlable withia the company

tn making any decision on any aspect of the remuneration
package for a new recruit, the committee would batance
shareholder expectations, current best practice and the
requirernents of any new recrurt and would strive not to
pay more than s necessary to achieve the recruitment
The committee would give full details of the terms of

the package of any new recruttin the next annual
remunerauon i eport

Pearson expects any new chatt man or non-executive
director to be engaged on terms that are consistent

with the general remuneraton principles outhined n the
relevant sections of this policy However, inthe case of
the charrman the commutlee may cansider t appropnate
to offer a remuneration package that differs from that of
the sxasung incumbent If that 1s necessary to attract the
most capable candidate or to reflect the indwidual’s
expected duttes

Further information on remuneration policy

For further informauon on the folfowing aspects of the
remuneraton policy, please refer to the full remuneration
pohcy and the RNS statement of further information

on the remuneration policy on 9 April 2014 onthe
Governance page of the company's website at

WwWW pearson com/governance

» Selecuan of performance measures and target setung

» Legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

» Remunerauon policy for other employees

» Service contracts and (eNTINAROn Provistons

» Employment conditons efsewliere in the company
» Executive directors non execuuve directorstups

r Shareholder views
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PART 3 — ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual remuneration report

This repor t comprises of a number of sections

The remuneration committee presents the annual
remuneration 1 eport, which will be put to shareholders
as an advisory {non binding) vote at the Annual Generdl
Meeung ia be held on 24 April 2015

Remuneraton comphance

Thus report was comnpied i accordance with Schedule 8
of the Large and Medium- sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulatons
20(3 and was approved by the board of directors on

9 March 2015

The committee believes that the company has comphed
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
contamed within the UK Corporate Govei nance Code

Where required under current regulatons, the tables
marked *audit have been subject to audit

The 1 emuneration committee and its
actvities on page 90 to 93

Vating outcome at 2314 Annual General

Meeung on page 94

Single figure of tatal remuneration and

prior year comparison an page 95 “audit
Remuneration patd to the chairman and

non-executive directors on page 96 ‘audit
Retn ement benefits on page 96 taudit
Annual incentive on page 97 aucht
Long-term incentrves on page 98 faudit
Mavements i directors’ interests m share

awards on page 99 *audit
Movements in diectors’ interests in shate

options on page (00 faudit
Payments to former directors on page 100 *audit
Payments for loss of office on page 101 “audit

Interests of directors and value of
shareholdings on page 102 taudit

Executive directors’ non-executive
directorships on page 102

Historical performance and remusieration
on page 103

Comparative information on page 104

information on changes to remuneration
for 2015 on page 104 and 105
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

The remuneration committee and its acovities

Composition

Chauman  Dawid Arculus tndependent non executive
director

Membeis Efizabeth Cortey

Vevienne Cox Independent non executive
iKen Hydon ditectors
Josh Lewis

Glen Mereno Chairman of the board

intermal John Falfon Chief executive

advrsers Robin Freestone  Chwef financial officer
Melnda Wolfe Chief human resources
officer
Robert Head VP executive reward &
global sha: e plans
Stephen Jones SVP company secretarial
External

adviseis Towers YWatson

Glen Moreno s a member of the committee as permitted
under the UK Corporate Governance Code

internal advisers provided matertal assistance to the
committee during the year They attended meetings of
the committee although none of them was volved in
any deassions relating to lus or her own remuneration

To ensure that the committee receves independent
advice, Towe s Watson supplies survey data and advises
on market trends, long-term incentives and other general
remuneration matters Towers Watson was selected
and apponted by the comimittee through a formal
tendering process Towers Watson also adwvised the
company on health and welfare benefits i1 the US and

provided consultng advice directly to certain Pearson
operaung compares Towers Watson s a member of
the Remuneration Consultants’ Gi oup, the body which
oversees the Code of Conductinrelation to executive
1emuneraton consufung in the UK

Duning the year, Towers Watson was paid {ees for advice
to the commuttee, which were charged on a ume spent
basts, of £95.(00 Aspart of its annual review of is
performance and effecuveness, the committee remains
sansfied that Towers Watsorn's advice was objectve and
independent and that Towers Watson's prowision of ether
services In no way compromuses its independence

Commuttee performance

Annually, the committee reviews its own performance,
constitution, and charter and terms of reference to
ansure It 1s operating at maximum effectiveness and
recommends any changes 1t consider s necessary to

the board for approval

The commuttee partipated N a SUrvey 1O review its

pet formance and effectivenass in july 204, looking at
areas such as the clarity of roles and responsibiies, the
composiuon of the commuttee, the use of ome, the quality
and tmehness of meetng matertals, the opportunity for
discussion and debate, dialogue with management and
access to independent advice

The commitiee concluded that it is operating effectively
and noted the chalienges for the year ahead

The commutiee and s members were subject to a
formal third-party external evaluaton by JCA Group
of the board, tts commuttecs and mdividual directors’
performance which was completed atthe end of 2014




REMUNERATION COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES

The commitzee’s principal duties are to

| Deteimine ang review policy ;
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Meetings, activittes and decisions in 2014

The remuneraucn cormnmittee met four tmes during 2014, as described below

19 and 20 February

2014

MARKET

GOVERNANCE

IMPLLMENTATION

Noted Towers Watsons over view of the
current remuneration envil onment and
201372014 marker data

PCRFORMANCE

Noted management s overview of 2013
and 2044 perfoi mance and plans

IMPLEMENTATION

Reviewed and appi oved the 2013 annual
ncentive pay out and 2014 remuneration
package for John Fallon

Reviewed chairman's remunegratnan wiirh
remained unchanged

Rewviewed and app oved 2013 annuadl
ncentve plan pay outs

Rewiewed and approved provisional 20(t
long-term incentive plan pay-outs (pending
confirmation of FSR performance)

Approved vestung of 2001 annval banus
share matching awards and 1 od¢ ase of shares

MNoted the activity of the standing

commiitee of the board i relation
to the opet ation of the company s
equity based reward programmes

Noted company s use of equity for
cniployes sha e plans

POLICY

Reviewed and approved 2013 du ectors
) eMune) auon report

Reviewed and approved increases
in base salaries for 2014 1or the
Perdrson exetuiove

Reviewed and approved 2H4 Pearson
anmnual incentive plan targets

Reviewed and approved 2014 ndwidual
annual Incentive opportumues for the
Pearson executive

Reviewedfong termncentive awards
and asscciated performance condmons
for the Peai son executive

Re siewed and noted total | emuneraton
for membes s of the Pearson executive
for 2013 and 204

Confirmed nd pay out under 2011 long
term incentve plan

Reviewed and approved 2014 fong
term incentive awai ds and associated
performance condttions for the

Peal son executive

GOVERNANCE

Rewewed and approved amendments
to plan rules for the workdwade save for
shares and long termincenuve plans

POLICY

Consdered appt cach to 2014 long term
incentive awards fot senior leader s and
manages s below the Pearson execunive

DISCLOSURE

Noted shareholder feedback on 2013
directors’ remuneration reportand
RNS statement of fus ther informaton
on the remunaraton palicy

REMUNERATION IN ACTION

Shareholding
by executives
supporting
performance
and strategy

Following consultation on our
remuneration policy approved

by sharehalders in 2014 we :
introduced two arrangements
designed to encourage shareholding
by executives and support
performance and strategy

Fust under thelong-tenmincentve
plan we wtroduced a mandatory
restichon on paraapants’ abiliy to
dispose of the 75% of shares that vest
based on periormance after three

years (other than to meet personal
tax liabilrues) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants’ rights to
the refease of the remaimng 25%

of the vested shares s subject to
conunued employment over the
same petod

Secondly, we mcreased our-
mandatory shareholding pudelines
to 300% of salary for the CEO and
200% of salary for other executive
directors These shareholding
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gutdelines have also been extended
to other members of the Pearson
executve at {00% of salary

Togetier, these arrangements clearly
demonstrate the commitment to
sustaned perfotmance and tong-
term value creanon and ahgnment
with shareholders’ interests

“Shareholding by senior executives
demonstrates commitment to sustained
performance and long-term value creation
and alignment with shareholders’ interests.”

David Arcutus Chan man of the remuneraton comnttee
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] py ! o Noted exit 3ri angements fora member §
eviewed the commitiee s charier an PERFORMANCE of the Pearson execunive 2
rerms of reference z
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Noted update on 2014 {ong Lermincentive outstanding tong term incentive awards Noted 20{4 long rermincentve awards
awards for senior feaders and manager + based on the current view of likely Pearson far sensor leaders and managers befow
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Voung outcome at 2014 Annual General Meetng

The following table summat ises the details of votes cast in respect of the resolutions en the report on directors’
remsnet aven at the 2014 Annual General Meetng

Report Votes for Vores agunst Tona' virtescnst Vates wirhhetd (abatantions)

Remunerauon policy 517 308,446 22905879 540,214 325 6.004,239
95 76% of votes cast 4 24% of votes cast 65 96% of 1ssued
share ciiprfat i

Annual remuneraton 349,696,505 181,521,643 531,218,148 (5.000.416
report 65 B3% of votescast 34 7% of votes cast 64 86% of issued
share capital

The commuttee took this significant vate aganst the 2013 annual remuneraton report very senously and considered the
voung result and shareholder engagement strategy at ther Aprd, July and December 2014 meetings

The primary reason for the vote agamst was clear investors’ objection to the commttee exercising its discreuon o allow
a porton of Rona Farhead's 2011 LTIP award to vest without reference to performance The committee acknowledges
that the approved remuneration policy provides a comprehensive remuneration framework with dear hrmits and

as a result ssues of a simidar natuw e will not arisen the future

We consulted on this voting outcome and this disclosure in the 2014 annual remuneration report with our major
sharehotders and shareholder representative bodies, who wer e broadly satsfied with both the process for engagement
and the explanation given

As 1 previous years and as required by law, details of the voung on all 1 esoluuons at the 2015 Annual General Meeung
will be announced via the RNS and posted on the Pearson website following the Annual Gener al Meeting
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Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directors were £4,206m in 2014 These emoluments are
included with total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the finanaal statements (page 141)

Executive directors
The remuneration ; eceived by executive directors in respect of the financial years ending 3¢ December 2014 and

3{ December 2013 1s set out below

Executive director remuner auon

Cemematrommanen T T LT Teeston T TRobnbreesone T T emi o
£000s 2014 2013 2014 1013 2014 2013 5
Base salary 76l 750 553 545 1314 1,295 =
Allowances and benefits 83 43 i5 4 o8 57 ;CE
Travel 50 5 12 2 62 7 s
Healthcare 2 3 2 2 4 5 4
Risk 34 25 t - 32 25
Annual incentives 692 463 365 341 1,057 804
Percentage of maximum (%) 51% 34% 39% 37% - -
Percentage of target (%) 2% 62% 8% 74% - - —
Percentage of salary (%) 2% 62% 66% 63% - - 2
Long-term tncentives 74 (4l 63 18 137 £7 0 S
LTIP - - - - - - 2
ABSMP - - - - - - 3
Dividend equivalents 74 41 63 18l 137 322 E
Reurement benefits 285 330 166 163 45! 433 -
Defined contribution cost - - 23 22 23 22
Defined benefit acarual 87 {35 - - 87 i35
Allowances intieu ofbencfits 8 1% oM 4 3%
Totalremuneraton _-mwu'_zzlm__.__},&‘*i 2971

Sngle totalfigure of i saneranon In accotdance vath the regulatons we show
a single total igure of remunerauon wiuch mcludes resrement berefits anc
long termincentves in iddiion 1o the other elements ofre nunes atsan thar
have beon shown in previous reports

Base safary In accordance with pelicy the commiitee consideredateport from
the crel execytve and chuefhuman recotrces oflicer on general pay vends

1 the marcet nd the bovel nf iy numsses across the crmpaay asa whele

For 2004 the company had renerated s starung princestes that base
cumpensation provides the appropriate rate of remuneravon for the job
taking (M0 account reiey 1M recruitment imdrkens business sectars and
gengiaphie roegions and thar votal reomeraton shoukd 1 eward both shortand
Fang termresults defnvering LHnpeLtve aew grds Tor target performance bt
tegherrewards for excepuons! campany priformance For the USand LK. the
bursppt guedewne vssuea ar the end of Sepremiber 2013 fo adjustitents ic base
2y froe 2004 was 3% afthough business unies with an Apnl review date operated
to 4 2% sdwy nerease pond Localinftauon races and mark et uondiens were
taheninte Account i par el mancets

Atlowances and benefits Travel benefies compnr e campany ¢ can Mowance
and private use of adnver Hesfin benefis comprre healthcare hesith

Annualincentve For more detal see tableon page 97 Annuatincenuve, fur

the directors e funded by Pearsongintal annual finaneial results 2nd pay ourts

talee into arcount indradual perfarrmance agamst personal sbiectves

Long erm mcenmves The sngle ligure of rermuner avon for 2014 mdudes 2
iong termincenuve awards that were subjectto a performance condiien
where the perfermance period ended or was substamully funnot fulhyt
compieted ar3! December 2014 and awards whore the performance
condion his been sausfied but where the release o shares s subjecitoa

fur ther holding period The same methodology has been apple 3 for the single

figure of remuner wonfor 2013

7004 the pesformance candsans for Uwe 2000 LTP and 201 L ABSPP wers
WOLTAET 3o Uvete 1s notbsng ta repartin Jie smpie figgare of remunes anon (ot
i0l4 Theezeaunwe dimecrors Sath held vested shares underthe 2009 LT
thatwerereleased on | Apnf 2044 at the end of the two year bolding penod
and tfiese sha es were pas L of the wnde fure of renamerztionlor J082 0
repor fad i the 2002 report ondreeters remuneraton However the
doadend eguivatent sheeshat were awarded and released on t Aprd 2044
have e en mcluded:n the supfe figw e of remuner auonfor 2904 ar beiovs

assessment and gym subsiay Qusk henefits comorse additional bfe cover Dage of

andlong 1erm disabsby wnur 2oce {naddwon o the above benefits and aweard Number Share price
Drrector and 1elease of sharus Valire onloise

alfpwinces executve do LLTO » May Ao pariipate mLompdany benefic

or policy arrangements that have nota~zhle value. fehn Fzhon T Apr 4 7054 £73 644 {044 Cp

The nw rease m ase b nefits for folin Fallon s attnbuwbie wo the fast full-year Pobintreestone  LAor i 60 L6210 104400

efroporung of s pr = ate tse of A doverbased on the benetit i Jand zhuge
farthe 20153/2014 1ax year

Revrement Denefits Formore dooal see table anpage 96

al
Q
<
m
-
2
T
z
[a]
m

SINIWILWLS TVIONVNIZ




96 Pearson ple A a1 epust and atcmp t- 2011

Report on directors’ remuneration contmued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Chairman and non-executive director remuneration
The remuneration pard to the charman and non-executive directors in respect of the finanoial year s ending
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 s as follows

204 2013
Drrector Salaiy)  Commitree Commutee Tanable T Say Fommues Com ot Tl
£0005 basicfor  chamanship membersip  SID  benefits  Total  bascke crinmandp merherthh  SID benefs  Totdl
Glen Moreno 500 - - - - 500 500 - - - - 500
David Arculus 68 21 14 - 2 {05 65 20 fo - I 9
Ehizabeth Cortey
(appointed
| May 2014) 47 - 4 - | 52 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 68 7 22 21 6 124 65 - 15 20 5 108
en Hydon 68 27 g - 8 1 65 25 5 - 5 100
josh Lews 68 - 8 - 9 85 65 - {3 - 9 &7
Lmda Lonmer 68 - 7 - 8 93 33 - - - 3 36
Harish Manwani 68 - 4 - 7 79 & - s = i 17
Total 955 55 77 2 4l 1149 809 45 £ 20 24 9al

Note Tazalie bene fas reft r ta travel accommodation and subwatonce exgentes mcorred winle atte nding board mes ungs dunng 2014 rhut were pud or resmbursed
Ly the company whw hare deaaned by HMAC w0 be taxabie mibe UK The ansountsin the wble abaw mcjude the grossed up rost of U ax to be pard by the
company on bohalf of the drecters Totaf remuneraton{on 201351 ¢ stated 10ndude these Larabie oxpenses The tompany has made 4 volunt ry dudiowre 1o
FIMRC o etele the tax b fity for raxable expenses 10 prior Lx years

Retirement benefits

Details of the directors’ pension entittements and pension refated benefits during the year are as follows

Value of  Other puntion

Accrued  defined benefic costs Lo the Oxher
Noimal  pension ac pensiongver company over  sflowancesin Totl annual
renrement 31 Dec 14 the petiod thepersad  heuof pension  value in 2014
Direcror Plans e £000° £000 togo? €009 £000°

John Pearson Group Penston Plan Accrual
Fallon rate of |/30th of pensionable salary
per annum Taxable and non-
penswonable cash supplement 62 807 867 - 1977 2844

Robin Money Purchase 2003 section of the
Freestone Pearson Group Penston Plan Taxable
and non-penstonable cash supplement 62 - - 226 143 4 1660

Morte |1 he acor ued pension at 3 December 2014 i the delerred pension 1o which the me mber wankd be entrtled an ceasing pen zomible servive on 31 Decenbar
D14 ForfohnFallon areleter wo the censon pagsblefran the UK plan Roba freestone dos rat acoue defined benefi s

MNote 2 This column Somgatin s B moreaseinthe dre cten 4 acomaedpenson cver the perod (e sofmflanon’ msulnidy dby 20 anddramvduchiche diarerors
camnburons are deducted

Mot 3 Tins column compnses coninbruony eo defined contr buteon ansagements for L Ge oefics
Note 4 Tins cofumn represents the cash o anres pand i hiew of the otew=us FURBS arrangements e foho Tillen and Robwn Erecaone
Wore S Toral answal value s the sum ol thie previcus three cofumns

Note & There are no addiwsnat benefits or speaad arrangements under theretrement plans for directors who retite bedore ther pormal retement date
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Annual incentive pay-out in 20H4

For 2084, annuat incentrves were funded by Pearson global annual financial results based on the perfor mance measures
set out below {ndividual pay-outs talke mto account performance against personal objectives Acual perfor mance againse

the financial targets for 2014 was as follows

Actual Pay-out
Mersurs Wephoy 20 ort e Ion T ma0W  (Kotearges
Group EPS (p) 60% 570 682 795 667 B86%
Group sales (£m) 20% 4,695 4995 5295 4,883 63%
Operating cash flow (£m) 20% 5655 6786 97 6489 74%%
e - R

Nere | Pearson 1 eportad financel results for the re’evam penod were ured to measure perfarmance

MNote 2 The annu incentive phan s desgnedd o inceninase ird rew i d undurpng perdormance exclud ng ibe effec of foregn exe hanga and portfolio dhinges
(acquistions and disposals) and uther fxctor s th it the sommuree considers refevans i the performance year Tarpets thre<holds and maama e gapresse dat
2014 aceual exch inge rates (£ §1 6488) Thetargets thresholds and ma ima wei e angmaty set at plan exchange races (£ 58 60} and hve been idusted to seal
eechangeates for compuasanapinstactund patformancera negare the efect of eachange rate movernonts

Mete 3 o d sacuon has been exercised to sdjust the resulung underipnng p y-nuts
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATHON REPORT

Long-term mcentives

The staws of cutstanding awards under the long-term incenuve plan (LTIP) and the legacy annual bonus share matching
plan (ABSMP) and performance against the per formance condiiens as at 31 December 2014 are described mthe
table below

For each executive director, details of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released, fapsed
or held during 2014 are summansed in the adjacent table

Status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan and annuat bonus share matctungin 2614

Shre
price b of
Dateof  ohdate Vestng Performance Performance Pay-ourtat Pay-gait 4t Actual award
Plan award of award date MLISUTES period v eshold maximum  performince  vetied Sratus
LT I May 2044 1102 Op ( May 2017 Refavve TSR 2004 yristmedan 100% atupper - Ouwstanding
o 2017 guartile subject o
performance
ROIC. 2006 30%forROIC  100% for ROIC
of 6 5% 0'7 5%
EPS growth 2016 compar ed 30% tor EPS 100% for EPS
12013 gowtholo 0% prowthof120%
LTIP ([ May 2063 ¢ B3 Op! May 2006 Relauve TSR 03 30%atmedian 100 atupper - - Oustandmg
1016 quarrile subgectto
i
ROIC 005 0%fw ROIC 1005 for ROIC periormante
of 8 5% of 1D 5%
EPSgrowth 2015 compared 30% for EPS 100% for EPS
w072 growthof 6 0% grrwthnf [207%
LTIP 2May20h2 | 161 Op2 May 20:5 Reslative TSR 012 30%acmedian 100% atuppe %4 Nt Esvmated
i 20t quartule  percenule to lapse
1 2015
ROIC 2014 0% forROIC  100% for ROIC 5 6% N Willtapse
of8 5% of 10 5% n 2015
EPS growth 2014 compared 30% for EPS 108%. for FPS 8 3% Nil Wiltlapse
162011 prowthofl6 0% prowthol 12 0% n 215
ABSMP I15May | 206 0p 15 May Relcompound 2012 50% of matching 10054 ef matching - - Ourstanding
2013 2016 annuaiEPS 102015 awasrd for EPS award for EPS subject o
growth growthof3 0%  prowthui 5 0% pet formance
ABSMP 15May (152 0p {5 May Real compound 2010 50% of matching 100% ofmaching 10 5% N Performance
2002 2045 annuat £PY 2014 awardfor LIPS  awardfor EPS condion
g1owth prosmhof30%  growthni5 0% notmet
Willlapse

n 205
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Movements in dil ectors’ interests in share awards during 2014

Dre dends
Number of awarded Mussber af
shared 35 3t and shares au
Plan Dueofaward  Vesungdace  1{an 2004 Awarded  Released releascd Lipred 31 Dec 2014 Status
John Fallan
LR | May 2014 | May 2017 0 274000 - - 274000 Oustandmg subject to perferinance
tTip 'May 2013t May20i6 250000 - 250000 OQutstinding cubject to pet formance
LTie 2May 2012 2May 2015 100000 - - 100000 0 Expected ro hipse i 20°5
LTie IMar2010 3Ma 2003 13752 - 13752 Vested and held untl 3 Mar 2005
{75% vested shares releasedin 2013)
LTiP 32 2005 3 Mar 2012 29887 - 25887 7054 - 0 Retr ased | Apr 2014
{75% v s1ed sharcs refessedin 20§2)
ABSMP 15 May 20:7 15 May 2016 ~ 083 - - 6083 OQuistanding subjec. tu performance
ABSMP 15 May 2012 15 May 2015 aai7 - - - B 97 0 Willlapsen 2015
Torad 408 639 274000 29887 7054 10B9l7 543835
Robin Fiecstone
LR t May 2014 | May 2017 0 {61000 - - 162 GO0 Quistanding subject to performance
TP I tMay 2013 ¢ May 20c6 150000 B 150 000 Quistanding subjeetio performance
LTiP IMay 2002 2May 245 160 000 - - tQOU00 0 Expreied tofapse n 2015
LTiP 3Mar 200 3May 2013 11 460 - - H 460 Vented and heid unnl 3 Mar 2045
175% vested shares releasedin 2047)
LT 1Mar2009 3 Ma 2012 15617 - 15 617 6046 - 0 Released [ Apr 2014
{75% vested shares released m 2042)
ABSMP t5 ey 2002 15 May 2015 17833 - - - 17833 0 Willlapsen 2015
Totat 2049(0 162000 25 617 6046 117 843 323 460

MNore | For all awirds Pearson sic ported financit results for the relevam
penitd were used o measurc perfnmance and no disty enonhas

been enerosed

Blnte 2 Vested means w bere wwards sre no konger sulyecr to perinpannce
condiuens Seleased weans where shares have been transfecred to
partiaipants Heltnean where award., have vested but shares are beld
pending redeise on the reley int anyversar y o the award date Outstanding,
imeans awards § 1at have been graned but ure stfl subyectio the schievement
of performanee cona nons Diwdends 1efers.o dwdend tquunlent shares that
hase been added wahiowr per formance condinons te ve sied shares indvr the
LTI and refeased e diately on a vard

Note 3 o varatons fo terms aind condmiens of planinter estsvere mde

during the year

Notedinrelon tethe LR award meade on { May 2014 pay cutis 50% ol
sapannfor aanatent TRO-C ol 7.6

Blete 5 For the LTIP awuod made £n ™ May 2002 and dee o veston 2 May 2045
we hv estm ited the out-turn of the rc latve TSR performance conditon
tased on performance as at9 rebrusry 2015 av ik if acwal relauve

TLR ped o oang e s dilfercin onthe date of vestimg we wall settds ouuin

the annual remuneravon s cport fon 2005

Note & The sinple figure of remun rauenfor 2014 ingiudes allawards thacwere
sutneds to A perfostnance tondtion where the performance penodended or
was sbstansially {bur not fully) completed a1 3 Derember 2014 and awards
where the performince condmon has been sausfied but where the release of
shares ts subyedt to 4 further heldmg perod The same muthodelogy hatbeen
appih dHor c ehier peneds wnd the smgh figure for easterieportng pertads by
Been | E3Al § Wher NecrssIry

Note / The vahue of shnesindaded in the sngle fgare ol emuanen atwon iz tie
sutnbet of fuzres imdnpbedby e share poce onplere

Plow B The valug of e LTH awards i 2014 7or th sxeeunw @ saetors 1y shiewnbelow based on ashare praeonmedate of asardof Q2 0p

o T T T Value lor
dweshold

Face vilue performance

Wewang Number [ace valve (X of 2014 (NGof 2014

Dhrector Dhre of award dave of shares {£} sohiryd salary)
Jobwy Fallyn { Duy 2004 v ity 2007 174 QU0 £3 09480 397% 31
o2 OO0 £1 785 140 223 974

Rotwn Freeatone

I Mray 2004 } May 2047
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Movements in diectors’ interests in share opuons during 2014

John Fallon and Robin Fr eestone also hold oprions under the worldwide save for shares plan as folfows

Numbeot of slm es

under opoion Earhest Valug i 2014

Crate of held as ac Opuon exerose Expiy singlt figure

Dhrecror grant 31 Dec 2014 price dare dite £000

John Fallon 7 May 2010 £,930 805 6ép | Aug 15 i Feb l6 0
30Apr20t4 1109 8lidp  1Awi7  IFebl8 0

Robin Freestone 4 May 2012 990 909 Op | Aug 15 [ Feblé 0
30 Apr 2014 1109 8l 2p [ Aug 17 | Feb 18 L 9_

MNote | io share option vwards were vosted of werg gxe rared vhe yea

NMote 2 No variations te termes and rondiront of shire apuons wer e made duning the sear

Mot 3 Acguisnon of shaes under the worldwide save for shares plan1s not subject to 2 pet forinalice condimion

Note 4 All shat e oprians thit became e<er asable duringa year ase meluded inthe single figure of toral remuneratianfor that year 1he value included iy the =ingle
figw e of totarenng ation i+ the numbes 6f uplions mult phed by the difference between the value on grant ared the matketv e on the parkest avorose dute
No share options were exercsable during 2004 and so there s rothing to nciude inthe. singie figure of total resnuncranon fur 2014

tlote 5 Tie market price on 3 Decernber 2014wt {190 0p pershiue and the range duning the year war 98 Op o | 340.0p

Payments to former directars

itis the comnuttee’s intention to disclose any payments
to past directors, including the release of share-based
awards post-departure

The number of shares retained from the number of
shares oniginally awarded takes into account lapses due
to performance, releases prior to ceasing to be a director
and pro-raung for service n the performance period
{where applied)

2012 long-term incenuive awards

As set out in the annual remuneravon report for 2013,
Marjore Scardino Rona Farhead, john Malanson and
Will Ethridge retained long-term mcenbive plan awards
made on 2 May 2012, all subject to performance As
disclosed elsewhere in this report, these awards are
expected tolapse in 2015

Wil Ethridge

As set out i the annual remuneration report for 2013
Will Edhnidge stepped down from the board on

31 December 2063 Me contnuad to be eligble for the
sartie base salary, annualincentive and other benefitsin
accordance with his service agreement wath the company
unot he reqred on 31 December 2014 No compensation
for loss of office or severance was paid on s stepping
down {rom the board, or on hus retirermnent

As also reported i the annual remunerauon report for
2043 Will Ethndge retamned 100,000 (two thirds) of the
shares awarded on | May 2013 The cormmittee also
approved an award of 116 000 performance refated
shas es for Will Ethridge for 2014 on the same terms as
the 20{4 awards for members of the Pearson execuuve
{n accordance with policy and after having carefully
considered all relevant factars the commuttee further
determined i its absolute discrenon that on fus
retirement from the company on 31 December 2014,
Wil Ethndge would retain a pro-rata entitlement of
one-third of this award (¢ e. 38,666 shat es) which would
vest or not, subject to performance 1n 2017

Marjorte Scardino

Because of payroll processing errors dunng the years
2007 o 2010, taxes deducted from Marjorie Scardino’s
compensaton were incorrectly allocated by Pearson
among tax authonties in the UK and the US This resulted
i her betng subject to temporary double taxauon The
commmutee has concluded in princple that Pearson should
reimburse (on an after-tax baus) cet tam costs incurred
by Marjore Scardino n funding 2 proporaon of the
double-tax obligaton Details of any reimbursement will
be induded in a subsequent annual remuneraton report

Non-executive directors

The company s voluntary disclosure to HMRC regarding
the taxable reimbursement of expenses for tax years
prior to 2014 mdudes non-executive director s who are
nolonger employed by the company
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Payments for loss of office

As announced to the stock exchange on 24 October 2014 and 27 February 2015, Robin freestone will be stepping down
from the board on 1 August 2015 and leaving the company during 2015 There will be no payment for loss of office

At the ime of writing no further decisions have been made about whether and how the commuitiee might exercise its
discrenion under Pearson's discretionary share plans in accordance with palicy. the committee wall have regard to all
relavant urcumstances including distnguishing between different types of leaver, the arcumstances at the ume the award
was angnally made, lns performance, and the arcumstances in which he left employment In the event that discretion s
so exeraised In Robin's favour, the details will be included m a subsequent annual remuncration repor't

Du ectors’ interests in shares and value of shareholdings

Directors’ interests
The share interests of the contriung directors and their connected persons are as follows

Number of Numberof  Totat number of
ordinary conditiona! ord naryand
shares shures condional shares Value Guideline Guideine

Direcior a1 31 Dec 14 at 3t Dex 14 2031 Dec 14 {5 safar y) (e salary} et
Chairman
Glen Moreno 200,000 - . - - _
Execuuve directors
Johr Fallon 282,147 {3752 295 899 549% 300% v
Robin Freestone 504,283 {460 515,743 | 3{7% 200% v
Non-executive director s
Dawid Arculus 17,07 - - - - -
Ehzabeth Corley 468 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 2,123 - - - - -
Ken Hydon 18.634 - - ~ - _
Josh Lews 6632 - - - - -
Linda Lorimer 1,584 - - - - _
Harish Manwani {392 . - — - _

Note | Condirunal vhares means shares wh ch have vested but remain hesd sutyed to conunung employtsem lor e e defned holding penod

Nrte 2 The eurrent value of the pxecutive directors holdings of ardinary and condisunal shares is baved on the m dd'e market value of Pearson shares of [ 420p
o 27 Fu bruary 2015 against base salaries m 2014 All execuuve directors comferiabiv orced ded the shareholding puidelmes The sharchofding pundelines oo ner
apply 1o the chymanand non executive drectors

Note 3 Ordmary shares s fude buth o1 dinar y shares hsted on the Eondon Stock Fxchiange and American Depositary Recepts (ADRs) fisted on the New York
Stuck Erchinpe e fpures inaude both shares and ADR acquired by mdracuals ivesting par L of1hed can afier s arnua bonus m Pesson shies unded tre
wnnuad bonus shure maadusg phin

Now 4 The register of du gt 1ovs mtees 3o | anchs open o ngpechon dunng nnnnal ofiee hours) comavs fult decals of dieees 15’ sharehntdings and opiins to
subscnbefor shares The marker proce on 31 Oerember 24 was, [ F90 Op per share and the range aunag the year was 998 2p 1o 1 240 0p

Note § Therg acne no mgvemcnis s ovdinary shares betvee en 1 {anooey 2085 and o manth pnnt o e sgn-ofl of thisrepart

Nore 6 Ordinary shares do 1 atinclude avy sha €5 vorred but held pending redease wadir a reemicied share pln
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued
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PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

lnterests of directors and value of shareholdings

tMAGE REMOVED

Shareholding guidelines

Executve directors are expected to build up a substantal
sharehotding in the company in ine with the policy of
encouraging widespread employee ownership and 1o
align further the interests of execunves and shareholders
With effect from 2014, target holding 1s 300% of satary
for the chief executive and 200% of salary for the other
execuuve directors

Shares that count towards these guidelines indude any
shares held unencumbered by the execunve, their spouse
and/or dependent children plus any shares vested but
held pending release under a restincted share plan
Executve director s have five years from the date of
appointment to reach the guideline

VWith effect from 20{4. these guidelines have been
extended to include all members of the Pearson ex<ecutive
at 100% of salary

The shareholding guidelines do not apply to the chan man
and non-executive directors However a minimum of
25% of the basic non-executive directors' fee i1s pad in
Pearson shares that the non-executive directors have
commutted to retain for the pertod of thewr directorships

Dilution and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the marlet treasury
shares or newly-issued shares to sausfy awards under the
company’s vartous share plans

For restricted stodk awards under the long-term incentive
plart and matching share awards under the annual bonus
share matdung plan, we would normalfy expectto use
oastng shares

Thereare inuts on the amount of new 1ssue eguity we
canuse Inany rolling ten-year penriod, no more than |0%
of Pearson equity wilt be tssued, or be capable of being
issued, under all Pearson's share plans, and no more than
5% of Pearson equuty will be issued, or be capable of being
issued, under executve or discretionas y plans

At 3l December 2014 stock awards to be sausfied by
new-1ssue equity granted in the last ten years under all
Pearson share plans amounted to 1 7% of the company's
issued share capital No stock awards granted in the last
1en years under executive or discretonary share plans
will be sausfied by new-issue equity

{n addieon, for existing shares, no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in wrust at any ame Against
this imit, shares held in trust at 31 December 2014
amounted to 0 9% of the company's 1ssued share capital

The headroom avallable for all Pearson plans exccutve or
discrenonary plans and shares held in trustis as follows

Headr oom w4 002 012
B3% 84% 83%
50% 50% 50%
41% 38% 38%

Ali Pearson plans
Executwve or discretionary plans

Shares held in trust

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

Executive directars served as nan-executve directors
elsewhere but either waved ar did not receive fees




Historical performance and remuneration

Total shat eholder return performance

We set out below Pearson's total shareholder retuin
(TSR} performance refative to the FTSE All Share index
o an annual basts over the six-year period 2008 wo 2014
This comparison has been chosen because the FTSE
Ali-Share represents the broad market index within
which Pearson Shares are traded TSR s the measure

of the r eturns that a company has provided for 1ts
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and
assuming renvestment of dmdends (source DataStream)

In accordance with the reporting regulations this section
afso presents Pearson’s TSR performance alongside the
single figure of total remuneration for the CEO over the
last sex year s and a sumimary of the varable pay outcomes
relauve to the prevailing maxumum at the ime The table
below summanses the total remunerauon for the CEQ
over the last five years, and the outcomes of annual and
long-term incentive plans as a proporton of maximum

Fuvancia' year ending e

Section 4 Gov estane 103

2019

IMAGE REMOVED

04 2012 013 014

Total remuneraucn — John Fallon
(single figure, Q00s) -

Total remuneration — Marjone Scardino
{single figure, G00s) 6,370

Annual ncentive — incumbent
(% of maximum) 9{ 3%

Long-term incentive — incumbent
(% of maximum) 800%

8,466

92 1%

97 5%

- - 1,727 . {895

8340 5330 - -

757% 242% 34 3% 50 5%

68 3% 367% Nl Nt

Anpual eentve Is the acrual anpual incentive receved by the mcwmbent as a pt rentage af maxunum oppor unty

Long-termuncentve is the pay outof perfornance relsied resiricied shar ey under the long termnincenuve planwhere the ye xrshown s the fingl year ofthe
perfarmance period for the purposes of calrulanng the single totas figure of remumer stion

Total remunerauan - john Fallon jolm Fallon's total renun s anen opportuniy s bawer than thar of the previous wumbent Variahie pay ours urder e annwal

andlong-term neentive plans reflect porformance for the refevant pertads
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Reporton directors’ remuneration continued

FART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATIOM REPORT

Comparative information

Information on changes to remuneration fon 2015

The following infor mation is itended to prowvide
addwional context regarding the total remuneraton for
exectitive directors

Retative percentage change in resmuneration for CEQ
The following table sets out the change between 2013
and 2014 1n three elernents of remunet atton for the CEO,
tn companison to the average for ali employees

While the commitiee considers the increase inbase pay
for the CEO relative to the broader employee poputavon,
benefits are driven by local practices and eligibility 1s
determined by level and individual aircumstances which
do notlend themselves to comparison

Aliowances
Base and Annat
silary benefics  incentives Total
CEC 15%  93%  49% 2%
All employees 1% -9% 4% 0%

Nete ) Theliguesforof einployees reflec average s tlanes and sverage
emiploye e rumisre egrh year Anmsshnceneves inrude 14 prans inc uding
sales (ncenuives

Mate 2 The e ssen aflowances and annual incenves for John Fallon s
attnburabie respectivety tn @) the firat full yer of repornng o s privaee use
of o diwer based on the benefit m-and charge for the 201372014 tax year
and {b) the year un yesrinr 2ase mitng payoutunder the Pea son annual
INLERTIVP pian

Retlative importance of pay spend

The committee considers directors remuneration in the
context of the company’s allocation and disbursement
of rasources to different stakeholders

In particular, we chose operatng profit because this
is a measure of our ability to reinvest in the company
We include dvidends because these consutute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Year-on-year change

£m 2014 2003 m %
Operating profit 732 736 -4 2%
Dovidends 397 372 25 7%
Towlwagesand salaries 1728 1836 108 6%

Note 1 Cperatng peofit e as set outdn the finanoad stazeiments

Neae 2 Wages and wilarer include ror tiang operauans o yand vviuoce
drectors 203 issestated on thv samie baus Aves ape menployee numbers To
conunumg operanons for 2014 wave 40 876 (00 47 ({5) furthrrdetalcare
set out w pete S o the fiana2f stateiment s or page 141

Executive directors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular perodic review of base
salaries for 2015, taking nto account general economic
and market condiwons, the level of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneration of executives
n similar positions in comparable companies and
mdvidual performance

As a result of this review, the 2015 base salares for the
CEO and CFO are as follows

Joim Robin
£000s Frilen Freestone
Base salary at
3t December 2014 £765 £556

£153 £0
fhcrease

2% 0%
Base salary at
{ April 2015 £7803 £ 556

Annual incentive

The key design principles underlying the company's
approach to annual incentives for 2015 are the same as
for 2014, namely

» Fult alignment of annual incentives with the global
education strategy to remforce a ‘one Pearson’ focus

» A clear, transparent, coherent consistent, organisation-
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incentive framework for
Lines of Business, Geograptues and enabling functions

» The size of the overall annual mcenuve pay-out will be
Imked to overall Pearson performance

For 2015, there will be no change 1o the overall Pearson
performance measures, namely adjusted earnings per
share (60% werghung) sales (20%} and cash flow {20%)

The Pear son finanaat targets will be set each year as part
of the normal opet ating ptan process The CEO and CFO
will recommend the overall Pearson incentive funding
metrics {including performance measures, targets and
weightings) to the commuttes for approval in the

normal way




There will be no change m indvidual annuaf incentive
opportumtes {or the executive directors and the
Pearson executive

Annual incentive pay-outs ar e deternuned according to a
combination of Pearson-wide performance and indwidual
goals The sum of the CEO's and the Pearson executives’
‘on-target’ annual Incentive consututes the mcentve pool
for this group winch flexes up or down based on overall
Pearson performance Indiwidual performance s assessed
aganst goals set at the start of the year Individual pay-outs
up to mdrvidual maximum apportunizes and within the
total pool are recommended by the CEO (or by the
chawrman in the case of the CEQ hinwself) for review and,
tn the case of the execuuve ditectors, for approvat by

the comnittee

The committee considers the pet formance targets for
2015 to be commercrally sensiuve Details of performance
measures weighungs and targets will be disclosed in the
annual reruneration report for 2015 if and to the extent
that the comnvittee deemns them to be no longer
commercally sensiuve

Long-term incentives

The committee will continue to operate the long-term
mcentve plan for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive in line with the
arrangements outhned in the 2013 report on directors’
remuneraton

» The weighung of the performance metrics will be half
on earnings per share giowth, one-third on return
on invested capital and one-sixth on relztive total
shareholder return

» Performance will be tested over thiee years and 75% of
the vested shares will be released at that point However
there 1s a mandatory restriction on paruciparits’ abdity
to disposc of the 75% of the vested shares {othes than
to meet personat tax hrabitues) for a further two years
Furthermore, paruapants’ riglits to the refease of the 25%
of the vested shares are subject to conanued ermployment
over the same petiod

Section 4{ « wiane {05

s For 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the

calculation of relauve total shareholder return will be
moved to the period runming up to the year end and
the length of the averaging pertod will be increased to
three months

In addition, we will reduce the proportion of the
maxmmum award that vests for threshold performance
on all measures from 30% to 15% m line with insttutonal

investors preferences

Atthe ume of wriung, the committee has yet to apprave
the 2015 long term incentive awards and the associated
performance targets for the executive dwectars and other
members of the Pearson executive

We will set the level of individual awar ds consistent with
those seen i recent years and within the policy maximum
taking into account

s The face value of indnadual awar ds at the ume of grant,
assurning that performance targets are metn full

» Mariet pracuce for comparable comparses and
mariet assessmenits of total remuneration from our
mdependent advisers

s Indvidual roles and responsibiiiies
» Company and indrsdual performance

We will set targets for the 2015 awards that are consistent
with the company's strategic objectives over the period
w 2017

Ful! details of indivdual awards for the execuuve director s
and the performance targets for 2015 will be setout i the
annual remuneraton report for 2015
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 ANMNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Appaintment of CFO

As announced to the stock exchange on 27 February
2015, Coram Williams vall jon Pearson as CFO designate
on | july and succeed Robin Freestone as CFO on

I August, when he will also replace Robin an the Pearson
board as an executive director Full detaits of the terms
of Coram’s remuneraton package will be imcluded in the
annual remuneration report for 2015

The padcage will be n accordance with, and within the
ltites of, our approved remuneraton pohicy and wall
comprise inter alia a base salary of £515.000 per year,
an annual mcentive opportunity of B5% of salary at target
{up to 170% of safary at maximumy with any pay-out

for 2015 being calculated pro-rata for bis service,
mscellaneous and family relocation allowances and
ternporary accommodation assistance in accordance
with policy, membership of the Final Pay Section of the
Pearson Group Pension Plan with an acorual rate of

[ /60th of pensionable satary, subject to the Plan earnings
cap (£145 800 per year for the 2014/2015 tax year), in
accordance with earlier commitments given to itm
about the arrangements that would apply should he
rejoin Pearson in the UK having moved from Pearson to
Penguin US and subsequently Penguin Random House.
and elgibility for long-term incentive awards on the terms
normally applicabte to executive directors and other
members of the Pearson execuuve Full detals of his
award will be disclosed in the 2015 report on directors’
remuneraton 1here will be no compensation for
incentives foregone at hus previous employer

In accordance with policy, the penod of notice he
would be required to give to terminate his employment
waouid be § months and that which he would be enuded
to recewve from the company would be {2 months

im eircumstances of termination of employment without
cause, he would be entitled to contractual pay-in-lieu
of notice comprising |2 months’ base salary and annual
cost of providing pension and other benefits (but
excluding annuatincennve} Payment i fieu may be

pard i mstaiments and subject o reducuon talong nto
account alternative employment

Chairman and non-executive ditectors

The salary for the chairman and fees for the non-executive
dwectors remam unchanged for 20{5 Full detads willbe
set outinthe anniual remuneration eportand included

n the single figure of totat remuneration {or 2015

IMAGE REMOVED

David Arculus Duector
9 March 2015
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTCRS

Pages 57 to (12 of this document comprise the directors’
reportfor the year ended 31 December 2014

Other infor mauon that s 1 equired by the Companies Act
2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors’ report,
anid which s ncorporated by reference, can be located
as foliows

Surmmary disclosures mdex

See more

Dhvidend recommendation pl

Fimancial instruments and inancial risk management Note 19

Important events since year end pi93
Futwi e development of the business p06-0%
Reseal ch and development actwvities p43
Employment of disabled persons pa0
Employee mvolvement p48
G_reenhome gas emissions. ps3

Theres noinformation to be disclosed maccordance
with Lisung Rule 98 4

Going concern

Hawving reviewed the Group's iquid resources and
borrowing faciities and the Group's 2015 and 2016 cash
flow forecasts, the directors believe that the Group has
adequate resources ta conunue as a gong concern for at
least the next 12 months For this reason, the financsal
statements have, as usual, been prepared on that basis
Information regarding the Group's borrowing liabiliues
and financial risk management can be found in notes 18
and 19 on pages 16410 |72

Share caputal

Details of share issues are givenin note 27 to the
accounts on page $86 The company has a single dass of
shares which is divided into ordinary shares of 25p each
The ordinary shares are in registered form As at

31 December 2014, 819,882 967 ordinary shares were In
issue Atthe AGM held on 25 Apnl 2014 the comparny
was authot ised, subject to certamn condions, to acquire
up to 81,903,781 ordinary shares by mariket purchase
Shareholders will be asked to renew this authonity at the
AGM on 24 Aprit 2015

tnformation provided to the company pursuant to

the Finanaial Condusct Authority's Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR) 1s published on a Regulatory
inforranon Service and on the company s website

As at4 March 2015, being the latest pracucable date
before the publicatson of this report, the company had
been notfied under DTRS of the foflowing sgnificant
votng rights n its shares

Percentage

Nunher ¢f asatdate of

votng nghry natficinon

BlackRocle, Inc 41,458,030 505%

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 24 April 2015at8 Northumberland Avenue,
London WC 2N 5BY, is contained in a aircular to
shareholders to be dated 20 March 2015

Registered auditors

{n accordance with secuon 489 of the Act, a
resolution proposing the reappointment of
PrcewaterhouseCocpers LLP (PwC) as auditors to
the company will be proposed atthe AGM at a level
of remuneraticn to be agreed by the directors

Auditors’ independence

InTine with best pracuce, our relauonship wath PwCis
governed by our external auditors pohcy whichis
reviewed and approved annually by the audit committee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors’
independence 1s not comprorused, as weil as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are in accordance with refevant
UK and US legistanon The audit committee approves all
audrt and non-audit services provided by PwC Certam
categones of altowable non-audit services have been
pre-approved by the audit commiztee subject to the
authonoes below

» Pre approved non-audit services can be authonsed by
the chief finanaal officer up to £100.000 per progect,
subject to a cumulative it of £500,000 per annum
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Addtional disclosures continued

REPQRT OF THE DIRECTORS

> Acquisition or disposal transactions and due difigence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
extet nal auditors, in hght of the need for confidennality
Any project/transaction gencrating fees in excess
of £100.000 must be specifically approved by the
audit committee

s Tax compliance and related acovities up 1o the greater of
£1,000 000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

» For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
mostapproprate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use oul independent auditors,
authority, up to £100,000 per project subject to a
cumidatve bt of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these lnvits and alt other

alfowable non audit services, irrespecuve of value, must

be approved by the audit committee Where appropriate,

services will be tendered prior to a decision being made
as to whether 1o award work to the auditors

The audit committee recewes regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
Durmng 2014, Pearson spent considerably less on non-
audit fees with PwC compared 1o 2013, when there was
significant expenditure related to speaific assurance and
tax advisory services associated with the creation of the
venture between Penguin and Random House For 2014,
non-audit fees represented 37% of external audit fees
(89% 1n 2013)

For alt non-audit work in 2014, PwC were selected only
after consideratton that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonable fee and within
the terms of our external auditors policy To assistin

ensuring thatindependence and objectivity 1s maintained,

for forward-looking tax adwvisory and due diligence work
PwC assign a different partner from the one leading the
external audit

Significant non audit work performed by PwC during
20{4 ncluded

» Tax comphiance serrvices related to a routne audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service

» Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
nternational tax matters

» Audit related work i relavon to potential and actual
corporate finance transacuons

» Assurance services on a corporate bond issued1n
May 2014

A full statement of the fees for audit and services is
provided in note 4 to the accounts on page 140

Fair; balanced and understandable repor ung

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all imformation we

repor t to nvestor s and reguiators 1s fair, balanced

and understandable A process and umetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was agreed
by the board and audit commuttee at ther meetings m
December 2014 The full board then had opportunity to
review and comment on the report as it progressed

Rept esentauves from financial reporting, corporate
affasrs, company secretaral and internal audit and
compliance are involved in the preparauon of the Annuat
report to ensure a cohesive and balanced approach and
as with aft of our financial r eporung, our disclosure
committee conducts a thorough venficaton of narranve
and financial statements

The audit committee s alse avalable to advise the board
on certan aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to {ulfil therr responsibility in this regard

Dhirectors n office

The following directors were in office during the year and
up unul signing of the financral staterments

G R Moreno

{}Fallon

RAD Feestone

TD G Arculus

EPL Corley (appointed | May 20(4)
V Cox

K]Hydon

S)iews

LiKLtonmer

H Manwars

T Score (appointed | [anwary 2015)




Statement of directors’ responsibilsties

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
repoi t,the report on di ectors' remuneration and the
financial statemems in accordance with apphcable faw
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financal
staterments for each finanoat year Under that faw the
directors have prepared the G oup and parent company
financial staternents in accordance wath Internauonal
Financtal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the directors must
naot approve the financial statements unless they are
sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the Group and of the profit or
toss of the Group for that perod

in preparing these financial statements the directors
arerequired to

» Select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply
thern consistenty

» Male judgements and accounung estumates that are
reasonable and prudent

» State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unton have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disdlosed and explained in the
financal statements

» Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basts,
unless it 1s inappropriate to presumae that the company
and/or the Group will continue 1in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficent to show and explam
the company's transactions and disdose with reasonable
accuracy at any tme the financial position of the company
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
finanoal statements and the 1 eport on directors’
remuneraucn comply with the Actand as regards

the Gtoup finanaal statements, Arude 4 of delAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon and detection
offraud and other irvegulariues

Secuon 4 Gir Crnenee

e

The directors are responstble (or the maintenance and
mtegt ity of the company s website Legislanon nthe
UK governing the preparation and dissemmimation of
financal statements may differ from legistation in
other junsdictions

Each of the directors hsted above confirms that to the
best of their knowledge

» The Group financral statements, which have been

prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopred by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
hiabthties, financial posiwon and profit of the Group

and company

» The directors’ report contained in the Annual

reportincludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the positron of the

company and Group, together with a descripuon of

the prinaipal risks and uncertainues that they face

The directors also confirm that, for all duectors in office
at the date of this report

» So far as the directors are aware, there 18 no relevant audit

informaton of which the company's auditors are unaware

1 They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken

as directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit mformaton and to establish that the
company's auditors are aware of that information

In addiwon, the directors as at the date of this report
consider that the Annual report, taken as a whole,

ts fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
informauon necessary for shareholders to assess the
campany’s performance, business model and strategy

Approved by the board on 9 March 20{5 and signed on its
behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED
Phubip Hoffoan Secretary
/‘"’
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Additional disclosures contimued

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Addmional infor mation for shareholders

Set out below 1s ather statutory and regufatory
informauon that Peai son 1s required (o drsclose m
its directors’ report

Amendment to articles of assocration

Any amendments to the artudes of association of the
company (the Arudes) may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a speciats esolution

Rughts attachung to shares

The nghts attaching to the ordinary shares are defined in
the Artcles A shareholder whose name appears on the
company’s register of membet s can choose whether
his/her shares are evidenced by share ceruficates (e m
certificated form) or held electronically (i e unceruficated
form) n CREST (the electronic setdement systemin

the UK)

Subject to any 1 estrictions below, shareholders may
atrend any general meeting of the cormpany and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder (or his/her
representative) who 1s present at a general meeting has
one vote on each resolution for every ordinary share of
which they are the registered halder A resolution put
to the vote at a general meeting is decided on a show of
hands unless before, or on the dedarauen of the resultof,
a vote on a show of hands, a poll 1s demanded A poll can
be demanded by the chairman of the meeung, or by

at least three shareholders (or their representatves)
present in person and having the right to vote or by

any sharehalders (or thewr represenitatives) present

in person having at feast 13% of the total voung nghts

of all sha: eholders, or by any sharehoiders {or their
representatives) present in person holding ordinary
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up of st
least (0% of the total sum paid up on all ordiary shares
Az this year's AGM voting will again be conductedon a
poll. consistent wath best pracuce

Sharehoiders can declare a final dwvidend by passing an
ordinary resofution but de amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the armount recommended by the board
The board can pay internim dradends on any dass of shares
of dhe amounts and on the dates and for-the perods

they deade In all cases the distnbutable profits of the
company must be suffictent to jusufy the payment of the
relevant dividend

The boar d may, if authonsed by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shar eholder the nght to elect
to recewve new ordinary shares, which wiltbe credited as
{ully paid, instead of theur cash dimdend

Any dividend which has notbeen clamed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forfeited and

will then belong to the company. unless the directors
decide other wise

If the company 1s wound up, the kquidator can, with

the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, dvde ameng the shareholders all or any
part of the assets of the cormpany and he/she canvalue
assets and deternune how the dvision shall be carried
out as berween the sharehoiders or different classes of
shareholders The liquidator can also, with the same
sanction, transfer the whole or any part of the assets
to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of

the shareholders

Voung at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company in relation to any general meetng must be
delivered to the company (via its registrars) whether iz
written or electrome form, notless than 48 hours before
the tme appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeung at which the person named in the appomtment
Proposes to vote

Mo shareholder 15, unless the board deades otherwise,
entitled to attend or vote either personally or by proxy at
a general meeung or to exerasc any other right conferred
by beng a shareholder ff he/she or any person withan
interest m shares has been sent a nouice under secuon 793
of the Act (which confers upon public companies the
power to require informancn with respect to interests

in their voung shares) and he/she or any interested
person faled to supply the company wath the infor mation
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice

The board may also decide, where the refevant
shareholding compiises ac feast 0 25% of the nominal
value of drerssued shares of that dass, that no dwidend

1s payable ui respect of hose default shares and that

no transfer of any default shares shall be registerad




Pearson operates two employee benefit trusts to hold
shares, pending emiployees becoming entitfed to them
under the company's employee share plans There were
7192412 shares held as at 3{ December 2014 Each trust
has an independent trustee which has full discretion in
refation to the voung of such shares A dividend wasver
operates on the shares hetd in these trusts

Pearson also operates a nominee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharesiore which holds shares

on behalf of employees There were 4,709,325 shares so
held as at 31 December 2014 The beneficial owners of
shares held through Sharestore are invited to submit
voung Insti uctions oniine at www shareview co uk fno
nstruchions are given by the benefioal owner, the trustees
holding these shares will not exerase the voting nights

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer ofa
certdicated share which s not fully patd provided that the
refusal does not prevent dealings wn shat es i the company
from taking place on an open and proper basis Theboard
may also refuse to register a transfer of a ceruficated

shar e uness (1) the instrument of transfer is lodged, duly
stamped (f stampable) at the registered office of the
company or any other place decided by the hoard and

15 accompanied by the ceruficate for the share to which

it relates and such other evidence as the board may
reasonably require to show the right of the transferor

to make the ransfer, (i) it 1s 1n respect of only one

class of shares and (1) 1t1s in favour of not more than

four transferees

Transters of unceroficated shares must be carned out
using CREST and the board can refuse to registera
transfer of an unceruficated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operaton of CREST

Varauon of rights

{T av any vme the capital of the company 1s divided inwo
different dasses of shares, the speaal nghes attaching 1o
any dass may be varied or revoked erther

{i} with the wnitten consent of the holders of atleast
75% in nomunal value of the 1ssued shares of the relevant
classor

() wath the sanceon of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the hiolders of the shai es
of the relevant class

Sectton 4 Go ¢ tangss 11

Without prejudice to any specal nghts previously
conferred on the holders of any exisong shares or class
of shares any share may be 1ssued with such preferred,
deferred, ot other spedal mights, or such resti icuons,
whether n regard to dwidend, voung, return of capital
o1 otherwise as the company may from tme to tume by
ordinary resolutuon determine

Appontment and replacernent of directors

The Arucles contain the following provisions in refation
to directors

Directors shall be no less than two in number Duectors
ray be appointed by the company by ordinary resclution
orby the board A director apponted by the board shall
hold office only untl the next AGM and shall then be
ehpible for reappointment, but shall not be taken into
accountin determiming the directors or the number of
directors who are to retire by rotatien at that meeting
The board may from time to ime appoint one ormore
directors 1o hold execuuve office with the company for
such penod (subject to the provisions of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may decde and may revoke
of terminate any appomtment so made

The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
at least one-third of the directors shali retire by rotanon
{or. fthewr numberis not a muluple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The firstdrectors to retire by
rotavon shall be those who wish to reure and not offer
themselves for re electon Any further directorsso to
retire shall be those of the other directors subject to
retirement by rotanon who have been longestin office
since they were last re elected but, as between persons
who became or were{ast re-elected on the same day,
thase to reure shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot In addition, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shalf reure by rotation at the third AGM after they were
fastre-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Arudes the board
has resolved thatall directors should offer themsefves fot
ve-electon annwally, uy accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of bus/her term of office

{n addwion, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any directorfor the proviston of lus/her
services to the company

ne
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Additional disclosures continued

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Pawers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Artides, the Actand any
direcuons given by specal resolunon, the busimess of the
company will be managed by the board who may exercise
alt the powes s of the company, iIncluding powers relaung
to the 1ssue and/or buying back of shares by the company
(subject to any statutory restriclions or restrcions
imposed by shareholders in genes af meeung)

Significant agr eements

The following significant agreements contatn provisions
entitlng the counterparues to exercise termination

or other nghts in the event of a change of control of
the company

Under the $1,750,000.000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
20i9 between amongst others, the company, Barclays
Bank plc (as faalty agent) and the banks and financial
mistitutions named therein as lenders (the Faclity), any
stich bank may, upon a change of controf of the company,
requira is outstanding advances, together with accrued
interest and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Facility, and its comimizments to be cancelled, each withun
60 days of noufication to the banlcs by the facility agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs if the
company becomes a subsidiary of any other company

or ong or more persons acting eicher individually orin
concert, obtains control (as defined in section 124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010} of the company

Shares acquit ed through the company s employee share
plans rank par passu with shares in issue and have no
special nghts Forlegal and practical reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
control of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opimon

» Pearson plc s consohdated finanaial statements and
company financal statements {the “financal statemients’)
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of
the company s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the
Group’s profit and the Group’s and the company's cash
flows for the year then ended

» The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with international
Financial Reportng Standards (IFR3s) as adopted by
the European Union

» The company financial staterments have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisiens of the Companes Act 2006

» The finanaal statements have been prepared In
accordance with the requi ements of the Comparues
Act 2006 and, as regards the consolidated financial
statements Arnde 4 of the IAS Regulation

Separate opinton in refauon to IFRSs as issued by

the fASB

As explained in note | to the financial statements, the
Group, n addiwon 1o applying IFRSs as adopred by the
European Union, has also apphed IFRSs as issued by the
[nternauonal Accounting Standards Board (IASE)

Qur audit approach
Overview

in o opiion the consohdated financal statements
comply with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

What we have audited
Pea: son plc's finanaal statements comprise

» The consohdated and company balance sheets as at

3t December 20{4

» The consclhdated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended

» The consohdated and company statements of changes i
equity and cash flow statements for the year then ended

» The notes to the financial statements, which mclude a
summary of significant accounung policies and other
explanatory mformation

Certan required disclosures have been presented
elsewhere in the Annual report and accounts {the
‘Annual report’) rather than in the notes to the financat
statements These are cross-referenced from the
financial statements and are denufied as audited

The financral reporung frameworfc that has been
apphed in the preparatian of the financial statements s
apphcable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as regards the company financial statements,
as apphed in accordance with the prowisions of the
Companies Act 2006

¥ Overall Group materality £26m which represents 4% of adjusted profit
before tax as disciosed in nate 8 Refer to page 19 for further details

¥ We conducted work in five key territonies US, UK, Brazil, China and South
Africa In addion we obtained an audit opinion on the financial information
reported by the associate Penguin Random House (PRH})

» The territories where we conducted audit procedu es, together with work
pet formed at corporate functions, shared sei vice centres and consolidated
Group level, accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's revenue, 74%
ofthe Group's statutory profit before tax. and 65% of the Group's adjusted
profit before tax

HMAGE REMOVED

» We focused on
~ Revenue recognition for muttple eferment and long-term revenue conuracts
- Goodwill and mtangible assets imparrmentreviews
- Provision for uncertain tax habilwes
- Returns provisions
— Recoverabtlity of pre-publicaton assets and inventories
- Acquisiuons and disposals




The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

VVe conducted our audit n accordance with
Inrernational Standards on Auding (UK and Irefand)
(1SAs (UK & Irefand))

We designed our audit by deterrmining materafity
and assessing the risks of mater ial misstaterment m
the consolidated and company financial statemernts
In particular, we looked at where management made
subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertam Asin all of our audits, we also
addressed the risk of management override ofinternal
controls, including evaluaung whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of matenal
musstatement due to fraud

Arca of focus

Section 5 raam e |t et iis

The 1sks of materal musstatement that had the greatest
effect on cur audit, including the aflocation of our
resources and effort, are idenufied as areas of focus in
the table below We have also set out [vow we talored
our audit to address these specific areas norder to
provide an apirian on the consolidated and company
financial statements as a whole Any comments we
make on the results of our procedures should be read

in this context For each area of fecus below, to the
extent relevant, we evaluated the design and tested the
operating effecuveness of key internal controls over
financral repor ting set in place by management induding
testing the operanon of {T systems from which financial
infor mation is generated Each of the areas of focus
below are also referred to in the audit committee
report on pages 74 to 75 and in the accounting policies
onpages 128 to 135 Thisis nota complete ist of all risks
dentified by our audit

How our atidit addi essed the wrea of focus

Revenue recogmition for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts

Refer to note | to the consoldated financial
staternents There are two types of complex contr acts
that require significant judgements and esumates,
which could be subject to either acardental errors

or deliberate fraud

» Muluple element arrangements such as the sale of
physical textbooks accompanied by digral content,
or supplementary workbooks, where revenue s
recognised for each element as if it were an indmiduat
contractual arrangement requiring the estimatron of
its far value

» Certain long-term contracts that span year end, where
revenue s recognised using estimated percentage of
completion based on costs These include contracts to
design develop and deliver testing and accreditatron
and contracts to secure students and support the
onhine delivery of their teaching

These complex contracts generate material deferred
revenue and accrued income balances and are areas
where misstatements m the undesymg assumptions ot
estimation calculatnons could have a matenal effect on
the financial statements

Where books are sold together with workbooks
defivered later or companion degital mater ials available
onfme we assessed the basis for altocation of the
purchase price between each element and then tested
the detailed caiculations supportng these revenue
deferrals We used our knowledge of the Group and its
mndustry to assess the completeness of identification of
such arrangements We found the revenue deferrals
to be based on reasonable estimates of the relative

faw value of each element and the methods used

to calculate the deferrals properly catcutated and
consistently apphied

For a selecuon of the larger, more judgemental and
more recent long-term contacts, covering both testing
activities and online delivery of teaching, we read the
contracts and assessed the accounting policy and
methodologies being apphed to calculate the proportion
of revenue being recogmsed We also tested cosis
tncurred to date and management’s esttmates of
forecast costs and revenues by reference to histoncal
expenence and current contract status, ncluding
examining correspondence where contracts are
experencing disputes

Qur tesung showed that revenue recognition pracuces
are in accordance with Group policies with appropriate
methods for calculating the revenue recogmised
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Independent auditors’ report Lo the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of focus

Fow our rudi addressed the 1wen of forus

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment reviews

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements At year end the Group has £5 030m of
goodwill and £1,280m of other intangible assets
nciuding software, acquired eustomer fists, contracts
and relationships, acquired trademarks and brands and
acquired publishing rights

The carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets are
conungent on future cash flows and there s sk that, f
these cash flows do not meet the Gioup's expectauons,
the assets might be impaired Theimpairmentreviews
performed by management contain a number of
significant judgements and estimates including cash
generating unit (CGU) identification, revenue growth,
profit margins and discount rate

As part of the Group restructuring during the year,
management identfied a new set of aggregated CGUSs
and realfocated goodwill accordingly These changes
included a new North Amertca aggregated CGU and
the disaggregauon of the Growth segment into its main
constituent countnes (refer to note {1 for details)

For the farger aggregated CGUs management’s modet
identfied significant headroom In respect ofthe India
CGU management recorded an imparment charge
of £77m

We evaluated and challenged management's
idenufication and aggreganon of CGUSs inlight of the new
Group structure and tested the aflocanon of goodwill
to these aggregated CGUs [n our view management's
deasion to disaggregate the Growth segmentnto its
man constituent countries approprately reflects the
relative independence of these operations For the
aggregated CGUs in Narth America and Core markets,
management demonstrated reasonable bases for the
aggregations, reflecting their efatively high levels of
ntegravon and synergies

We tested the mathemaucal integrity of the forecasts
and carrying values in management's imparment model
We obtained board approved cash flow forecasts to
agree thern to management s impatrment analysis and
challenged key judgements and estimates within them
We assessed the discount rates applied to each
aggregated CGU by comparison to third-party data
and to the Group's cost of capital and relevant risk
factors We compared short and long-term growth
rates. including cash conversion, to historical trends
and expectauons We also considered the accuracy
of prior penod forecasts

We performed sensitivity analyses around these

key assumptions to ascertain the extent of change
either indwidually or collectively that would mdicate
impairment We considered the likelhood of such a
movement and the adequacy of the disclosures made
regarding the assumptions and sensitvities

For CGUs where headroom was imited we assessed
management’s sensitvity disclosures to check these
were appropriate

We checked for addmional impairment tiggers by
reading board minutes, holding regular discussions

with Group and local management, and examining the
performance of recently acquired businesses to identfy
underpct forming operauons We did notidenufy any
fur ther impain moents




Areaolfocus
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How our wwdicaddresxed the are of facus

Prowvision for uncetr tain tax habslities

Refer 10 notes 7 and 13 to the consoidated finanaal
statements The Group s subject to several tax regimes
due to the geographucal diversity of its busmnesses

The directors are required to exercise signsficant
judgement in determiming the appropriate amount to
provide in respect of potential tax exposures and
uncertain tax provistons The most significant of these
refate to US tax

Changes in assumptions about the views that might be
taken by tax authortties can matertally impact the ievel of
provisions recorded in the financal statements and there
are significant judgerents n estimating the amount of
any provision required

Returns p1ovisions

There are matenal, judgemental provisions for
anucipated boolk returns on the balance sheet as at
31 December 2014, parucuiarly in US Higher Education

As the Group transiuons from print to digreal the returns
profile might change to either decrease (as less books
are shipped) orincrease (if bookstores underesumate
the speed of digital change and over-order tradional
textbooks)

We obrained ant understanding of the Group’s tax
strategy to wdenufy tax risks relanng to busmess and
legistative developments To assess the adequacy of
the Group's tax provisions we first recalculated the
valuation of tax provisions and determined whether
the treatments adopted were in line with the Gioup’s
tax policies and had been applied consistently

We then evaluated key underlymg assumpuons about
tax authority views on the Group's tax arrangements,
partcularly in the US and in territories with new cross-
border tax structures In doingthis we considered the
status of recent and current tax authority audits and
enquinies the outtu n of previous caims judgemental
positions taken in tax returns and current year
estimates, and developments in the tax environment

We were sausfied that management's provision
esttmates for uncertain tax positions were consistent
with our own assessment of the related risks and
correspondence with the ) elevant tax author ities

We pei for med tesbing over returns provistons in a
number of iocavons, including LS Higher Education

We tested the calculation of the provisions, assessing
judgements for reasonableness against historical
experience and the impact on returns of the ongoing
bustness transition from print to digical

We also performed detasled testing of shipment and
1eturns provisioning This included chedking cut-off at
year end and evaluating whether any changes in shipping
volumes around year end rught increase the risk of
returns No misstatements were idenufied

We evaluated changes in estimates to check they were
notindicators of management btas We found the
esumates used by management in the determination
of the retur ns provisions to appropriately redlect both
past expenence and changes in the business
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independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic continued

Aren of focus

How owr audit addressed the area of focus

Recoverability of pre-publication assecs and inventortes

Refer to notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements The Group has £820m of pre-publication
assets and £224m of mventories at 31 December 2014
Pre-publicauon assets represent direct costs mcu red
in the development of education programmes and trtfes
prior to their publicaton and inventories are unsold
stock usually physical textbooks

judgements required to assess the recoverability of
these assets, this s further comphcated by the transition
to digital as the Group mnvests m new, less proven digital
contentand platforms

Acquisitions and disposals

Refer to notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements [n February 2014 the Group acquired
Grupo Multt for £437m, recognising £240m of goadwill
and £254m of inangible assets This 1s a significant
transaction requining judgement to idenufy and value
the mtangible assets and assess their subseguent
recoverability

As part of the Penguin Random House transaction the
Group recorded an esumated £5%m provision in 2013
for the cost of transferring the pension hability guarantee
for Penguin employees to Bertelsmann It was concluded
dunng 2014 that Pearson would retan responstbiity for
this pension hiability The prowvision has been released
within discontinued operations in the current year

in February 2014 the Group sold Mergermat ket for
£375m resultng in a gain on disposal of £245m pre-tax
and judgemental dassification as discontinued
operauons

We first selected a sample of costs deferred to the
balance sheet as pre-publication assets or INVenRtores (o
test their appropriateness and magnitude

We then assessed the amortsation profiles of pre
publication assets against cash flows to test that the
existing amorusation profiles remamned appropriate in
hght of the transiion towards digitat praducts

We challenged the car ying value of certan pte
publication assets and mventories where sales have been
lower than originally anucipated We assessed forecast
cash flows aganst historical experience and obtamed
supporung evidence for management’s explanations

We found the Group’s policies to be appropriate and
conststently applied While the carrying value of some
assets depends on management's expectation of growth
nfuture safes from them overall we considered the
carrying values of pre-publication assets and inventories
to be reasonable

The Group engagement team visited Brazi and met
with local management of Grupo Mult to gain an
onderstanding of the business

We performed detailed testing over the acquisitton
accounung, mcluding far value adjustments such as
identification and valuauon of intangible assets Post-
acquistuon performance and forecasts were assessed
to idenufy potenual impatrment triggers

We obtained the communication between Pearson

and Bertelsmann confirming that Pearson will retain
responsibitity for the penston iability of the legacy
Penguin employees VWe tested the approprate reversal
of the prowision within discontinued operations

We tested the gan on disposal for Mergermarket by
agreeing the consideranon to sales documents and
cash recewved and agreed the net assets disposed o
uttderlymg records We also evaluated ifs presentauon
n the Annual report

No material rmsstatements were denufied by our
testing and we found that relevant disclosures were
mnduded in the Annual report




How we tallared our audit scope

We talored our audit scope 10 ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give an opimon on
the financial statements as 2 whole, raking nto account
the geographic structure of the Group, the accountmg
processes and controls, and the mdusury in which the
Group operates

The Group is organised into three reportable segments,
beng North America, Core and Growth, plus the
investment in associate Penguin Random House

Each segment comprises a number of reporung umits
The consolidated finanaal statements comprise these
reporung units plus the Group's centralised funcuons

I establishing the overall approach to the Group audt,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporung umits by us, as the Group
engagement team or component auditors within

PwC UK and from other PwC network firms operatung
under our mstruction Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the audit work at
those reporung units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained
as a basis for our opirion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole

Puring the year the Group engagement team visited
each of the US, Brazthan, Chinese and South African
component audit teams, held a planning meeting
attended by partners from the Group engagement team
and our U and US component teams, and had regular
cialogue with component teams throughout the year

We dentified two reportung units 1n the LIS and UK that
required an audit of their complete financial informanon
due to size alone, plus a further 13 reporting uruts in the
US, UK, Brazil, China and South Africa thatrequired
either an audit or specified procedures on certan
transactions and balances We also obtained an audit
opinien en the financial information of the associate
Penguin Random House The Group consolidauon,
financial statement disdosures and corporate funciions
were audited by the Gioup engagementteam Tlus
mnduded our worlk over denvatve financial instruments,
hedge accounung, goodwill and miangible assets
tmparment reviews, figation, pensions and share-
based payments

Secton 5 Fmar, wl sl siner te
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The reporting umts where we performed audit worle,
together with work performed at corporate functions,
shared service centies and consolidated Group levet
accounted for approximately 74% of the Group's
statutor y profit before tax and 65% of adjusted profit
before tax This provided the evidence we needed for
our opinion on the consohdated financial statements
taken as 4 whole

Materiality The scope of our audit was influenced by our
applicauon of rmatenality VWe set certain quantitative
thresholds for materality These, together with
qualitatve constderations, helped us to determine the
scope of our audit and the nature, tming and extent

of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both indwidually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
matet iality for the financial statements as a whole
as follows

Overall group £26m {2013 £32m)

materiality

How we 4% of adjusted profit before tax
determined it of £658m

Rationale for Note 8 explains that the Group's

prinapal measure of performance
1s adjusted opet ating profit
(£722m), which excludes one-off
gans and losses and acquired
intangible asset amorusation,
wnorder to present results from
operating actvities on a consistent
basis From adjusted operanng
profit we deducted net finance
costs of £64m (see note B) because
these reflect recurring finance
charges To the resulung adjusted
profitbefore tax we then applied
4% (rather than the usual 5%) as
out matenahty calculaton was
based on this adjusted measut e

benchmark applied

We agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them nusstatements identfied during our audit
above £2m (2013 £2m) as well as misstatements below
that amount that, (1 our view, warranted reporting for
guaiitative reasons

|
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Going concern Under the Lisong Rules we are required
to review the drrectors' statement, set out on page 107,
in relation to going concern We have nothing to report
having perfor med our  eview

As noted in the directors’ statcment, the durectors have
concluded that it is appropi rate to prepare the financial
statements using the going concern basis of accounung
The going concern basis presumes that the Group

and company have adequate resources to remain in

Other tequired 1 eporung

operation, and that the directors tntend them to do
50, for atleast one yeat from the date the financal
staternents were signed As part of out audit we have
conduded that the director s’ use of the gomg concern
basts 1s appropriate

Howaover because not all future events or conditions can
be predicted these statements ar e not a guarantee as

to the Group's and company's ability to contnue as a
going concet n

Consistency of other information

Compantes Act 2006 optrion In aur opiwon the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Under ISAs (UK & lreland) we are required to report te you If, in our opimion

> Information in the Annual reportis

- materially inconsistent with the information in the audited

financial statements

We have no exceptions to report
arising from this responsibility

— apparently mater tally mcorrect based on, or matenaily nconsistent with
our knowledge of the group and company acquired in the course of

perfornung our audit
— otherwise musleading

» The statement given by the directors on page 108, n accordance with
prowviston C | 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’), that

We have no exceptions to rcport
anising from this responsibiltty

they constder the Annuat report taken as a whole to be {arr, balanced and
understandable and prowdes the informauoen necessary for members to
assess the Group’s and company's performance, business modef and strategy
1s matenally inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and company

acquired in the course of performing our audit

» The section of the Annual report on pages 74 and 75, as required by prowision ' We have no exceptions to1eport

C 3 8 ofthe Cade, descnbing the worl of the audit commutee does not
appropriately address matters communmicated by us to the audit committee

Adequacy of accounuing records and information and
explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion

» We have not received all the information and
explanauons we require for our audit

» Adequate accounuing records have nat been kept by
the company. or returns adequate for our audit have
not been receved from branches not visited by us

ansing from this responsibiity

» The company financial statements and the part of the

directors’ remuner ation report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibidity




Directors' remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Comparies Act
2006 opiman In our apinton, the part of the directors’
renuneration report to be audited has been proper ly
prepal ed in accordance with the Compares Act 2006

Other Compaies Act 2006 reparung Under the
Companes Act 2006 we are requit ed to report to
youlf, 1 our opinion, cet tan disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have
no exceplions to 1 eport ansing from this responsibility

Corporate gove! nance statement

Under the Listung Rules we are required to review the
part of the corporate governance statement relaung to
the company’s comphance with ten provisions of the
Code We have nothing to report having performed
our review

Responsibihties for the financial statements and
the audtt

Our esponsibihuies and those of the directors

As explained more fully n the statement of directors’
responsibiliges set out on page 109 the dnectors

are responsible for the preparavon of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Audrors

This repot t, including the opmnions, has been prepared
for and only for the company s members as a body n
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, m giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or (o any other person to whom this
reportis shown orinto whose hands itmay come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent i writing

Sectian 5 5~ 5 < al ttale ity 121

VWhat an audit of financial staternents mvolves

An guditinvolves obtaming evidence about the amourits
and disdosures in the financial statements sufficent to
give reasonable assurance thar the financial statements
are ftee from material misstaternent whether caused
by fraud o error Thus includes an assessment of

» Whether the accounung policies are appropriate to the
group's and the company’s arcumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

» The1easonableness of significant accounung esumates
made by the directors

» The overall pr esentauon of the financial statements

We primarily focus our workin these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements against avaifable evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaiuaung the
disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and
other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary, to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
condlusions We obtain audit evrdence thr ough testing
the effectiveness of conttols substantive procedures or
a combmauon of both

in additson, we read all the financial and non financial
information in the Annual report to identufy materal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that 1s apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materilly inconsistent wath, the
knowledge acquired by us in the caurse of pet forming
the audit If we become aware of any apparent material
risstatements ot nconsistencies we consider the
implications for ocur report

Srert Neoren

Stuart Newman {(Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, Unrted Kingdom

9 March 2015
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 December 2014

Adl Ggures in £ mblions plati s 2014 2013
Sales ) 2 4874 5,069
Caostof goods sold 4 {2,202 (2312)
Grospofe T T T TTTTTTI T T T T T e st
Oporating expenses 4 {2,325} (2.353)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates B 2 wl’3| L 54
Operongprafic T T OTTTITE T e ass
Finance costs ‘ (144} (bl
Finance ncome 4 48 3
Profit before tax T TR T T T s ;.
{ncatne tax i 7 (63y (8%
Profit for the year from continuing operations 2 W5
Profitfor the year ft om disconunued operauons 3 228 244
Profitforcheyear T T T 40 53
Aerbuableto T T T
Equity holders of the company 471 538
Non-controfling interest (0 {
Earmings per share (or profit flom contmung and discontimued operacons
ateributable to equity holders of the company during the yeal

(expressed iy pence per share}

— bastc 8 58 lp 66 6p
—diluted ’ 4 58 Op 66 5p
Earnings per share for profit from conuinuing operatons attributable to

equity holders of the company during the year

{(expressed in pence pershare}

- banc 8 360p 364p
— difuted ) 8 29 9P_ 363p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2014

Ateguesmimions Lot 2014 2014
Profit for the year 470 539
ltems that may be 1 eclasaified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - Group 150 (206)
Net exchange differences on rranslavon of foreign operations -- associates 25 {1
Currency transiation adjustment disposed - Group (2) (18)
Attributable tax 7 (6} &
ltems that ar e not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of reurement benefit abligations - Group 15 23 79
Remeasurement of rett cment benefit obliganons - associates (15) -
Aztributable tax ) ) 7 (1) {23)
Other comprehensive incomef(expense) for theyear 174 (i73)
Total comprehensive income for theyear T e s
Atwrbutableto o T
Equity holders of the company 645 369
W G

Non-comtrothng mterest

]
S53NISNE dNO |

JONYLYO4Y3Id HNO l

L3¥dIWE TV 268 400 i

ITNYNAIADD I

It
pd
=
s
I8
b
F
w
hué
b
=
m
3
™
rd
jur
[l




24 Pea son plc A vivalrepen and scoowr 4 2041

Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Allfipuresin £ m¥om fotes 2014 7013
Assets
Non-cul ent assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 334 342
Intangible assets 1 6310 580i
Imvestments In joint ventul es and associates 02 [.it8 {1,092
Deferred income tax assets T 295 250
Finanaal assets — derivatve finanaal instruments it S0 P
Retirement benefit assets b1 130 86
Orther financial assets 15 54 94
Trade and other receivables » 8 70
' T T T T T T T T T Ty 1846
Current assets
Intangble assets ~ pre-pubhcanon b4 820 717
inventores bl 224 224
Trade and other recewables 7 1310 1173
Financal assets - dervative finznoal instruments 1 24 13
Financial assets - marketable securines 1 16 6
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) w530 729
T o e T T 00 2882
Assets classified as held for sale u - 223

_113e7  §0s3

Total assets

Liabilines

Non-current liabiities

Finanacial habilities - borrowings t {1,883} {1.693)
Financial habihties - dervauve financial instruments s 73 {48)
Deferred income tax habilives " (714) {612)
Retrement benefit obhigatons 15 (163) {(142)
Provisions for other liabydittes and charges n (82) (77}
Other labliues N - ” 310 (257}

{3.225) {2.829)

Current habdities

Trade and other labilities 24 (1,601} {1 505}
Fnancal labhues -borrowings 12 {342} (533}
finanaal liabilizes - denvative inanaal st uments 1" {(
Currentincome tax habiliues {190) {164)
Provisions for ather labihues and charges L o . o 33 | 12
T e T h (2187 (_2.3!4-)
Liabilites directly assaciated with assets dassified as held for sale 32 - B2

iggal lmbili_t_le.s

5985 5706

Net assets
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 December 2014

Z

Ad figures m L mithons Reotes 004 013 _—é

Equity ®

o

Share caputal £ 205 205 Z

Share premium v 2579 2,568 @
Treasury shares 24 {75) {98)
Translauon reser ve 70 (103)
Retanedearnings - e o300 31028
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5979 5,700

Non controlingnterest e e e oS & ——

Towlequty 5885 506 ¢

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of diregtor s on 9 March 20(5 and signed on 1t 2

behalfby 2

- z

Rebin Freestone Chief financial officer z
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Year ended 3| December 2014

[ quity nttribucab'e to equury holdes s of che conpany

e Sime Tmmy T e convalgTou
A figures wn £ nutions cpual  premum  shaes  reserve  earmings Toral  meetest  equiy
At { fanuary 2014 205 2568 (98) (103 3128 5700 6 5706
| Profit for the year - - - - 471 471 (1} 470
' Other comprehensive income - - - 173 i 174 - 174
Total comprehensive mcome - - - 173 472 645 H 644
Equity-settled wransactions - . - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-setted transacuons - - - - (3) (3) - {3)
tssue of ordinary shai es under
share option schemes - I - - — I - i
Putchase of treasut y shares - - %) - - (9) - (%)
Release of teasury shares - - 32 - (32) - - -
Changes i non-controlling nterest - - - - - - 2 2
Dividends - - - - (397 (397) (1) (398
A3 Decemberdols a5 3575 g8 70 320 59796 598
T T T st e ey
e Sue  [resry Tannion  Reriied comiof g lotat
ATBpuressn d sumons CpLy e Snares  reserve  LrTn,s Tota  mmvest  equiy
At i fanuary 2003 204 2555  (103)  i28 2902 5686 24 5710
i Profit for the year - - - - 538 538 | 539
t Other compr ehensive expense - - Q30 62 (169 @ (173
Total comprehensive income - - - {231) 600 369 (3) 366
Equity-setted transactions - - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares under
share opuon schemes | 13 - - - 4 - {4
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47} - - {47) - (47)
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) - - -
Changes in non-cantroling interest - - - - 13 13 {5 {2}
Dividends - - - - (37 (37 - BTy
A3 Decambar 3oy T T T T TR T s pe (ay 318 5700 6 5706

The travslation reserve mcludes exchange diferences anaing from the translaton of the netinvestmentin foregn
oper anons and of borrowings and other currency mstruments designated as hedges of such mvestments Changes
in non-controlling interest w1 2014 refate to the disposal of a non-controlhing nterest n a Clunese busness in 2013,
the gt oup purchased non-controlling nterests in the South African and Indian businesses
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2014

Aifguesm Emdbors Nets 2014 263
Cash flows from aperating acavities
Net cash genel ated from opet ations M 704 684
interest pad (86) {82)
Taxpad R (L B )
Net cash generated from operatng acewwes 455 356
Cash flows from nvesting acuvities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of ¢cash acquired 36 {448) {48)
Acquisition of joint ventures and associates (t2) {10
Purchase of investments &) (64)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (75) (118}
Purchase of ntangible assets {t07) {64)
Disposal of subsidiartes, net of cash disposed 3 327 (132)
Proceeds from sale of associates 39 2
Proceeds from sale of mvestments 9 2
Proceeds from sale of propearty, plant and equipment 14 9 28
Proceeds from safe of intangible assets P 2
Proceeds from sale ofiguid resources 12 13
L oans to related parues {10} (44)
Loans advanced {2) (5}
frvestment in hquud resources (22) (i4)
Interest: ecewed I3 9
Dryvidends received from jomnt ventures and associates 120 64
Net cash used in rnvest;g acr.m—tn_e_; T h N (148) ) 63-7—9_];
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from ssue of ordinar y shares 7 I 14
Purchase of treasury shares 26 9 (47)
404 319

Proceeds from borrowings
{538) {225)

Repayment of borrowings

Finance lease principal payments 4) (8
Dwdends paid to company's shareholders g {397) (372)
Dvidends paud to non-controlling snterest (1) -
Punthase of non-cantrolling interest . T, 42}
Net cash used in fiancing acowetees (334 (395
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents L
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents % @9
Cash and cash equivalents at beginiing of year 740 1437
Cashand cash equwvalents atend of year Ty s 740

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The consohdated cash flow statement includes discontinued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information » Amendmants to 1AS 39, 'Novation of Derivatives and
Conunuauon of iHedge Accounung' effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | fanuary 2014
The amendments mean there would be no need to
discontnue hedge accounung if a hedge derivative was
novated and cel taw criteriamet

Pearson pic {the company), its subsidrartes and
assocates (together the Group) ar e mtet national
businesses covering education, business information
and consumer publishing

The company 1s a pubhic hmited company incorporated
and donuciled in England The address of us registered
office 15 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

» Amendrments to 1AS 32, "Financial Instruments
Presentation’, effective for annual repot ung periods
beginming on o1 after 1 January 2014 The amendments

The company has tts primary lisung on the London clarfy some of the requirements for offsetting financial

Stodk Exchange and is also listed on the New York assets and financial kabilkiiies on the bafance sheet

Stock Exchange YIFRIC 21 *Lewvies’, effective for annual reportng periods

These consohdated financial statements were approved beginning on o1 after | January 2014 This details the

for issue by the board of duectors on 9 March 20(5 accounting far an oblgaton to pay a levy that s not
ncome tax

I Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the The adoption of these new pronauncements from
anuary 2014, does not have a matertal impact on the

preparatuon of these consolhdated financial statements H 14 P
are set out below consohdated financial statements
a Basis of prepai ation 2 Standards, interpretauons and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effective The
These consolidated financtat statements have been P . 4

Graoup has not early adopted the following new

prepared on the going concern basis and i accordance
ptonouncements that are nat yet effecuve
with internactonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS)

and IFRS {nter pretations Commuttee nterpt etauons as »1FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, effective for annual
adopted by the European Unton {EU) and with those reporung periods beginning on or after | January 20(8
parts of the Companies Act 2006 apphicable to comparies The new standard details the requirements for the
reporung undet {FRS Inrespect of the accounting classification, measurement and recognition of financial
standards apphcable to the Group there s no difference assets and lablies The Group is yet to assess the full
between EU-adopted and IASB adopted IFRS impact of IFRS 9

These consolidated financial staternents have been » IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
prepared under the historical cost convention as effecuve for annual reporting periods beginning on
modified by the revaluaton of finanaal assets and or after | January 20i7 The new standard specifies
habihties (including derwvatve financal instrumenis) how and when an entity will recogrnise revenue, and
to farr value through profit or loss requires more detailed disclosure Adoption of the

new standard s likely to have an impact on the Group

| Interpretations and amendments to publshed
and management is currently assessing the wmpact

standards effective 2014 The following amendments

and interpretavons were adopted in 2014 3 Criucal accounung assumpuons and judgements The
reparation of financal statements in conformity with
, Amendments to IFRS {0, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27, prep ; 4
[FRS tequices e use of cer tawy crifical accaunuing

‘tnvestment Entires, effecuve for annual reportng
pertods beginning on ot after | |anuary 2014 These
amendments provide an exempuon {rem consoidation
of subsidiaries for entties which meet the defiminon of

assumptons [t also requires management Lo xet ase

its judgement in the process of applying the Group's

accounting poliaes The areas requinng a tugher degree

an iwestment enuty of judgement or compiexaty o areas wihere assumpuons
and esumates are significant to the consolidated finanaal

statements, are discussed 1n the relevant accounung

policies under the following headings and n the notes

to the accounts where appropnate




| Accounting policies continued

a Basis of preparation contmued

Consohdation Business combinations ~ determinatnon
of fair values

Consohdation Business combinauons -~ dassification
of investments

Intangble assets Goodwill

Intangible assets Pre-publication assets

Taxauon

Employee benefits Pensions

Revenue recognizion

b Consoiidation
| Business combinations The acquisition method of
accounting 1s used to account for business combinations

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary 1s the fair value of the assets transferred, the
lrabilwes incurred and the equity interestissued by the
Group The considerauon transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liabthty resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement Acquisiion related costs
are expensed as mcurt ed in the operating expenses line
of the income statement

Idenufiable assets and contingent assets acquired and
denufiable habilities and conungent labihves assumed in
a business combrnation are measured imually at their {air
vaiues at the acquisttion date The determinauon of far
values often requires significant judgements and the use
of esumates, and for material acquisitions, the fan- value
of the acquired intangible assets 1s determined by an
independent valuer The excess of the consideratuon
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
it the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any
previous equity Interest in the acquiree over the fair
vaiue of the identriable net assets acquired is recorded
as gooadwill

Sec note ie(l) for the accounung policy on goedwiil
if this 1s less than the farr value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain

put chase, the dfference is recogivsed directly in
the income statement

Secuon 5w ol caremetty 129

On an acquisiton-by-acquisition basis the Group
recogrises any non controliing interest in the acquiree
erther at fair value or at the non controliing interest's
proporuonate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Management exerases judgement in determining the
classification of its investments in s businesses infine
with the following

2 Subsidianes Subsidiaries are entities over wiich the
Group has control The Group controls an entity when
the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, vanable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
abdiy to affect those returns through s power over the
entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control 1s transfet red to the Group They are
decenschdated from the date that control ceases

3 Transactions with non-controfling interests
Transactiens with non-controlling interests that do

not result u1loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, thatis as transactions with the ownersin
their capacity as owners Any surplus or deficit anising
from disposals to a non-controfling interestis recorded
in equity For purchases from a non-controlling interest,
the difference between considerauan paid and the
retevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
subsidiary 1s recorded in equity

4 Jomt ventures and associates Joint ventures are
entites i which the Group holds an interest on a long-
term basis and has rights Lo the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Associates are
enuties over which the Group has significantinfluence
but'not the power to control the financral and operating
pohcies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the votng nghts Investments
1N foint ventures and associates are accounted for by
the equity method and are imually recognised at the faw
value of consideration transferred

The Group's share of its joint veniures’ and associates’
post-acquisttion profits or losses is recognised in the
ncome staterment and its share of post-acguisition
raovements in reserves s recognsed in reserves

SSANISNE ¥NO 1

IINVHEO4EIL HND |

|
i
i
i

LIVdW 19iD0% N0

IDINVYNYIACD




130 Pearson plc An nalrepon tanr acoon 1, 220

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

l. Accounung policies continued

b Consclidation conunued

The Group's share of its joint ventu s’ and associates’
results 1s recognised as a component of operatng profit
as these operations form part of the core pubshing
business of the Group and are an ntegral part of
existng wholly-owned businesses The cumulative post
acquisiton movements are adjusted agamst ihe carrying
armount of the investment When the Group's shat e of
fosses i a joint ventu e or associate equals or exceeds
its interestin the joint venture or associate, the Group
does not recogrise further losses unless the Group has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
JOINT venture or assoctate

5 Contribution of a subsidiary to an associate or joint
venture The gan or loss resulting from the contribution
or sale of a subsidiary to an associate or a joInt venture
15 recognised in full Wher e such transactions do not
involve cash consideration significant judgements and
sstrates are used in determuning the fair values of the
consideraucn received

¢ Foteign cuniency tanslation

I Funcucnal and presentation currency {tems included
n the financal statements of each of the Group s enuues
are measured using the currency of the primary
economic envirenment i which the entity operates
{the “funcuonal currency’) The consohdated financial
statements are presented i steriing, which i the
company's functtonat and presentation currency

2 Transacuons and balances Foreign currency
tramsactions are translated into the funcuonal currency
using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of the
transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulung
from the settlement of such transactons and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and labthues denominated in foreign currencies
are recogised in the income staternent, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying net investment hedges

3 Group comparies The results and finanaal posiuon
of all Group compantes that have a funcuonal currency
different from the presentation currency Jf e ti anslated
o the pt esentauan cutrency as follows

1} Assets and habilities are transiated at the dosing rate at
the date of the balance sheet

ity income and expenses are transtated at average
exchange | ates

m) All resulung exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equily

On consohdation exchange differences arisng ft om
the transtauon of the net nvestment in foraign enuties,
and of borrowings and other currency INstruments
designated as hedges of such invesuments, are taken
to sharcholders' equity The Group wreats specaific
inter-company loan balances, which are notntended
to be repard in the foreseeable {uture, as part of ts net
nvestment When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recogmsed i the Income
statement as part of the pain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group 1s the
US dollar The average rate for the year against sterling
was $1 65 (2013 $! 57) and the year end rate was

31 56 (2043 §i 66)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depr ecration Cost mcludes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the asset to ts working condiuon for intended
use Land s not depreciated Deprecavon on other
assets 1s calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate thew cost less thar restdual values over thewr
estimated useful lives as follows

Buldings (freehold)  20-50 years
Bulldings (leasehold)  over the period of the lease

Plantand equipment  3-[0years

The assets’ 1 esidual values and useful hives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date

The carrying value of an asset 1s written down (o its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
1s greater thart its esumated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

{ Goodwill For the acquisition of subsidiaries made on
or after | januar y 2010, goodwill represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amaunt of any non-
controlhng mterest in the acquiree and the acquisiton
date fawr value of any previous equity nterestin the
acquil ec over the faw value of the 1denufiable net assets
acquired For the acquisiton of subsidianes made from
the date of transiton to (FRS to 31 December 2009
goodwill rept esents the excess of the cost of an
acquistuon over the fair value of the Group s share of the
netidentrfiable assets acquired Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries 1s mcluded in intangible assets Goodwil
on acquistiion of assaciates and jomnt ventures represents
the excess of the cost of an acquisinon over the fair
value of the Group's share of the net identfiable assets




| Accounung policies continued

e Intangible assets continued

acquired Goodwill on acquisitions of assocates and
jomt ventures 15 ncluded v investments in associates
and joint veniures

Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment and carrted at
cost less accumufated impairment losses Animpairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the carrymng value

of goodwill exceeds the recoverable amount The
recoverable amount s the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use These calcutations require the
use of estimates and significant management judgement
A description of the key assumptions and sensitivities ts
nciuded innote |1 Goodwillts allocated to aggregated
cash generaung umts for the purpose of imparrment
tesung The allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-
generatng units that are expected to benefit from the
business combinanion in which the goodwilt arose

Gains and losses on the disposal of an enuty include the
carrying amount of goodwill refating to the entity soid

IFRS 3 ‘Bustiness Combtnations (1as not been apphed
retrospectively to business combimations before the
date of transition to {FRS

2 Acguired software Software separately acquired for
internal use 1s capitalised at cost Software acquired n
materal business combinauons 1s capitahised atits far
value as determined by an independent valuer Acquired
software 1s amortised on a straight-hne basis over its
esumated useful ife of between three and eight years

3 Internally developed software Internal and external
costs incurred durtng the preliminary stage of developing
computer software for mternal use are expensed

as incurred Internal and external costs incurred to
develop computer software for mternal use during
the application development stage are capitalised

if the Group expects economic benefits from the
developmant Capitalisauon in the applicanion
development stage begins once the Group can reliably
measure the expenditure attibutable to the software
development and has demonstrated Its intention o
complete and use the software Internally developed
software is amorused on a siraight-hne basis over s
estnated uselul ife of between three and eight years

Section 5 Tnan e sttty 31

4 Acquu ed ntangble assets Acquired intangible assets
include customer Iists, contracts and relatronships,
trademarks and brands. publistung rights, content
rechnotogy and software nghts These assets aie
capitahsed on acquisition at cost and mncluded in
intangible assets Intangible assets acqun ed in materia
business combmnations are capitalised at their fair value
as determined by an independent valuer Intangble
assets are amorused over their estimated useful hives
of between two and 20 years, using an amorusation
method that reflects the pattet n of their consumption

5 Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
1epresent direct costs incurred in the development

of educavonal programmes and titles prior to thewr
publicauon These costs are recognised as current
intangibie assets whet e the ttle wilf generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
rehably Pre-publicatton assets are amortised upon
publicauon of the utle over estimated econormc lives
of five years or less, being an esuimate of the expected
operating ife cycle of the title, with a fugher proportion
ofthe amorusaucn talken in the earber years

The mvestment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash gener ared from operations in
the cash flow statement (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-publication
assets and the determenation of the amortisation profile
involve a srignificant degree of judgement based on
historical trends and management estimation of future
potential sales An incorrectamortisation profile could
result in excess amounts being carried forward as
intangible assets that would otherwise have been
writien off te the income statement in an earlier period

Reviews are performed regularly 1o estmate
recoverability of pre-publicanon assets The carrying
amount of pre- publication assets 1s set out 1n note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as available for sale
nvestments, are non-derwatve financial assets
measured at estrmated faw value Changes i the fau
value are recorded m equity i the fair vatue 1 eserve
On the subsequent disposal of the asset, the net far
value gans or losses ai e taken to the Income statement

i
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

{. Accounung pohaes continued

2 Inventories

Inventones are stared at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Costis deternined using the firstin
first out {FIFO) method The cost of finished goods and
workn progr ess compnises raw materials, directiabour,
other direct costs and related production overheads
Net realisable value 1s the estmated selling price n

the ordinary course of business, less esumated casts
necessary to make the sale Provisions are made for
slow moving and obsolete stock

h Royalty advances

Advances of royaltes to authors are included within
trade and other receivables when the advance is paid
less any provision required to adjust the advance (o

iLs net realisable value The reahsable value of royaly
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
n determining the profitability of indivtdual author
contracts I the esumated reahisable value of author
contracts Is oversiated tius will have an adverse effect
on operanng profits as these excess amounts will be
wittten off

The recoverability of royalty advances 1s based upon an
annual detaded management review of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and prior sales history of repeat authors

The royalty advance is expensed at the contracted or
effective royalty rate as the related revenues are earned
Royalty advances which will be consurned within one
year are held m current assets Royalty advances

which will be consumed after one year are held in
non-curent assets

1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
nclude cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
ather short-term highly liguid investments with onigtnai
maturitios of three months or less, and banlc overdrafts
Banl overdrafts are included in borrowings in current
liabihibes i the balance sheet

Short-term deposts and mat ketable secures with
maturiues of greater than three months do not quatify as
cash and cash equivalents Movements on these finanaal
nstruments are classified as cash flows from fiuancing
acuvines in the cash flow statement where these
amounts are used to offset the borrowngs of the Group
or as cash flows from investng actmnes where these
amounts are held to generate aninvestmentreturm

j Shaie capital
Ordinar y shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the i1ssue
of new shares or options ai ¢ shownin equity asa
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the comipany's
equity share capital (treasui y shares) the consideration
paid including any directly attnibutable incremental
costs. net of income raxes, s deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders untd the
shares are cancelfled, resssued or disposed of Where
such shares a1 e subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs and the related mcome tax effects,

15 included in equity attributable to the company's
equity holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recogmsed smually at far value, which
is proceeds recerved net of transaction costs incurred
Borrowings a e subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any diffetence berween the proceeds (pet of
transaction costs) and the redemption value being
recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrawngs using the effective interest method
Accrued mterest s included as part of borrowings
Where a debt mstrument 1s in a fair value hedging
relationship. an adjustment 1s made to its carrying value
in the income statement to reflect the hedged sk
interest on borrowings is expensed in the ncome
staternent as incurred

| Derwative financial instruments

Denvauves are recognsed at fair value and remeasured
at each balance sheet date The fair value of dervatives
1s determined by using market data and the use of
established esumation techmques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models The Group
designates certain of the derwvative instruments within
its portfolio to be hedges of the fair value of its bonds
(fair value hedges) or hedzes of net nvestments in

{or ergn operatons (net nvestment hedges)

Changes in the fair value of dervatives that are
designated and qualfy as fawr value hedges are recorded
in the mcome statement, together with any changes in
tha fair value of the hedged asset or kabulity that are
attnbutable to the hedged risk




[ Accounting policies conunued

I Derwative financial instrumients continued

The effecuve poruan of changes i the fan vaiue of
derwvauves that are designated and qualify as net
investment hedges are recogrused in other
comprehensive income Gains and fosses accumulated
1N equity are inciuded in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation is disposed of
Gams or losses relating to the ineffecuve poruon are
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costsin the Income statement

Certan dervauves do not qualfy or are not designated
as hedging instruments Such dervanves are classified
at far value and any movement in their fair value 1s
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the tncome statement

m Taxation

Current tax 1s recognised on the amounts expected to
be pad or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
palance sheet date

Deferted mcome tax i1s provided, using the liability
method, on temporary diffet ences arsing between
the tax bases of assets and habiliies and their carrying
amounts Deferred income tax 1s deter mined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset s realised or
the deferred income tax hability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognsed to the extent that it
15 1 obable that future taxable profit will be avadable
against which the temporary differences can be utdised

Deferred income tax ts provided in respect of the
undistibuted earnings of subsidiaries other than where
i 1s tntended that those undistribuzed earnmgs will not
be remitted in the foreseeable futne

Curtent and deferred tax are 1 ecognised in the income
statement, except when the tax refates to wems charged
or credited directly Lo equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case the tax s afso recogrised w equity
or other comprehensive incame

The Group is subject to iIncome Laxes 1IN NUTIErous
yunsdicrons  Significant judgement is 1 equired in
deterrmuning the estimates i relation to the worldwide

Secuon §rim g il stateme T 133

proviston for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calcudavons for which the ultmate tax determunation
15 uncertun during the ordinary course of business

The Group recogmises labidives for anucpated tax
auditissues based on esumates of whether addimonal
taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were wtiaily
recorded such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determinavon 1s made

Deferred tax assets and kabrlines requir e management
judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised
In paruculal, sigruficantjudgement is used when assessing
the extent to which deferred tax assets should be
recognised with consideration given to the tming and
level of future taxable income together with any future
tax planning strategies

i Employee benefits

| Pensions The returement benefit asset and obhigation
recogrised in the balance sheet represents the net of
the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the far value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefit obligation s calculated annually by
independent actuanes using the projected unit credit
method The present value of the defined benefit
obligaucn s deterrmined by discounting estimated future
cash flows using yields on hugh quahty cor porate bonds
which have terms to matunty approximating the terms
of the related hability

When the calculation resules tn a potenual asset the
recogniuon of that asset s imited to the asset ceiling -
that s the present value of any economic benefits
avaifable in the form of refunds from the planor a
reduct:on in futuré contributions Management use
judgement to determine the level of refunds available
from the plan in recognising an asset

The deter minavon of the penston cost and defined
benefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of cet tamn
assumptions, which indude the discount rate, inflauon
rate, salary growth and fongewity

Actutarial gans and losses arsing from expernence
adjustments and changes i actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity i other comprehensive
income in the penod i which they arise
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

| Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits continued

The service cost, representing benefits accruing aver
the year, s included m the income statement as an
operatng cost Netinter ests calculated by applying
the discount r ate to the net defined benefit abhgation
and1s presented as finance costs ot finance income

Obligations for contributions to defined contrbution
penston plans are recognised as an cperaung expense
in the mcome statement as incurred

-

2 Qrther post-retirement obliganions The expected
costs of post-retrement medical and hife assurance
benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
using a similar accounting methodology as for defined
benefit pension abligations The habiives and costs
relating to sigmificant other post retirement obligatons
are assessed annually by independent qualified actuaries

3 Share-based payments The fair value of options or
shares granted under the Group's share and option plans
is recognised as an employee expense after taking into
account the Group's best esumate of the number of
awards expected to vest Fairvalue is measured at the
date of grant and 1s spread over the vesting peniod

of the option or share The fair value of the options
granted 1s measured using an option model thats
most appropriate to the award The far value of shares
awarded s measured using the share price ar the date
of grantunless another method 1s more appropriate
Any proceeds received are credited to share capital
and share premium when the options are exerased

o Provisions

Prowisions are recogrused if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligauon as a result of past events,
it1s more hkely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required 1o settle the obligabon and the amount
can be reliably esumated Provisions are discounted to
pi esent value where the effectis material

The Group recognises a proviston for deferred
constderation atfan value Where this i1s congngent
on future performance or a future event, judgement
15 exercised w establishing the {an value

The Group recogruses 2 provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be derwved
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obliganons undet the contract

The prowision is based on the present value of luture
payments for surplus leased properues under non-
cancellable operaung leases, net of estimated sub-
leasing mcome

p Revenue recagmition

Revenue comprises the far value of the considerauon
received or recewvable for the sale of goods and services
net of sales taxes rebates and discounts, and after
eltninating sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of books 1s recognised when ttle
passes A prowsion for antiaipated returns s made based
primarily on fustorical return rates If these esumates

do not reflect actual returns in future periods then
revenues could be understated or overstated for a
parucular period

Circulauion and advertising revenue 1s recogrised
when the newspaper or other pubitcation is published
Subscripuon 1 evenue is recognised on a straight-hne
basis over the lfe of the subscription

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or
more separate elements that can be provided to
customers either on a stand alone basis or as an
optional extra such as the prowsian of supplementary
materials or online access with textbooks and multiple
deliverables within testing or service contracts revenue
15 recognised for each elernent as if it were an indeidual
contractual arrangement

Revenue from mult-year contractual arrangaments,
such as contracts Lo process qualifying tests for indmidual
professions and government departments, is recognised
as performance occurs The assumptions, risks, and
uncertainties inherentin long-term contract accounting
can affect the amounts and uming of revenue and related
expenses reported Certan of these arrangements,
either as a result of a single service spanning more than
one reportng period or where the contract requires
the prowision of a number of services that together
consutute a single project, are tr eated as long-term
conu acts with 1 evenue t ecogiised on a percentage of
completon basis Percentage of completion 1s calcufated
on a cost basis using the proportion of the total
eswmnated costs mcurred 1o date Losses on contracts

at e recognised in the peniod n which the {ass first
becomes foreseeable Contracr fosses are determined
to be the amount by which esumated total costs of the
contract exceed the esumated total revenues that will
be generated by the contract




I Accounting policies conunued

p Revenue recognition continued

On certain contracts, where the Group acts as agent
only commissions and fees recewvable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third party
costs ncurred on behalf of the prinaipal that are
rechargeable under the conu actuaf arrangement are
notncluded in revenue

Income from recharges of freight and other acuviues
which are Inaidental to the normal r evenue generating
actvities s included in other mcome

q Leases

Leases of property plant and eguipment where the
Group has substznually alf the risks and rewards of
ownership are dassified as finance leases Finance leases
are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at
the lower of the faw- value of the [eased property and
the present value of the mimmum lease payments

Each lease payment s allocated between the habilty
and finance charges to aclueve a constant: ate on the
finance balance cutstanding The corresponding rental
obhgations, net of finance charges are mcluded in
financial habihwes — borrowings  The interest element of
the finance cost 15 charged to the income statement ovel
the lease pencd to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the hability for each
period The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the useful iife of the asset a1 thelease term

Leases where a significant partion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retamned by the lessor are
dassified as operaung leases by thelessee Payments
made under operatng leases {net of any incentives
recewved from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease

r Dividends

Dwidends are recorded i the Group's financal
statements in the penod in which they are approved
by the company’s shareholders

Secuon 5 Fainoal o berem 1y 13%

s Assets and liabiles held for sale

Assets and liabiitues are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
fess costs to self if it 1s hughly probabie that the carrying
amount will be 1 ecovered prnapally through a sale
transaction ather than through contnuing use No
depreciation s charged in respect of non-current assets
classified as held for sale Amounts relating to non
current assets and labiities held for sale are classified
as disconunued operations in the income statement
where appropriate

t Trade recewvables

Trade receivables are stated at far value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and antiaipated futur e sales
returns (see also note {p)

2 Segment information

From | January 2014 the Group has reorganised and 15
reporting new segmental analyses o reflect the new
structure and operatmg model. The primary segments
for management and reportng are geographies as
outlined below In addition, the group sepai ately
discloses the results from the Penguin Random House
{PRH) associate

Contnuing operauons

North Amenca School Higher Educanon and
Professional businesses in US and Canada

Growth School, Higher Educaton and Professional
businesses in emerging markets which are imvestment
priorities, including Brazil, China India and South Afnica

Core School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in more mature markets mcluding UK,
Austraha and ltaly

In addinon the Group sepat ately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House (PRH) associate

The resuits of the Mergermarket business to 4 February
2014 are shown as discononued in the relevant yeat s
The results of the Penguin busmess 10 30 june 2003 are
also shown as discontinuedin 2043

Fgut es for 2013 have been restared to reflect the
new segmerts
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MNotes ta the consolidated financial statements conunued

2 Segment information continued

For more detail on the services and products inchuded i each business segment refer to the strategic report

2044
R

Al figwiesin £ m hons Motes  Amenea Core Groweh PRH  Coiporate  oporasions Group
Continuing operatons
Sales 2974 [.154 746 - - ~ 4874
Adjusted operaung profit 464 152 35 69 - - 720
Intangible charges (o (22} (132) (54) - {318)
Acquisition ¢osts (2) () (3} - - - (6)
Orther net gams and losses 2 - - - - - 2
Operaumgproficlloss) 34 s (e 15 - - 39%
Finance costs 2 {141}
Finance mcome 3 48
Profit before tax T T T T T T T Ta0s
Income tax 7 R {63)
Profit for the year from T T T e e
contmumgoperations oo .. R
Segmentassets 6646 1566 1407 - 660 - 10279
Jomnt ventu es 12 ! 9 3 - - - 3
Assodiates 12 ! 9 1,095 . - [,105
oo T g e a0 s e i
Other segment items
Share of results of jomt ventures
and assocates K - 9 3 35 - - 51
Capital expenditure LT} 97 48 49 - - - 194
Pre-publication investment 29 209 77 72 - - - 358
Deprecation to 41 i7 16 - - - 74
Amorusauon 20 309 i12 124 - - - 542

tmpairment I - - 77 - - - 77
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2 Segment information continued

2012

TN T T T T e e
Al figen o £ rw hons Metes  Amenca Core Gt PRH Coporae  operaum Grears
Conunung aperatons
Sates 3.073 1258 738 - - - 5069
Adjusted operaung profit 474 120 38 50 - - 682
Intangible charges {106) (27} {33) {30) - - (196)
Acqusition costs (2) (3} (7} - - - {12)
Other net gains and losses - (16) - - T )
Operacng profitifloss) T s 1 @ w0 - - ass
Finance costs & (1)
Finance income 6 35
P:;ﬁt befol e tax B T e T T ey
income tax 7 o E7)
Proficfor the year from o
CONUNUINE OPEIATONS e e R e 22
Segment assets 6326 [.450 98| - 859 223 9 83;9
Jotntventu es 12 { 2 - - - 3
Assocates 1 | I8 1.070 - {089
Totalassets ) " 638 1468 o83 1070 859 223 1093t
Other segment items
Share of results of jomnt ventures
and associates 12 } 26 (4} 31 - - 54
Capital expenditure 00N 95 46 33 - - | 175
Pre-publication tnvestment i 202 90 72 - - - 364
Depreciation 10 46 19 6 - - { 82
Amortisation It 20 287 143 103 - - 2 535

Impairment - -

For further imformanon on adjusted measures above seenote 8

Included in other net gains and losses in conunuing operauons in 2014 are gamns on the sale of joint venture interests
i Safari Books Online and Cour seSmart (£40m} and afoss on disposal of airmvestment in Nook Media (£38m)
incduded in other net gans and fossesm 201315 afoss on the disposal of the fapanese schoaol and local publishing assets

Both operaung profit and adjusted oper aung profitin 2004 are stated after the following restructunng charges North
Amenica £37m with estimated o year benefits of £2im Core £22m wath estmated m year benefits of £10m, Growth
£6m with estimated in year benefits of £2m, Penguin Random House £19m, with esumated in year benefits of £7m

Both operatng profit and adjusted operaung profitin 2043 are stated after the followang restructuring charges North
Amenica £77m, with estimated in year benefits of £24m Core £63m, with esumated in year benefits of £13m, Growth
£36m, with esumated in year benefits of £4m
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

In 2014, sales from the provision of goods were £2,7{1m (2013 £2,867m) and sales from the provision of services
were £2,163m (2013 £2,202m) Sales fi om the Group's educational publishing consumer publistung and newspaper
bustness are classified as being from the provision of goods and sales ff om tts assessment and tesung and other service
businesses are classified as being from the prowision of set vices There were no matenal iter-seginent sales

Corporate costs are alfocated to business segments mncluding discontinued opet ations on an appi opriate basts
depending on the nature of the cost, therefo: e the segment result 1s equal to the Group operating profit Segment
assets constst of property, plant and equipment, intangble assets, nventories, receivables deferred taxaton and other
financial assets and exdude cash and cash equivalents and dervative assets Corporate assets comprise cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and dervative financia! instruments Capital expenditure compt ises additions to
property. plant and equipment and sofiware (see notes {0 and )

Property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets acguired through business combination were £263m (2013
£202m) (see note 30} In 2013, capital expenditure, depreciaton and amorusatton included amounts relaung to
disconunued operations

The Group operates in the following main geographic areas

Sies Pgan LRt 4550,
All figures n £ vilions ) w4 0 Tee 203
Conunuing operations
UK 6i0 649 1,056 i 068
Other European countites 347 366 180 200
us 1,826 2,913 5,243 5,026
Canada Lo {28 288 301
Asia Pacific 598 624 416 495
Orther countries ~ ) 383 389 66l 205
Totalconomung T TN dgr4 T spes 7844 7305
Discontinued operations
UK 4 97 - -
Other European countries - 49 - -
us 4 369 - -
Canada - 24 - -
Asia Pacfic i 74 - -
O}I\ef countries = 8 - -
Total disconumued _ N
Towl T TTTTIITITITITUTITTIITITT Tuee3 5690 7844 7305

Sales are zliocated based on the country 11 which the customan s located This does not differ mater ially from the
location where the order is received The geograpiucal split of non-current assets s based on the subsidiary’s country
of domicile This s not matenally different to the location of the assers Non-current assers comprise property plant
and equipment, (ntangible assets, Ivestments it jont ventures and associates and trade and other recevables
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3 Discontinued operations

Dnsconunued oper ations relate to Penguin and Merger market

An analysis of the 1 esults and cash flows of disconunued operations 15 as foliows

S T e T T T T e T e e,
Al figures in £ nw hons Pengun  Mergermarker Toral Pengun Mergemar o1 Toat
Saes - s 9 __sm___18 el
Operaung profit - 2 2 28 24 52
Fianceincome e s e e e e e e o L
Profit before tax - 2 2 29 24 53
Incometax - (DN () S ) NS ¢/ B 1.
Profit after tax - [ f 20 (5 35
Profit an disposal of Penguin 29 - 29 202 - 202
Artributable tax benefit - - - 15 - {5
Profit on disposal of Mergermarket - 244 244 - - ~
Attributable tax expense - {46) (46) - - -
Mergermarkettransacroncosts . Z oot ® 8
Profit for the year from disconunued ) S

operatons oo B9 a8 By T M
Oper ating cash flows - 2 2 36 22 58
Investing cash flows - - - {6) (2} (8)
Financing cash flows - - - (8 (29) 37N
Total cash flows ol 2 e R . I =

Included within the cost of disposal of Pengum n 2013 are amounts n respect of the settlement of hugauon refated ro
the agency arrangement for eBoolks Also included i cost of disposal for Penguin for 2013 was a provision for amounts
payable to Bertelsmann upon settement of the transfer of Penguin’s UK past service pension habiiues to the new PRH
venture Durning 201, 1t was decided that this transfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have been credited
back i the £29m gain reported against the disposal in 2014

4 Operating expenses

Al figures in £ milkens T o - w08 2013
By function
Costofgoodssold . e e 22022302
Operating cxpenses
Distribution casts 87 90
Selfing, markeung and product development costs 263 {027
Adrunistrauve and other expenses 1315 1.t62
Restructuning costs 84 {76
Other net gains and losses {2} lé
Othermncome L UID )
Total nec operating expenses _ _ BB 2383
ST T 4527 4665

Total S L e S Ui

Included in other income is service fee income from Penguin Random House of £4[mi (2013 £28n3 Included in
adrrunistratve and other expenses are research and efficacy costs of £22m (2013 £5m)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Operating expenses continued

Al fipures i £ mubions Motes 2014 2613
By nature

Royalues expensed 242 256
Ovther product costs 686 735
Employee benefit expense 5 1,978 2,100
Conrract labour £85 194
Employee related expense 146 177
Promotonal costs 169 167
Deprecauon of property, plant and equipment 10 74 81
Amorusaton of ntangible assets - pre-publication 10 292 308
Amortsation of intangible assets  software T 63 59
Amorusation of intangible assets — other " 87 i66
Impatrment of intangible assets It 77 -
Property and facifrues 218 229
Technology and commurications 139 104
Professional and outsourced services 264 259
Other general and adiministy ative costs 28 HS
Capitalised costs (203) {199}
Acquisiion costs 6 12
O+ther net gains and losses (2) 16
Other mcome ( |22)_ _ {118}
T T T T T T e e
Durng the year the Group obtamned the fallowing services from the Group s auditors
S S 77
The audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 5 4
The audir of the company s subsidiaries 2 2
Towladtfess T T Ty e
Otherassurance services ! i
:l:gl:al other assuran;:e_serwces T o I
Tax complhance services ! 2
Tax adwsory services i R
Total taxservices T 4
Total nonaud serweas R

Total B o t
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4 Operating expenses continued

Reconcihaton between audit and non-audit service fees 1s shown below

Al Ggures i £ mians 2044 2013
Group auditfees mefuding fees for attestaton under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 7 6
Non audit fees 2 5

Totat

Fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sai banes-Oxley Act are allocated between {ees payable for the audnis
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts Non-audit fees for 2013 includes £3m for assurance and tax services related

to the Penguin Random House transacuon

S Employeeinformation

Al figures In € nmulbons Bt s 2044 7063
Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries (including termination benefits and restructuring costs) 1,728 {836
Socral security costs {34 i36
Share-based paynment costs i 32 35
Retu ement benefits — defined contribuuon plans 25 69 66
Retrement benefits - defined benefit plans 3] 26 27
Other post-retirement benefits I (t1) -
T e

Total

The details of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson plc are shown in the report on directors’ remuneration

2014 2013

Average number employed

Employee numbers
21,204 22 146

North America

Caore 7.887 8.807
Growth 11,603 t0.975
Other 182 87
Comnuegoperawons T 0 40876 45

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £5m (2013 £168m) and the average number
employed was 73 {2013 3,592
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements conunued

6 Net finance costs

Alttipuies n € mifions Nutes 204 .0k
Inter est payable (82) (82)
MNet finance costs i respect of retnrement benefits 2 - {3)
Finance cost of put aptions, deferred consideranon assocated with acquisiuons

and other interest charges related to transactions - {3
et foreign exchange losses (53) -
Octher losses on financtal instruments not in a hedging relatonship

— dervauves &) o E
o 7 N 11
Imerestrocenvable T T T g 10
Net finance incone i respect of retirement benefits 5 1 -
Net foreign exchange gans 7 20
Other gamns on financial instruments 1 a hedging relationship

~ fair value hedges - i
Other gams on financial iInstruments not in a hedging relattonship

~ derwvauves L 12 4
Fmmncemcoms T T T « T %
New fmance coms T T T e e e g
Analysed as S ) T

INet interest payable reflected in adjusted earnings (64) (72)
Other net finance costs ) ) I 7 .y
Totalnecfinancecosts L) (76)

incfuded in mterest receivable s £1m (2013 £ mil) of interest receivable from related partres The net movement
of £rul on fair value hedges in 2014 (2013 netgam of £lm) comprises a loss of £27m {2013 gain of £95m) on the:
underlying bonds, offset by a gamn of £27m (2013 loss of £94m) cn the related dervatve financial instruments

For further informauon on adjusted measures above, see note 8
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7 Income tax

Al figures n € mivans 1dres 2019 1013
Curtent tax

Charge in respect of current year {103) (129}
Adjustments i respect of prior years - 30 (7}
Towlcurenctaxchage T T gy (136
Deferredeax T TTmoTT T om oo e
In respect of temporary diferences 8 4
Other adjustments in respect of prior years L 2 35
Tl delerredmered T T T e
e caxcharge &) e

Total tax char ge

The adjustments i respect of priot years in both 2044 and 2013 mainly relate to changes in esumates ansing from
uncertain tax posittans following settlements with tax authoriwes m the year

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoreucal amount that would arise using the UK tax rate
as follows

Al figu 510 € rthions 2014 012
Profit before tax 305 382
Tax calculated at UK rate (2084 21 5%, 2013 23 25%) (66) (89
Effect of overseas tax rates {12) (I3)
Jonit venture and associate ncome reported net of tax H i3
Net expense not subject to tax £ (*4)
Loss on sale of businesses not subject to tax - (6)
Utihisation of previously unrecognsed tax losses and credits - |
Unuulised tax losses {19) {7)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 32 28
Towlwmxcharge T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTITTTT T ey @n
2 75 N TF ¥
Overseas 5 o (STL" L __(_74)_
. . e @)

Total tax charge

207% 228%

Tax rate reflected in earmings
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MNaotes to the consolidated financial statermnents continued

7 Income tax continued

The tax rate reflected n adjusted earnings is calcufated as follows

W Mz

Al figurcs m £ mifions
Profitbefore tax 305 382
Adjustments
Other net gans and losses (2) 14
Acquisition costs 6 12
Arnortisation of acquired intangibles 38 196
Other netfinance costs o 4
Adjusted profic before tax ~ continuing operations o O ese slo
Adjusted profit before tax — discontinued operations 1 54
owtsmedprocborsias i
Toral tax charge (63) (87}
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gans and tosses ! 32
Tax benefit on acquisition costs (H ()
Tax benefit on intangibile char ges (73 (34)
Tax benefit on other net finance costs (5) {1}
Tax amortsauon benefit on goodwill and mtangibles 24 30
;\Ejuged INcome tax charge- _ contln-t;r;g;;z;'—z\_t_l;r;; o {17) o (;‘_93
Adjusted income tax charge — disconunued operatons (1) (18}
Total adjusted income tax chai ge o o TIT 97
E:%g Eg—ﬂ-ec_ted n grt_iluste;:lza_r_nmgs T ;_1_7 9% [—ZE:?E
For further nformauon an adjusted measures above, see note 8
The tax (charge)/benefit recognised in other comprehensive income s as follows
Allfgures o Combons T EYE
Rermeasurement of retrement benefit obligatons ) {23)
et exchange differences onwranslauon of foregn operavons .. @ ¢
NG

A tax charge of €3m (2013 tax charze £ni) refating Lo share-based payments has been recogmsed dn ectly in equity
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8 Earmings per share

Basic
Basic earnings per share 15 cafculated by dwviding the profic attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in1ssue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the
company and held as treasury shares

Dituted
Diluted earnings per share is catculated by adjusung the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take account

of afl ditutve potential ordinary shares and adjusting the profit attributable, if apphicable, to account for any tax
consequences that might at ise from convet sion of those shares

W s 2014 2003

Al figures i £ mifions

Profic for the year from continuing operations 2432 295
Non controlling interest | H
Earmings from contnumg operations T T T a3 294
Profit for the year from discontinued operations i ~ N 228 244
. -1
VWeighted average number of shares (iullions) 8109 8078
Effect of diutve share optrons (millions) 1o L
Weyshted average number of shas es (tufions) for difured earmings Bit9 8089
Earrungs per share from continuing and discontinued operations

Basic 58 ip 66 6p
Diluted 580p 66 5p
Earnings per share from continung operations

Basic 3GCp 364p
Dhiuted 299 363p
Earnings per share from discontinued operations

Basic 28 lp 302p
Diluted ) ) L 28 ip 30&
Adjusted

In order to show resuits from operatng activities on a consistent basts, an adjusted earnings per share is presented
The company's definition of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other similarly utled measures

reported by other companies

Adjusted earnings includes the results from continuing and discontnued cperatons The {ollowing iems arc exduded
from adjusted earmings

Other net gains and fosses represent profits and losses on the acquisiion and disposal of subsidraries, jont ventures,
assowates and other finanadl assees that are included wittin continuing or disconunued operations but wiuch distort
the per{ormance of the Group

Amorusation of acquired intangibles, acquisition costs and movements In conmgent acquisition consideraton are
afso excluded from adjusted earmngs as these stems are not considered to be fully reflecuve of the underlying
performance of the Group
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

‘

8 Earwmings per share continued

Other net finance tncome/costs nclude finance costs i respect of reurement benefits, finance costs of put apuons
and deferred consideraton and foreign exchange and other gans and losses Finance costs relatng to retrement
bencfits are excluded as the consohdated income statement presentauon undet IAS [9 (1evised) does notreflect the
economic substance of the underlying assets and habihires Finance costs of put opnions and defert ed consideration
are excluded as they relate to futurc earn outs and siilar payments an acquisiuons and do not reflect cash expended
Foretgn exchange and other gains and losses are excluded as they represent short term fluctuations in market valhue
and are subject to significant volatihty Other gains and losses may not be realised in due course as it is normally the
ntention to hold the related mnstruments to maturity Other net finance costs of Group companies are imcluded n
finance costs or finance income as appropriate Other net finance costs of joint ventures and associates a1 e included
within the share of resuits of joint ventures and associates within operaung profit

Tax on the above items 1s excluded fiom adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit from
recognising previously unrecognised pre-acquistion and capital losses The Group indudes the benefit of tax
amortisation of goodwill and intangibles as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax charge with the
expected rate of cash tax payments

Non controlling mterest {or the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earmngs The following tables reconaile
statutory earnings to adjusted earnings

o S 2
Statutory Orcher net Other net Tax Adjusted
incnme  Discontinued gams g Acguisition [ntangible finance  amoseration ncome
Al fipures o £ mdlions statement oprrazont tosses coms charpes  nuome/cosis bend fir statement
Operaung profit 398 2 {2) 6 38 - - 722
Net finance costs %3 - - - - 29 ) - _{64)
Profit before tax 305 2 ) 6 3i8 25 - 658
Income tax (63) {n | (H 73) 6 24 (118)
Profit for the year from
continuIng operations 242 { {H 5 245 24 24 540
Profitfor the year from
discontinued operations 228 (1} @7 - - - o
Profit for the year 470 - (228} 5 245 24 24 540
Naon-controfiing interest f - - - - - *{_.
Earnings 471 - (228} 5 245 24 24 544
VWeighted average number
of shares (imilions) 8l09 8l09
Weighted average numbei
of shares {miflions) for
diduted ear rungs 8l s Btie
Earnings per shai e (basic) 58 Ip k6T

Earnings per share (diduted) ~ 580p 66 by
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8 Earmings per share continued o
2043 £S5
Sramtory Otheraet Qthernet Tan Adjusted E
wiene  Dhisconni =4 iz and Af s fion Intane'e foante  amerusaton 1Ns Ly =
Adtguee m ek ong stalen st ufIer G Lses Y Cairgis  mgeri e Gt bend fit s mEnt m
Operating profic 458 54 6 2 196 - - 736
Net finance costs (76) - - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 té i2 {96 4 - 664
Income tax B (87 gy 32 @ ¢ oy 30 EG7)
Profit for the year from —
CONtiNUIE OPEl atioNs 295 36 48 {0 145 3 30 567 2
Proficfor the year from =
disconnuedoperauons 244 (3¢) (2099 - 2  {h - - =
Profit for the year 539 - (t6l) {0 147 2 30 567 g
Non-controling interest e DT . My 3
Earntngs 538 - {161} 10 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shares {millions) BO7 8 BO7 8
Weighted average number o
of shares (millions} for =
diluted earnings 808 @ 8089 P4
(a)
Earmings per share (basic) 66 6p N . L . olp =
Earmings per shar e {diluted) 66 5p 700p z
e e e e e e e o ————— ———  ——— = ——— — e ———————————— e e b
[
9 Dwidends o L -
All figurcs in € imilions 2014 Py
Finaf pard in respect of prior year 32 Op (2013 30 0p) 259 242
Interm paid n respect of currentyear 170p (2013 16 Op) 138 130 —
B e L et - — — — e e i s L e e mm— e aea m
397 372 Q
The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financal year ended 3t December 2014 of 34 Op per g
share which will absorb an estimated £276m of shareholders funds It will be paid on | May 2005 to shareholders 0

who are on the register of members on 7 April 2015 These financial statements do not reflect this dwidend
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Notes to the consohdated finanaal staterments continued
i0. Property, plant and equipment

As.etsin
Londard Planti-d covrreof

Al figures in € mions s gy equanent  comstreuuen Tora!
Cost
At | january 2013 352 597 I8 967
Exchange differences (3 (4 - (19)
Additions 33 58 22 13
Dhsposats {13} {78) - {91}
Acquisition through business combination - 3 - 3
Disposal through business disposat (1) (2) - 3}
Redassificauons g 13 8) -
Transfer from software - 3 - 3
Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 - 2
Transfer toassets heldforsgle - @ - ()
At 3| December 2013 375 568 n 975
Exchange differences I i7 - 28
Addioions 1o 58 9 87
Disposals () (46 (2} {57}
Acquisiion through business combrnation - 2 - 2
Disposat through business disposal - {1) - (0
Reclassifications 1 3 (4) -
Transfer to softwaee - - {tey (1)

19 1,018

At 31 December 2(2_‘[4 ) ) 388 601
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10 Property, p!am: and equipment contlnued

s a5 m
Landaw Panawd canees of

Al figuresn L rdhons b idngs N R Terat
Deptecation
At January 2013 (195) (445} - {640}
Exchange differences 3 13 - 22
Charge for the year (25) {57} (82)
Disposals 7 64 - 71
Acquisiion through busmess combination - {2) - (2
Transfer from 4ssets held for sale - {1 - {1
Transfer to assets held for sale - 5 - 5
At3l December 2013 @) @3 - (633)
Exchange differences (7) (15) - (22}
Charge for the year {23) (51 - (74
Dlsposals 9 36 - 45
Ac3l December2014 T ognny sy - (6sd)
Carryngamounts 7 o
At [ January 2013 57 152 8 327
At 3! December 2013 - {65 145 3 342
Ao Desamber 01T T T T T T g T T Ty

Deprecation expense of £16m (2013 £24m) has been included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and
£58m (2013 £57m) in operating expenses [n 2014 £nil {2013 £lm) relates to discontinued operations

The Group leases certain equipment under 3 number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of leased
plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £13m (2013 £11m)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

It intangble assets

Azqarred
e tens i oo

Al figures in £ misons Goodw'  Software relarewlps  nidbrids cgms wcqueed Tow
Cost
At 1 january 2013 5,077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences (122) {6) (25) (8) (1) (1 (184)
Addinons —internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Addiions — purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Disposals - {50) - - - - (50)
Acquisiuon through business combmnation {£33) - 190 - 3 7 67
Disposal through business disposal (6) - - - -~ 3 {7
Rectassifications - - (10} {1 - H -
Transfer to PPE - (3) - - - - (3)
Transfer to assets held for sale (150 - 2% (12) - (2) {193)
A3l Decomber2003  4e6 489 85 237 198 398 6823
Exchange differences 198 7 34 5 - i4 268
hmpairment (67) - - - - ®7N
Additions - internal development 54 - - - 54
Additons - purchased 53 - - -~ ~ 53
Disposals - (7) - - - - @
Acquisttion through business combination 238 - 5 69 - 186 498
Dhsposal through business disposal (9) {5) - (3 ) - (t4)
Transfer from PPE - 6 - - - - 16

5030 597 894 308 167 598 7624

_At 31 December 2014
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11 Intangble assets conunued L ) _ - o o
: Arquired 5
FUSLOVAE B4 Acqiwed Acquired Otrwr g
enptracis 1+ wadomars mnbng Mty bits I
All figures m £ mifons Goodva! Softws e sefanonihas  andboins mpine acqured Total :z“
Amorusation @
A January 2013 - (312) {204 (B6) (139) (172} 913
Exchange differences - 6 0 4 6 7 i3
Chiarge for the year - (59) (78} (zl) (15) {54 (227}
Dhsposals - 49 - - - - 49
Disposal through business disposal - - - - ! I 2
Transfer to assets held for sale - -3 _10_ o 2 35 ;
At 31 December 2013 - (316) (249) ' (93) (148) (216) (1,022) E
-
Exchange differences - (13) (11} (3) - (12} (39) =
Impairment - - {6) {2) - {2) {1G) E
Charge for the year - {63) (83) (25) (12} (67) (250)
Disposals - 5 - - - - 5
Disposal through business disposal - | - ! - - 2
Ac 31 December 2014 -GS 03 U @M 0319 e
Cari ying amounts g
At | January 2013 5077 154 525 172 68 22 6.218 g
At 3t Decernber 2013 4,666 153 606 144 50 182 5,801 ;
T Y e T T LT 3
At 31 December20i4 5030 211 545 186 37 30 6310 5
Goodwill
The goodwill carrying value of £5,030m relates 1o acquisitions completed after | Janvary 1998 Prior to { January [998
all goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiton For acquisinons completed between | january 1998
and 31 December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the goodwill on each acquistion =
was amortised over a peiiod of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRS on { January 2003, the Group chose not to restate Q
the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen (1 e amorusaunon ceased} If goodwilt had been restated g
then a significant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets, which would be subject to amorusation, x
[x}

and the carrying value of goodwill would be significantly lower For acquisiuons completed after | January 2003 value
has been ascribed to otherintangible assets which are amortised

Orther mtangible assets
Other intangibles acquired mdude content, technology and software rights

Intangible assets are valued separacely for each acquisiuon and the primary method of valuation used s the discounted
cash flow method The majonty of acquit ed ntangbles are amorused using an amorusation profile based on the
profected cashilows underlytag the acquistion date valuation of the ntangible asset, whudh generally results in alarger
proportion of amorusation betng recognised i the early year s of the assets' iife The Group keeps the expected
pattern of consumption under review

Amorusation of £12m (2013 £15m) 1s induded in the income statement in cost of goods sold and £238rn (2013
£210m} in operaung expenses n 2004 £nil (2013 £2m) of amortisation refates to discontinued operations
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

It Intangible assets continued

The range of usefut economic tives for each major dass of intangible asset {excluding goodwill and software)
ts shown below

Wi

Usetu! ceonarur hie

Class of intangible asset

Acquired customer hsts, contracts and relationshps 3-20 years
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20 years
Acquired publishing rghts 5-20 years
Othermuangblesacqueed o RAWres
The expected amorusation profile of acquired intangible assets is shown below
/s T o 2014
T omre Swo | Moredan
All fipures in £ mifions five years ten yoirs ten years Tol
Class of intangthle asset
Acquired customer lists, contracts and 1 elavonshups 340 148 57 545
Acquired wrademarks and brands 97 54 35 186
Acqgued publishing rights 34 3 - 37
219 n {0 301

Other intangibles acquired

Impairment tests for cash-generating umits (CGUSs) containing goodwill
Impairment tests have been carned out where appropriate as descnbed below

Followtng a reorganisation of the busmess eflective | January 2014 goodwill was allocated to CGUs. or aggregation
of CGUs where goodwill could not be reasonabiy allocated to individual business umits impairment reviews were
conducted on these CGUSs summanised below

Mifguesinemions T B 2014 00
North Amenca 3422 3,239
Core 618 624
Growth {includes China Brazil, India and South Africa) 612 447
Pearson VUE 327 306
Financial Times Group i 51 L 539“
Tow T Y

The recoverable amount of each CGU 15 based on value in use calculations Goodwill 1s tested for imparment annually
Othei than goodwill there at @ no intangible assets with indefinite ives The goodwill is gene ally dencrminaced m
the curtency of the refevant cash flows and therefore the impatrment review is not matenally sensiove to exchange

rate fluctuations
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L[ Intangible assets contnued

Impau ment tests for cash-generaung units containing goodwil conunued

Following detenoraton in the market condwons for the Group's online witoring business based in india, it was
determined  the course of the imparment review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer suppot ted the
carrying value of the goodwill in that CGU Animparrment of £67m was booked, thereby bringing the carrying value
of goodwill in the inda CGU down to £nd Anmparrment of £10m was alse booked inrespeact of other acquired
intangbles in that CGU, biinging thew carrying value to £ril The india CGU incorpor ates all the Group’s trading
operations in india A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to determine the value i use of the india CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the value in use of that CGU as the Group’s India operatons, prior to
the [ January 2014 recrgamsation were previously part of a larger Emerging Markets aggregated CGU

Key assumpuons
The value in use calculations use cash flow projecuons based on financial budgets approved by management covering

a five-year period The key assumptions used by management in the value in use calculations were

Discount rates The discount rate 1s based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a nsk prermium
to reflect the increased risk in investing in equiies The risk premium adjustment is assessed for each specific CGU
The average pre-tax discount rates range from 9 0% to 16 4% Discount rates are lower for those businesses
which operate in more mature markets with low inflation and higher for those operating in ermergtng markets

with higher inflation

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% (2013 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequent to the

appt oved budget period for CGUs operatng in mature markets This perpetuwty growth rate I1s a conservative rate
and 1s considet ed to be lower than the tong-tet rn histor 1c growth rates of the underlymg ter nitosies in which the CGU
operates and the fong-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates CGU growthrates
between 5 0% and 5 8% were used for cash flows subsequent to the approved budget period for CGUs operatung

tn emerging markets with highinflauon These growth rates are also beiow the long-term historic growth rates in

these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets for the iutal five-year penod were
as follows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sales growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for the strategic
direction and near-term investment prionittes within each CGU Key factors nclude the proporuon of revenue
expected to arise it emerging markets, the proportion of revenue expected to come from digital and services
businesses relauve to wradivonal print-based businesses and the changing product mix as a result of product
investment The five year sales for ecasts use average nominal growth rates between | 1% and 3 3% for mature
mariets and between 8 3% and |5 7% for emerging markets with high inflaton

Operaung profits Operaong profits are forecast based on tustoric experience of operatng margins adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving imtatives  including the impact of the global restructuring
programme undertaken in 2013 and 2014

Cash conversion Cash conversion is the ratio of operaung cashflow to operating profit Management fot ecast cash
conversion rates based on histonc expenence, adjusted for the umpact of product mvestment priories and the shuft

to digital and ser vice based business

Sensiuvitzes
The Group’s imparment review 1S sensitive to a change in assurmptions used, most notably the discount rates and the

perpetuity growth rates Based on the Group s sensitivity analysis a reasonably possible incarease of 0 8% pts in the
discount rate or a decrease of | 0% ptin the perpetuity growth rate could cause anmpairment mn respect of Brazd
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

[2. fryvestments n Joint ventures and assocates

The amounts recogrised in the balance sheet ar e as follows

All Gigutes m £ milt ons 24 ek
Assoctates i, 10% 1,089
loint ventures ] 3
Total L8 1,092
The amounts recognised in the iIncome statement are as {ollows
Alfguresmimbons T T o ) 2014 1003
Assoniates 54 56
Jjomnt ventures {3) {2)
Total 5t 54
Investment in associates
The Group has the following material associates
T T o - - e l’rmc;;.;‘;l.-;;— Qwnersiip N:uxm-;-“l"'t::;l;l;;:;“
ofbu ness interest relstionship methed
Pengun Random House Led Ui/ Global 47% Note | Equity”
Pengun Random House LLC Us 47% Note { Equiy™
The Economist Newspaper Ltd UK 50% Naote 2 Equiy*

MNone of the associates has a quoted market price

Note | -- On ! july 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completion of an agreement between

Pear son and Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade publishing companies, Pengun and Random House, with
the parent compantes owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respectively The shareholder agreement
mdudes protection rights for Pear son as the minonity shareholder including rights to dwidends Management considers
awnership percentage, board composition and the additonal protective nghts, and exercises judgement to determine
that Pearson has significant influence over Penguin Random House and Bertefsmann has the power to direct the
relevant actvities and therefore control

Note 2 - The Group has a 50% mterest in The Econormust Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world s feading
weekly business and current affairs magazines The Econonwist has a umique structure of ‘A", “B” and Trustee shares,
which was established to ensure its ndependence from proprietoral control Pearson, as holder of the "B shares,
has never controlled the Economist by virtue of its shareholding or influence, and management assesses that it has
sigruficant mfluence over the company -
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{2 Investments in jomt ventures and associates continued

{nvestment in associates continued
The summarised finanaa) mformatton of the material associates ts detaled below

014 043 im,tated

T eemen  eaww
Al figure. in £ millions RondomHouse  Ecenomust  Randosm Houwr Leansnst
Assets
Current assets 1,355 110 1.210 103
Nan-cuirent assets 1,429 166 1.382 163
Liabiliwes
Current habiliues (.43 (190 {905) (190)
Non current habilives (424) (86) {455) (60)
Narss e T i
S Y TR~ I
Profitfrom continuing operations 74 42 66 52
Orther comprehensive {expense)/income (11 (20 (34 9
Tock camprebma e w T u T m d
Dwidends received from associate 95 21 43 2

The mformation above reflects the amounts presented in the financial staterments of the associates, adjusted for far
value and similar adjustments The tax on Penguin Random House LL.C 1s settled by the partners Forthe purposes
of clear and consistent presentation, the tax has been shown m the associate ine items 1n the consclidated ncome
statement and consolidated balance sheet, recor ding the Group’s share of profit after tax consistently for the Penguin

v

Random House assocates
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments continued

12 Investments In joint ventures and assoctates continued

investment in associates continued
A reconahation of the summarised financal informauen to the carrying value of the material associates

1s shown below

1014 20 Stk

e
Afl igures n4 mtions RandomHouse  Ecopomitt  Pudambouse  Feanomsr
Opentng net assets 1,232 i6 - -
Exchange differences 52 - (68) -
Profit for the period 74 42 66 52
Other comprehensive (expense}/income {1y {20) (34) g

Dwidends, net of tax paid {100} (42) (91} (41)
Addiions - - 1359 -
Distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - 4 - -

_P\_gveffa[ of distribution from associte in excess of car ying value - - - 4
Closmgmeamsets IO T e T T e
Share of net assets 586 - 579 8
Goodwl! 50% - 491 -
Cart ying val cate N T T s T - Tiom 8

Cart ying value of associate

{1 2013 the Group determined the farr value of the Penguin Random House venture {or the purposes of accounting

for the transaction A valuation of the Penguin Random House ventures was determined during the negotiation of

the transacuon between Berdesmann and Pearson This valuation of the business was calculated using the income
approach, discounting future cash flows to the present value Cash flow projections were pt epared for both businesses
by country taking into account the front and backlist trends and extrapolated using long term growth rate assumptions
The cash flows were discounted using discount rates with nisk premiums spectfic to each geographic region A discount
to the Group's share of the total value to reflect the Group's non-controfling minority ownership was applied

The Group finalised its acquisiion accounting for Penguin Random House in 2014 and an adjustment to the opening
position with respect to deferred tax and goodwill was made The overall cart ying value of the associate in 2013
was unchanged however the additions and goodwill bafances i the table above have been restated to reflect the

final accounting

Information on other tndividually immatertal associates 1s detailed below

2014 RS

Adl figures in £ midlions

Loss from continuing operations (2) N

Other comp ehensive vicon e - -

Total comprehensive expense {2) (4}
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i2 lovestments in joint ventures and associates continued

Transactions with material associates
The Group has foans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured ¢nd interest s calculated based on market rates

The amount outstanding 2t 31 Decernber 20§14 was £54m (2013 £44m) Theloans are pt owded under a working
capal facility and flucwuate during the year The loan outstanding at 3t December 2014 was repaid inits entirety 1n
January 2015

The Group also has a current asset recewable of £4tm (203 £27m) from Penguin Random House arising fromthe
provision of services Included i other income (note 4) 1s £41m (2013 £28m) of service fees

ipvestment in joint ventures
Informauon on jont ventures all of which are indwidually immateral, ts detaded betow

AlfigresnConbons 2014 pITE!
L.oss fom continuing opet ations 3 (2)
Other comprehensive income o o - -
Towcomprehenseespense . ® @
13 Deferredncome tax e e
All figuresin £ mikons 2014 2083
Beferred income tax assets 295 250
Deferred ncome tax habiliues ) 714y (612)
Netdeferredncome tax @ @en

Substanually alt of the deferred tncome tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and habiliues may be offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to offset current
mcome tax assets aganst currentincome tax habiiies and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority At 31 December 2014 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of £4m (2013 £4m)in
respect of UK fosses, £14m (2013 £ilm}in respect of US losses ang approximately £44m (2013 £36m)in respect of
losses i other territories MNone of the unrecognised UK losses have expiry dates associated with themy The USlosses
refate to state taxes and therefore have expiry pertods of between five and 20 years

The recognition of the deferred income tax assets is supported by management's forecasts of the future profitability
of the relevant business untts

The movement en the net deferred income tax account s as follows

Allfigares n € milions Motes 2014 2013
At beginrung of year (362) (372}
Exchange differences (22) 9
tncorme statement benefi ; to 47
Acquisiton through business combmauon 1) - (37}
Disposal through business disposal 1 (1) -
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity (18) {35)
Tramsfer to/from current tax (26} 25
Transfer to assets held for sale - !
endoyer T T s o)

Atend of year o B

{ncluded in the ncame statement above for 201415 a £nil charge {2013 £2m charge) relating to discontinued
operations
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements continued

I3 Deferred income tax continued

The moverment in defer red ricome ax assets and habiues during the year is as follows

nasm e e

Al fyrurcs i € m oo Wosses providons ool i e Torat
Deferrad income tax assets
At | fanuary 2013 8 45 47 (9 229
Exchange differences - H () {4) (&)
Acquisiman through business combination 24 - - - 21
income statement (charge)/benefit (24) (5) 25 22 ig
Tax charge to other comprehensive iIncome or equity - - (36) - {36)
Transfer to current tax - - - 25 25
Teansfer from assets held for sate - - 7 {7 -
Translertoassetsheldforsale - - W
At 31 December 2013 ) ) N 39 4 154 250
Exchange differ ences 1 2 4 5 12
Acquisiuen through busness combmnation 2 - - - 2
income statement benefit 10 3 7 35 55
Tax benefit/{charge) to other comp! ehensive INCome
of equity - - to {7) 3
Transfer to current tax - - - {26) (26}
Disposal through business disposal T O ) |
AC3| December 2014 T o8 44 ez {6l 295
Other deferred income tax assets nclude temporary differences on share-based payments, inventory and other
provisions

o ot T Gandsitard -
Adl figuras £ m hons Litangihlas Qe Toal
Deferred income tax habilities
Ax { January 2003 (475) {126) (601}
Exchange differ ences t3 2 i5
Acquisition through business combination {61) 3 (58)
Income statement {charge)/benefit (61} 90 29
Tax benefit to other comprehensive Income or equity - ! i
Transfes 1o assets held for sale L _ ) - 2 2
A 31 December 2013 S T (584) 28  (612)
Exchange differences {30 ) (39
Acquisiton through business combmatian 4] . (2}
fncome statement benelit/(charge) t8 (63) (45)
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or aqnty (20 20)
At 31 December 2014 (98 (le)  (14)

Other deferred ncome tax kabilities inciude temporary differences i respect of depreaation and royalty advances
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{4 Classification of financial mstruments

159

The accounnng classification of each class of the Group’s financial assets and financial habilives, together with their

carrymg values and market values, 15 as follows

2014
T T T T T e amertssdeoss
T Gematwes Derewuves T Toul
Avatabs diemedheld o bedging Othet  Loansand  Other  vwrymg  enarkeet
Alt figures in £ millions Nowes  forsle  forwading réatonships  hablhues  recowables  lobhues  vlw  value
tnvestments in isted securities 15 9 - - - - - S g
Investments in unlisted securites 15 45 - - - - - 45 45
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 530 - 530 530
Marlketable securities {6 - - - - - 6 16
Dervauve financial instruments M - 6 108 - - - 14 {4
Trade recewvables n - - - - 989 - 99 289
Toualfinancialasses 70 6 108 — 159 - 1703 1703
Denvave financial mstruments - (33 @) - - (74 (74)
Trade payables H - - - - - (329) (329} (329
Bank loans and overdrafts 18 - - - - - (42) (42} (42)
Borrowings due within one year t - - - (305) (305} (319)
Borrowings due after more than
oneyear . % T s ALBT8) (1878 (1888)

Total financial hatihoies

- ey @y

- - (2554 (2678) (2652
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

14 Classification of financial instruments continued

2013

Yt
Drewstwre Dlererawes Toral Feaat
Aszanbre  due medhdd tnhdp og {he L parsand Oither cariyng [RYILTS

AL figuret oL o Notrr LTI fowadng  rUmnnshor talhtey,  rerewables RUSTELY valn value

Investments in unkisted securiues

— CONGMUING OPerauons 13 94 - - - - - 94 94

Cash and cash equivalents —

£OMNUNUING operanons 07 - - -~ - 729 - 729 729

Cash and cash equivalents

classified within assets held

for sale 2 - - - - 36 - 36 36

Marlketable securities 6 - - - - - ) 6

Dertvauve financal mstruments 1% - 4 120 - - - 24 124

Trade recewvables — conunuing

operauons n - - - - 882 - 882 882

Trade receivables dassified

withnassessheldforsale - oo -ooc B BB

Towlfancalassets 100 4 10 -0 1672~ 18% 18%

Derwanve financial nstrurnents o - “(i g)_ o (325— - S (;8) (4@)

Trade payables - continuing

operations M - - - - - (3ley (3t8) (3le)

Trade payables dassified wathin

liabiives held for sate - - - - - {h h H

Bani loans and overdrafts -

continuing operatons 12 - - - - - (47} {47) (47)

Borrowings due within one year 18 -~ = - - - {508) (508) (504

Borrowings due after more than

oneyear .8 - il .otz drern (1683)

Total financial kabiiuies S ) SN ) E . {2543) (2.37)) (2.609)

Certain of the Group's derwauve financial instruments ar e classified as hetd for trading either as they do not meet the
hedge accounung critena specfied in 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogniion and Measurement’ or as the Group
has chosen not to seek hedge accounting for these nstruments None of these derivatives are held for specuative
trading purposes Transactions in denvative financial instruments are only undertalken to manage rislcs ansing from
undet lying business activity, in accordance with the Group's treasury policy as described in note 19

The Group designates certain qualifying dervative financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds
fair value hedges) Changes in the far value of these denvanve financial instruments are recorded in the iIncome
statement, together wath any change i the fair value of the hedged habihity atmbutable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates certamn of its borr owings and dervauve financial nstrurments as hedges of itsivestments
m foreign operations (net investenent hedges) Movements in the farr value of thase financral instruments (to the extent
they are effective) are recognised in other comprehensive mcome

None of the Group's financial assets or habiliwes are designated at fair value through the income statement upon
il recognition

More detall on the Group's accounung for finanaal nstruments is ncluded in the Group's accounting policies
The Group s approach to managing rislks n relacon to financial mstruments s deseribed mnote (9
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|5 Odher financial assets

014 W

Alf figures o £ mult ons
At beginning of year 94 3t
Cxchange differences & -
Acquisiton of nvestments 12 63
Disposal of nvestments (8 -
e T o B D 54 o 9;

At end of year

Orther financial assets comprise fisted securies of £9m (2043 £rit) and unlisted securiiies of £45m (2013 £94m)

[6 Derivauve finangial nstruments

The Group's approach to the management of financitl risks is setoutnote |9 The Group's cutstanding dervauve
financial instruments are as follows

2014 ) L
Gross notionnl G ous novond

All figures in £ milltons mounts Agsecs Uabdities OIS Ag.el L neg
Interest rate dervatives ~
in a fair value hedge refationship t 607 84 (5) 1,439 8l (32)
Interest rate derivatives - notin
a hedge relauonship 673 - N 634 4 {i6)
Cross curtency rate derivatrves -
i a hedge relatronstup 889 24 (36) 220 39 -
Cross-currency rate derwvatves -
notina j}_&t_jg_e refatronship. 451 6 (26) - - -
Total 3620 {14 {74} 2,293 124 (48)
Analysed as expiring
In fess than one year 200 24 () 312 i3 -
Later than one year and not later
than five years }.386 a7 {8) 1377 P -
Later than five years 2,034 23 (65) 604 - {48}

Total 360 4 (7 2293 124 (48
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements continued

16 Derwvatve financal instruments conttnued

The carrying value of the above dervaunve financal nstruments equals their far vatue Fair vatues are determined
loy using market data and the use of established esumaton techmiques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuauen models

At the end of 2014, the currency spht of the mark-to-market values of rate dervauves, including the exchange of
principal on cross currency rate dertvatives, was US doltar £(607)m, sterbing £214m, eurc £430m, Brazihan reaf £4m
and South African rand £nd (2013 US doltar £(154)m, sterling £243m, euro £ni, Brazilian real £l and South African
rand £{16)m)

The fixed mterest r ates on outstanding rate derivative contracts at the end of 2014 range from [ 107 to {4 48%
(2043 1 10% to 9 28%) and the floaung rates ar e based on LIBOR in US dollar, euro and sterling

The Group's portiolio of rate denvauves is diversified by maturity, countel party and type Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfolio and the designation of certain derivatives as hedges significantly reduce the risk

of ncome statement volanlity The senaitvity of the portfolio to changes in marlet rates s set outin note 9
Dervative financial assets and habdities subject to offsetung arrangements are as follows

2614 203
Gross Gross  Ner derwative G ose Gross  Nartdeoy inve
der vanive derivanive assels/ derwal.\'e o rvative aveets/
Adl figines m £ mehons assets hibibizies lisbiitigs. 24,5815 flavAiue: ib'res
Counterparties in an asset position 94 (28) 66 (22 (12 {0
Counterparnes in a iabihity posiion 20 (46} (26} 2 {36} (34)
Total as presented in the balance sheet 114 74) 40 {24 (48) 76

Ali of the Group's derivauve financial instruments are subject to enforceable netung arrangements with individual
counterpartics, allowing not settlement i the event of default of either party Offset arrangements in respect of cash

balances are shown i note 17

Counterparty exposure from all derivatives 1s managed, together with that from deposits and bank account balances.
within credst imits that reflect published credit ratings and by reference to other market measures (e g marlet prices
for credit default swaps) to ensure that there 1s no significant nisk to any one counterparty No single denvative
transaction had a market vafue (positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% of the Gioup's
consohidated total equity

in accordance with IAS 39 *Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement the Group has reviewed all of 1ts

materal contracts for embedded dervatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certam requirements, and has concluded that there are no matenial embedded derivatves
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{7 Cash and cash equwalents (excludmg over: drafts)

Allfigarerin Crobans 2014 013
Cash at bank and in hand 483 521
Shor t-term bank deposn:s s 208
éontmumg aperations S 530 729
Cash at bank and in hand dlassified wmhm assets held for sale = 36
T T e e 530 - 765

Shortterm bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short term deposit rates

At the end of 2014 the currency sphit of cash and cash equivalents was US doilar 18% (2043 28%), sterhing 13%
(2013 18%), euro 3% (2013 5%}, renminbi 28% (2013 27%) and other 38% {2013 22%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to therr carrying value due to their short-term nature
Cash and cash cquivalents include the folfowing for the purpose of the cash flow statement

All figures in £ mlhions 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents - contimuing operations 530 729
Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale - 36
Bank over dl afts - CONUNUING Operatons ({9) (25)
o ) T T o e st 740

The Group has the following casin pooling arrangements in US doliars, sterling and euro, where both the company
and the bank have a legal right of offset

1044 2013
i Ofsex Olizer Met wflset (Hlser Ciliset Wetuflser
All figures it £ eilhions assetr fabilicy asset/uzbuity 45542 b iy e/ Wity
US doflars 267 (266} I 298 (299) 0
Sterling 430 (427) 3 1018 (1.027) ()
Eure 9 B { 6 (5} |
Total for contmuang operations as
presented in the balance sheet 5 ) )

Atthe end of 2013, the Group had offset US doliar, sterling and euro asset balances of £im £16m and £nii respectively
in respect of disconunued operanions

Offset arrangements in respect of derivatives are shown in note 16
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

18 Finanaal habiities - borrowings

The Groups curt ent and non-current bor owings are as follows

Al figures w  miivons 2014 w13
Non-current
& 0% Sterling bonds 2015 (narmunal amount £300m) - 299
4 0% US doltar notes 2016 (nominal amount $350m) 231 221
6 25% Global dollar bonds 20(8 (nominal amount $550m} 390 375
4 625% US doflar notes 2018 (harminal amount $300m) 210 202
| 875% Eurc notes 2021 (nominal amount £500m) 408 -
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 (nominal amount $500m) 319 283
3 25% S dollar notes 2023 {nominal amount $500m) 315 286
Banic {oans and overdrafts 5 22
Fmance lease liabilites 5 5
- T T e 1693
—(—Zurrent" ) T T ) ) I
Due within one year or on-demand
5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 (nominal amount $400m) - 248
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 (nommal amount £250rm) - 254
6 0% Sterling bonds 2045 {nominal amaunt £300m) 300 -
Bankloans and overdrafts 37 25
Finance lease habilizres ] )
Total borrowings B T s e

Total borrowings

included in the non-current borrowings above 1s £13m of accrued interest (2013 £9m) {ncluded in the current
borrowings above is £1m of accrued mnterest (2013 £4m)

The matunity of the Group’s non-current borrowing is as follows

Al figures m £ m lions 2014 00
Between one and two years 239 303
Between two and five years 602 821

1,042 569

Over five years




18 Financial liabilities — bor rowings contnued
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The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows

014 2013
T eame | Cwrpnp | Mabe Canpoe Marie,
Altfigurestn £ hons \ntarest race value Aafur valye Ve
Bank icans and overdrafts n/a 42 42 47 47
5 7% US doliar bonds 2014 588% - - 248 246
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 720% - - 254 262
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 627% 300 314 299 325
4 0% 1S dollar notes 2016 426% 231 233 221 223
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 6 46% 390 397 375 376
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 4 69% 210 205 202 195
{ 875% Euro notes 2021 204% 408 407 - -
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 394% 39 327 283 286
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 336% 315 314 286 273
Finance lease habilines n/a {0 i0 K t i
D S T e

The market values stated above are based on dean market prices at the year end ot where these are not. avallable,
on the quoted market prices of comparable debt 1ssued by other companies The effective interest rates above refate

10 the undet lying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denomunated m the following currencles

All Rgures s £ miflons 2014 20t
Us dolilar 1491 f.645
Sterling 303 559
Euro 408 -
Orther 23 22

e

SSINISAE 4NO |

JONVHYE0O443d ¥NO i
1

II¥dEN TYID08 ¥No %
|

1NVNYIAOD |

hial
=
hid
Zz
n
b
-
-
-
>
-
m
2
m
F4
~
v

i




166 Pearson plc & inuaty epot tand accown 1, 2000

Notes to the consolidated financial staterments continued

{8 Financial labihues - borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capaaty on its committed borrowing facthues as ac 31 December

2014 Ik

Al figurcs in £ milions
Hoatngrate

- expiring within one year - -
— expiring beyond one year 1122 {057
E e AT 2

in addition 1o the above facihues, there are a number of short-term facihittes that a1 e utlised in the normal course
of business

All of the Group's borrowings are unsecured [niespect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default

The matunity of the Group's finance lease cbligations s as follows

Allfiguesm ¢ mlhons 2014 2013

finance lease habilities — minimum lease payments
Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than two years :
Later than two years and not later than three years
Later than three years and notlater than four years
Later than four years and not later than five years
Later than five years

Future finance charges on finance leases

—m oo m e o e -

Present value of finance lease frabilities

The present value of finance lease hiabilities 15 as follows

All figures in £ milllons

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than five years

T 10 ¥

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate thewr fair value
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19 Fimancial nsk management

The Group s approach to the management of finanaial nisks together with sensitivity anafyses of its financal
ISt uMments s set out below

Treasw y policy
The Group holds financiah nstruments for two principal purposes te finance its operations and to manage the interest

rate and currency risks arising ft om its operations and wts sources of finance The Group finances its oparauons by a
muxture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper markets, and
longer-tet mioans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principally in US dollars. euros and steriing,

at both fleating and fixed rates of nterest, using dertvauve finandial instruments (*derivatives’), where appropriate,

ta generate the desn ed currency profile and interest rate basis The derivauves used for this purpose are principally
rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts The main risks arising
from the Group's financral instruments are interest rate nsk, iquidity and refinanaing risk, counterparty risk and forewgn
currency risk These 11sks are managed by the chief financial officer under policies approved by the boar d, which are
summarised in this Note All the wreasury polictes rematned unchanged throughout the year, except for revisions to

the Group's bank counterparty risk imits and a clanfication of the Group's intention to mantain 1ts credit ratings as

outhned below

The audit commuttee receves regular reports on the Group's treasury activities, pohcies and procedures
The treasury department is not a profit centre and its activities are subject to regular internal audit

Liquidity and refinancing risk management
The Group's objective 1s to secure contnuity of funding at a reasenable cost To do this it seeks to arrange cormmitted

funding for a variety of matunities from a diver sity of sources The Group's pohicy objective 1s to maintain the weighted
average maturity of its core gross borrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final maturity of the faciives
avallable o refinance them) to be between three and ten years At the end of 2014 the average maturity of gross
borrowings was 4 7 years (2013 4 2 years) of which bonds represented 97% (2012 97%) ofthese borrowings

The Group believes that ready access 1o different funding markets also helps to reduce its iquidity risk, and that
pubhshed credit raungs and published financal policies improve such access The long-term ratings are Baal from
iMoody's and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term ratings are P2 and A2 respecuvely All of the Group’s
creditraungs remaned unchanged during the year, although in January 2014, Moody's changed the outlook on therr
short-term and long-term raungs from *Stable’ to ‘Negative’ The Group's policy 15 to strive to maintain a rating of
Baal/BBB+ over the fong term The Group also uses a range of ratos to monitor and manage s finances internally
These include interest cover, net debt to operaung profit and cash flow to debt measures The Group alse mamtams
undrawn committed borrowing faciliues Az the end of 2014 the commutted facilives amounted to $1 750m (£1,122m)

and their weighted average maturity was 4 6 years

Interest rate risk management
The Group's exposure to wterest rate fluctuations on s borrowings 1s managed by borrowing on a fixed rate basis

and by entering into rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group also aims to avoid undue
exposure to a single interest rate setting Reflecting this objective, the Group has predominanty swapped its fixed rate
bondssues to floaung rate at their launch This creates a group of denvatives, under winch the Group 1s a teceiver of

fixed rates and a payer of floaung rates

The Group's policy objective has connnued to be to set a target proportion of its forecast borrowings (talken at the
year end, with cash netted aganst loating rate debt and before certain adjustments for [AS 39) to be hedged {1 e {ixed
or capped at the year end) over the next {our years, subject to a maxwmum of 65% and a mimmum that starts at 40%
and fafls by (0% ateach year end At the end of 2014 the fixed to floating hedging rato, on the above bass, was
approximately 38% 62% Steps will be taken in early 2015 to bring die Gi oup backinto comphance with thus policy
objecuve A stmuttanecus (95 change on [ January 2(H 5 i the Group's vanable interest rates n US doflar and sterfing,
takung mnto account forecast seasonal debt, would have an £1im effect on profit before tax
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements conunued

19 Financial nsk management continued

Interest rate risk management contnued

The policy described above creates a further group of dervatives under which the Group s a payer of fixed rates
and a recaver of floatng rates The Group s accounting objective in refation to its use of inter est rate dervauves is

to mininmise the trapact on the Income statement of changes  the mark-o-market value of its derivative portfolo

as a whole ltuses duration calculations to estimate the sensiuvity of the derivatuves to movements i market rates
The Group also identifies which der vauves ar e ehgible for fan value hedge accounung (which t educes the income
statement impact of changes in the market value of a dervative) The Group then batances the total portiolio
between hedge-accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected mavement on the pooted segment is runimal

Financial counterparty risk management
Counterparty credithimits, which take published credit1 aung and other factors nto account, are set to cover the

Group's totat aggregate exposure to a single financial insutution The limits applicable to published creditraungs bands
are approved by the chief financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposuresand hmits applicable to
each financial mstitution are reviewed on a regular basis

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group 1s based in the UK it has its most significant investment In overseas operations The most
significant currency for the Group 1s the US dollar The Group's policy on routne transactional conversions between
currences (for example, the collection of recevables, and the settiement of payables or interest) rematns that these
should be transacted at the relevant spat exchange rate The majority of the Group's operations ai e domestic wathin
their country of operation No unremitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts, as the company judges
It tnappropriate to hedge non cash flow transiational exposure with cash flow instruments However the Group does
seek to credte a natural hedge of this exposure through its pohicy of ahigning approximately the currency compostuon
of 1ts core net borrowings (after the mpact of crass-currency rate dervatives) with its forecast operating profit
before depreciauon and amorusauon This policy aims to soften the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on
consolidated terest cover and earnings The policy above applies only to cur rencies that account for more than 15%
of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortsation, which currently 1s only the US dollar The Group still
borrows small amounts in other currencies. typically for seasonal working capital needs The Group policy does not
require exisung currency debt to be terminated to match declines in that currency’s share of Group operating profit
before depreciation and amorusation fn addion, currencies that account for less than 15% of Group operating
profit before depreciation and amortisation can be included in the above hedging process at the request of the

chief financal officer

tncluded within year end net debt, the net bor rowings/(cash} n the hedging currencies above (taking into account
the eflect of eross-curt ency swaps) were US doilar £2,005m and stering £36m

tUse of currency debt and currency derwvatives
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and dervauve insbruments to implement the above policy

its ntention ts that gains/losses on the derivatves and debt offset the losses/gains on the for eign currency assets
and income Each quarter the value of hedging instruments 1s monitored against the assets in the relevant currency
and, whet ¢ practical, a decision 1s made whether to treat the debt or dervative as a netinvestment hedge
(permitung foreign exchange movements on ik to be talen to veserves) for the purposes of [AS 39
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19 Fimancial risk management continued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of derivatives
The following tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the impact of denvauves on the Group's

debt instruments

The Group s net debt posiion is set out below

014 2013

Altgaesn Embtons
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729
Marketable securines 6 6
Dervative financial snstruments 40 76
Bank Ioans, overdrafts and foan notes {42) (47)
Bonds (2,173) {2 168)
Finance {ease habthiues {10 (e
Contmumgoperatons (83 (145
- 36

Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held for sale
Net debt

The split of net debt between fixed and floating 1 ate, stated after the impact of rate derivatives, 1s as follows

(L639) (1379

AlifignesinEntions 2014 2013
Fixed rate 597 6(2
Floating rate 1,042 767
L - 7.1

Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate dervatves, analysed by currency are as follows

014 0H2

Allfigures i £ milions
US doflar 2.099 i 849
Sterfing i04 339
Other 22 38
To s e

As at 3] Decernber 2014 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes when the borrowings
re-pnice 15 as follows

Less than One o More clan
Al figures.n £ nulouy one yeur five years fivcyears Total
Re priang profile of borrowings 342 842 £.044 2225
Cffect of 1 ate denvanves 1,254 {225) {1.029) -
ol T T T T Thses ei7 42 21235

Total
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

19 Financial risk management continued

The maturity of conti acted cash flows associated with the Group's financial habifiuwes ar e as follows

2084
Al figuresn £ milions T T Twe e ome Tenl
Mot later than one year 398 160 99 657
Later than one year and not later than five years 877 - - 877
Later than five years 1,126 - - Li26
Towt | TTTTTT T o400 a0 99 2660
Analysedas T TTvn ormmmmommmmmmmmmmmm T
Bonds 1,711 318 439 2,468
Rate dervauves —inflows {379) {656) (537) (1,572)
Rate derivatives -- outflows 893 444 98 1,435
Trade payables 176 54 9% 329
Toal T SO Y TR N Y
T T T T T T T T T e e e T
AT e { mihons v e omer | o
MNot{ater than one year 434 3i6 113 B63
Later than one year and not later than five years i.000 106 - {106
Lates than five years 648 = - ]
Total TTTTTT T T T g0 4 (13 2617
Amabsedas T T
Bonds 1918 604 - 2522
Rate dervatives —inflows {350) (248) - {598
Rate dervatives - cutflows 359 | 16 37
Trade payables £55 65 97 317
e > S S T S 177

Alf cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floaung rate are
calculated using Interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this is not possibie, floaung t ates ar e based
on interest rates prevailing at 31 December in the refevant year All derivauve amounts are shown gross although the
Group netsettles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credt faclitres and commeraral paper are assumed to matdre at the matunity date
of the relevant faahty with interest calcufated as payable in each catendar year up to and incduding the date of maturity

of the facdiry
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19 Financial risk management continued

Financal mstruments ~ fair value measurement
The following table provides an analysis of those financial instruments that are measured subsequently o imtial
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels [ 10 3, based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Level | fait value measurements are those derved from unadjusted quoted prices in active marleets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 {air value measurements are those derwved fram inputs, other than quoted prices included within level |,
that are observable for the asset or hability erther directly (as prices) or indirectly (dered from prices), and

Level 3 fanr value measurements are those det ived from valuation techniques thatinctude inputs for the asset or Irabiity
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

... 2013
Al figures in £ mithons leve'}  Levell  Leveld Tora! Lwe | lesdd2  Lewels Toun
Financial assets at fair value
Dervauve financial assets - 14 - {14 - 124 - 124
Marketable securities - té - {6 - 6 - 6
Avartlable for sale financral assets
Investments m listed securtties - 9 - 9 - - - -
{nvestments in unhsted securies - 45 45 - 94 24
Financial habilities at fair valuc
Derivauve financial liabiliues - (74 - {74 - (48) - {48)
Tow T TTTTTTT TTITTTUTT e a5 u0 < & % 176

The followng table anafyses the moverments inlevel 3 fair value measurements

2014 2013
Thwismens | Omer | twomwers | Oter
w tinhseed financal I tisted financa
All figures in £ mithoms SECUTITIOS habitrtiey Lcurnines fabhtes
At beginmng of year 94 - 3t (68)
Exchange differences - - 9
Additions 3 - 63 -
Fair value movements - - - {8)
Disposals L (58} - - 67
At end of year 45 - 94 -

The faer value of the wvesaments in unlisted secunties s deten mined by reference to the finanaal performance of the
underlyng asset and amounts realised on the sale of similar assets
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Notes to the cansohidated financial statements continued

19 Financial sk management continued

Financial instruments - sensiuvity analysis
As at 31 December 2014 the sensiivity of the carrying value of the Group’s finanaal instruments to fluctuations
th interest rates and exchange rates is as follows

fmpactof (€ Impaccof 1%  Impaccaf 0%  Impaccof 10%
Carrying nereatein decrensen srengthemng wienkenng in
Al figures m € mil ons valuo  mterustrates  ngeiest1ares n steriing sterling
thvestments in hsted securitres 9 - - () |
Investments in unhsted securities 45 - - (4 5
Cash and cash equivalents 530 - - {67) 82
Marletable secunties {6 - - - -
Derwative financial nstruments 40 {66) 85 le (19)
Bonds (2,173) 71 (84) {70) 208
Other borrowings (52) - - 6 N
Other net financial assets 60 - - (33 64
Total financaal mstrumencs  (925) 5 LN 3134

The table shows the sensitvities of the fau values of each class of financial instruments to an isolated change In
enher mterest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets’ comprises trade assets less
trade habibties

The sensitvities of denivative instruments are calculated using established esumation techiiques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models Where modelling an inter est rate decrease of t% led to negatve interest rates,
these points on the yield curve were adjusted to 0% A large proportion of the movements shown above would impact
equaty rather than the income statement, due to the focauon and functional currency of the entities in which they arse
and the avarlability of netinvestment hedge treatment The changes in valuauons are estimates of the mpact of changes
in market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses
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20 intangble assets ~ Py e-publicanion

i 2014 1613

All ligures o { mi ong

Cost

At beginrung of year 1933 |.876
Exchange differences 80 {46}
Additions 358 364
Disposal through business disposal - 29
Disposals (234} {234)
Acqusition through business combmanaon 1 pa
J e T R )
Amorusation I _ T
At beginning of year (1.218) (1210
Exchange differences (60} 46
Charge for the year (292; (308}
Disposal thr ough business disposal - 23
Disposals 234 234
Acquisitton through business combmation - {1)
Transfer to recevables o o e -
e = L

Carrying amounts

820 717

At end of year

Included in the above are pre-publicaton assets amounung to £546m {2013 £480m) which will be reahsed in more
than one year

Amorusaton ts included in the income statement i cost of goods sald The was no amortsation within discontinued
operatons in either year

21 lnventones

All figwes In £ m lsons 1014 2013
Raw materals 9 15
Work i progress 10 3
Fimshed goods 205 {96
T T T 4

The cost of mventones relating to conunuing oper ations recognised as an expense and widuded i themcome
scatement in cost of goods soid amounted ta £287m (2043 £472m} (n 2004 £38m (2013 £53m) of nventory
provisions was charged in the nicome statement None of the inventory 1s pledged as secunity
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

22 Trade and other reclalvables

AN igwievi £ m rans 2014 203
Current

Trade recevables 963 863
Raoyalty advances 18 23
Prepayments and accrued income 107 04
Other recevables B i 222 186
T T T s e T T T T e
No;:urr;;t_ T oo T oTm o e e T
Trade recewvables 26 9
Royalty advances 8 8
Prepayments and accrued income 30 33
Other recevables . 8 10
Y- S

Trado recevables are stated at fair value, net of provisions for bad and doubtiul debts and anucipated future sales
returns The movements on the provision for bad and doubtful debts are as follows

Al figures (0 £ m.X ons 1014 2003
At beginning of year (58) (55)
txchange differences - 5
income statement movements {21) 27
Unlised 7 I8
Acquisiton through busmess combnation (1} -
Transfer to assets classified as heid for sale - f

Acendofyear 68)

)

Concentratons of credit msk with respect Lo trade 1 ecevables are imited due to the Group s large number of customers
who are internauonally dispersed
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22 Trade and other 1ecevables continued
The ageing of the Group's trade recewables is as follows

Al fig es1n £ miions 2014 1013
Within due date 869 783
Up to three months past due date 203 194
Three to six months past due date 40 36
S1x to nine months past due date i5 22
Nine 1o 12 months past due date {5 9
More than 12 months past due date A
:I"ota! tTa-d—;>;éCEIVBbIES o T —‘—-i—.-l.g_B - | .045
Less prowision for sales returns (164} _ {163)
Nettraderecewables T Togy  gg

Net trade receivables

The Group reviews its bad debt provision at least twice a year following a detailed review of recevable balances and
tustor ic payment profiles Management believe all the remaiming recervable balances are fully recoverable

23 Prowisions for other habifittes and charges

) Deferre d D spasals Lepa!

Allfigures n £ mlions consrde-aton Prope: ty angelostres nd vtner Ters
Al January 2014 58 i1 &7 53 189
Exchange differences 4 - - | 5

Charged 1o income statement - f - {0 H
Released to ncome statement - ) {43) 4) (48)
Acquisttion through business combination - - - i4 14
Ublsed ST SN ) N . SNSRI o SO U/ N .
A3iDecember20t4 0§ 7 0 Sl 1%

Analysis of provisions

T - T T T T T T T T T T ou
" Deferred o "Bsposils et

Alf figures in £ milfons consideration Property and closures and ather Totai
Current 7 4 0 22 53
MNon-current 50 3 - 2 82
- 20 S TR )
2014

Current 5 (o 67 30 112
Nomeurrent o e BT
- 58 1 67 53 189

Defer 1 ed considet ation primanty relates to the formauon of a ventut e in 2 North Amenca business tn 204§

Disposals and closures include habilittes refated 1o the disposal of Penguin {n 2013 a prowviston waas established fon
amounts payable to Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of Penguin's UK past service penston habilives to the
new Penguin Random House venture Duning 2014 it was decded that tws wansfer would not go ahead as planned and

therefore the provision has been refeased

Legal and other inciudes legal claims, contract disputes and potenual contract losses
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

24 Trade and other habilimies

Al fipures n € mirons 2014 2082
Tr ade payables 329 3té
Social securiy and other taxes 24 23
Accruals 501 478
Deferied mcome 801 698
Interest payable 28 22
Othet fiabillites 23! 225
5 -1} DR K7
Less non-current portion
Accruals 22 25
Delerred income 201 155
Interest payable t9 2l
Other habilities 68 56
T | N -
Current, T T T T T T T k0 1,505,

Current portion

The carrying value of the Group's trade and other liabdities approximates its far value

The deferred income balance comprises principally mult year obligations to defiver warkboolds to adoption
customers in school businesses advance payments in assessivient, tesung and training businesses, subscription
ncome in schoot, college and newspaper businesses, and obligations to deliver digital content in future years

25 Retn ement benefit and ather post-retirement obligations

Background
The Gi oup operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans throughout the worid

The largest plan 1s the Pearson Group Pension Plan (UK Group plan} in the UK, whichis sectionalised to provide both
defined benefit and defined contribution pension benefits The defined benefit secuon was closed to new members
from 1 November 2006 The defined contribution section, opened in 2003, 1s open to new and existing ernployees
Finally. there is a separate section within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enrolment The defined benefit section of
the UK Group plan s a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level
of pension payabte for Iife The level of benefits depends on the length of service and {inal pensionable pay The UK
Group plan is funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK Group plan s admimstered

1n accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficiaries by Pearson Group Pension

Trustee Limited

At 31 December 2014 the UK Group plan has approximately 26,500 members, analysed in the followmg table

* Acnve Deaferred Pensiorcry Totu
Defined benefit 2 25 32 5%
13 23 - 41

Defined contrbuucn

Total ) 20 48 1 100
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-t et ement obligations continued

Background conunued
The other major defined benefit plans are based in the US These are also final salary pension plans which provide
benefits to members in the form of 2 guar anteed pension payabie for life with the level of benefits dependent on

length of service and final pensionable pay The majonty of the US plans are funded

The Group also has several post-retirement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), principally i the US PRMBs are unfunded
but are accounted for and valued simidarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuanal risks, such as ife expectancy, inflation risks, and
mvestment risk including asset volaulity and changes in bond yields The Groupis not exposed to any unusual,

entity speafic or plan specific risks

Assumpuions
The principal assumptions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average

assumpuons have been shown for the other plans, which primanly relate to US pension plans

T 2014 2013
T Ko owe kG ome
% plan plans PRME plan plams PRIB
Inflavon 30 25 25 34 25 15
Rate used 1o discount plan tabilities 36 37 37 44 44 44
Expected rate of Increase 1n salaries 35 39 40 3% 39 40
Expectedate of increase for pensions i1
payment and defei red pensions {91505 - - 23twb| - -
frutial rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 70 - - 75
Ulnnjate rate of increase in healthcare rate - - __5_9_ e ____5 p_

The UK discount rate 1s based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duration of habiliies The US discount
rate 15 set by reference to a US bond portfolie matching model .

The inflavon rate for the UK Group plan of 3 0% reflects the RPl rate In line with changes to legislauon in 2010, certain
benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflavonary measure and in these instances a rate of 2 0%
has been used

The expected rate of ncrease in salaries has been set at 3 5% for 20{4 with a short-term assumption of 2 0%

for three years

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumptions have been derved from the SAPS “all pensioners’ tables for
males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensicners’ tables for females, adjusted to reflect the observed experence of the
plan, with CMl model improvement factors A | 5% long-term rate improvement on the CMi modelis applied for
males, and 1 25% for females

forthe USpians the mortality table (RP - 2004} and 2014 lmp overnent scale (MP - 2014} with no adjustments have
been adopted for 2014, reftecung dhe morrahty assumption most prevalentm the US In 2013 the RP2000 table
projacted 1o 2020 was used
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements contnued

25. Retirement benefit and ather pose-t etrement obligations continued

Assumptions continued
Using the above tables, the remaining average Iife expectancy m years of a pensicner reti ing at age 65 on the balance
shect date for the UK Group plan and US plans s as follows

(118 us

T e T o
Male 24 4 243 216 192
Female 245 24 4 _23 8 2t

The remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner reuring at age 65, 15 years after the balance sheet date,
for the UK and US Group plans s as follows

K us

T ot o 1m0

Male 266 259 233 192
Female 264 259 255 21 ]

Although the Group anticipates that pfan surpluses will be utdlised duning the life of the plan to address membe
benefits, the Group recogrises 1ts penston sui plus in full in respect of the UK Group plan on the basis thatitis
management's judgement that there are no substantive restrictions on the return of residual plan assets in the
event of a winding up of the plan after ali member obligations have been met

Financial statement infot mation
The amounts recogmised in the incorme statement are as follows

014

D;ﬁr\ed - )
UK Group b fir Defined

All figures n £ mulhons pian other Sub-totai  contribution PRMB Toeai
Current service cost 20 2 22 69 2 93
Curtadments {5) - (o) -~ {13) (18}
Administration expenses ) o4 St S e R DU
Total operating expens; _______ h 9 2 21 9 {! I'} 79
Interest on plan assets {103} {7) (1i0) - - (o)
interestonplanbabdices 98 8 e - 3 1g
Net finance (ncome)/expense _ et @ - 3.

Net ncome statement chargef(ncome) 14 3 78 e T
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25 Retrement benefit and ather post-retrement obligations continued

Financiat staternent infor maucn contnued

203

T T e T T

Uk Gron s benefd Defiu

A esiy e e g oo ot Siberctal contreden o FRME Tt

Cuirent service cost 22 3 25 72 4 101
Curtalments - - - - 4 (4)
Admimistraton expenses e e A I . |

Taotal operatlrnmg;xpens'e‘ T o T 3 T n n - el
interest on plan assets {95) (6) (t01) - - (1ot}
Intet est on plan abiities o 24 7 “_“_IO_I_ 3 oe
Net finance (lrl_c_ome)léx';en;; T —____ ___(1) —__ s o - - 33
Net income statement charge B A w» 3 4

Included withun the 2014 results are discontinued operations consisting of a £5m credit (2013 £2m charge) relating
10 defined benefit schemes and a £t m charge {2013 £6m charge) refating to defined contributon schemes

The amounts recogrised 1n the balance sheet are as follows

2014 2012
T T ke owe T Towe our
UK Group funded  urfunded UK Growp Amdrd  umfunded

Al figueas n € enr'hons plan pouns plans Tata han plans atan, Total
Fair value of plan assets 2714 164 - 2878 2353 156 - 2509
Present value of defined benefizobligauon (2524 _(1%) __(23) (2743)_Q267) (7L __(0) (2458)
Net penston asset/(hability) 150 (3 (23) 135 86 (15 (200 5!
Other postretirement medical benefit
cbligauon (81) {77}
Otherpensionaceruals @ . G9
Net reurement benefit asset/(oblgavony A __ (58
Analysedas o ]
Reurement benefit assets {90 86
Retrement benefit obligations - — (163) 42
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Notes to the cansolidated financial statements continued

25. Retrement benefit and other post- etirement obligations continued

Financal statement information conttnued
The following gins/{losses) have been recognised i ather comprehensive income

Attfigun es m £ mdsons 2014 w03
Arnounts 1 ecognised for defined benefit plans 36 70
Amounts recognised for post-rets ement medical benefit plans o o - 3y 9
Towlrecogednyenr BT
The fan value of plan assets comprises the following
TS T T T T I T T T T T e
N T od o T Cover o
UK Group funded UK Gicup funded
] pran plans Tacal P plam Tetw
Equnties 26 2 28 18 2 30
Bonds 42 3 . 45 40 3 43
Property 9 - 9 9 - 9
Other 17 ! t8 17 ! 18

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, or any proper ty occupsed by the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into additonal categones and those assets which have
a quoted market price in an active market and those that do not.

T Quoed Noquowd | Quewed | Noaueted
% marketprice  matketprce  ovrkerpre  munhes price
UK equities 5 | 6 l
Non-UK equities 20 P 20 3
Fixed-inter est securities 19 - 19 -
Indesx-hnked secunuies 26 - 24 -
Praperty - 9 - 9
Other - 18 - I8
Tow ™ w3
The hquidity profile of the UK Group plan assets 1s as follows
e T
Liquid - calf <t month 72 72
tess gud - call [-3 months 2 2
26 26

Ligud - call > 3 months
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25 Retrement benefit and other post-t etirement obligations continued

Financial statement informauion continued
Changes in the values of plan assets and habilives of the reti ement benefit plans are as follows

T 20” 2013

T T eke T T T K ove
All figures i £ milhons plan plans Tout aan ¥ Tots,
Fau-value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 2,353 156 2,509 2162 165 2327
Exchange differences - 4 4 - (2) (2)
Interest on plan assets 103 7 t10 95 6 101
Return on plans assets excuding nterest 286 9 295 103 6 109
Contributions by employer 62 4 66 77 5 82
Contnbutions by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits paid B (92) (e (108 ) N o (110
Closng far vaiue of pnassets 2714 led 2878 2353 156 2509
Presontvalue of defined benefit obbgaton o
Opening defined benefit obligation (2,267) (19h (2,458) (2.181) {220} (2400
Exchange differences - (5) (5) - ! 4
Curient set vice cost (20) {(2) (22) (22) (3) (25)
Admumstration expenses 4 - (4 (4) - {4)
Cu talments ) - 5 - . -
Interest cost (98) 8) (106} (949 {7 (oh
Actuanal gains/{losses) —expenence [ n (a 5 { 6
Actuaral gains/(tosses) — demographic - ) (8) - | t
Actuanal gains/(losses) - financial (241) (20} (261) (55) 9 {46}
Contributions by employee (2) - {2) 2) - (2)
Benefits paid 92 6 08 86 24 o
Clomg setmedvendiobigmon~ _@mw @ G Gag) (o) @468)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 1s 16 5 years for the UK and 97 years forthe US
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Notes ta the consoldated financial statements continued

25 Retrement benefit and other post-reurement obligations continued

Financial statement mformation continued
Changes in the value of the US PRMB ar e as follows

All figares m £ rdhons 2014 2083
Opening defined benefit obligation (77 (89)
Exchange differences ) |

Curient service cost ) (4
Curtalments i3 4

Interest cost 3 E))]
Actuaral gains/(losses) - demographic {7 -
Actuarial gains/{fosses) - finanaal (6) 9
Benefits paid 5 5
Cloargéetosdbmatiobigen T T T

Funding

The UK Group plan is self-admmstered with the plan's assets boing held independently of the Group in trust The
trustee of the plan s required to act in the best interest of the plan's benefiaaries Assets of the plan are divided into
two elements matching assets, which are assets that produce cash flows that can be expected to match the cash flows
for a proportion of the membersiup and include UK and overseas bonds, inflation finked property and infrastructure,
return seelung assets, which are assets invested with a longet term horizon to generate the returns needed to provide
the remaining expected cash flows for the beneficianes, and include equities, property and alter nauve asset classes
The benchmark allocation is 60% matching and 40% return seelung assets

The most recent tennal actuanal valuation for funding purposes was completed as at [ fanuary 2012 and thes
valuation revealed a funding shortfall The Group has agreed that the funding shortfall will be eliminated by fune 2017

in 2044 the Group contnibuted £43m (2013 £56m) towards the funding shortfall Following the completion ofthe
triennial funding valuation the Group has agreed to contribute £4Im per annum untl 2017 1n excess of regular
contributions In addiion, a mecharmsm has been agreed for the Group to make supplementary payments up to a
maximum of £15m per annurm if certain condiions are met I such payments are made they at e expected to accelet ate
the end date for extinguishung the deficit Regular contiibutions to the plan in respect of the defined benefit sections
are estimated to be £17m {or 2015

The Group expects to contribute $10mn 2615 and $!Hm in 2016 to s US defined benefit pension plans




Secuon 5anual sae e 183

25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Sensttivities
The effectof a one percentage point ncrease and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit abiigation and

the total pension expense is as foflows

o 2004
Adl figures n £ m thons {% wcrease 1% decrevse
Effect
(Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligaton - UK Group plan (371) 467
{Decrease)/ncrease in defined benefit obligation - US plan i B L 22
The effect of members fiving one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obligation is as follows
T T T T T T T ek

| year I yen
Adi figures i £ millians ncreise decicase
Effect
tncrease/(decrease) in defined benefit obiigauon — UK Group plan 88 (85)

Increase/(decr ease) in defined benefit obligation - US plan S 7 {6)
The effect of a half percentage pomnt increase and decrease m the inflation rate 15 as follows

TTUTT ToTromT o TmmT T T T e T T e e

AM figures in £ mullions 0 5% merease 0 5% decrease

Effect
increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligauon -~ UIK Group plan
Increase/{decrease) m defined benefit obhligation - U5 plan

i (104)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change i an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant,
afthough i practice this is unlikely to occur and changes i some assumptions may be correlated When calculating

these sensitvitres the same methad has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obligation as has been appled
when calculating the liability 1ecogrised in the balance sheet This methodology 1s the same as prior periods
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Notes to the consohdated financial staterments continued

26 Shaie-based payments

The Group recognised the foliowing charges inthe ncome statement in respect of its equity-settled shar e based
payment plans

201 013
32 35

Allflzur es i £ entfeons

Pearson plans

Share-based payment charges included in discontinued operations amounted to £nil (2013 £2m) The Group operates
the following equity-settled employee option and share plans

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You Earn plan for UK employees

Iy 1998, the Group introduced a Worldwade Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a portion
of their monthly salary over periods of three or five years At the end of this period, the employee has the opuon to
purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of the market price prevating
at the ume of the commencement of the employee's par ticipation in the plan Opuons that are not exercised within
stx months of the end of the savings period lapse uncendizonally

Employee Stock Purchase Plan In 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows all
employees in the US to save a por tion of their monthly salary over six month pericds At the end of the penod the
employee has the opuion to purchase ADRs with therr accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 85% of the
tower of the market price prevailing at the beginning or end of the period

L ong-Term Incentive Plan Thes plan was firstintroduced 1n 2001, renewed in 2006 and againin 2040 The plan consists
of restricted shares The vesting of restricted shares 1s normally dependent on continuing service over a three 1o five-
year period, and in the case of seruor management upon the satsfacuon of corpor ate performance targets overa
three-year period These targets may he based on market and/or nen-market performance criteria Restricted shares
awarded to sentor management n May 2014 and May 2013, vest dependent on refauve total shareholder retut n, return
on invested capital and earnings per share growth Restricted shares awarded to seruor management in Navember
2014 vest dependent on earnings per share growth Other restncted shares awarded n 2014 and 2013 vest depending
on continuing service over a three-year perod

Annual Bonus Shat e Matching Plan This plan permits executive directors and sentor executives around the Group

to invest up to 50% of any after tax annual bonus in Pearson shares If these shares are held and the Group meets an
earnings per share growth target, the company will match them on a gross basis of up to one matching share for every
iwested share, 1 e the maximum number of matching shares 15 equal to the number of shares that could have been
acquired with the amount of the pre-tax annual bonus taken m invested shares Awards under this plan ceased in 2013

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group’s plans are as follows

_ 2014 2013

o - Weghted Weghied

Number of avel age MNun ber of waee

lhare QPIIUHS exercst prICE SO CUTIHS L Pruse Fnee

000s L 000, f

Ourstanding at beginning of year 2792 873 1373 824
Granted during the year £.985 g1 763 94
Exercised during the year (727) 824 (820 712
Forfeited during the year {538} 876 (518} 875
Expired during the year G 743 @ 575
3,507 848 2792 B73

Outscandmg_ at end Pfiear

Opuons exercisable ac end of year 43 824 35 695
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26 Share-based payments continued

Opuions were exercised regularly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was £11 41
(2013 £12 42) Early exercises arising from redundancy, rettement ordeath are wreated as an accelerauon of vesting
and the Group therefore recagmses in the income statement the amount that otherwise would have been recognised

for services t eceived over the remamnder of the onginal vesung period

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual hves and exerase prices

as follows

2014 2014

Weghted Wephied

Number of aver age Dumber of [Rar)

Range of exereise prees shaeoptions  conrractual hfe ghire cptoas ottt ife
[4 000s Yoars 0003 Yeurs
0--5 - - - -
5-10 3,507 268 2,792 231
>0 - - - -
3,507 268 2,792 231

e ar et m—mr et st e amm e e = Cn4 L84 I T e mevemr—e A LmT = e S mseenr | S Ceimee T s esssmols moame o memes memonnemm o

In 2014 and 20(3 opuians were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The weighted average estimated
fair vatue for the optons granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black Scholes modet are 2s follows

TS T T 014 W62
Weighted Weped

average SVECITE

Fair value {24 £227
Weighted average share price £1109 £ 71
811 £9 14

Weighted average exercise price
2027%  2205%

39years 3 Byears
I 3% 053%
433% 384%

Expected volaulty
Expected life

Risk free rate
Expected dividend yield

For{eiture rate

The expected volatility 1s based on the historic volatility of the company s share price over the previous three to seven
years depending on the vesting term of the options

The following shares were granted under restnicted share arrangements

i 2014 1013

W ghted W ehited

Mumber of avevage fair MNumgwral werige fuve

tharos uxlue s value

0005 £ 300y L

Long-Term Incentuve Plan 5875 [t 44 3482 P52
- - 99 1206

Annual Bonus Ehﬂ_‘? llﬂ_axtc_i_urgg_ Plain'

The fair vafue of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest uncenditionally s determined using the
share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vests adjusted, based on historwcal expenence,

to account for potenual forfertures Restiicted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Shai e Marching Plan are valued
using the share price at the date of grant Parucipants under both plans are entitled to dividends duning the vesung

period and therefor e the share price 15 not discounted
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26 Share-based payments conunued

Restncted shares with a market performance condiuon were valued by an independent actuary using 2 Monte Carfo
maodet Restricted shares with a non-market performmance condition were fair valued based on the share price atthe
date of grant Non-market performance conditons are taken nto consideration by adjusung the number of shares
expected to vost based on the most likely autcome of the i elevant perfor mance eriteria

27 Shaie capital and shai e premium R

T T Numbe: uf Ordn y Stae

5TCS shares preimium

000s fin fim

At Januaiy 2013 B17.043 204 2,555
Issg_e_o_forg_mar}r shares — share opuon scherﬂes e I_,S3_7__ ____J o 13_

At 3| December 2013 818,580 205 2,568
Issue ofordmary shares ~ share option schemes L A
At 3| December 2014 g!?“Bg% L _2_(_)?___ w}_é??__

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share) Allissued shares are fully pard All shares
have the same nghts

The Group manages 1ts capital to ensure that entties in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the opurisation of the debt and equity balance

The capial structure of the Gi oup consists of debt (see note [B), cash and cash equivalents (see note 17) and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent comprising issued capital reserves and rotained earmungs

The Gioup 1 eviews its capital st uctur @ on aregular basis and will balance s overall capital structw e thiough
payments of dividends, new share 1ssues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt inline

with the financial nisk policies outined in note {9

28 Treasury shares e

T T Fearsen pl

e
000~ im
At | January 2013 10,102 103
Purchase of treasury shares 411t 47
Release of reasury shares (4.?}9 o -.(52)
At 3| December203 s 9%
Purchase of treasury shares 907 g
Release of treasury shares o R L N ¢ 7 )
’ 71772 27" 75

Atﬂ3| December 2014 ) A S

The Group holds Pearson plc shares in trust to sausfy ws obhgatons under s resuncted sha e plans (see note 26)
These shares, representing 0 9% (2613 | (%) of called-up share capital, are treated as treasury shares for accounting

purposes and have a par vaiue of 25p per share
The nonunal value of Pearson plc wreasury shares amounts to £ 8m (2043 £2 3my

At 31 December 2014 the market value of Pearson plc wreasury shares was £85 6m (2013 £124 4m)
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Artributable w equiry holders of the comp my
e I et Nan
Tranfaton Retamed controiing
Al figuresin £ mitlions reselve earn ngs TJoul mrerrse Torqt
Items that may be reclassified to the mncome statement
Met evchange differ ences on transtaton of foreign
operations - Group 150 = {50 - 150
Net exchange differences on wransianon of foresgn
Operanons — associate 25 - 25 - 25
Currency translauon adjustment disposed - subsidaries (2) - (2) - (2)
Attrbutable tax - (6) (6) - (6}
ltems that are not 1eclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obligations ~ Group - 23 23 - 23
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligations ~ associate - {i5) {15) - (15}
Attributable tax - {t U] - (i}
Other comprehensive expense for the year 173 i 174 - 174
T T T T o
Attriburible 10 equ ty holde s “tthe comiany
Pl s w—e s R me P e o Non
Tavrint on Rotwnd congrpthng
af firuresn £mluons resgive FAPEIES Total nrerest Tory!
Items that may be reclassified o the mcome statement
Net exchange differences on transfaton of foreign
operanons - Group (202) - {202) (4) (206}
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
opel anons - assocate (i) - {11) - (1
Currency transiation adjustment disposed — subsidiaries (18} - (18} - (18)
Artributable tax - 6 & - 6
ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligauons — Group - 79 79 - 79
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — asscciate - - - - -
Attnbutable tax - (23) 23) - (23}
Cther comprehensive expense for the year (231) 62 {169) 4 (173)
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Notes Lo the consolidated finanaial statements continued

30 Buswmess combinations

On 1| February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of Grupo Muly, the teadmg adult Enghsh tanguage training company
i Brazil Fair values for the assets and habilives arising from the Grupo Mult acquisition and other smaller acquisttions
completed in the year are set out below There were no matenal adiustments to prior year acquisiions Therc wete
no significant acquisitions in 2013 Adjustmients wes e made in1espect of prior year acquisieons it 2013 and included
the recogniion of intangibles of £185m on the EmbanetCompass acquisiion

Fair values for the assets and habilites arising from acquisittons compieted in the year are as follows

2014 2013
Grupotan | Other  Towlfar  Ta'fi
Al figures in £ awlions Mew  firvale  fau valuo value value
Property, plantand equipment 0 | t 2 [
Intangible assets I 254 6 2606 200
intangble assets - pre-publication 10 { - ! |
inventories 4 4 !
Trade and other receivabies 35 | 36 9
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 3 - 3 2
Financat habsliwes — borrowings (49) -- {49) -
Net deferred income tax assets/(llabihiues) i3 2 (2) - (37}
Provisions for other liabilities and charges u {13} ) (14} -
Trade and other lrabihues an (3 (24) N
Currentmncome tax hahilities (20} - (20) -
Net assets acquired at farvalve 97 1 99 0
Goodwill 0 240 {2) 238 (133)
Fair value of previously held mterest arising on stepped acquisiion - - {7
T A 2
Sausfedby o T o
Cash (437) - {(437) (3hH
Deferred consideration - - - (2)
Net prior year adjustments - - - 3
Toral ;-o_n;ld_eratlon ~ -—'t“_ o (237) o -___ {43?_} L (3_(_}2

The goodwill arising on these acquistions results from cost and revenue synergies and from assets and benefits that
cannot be separately recognised

Goodwill of £240m ansing on 2014 acquisitions) s expecied to be deducuble for tax purposes (2013 £ém)

Intangible assers acquired in 2014 have the fallowing useful economic bives. customer lists. contraces and refavonships
four year s, trademarks and brands 20 years, and other acquired intangibles 12 years Intangible assets recogiused
in 2013 have the following useful ccononnic hves customer hses, contracts and refavonships 3-17 yeas s, and erademarks

and brands two years




Section S Foinmal rtatere T 189

30 Busmess comblnatlons conunued

AN figuresin £l ons 2014 xiz
Cash flow on acquisitions

Cash- current year acquisitions {437) (25)
Deferred payments for prior year acquisiions and ather iters 5 (6)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 3 2
Acquisinon costs and other acquisition tnabnhtles pad _ (9 | {9)
Nevashomtion T T T T )

in total, acquisiwons completed in the year contributed an additional £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted operaung
profit If the acquisitons had completed on | fanuary 2014 then the Group estumates that sales for the year would have
been £4,880m and total adjusted operating profit would have been £725m

31 DlsposaIs mdudlng business closures

2014 2013
Al Bgures 0 £ milions Megemaker | Pengan | Gther | Totd | Pegia  Omer | Totd
Disposal of subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment 23 - () {3 3% 3} (42)
Intangible assets (12) - - {12) (43) - (43)
Investments i joint ventures and assouates - - - - (22) - (22)
Other financial assets - - - - (1) - (h

: (20) ®  (26)
- - - f) 3) (94)

{ntangible assets - pre-publication

Inventories -
Trade and other teceivables (23} - (2) {25} (447) (6 (453)
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding

overdrafts) (19 - (I (30 (34 (3) (37}
Net deferred income tax habilites/(assets) | - - } {22) - (22)
Reurement benefit obligauons - - - - - 4 4
Provisions for other hiabilrues and charges 4 - - 4 7 - 7
Trade and other hiabihties 69 - i2 8! 224 16 234
Currentincome tax liabilities é - - 6 - - -
MNon-controlling interest - - {2) (2) 3 - 3

Attributable goodwill (156) - {4y 5N (370} 6 (376}
Cumuiatwe translation adjustment 2 - ? l8 - 18
Net assets disposed T ham T T e e @ (13) 850
Cash received 375 - - 375 - 3 3

Deferred proceeds - - & & - - -

Fair value of assocate acquired - - - (160 - 1,160
Costs . _ M ® @ % (20 (4 (13
P Y7 S e T W S M.

The gam on disposal of Penguin i 2013 anses from the measurement at farr value of the associate investment acquired
in Penguin Random House Determinauon of fair value s described in note 12
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MNotes to the consolidated finanaal statements continued

31 Dusposals ncluding busmess closures continued

Al Giguras in € miions 2014 643
Cash flow fi om disposals

Cash - current year disposals 375 3
Cash ana cash equivalents disposed {30 (37)
Costs and other disposal habiiues pud { IBl L _(28}
Nevashwflowloudlow) W (%)
32 Held for sale

Assets classfied as held for sale in 2013 (elate to Mergermarket,

All igures 1 £ millons - T T T e o o
Property, plant and equpment (5] - 2
Intangible assets I - 158
Deferred income tax assets 12 - '
Trade and other recevables - 26
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdr afts) 8 36
Assets classified as held for sale 7 T 7 ;o3
Deferred thcome tax habiiues ¥ - (2)
Prowvisions for other labilities and charges - 4)
Trade and other habibities - (70
Current income tax habihues - {5}
l:—l;lIJ;t_l_tl_e_; Etr;:tly associated w:;hz;seu classified as held for sale o = _(_é_ﬁ
Netassetsclassified asheldforsale - 4

33 Purchase of non-conurolling mterest

There were no purchases of non-controlting interests in 2014 In 2013 the Group purchased non-controiling mterests
in the South African business for £65m, and in the Indian business for £11m
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34 Cash generated from operations L

Al fgures o £ miltons Hones 2014 013
Profit 470 539
Adjustments for
Income tax Hio 20
Deprecation w0 74 82
Amortisation and impan mient of acquired intangibles and goodwill 1" 264 168
Armortisation of software " 63 59
MNet fimance costs 93 75
Share of results of joint ventur es and associates 12 (51) (54)
Profiton disposals (271 (187)
Acquisition costs 6 12
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transactions 27 (40)
Share-based payment costs b3 32 37
Pre-publication {52 (77)
inventories 6 8
Trade and other recervables {6%) {50)
Trade and other habilities 72 72
Reurement benefit obliganions (58} {57)
Provisions for other hiabilues and charges i (a3
Net cash generated from operations o 704 684
Drvidends from joint ventures and associates 120 64
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment {75) {118)
Purchase of ntangible assets (107) (64)
Praceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 9 28
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 2
Financefease principalpaymenes .o W &
apera:mg cashflow - - T 649 588
Cperating tax paiud (163) (191)
Nert operaung finance costspaid : B 0D
Operaung free cash flow 413 324
Nonoperaungtaxpad TP
Free cash flow - o T 413 269
Dwvidends pad (including to non-controlingmeerests) (%) 072
ts (103}

Net movement of funds from operauons
Acquisioons and disposals (net of tax) {137 {126}

Loans advanced (including to 1 elated partes) (12} 49
Purchase of treasury shares »n (9) (47
New equity i 14
Other movements on financiat instruments I 5 (&
et movement of funds ) T (117} {523
Excharnge movements onnet debt e S U R id
Total movement n net _dt-‘.:b; - - B R .t I w10
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued

34 Cash gener ated from operations continued

MNet cash generated from operations 1s translated aL an exchange rate approximaung to the rate at the date of cash
flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to wanslate profit gives rise 1o a cun ency adjustment
in the reconciliation between net profit and net cash gonerated from operations This adjustient reflects the turing
diference between recogmtion of pi ofit and the refated cash receipts or payments

Operating cash flow, operating free cash flow ard total free cash flow are non GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson's corpot ate and oper ating measures

in the cash flow statement, proceeds fi om sale of property plant and equipment comprise

All figures in £ mitions 2014 2043
Net boolk amount i2 19
(Lossiprofiton sale of property. plantandequipment . . ___ .. @& ___ %
Praceeds from sale of ;;;rop;-ru;y. pl_ant and equipment T ;__ . M?,. o 2_8

35 Conungencies

There are contingent Group hliabiliies that arise in the normal course of business in respect of indemmues, war anues
and guarantees in relation to former subsidiartes and in1 espect of guarantees i refation to subsidiaries joint ventures
and assoctates In additon there are contingent habuhties of the Group i respect of legal claims  contract disputes,
royaities, copyright fees, perimisstons and other rnights None of these claims are expected to result in a material gain
or loss to the Group

36 Commutments

At the balance sheet date ther e were no commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred

The Group ieases various offices and warehauses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases
have varymg terms and renewal nghts The Group also leases vartous plant and equipment under operating lease
agreements, also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged to the income statement was £157m (2013 £183m)

The future aggregate mintmum lease payments in respect of operating leases are as follows

Allfigures in £ mdhons 2014 2013
Not laier than one year tel tél
Later than one year and not later than two years 150 149
Later than two years and not later than three years 26 133
tater than three years and not later than four years 122 (RF:]
Later than four year s and not later than five years {15 105
l:ate:'L t_ha_ﬂ_ﬁ_v‘e years 701 737

£375 1,403
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37 Related party transactions

Joint ventui es and associates
Amounts advanced to joint ventures and assodates during the year and at the balance sheet date are set outinhote 2

Apart from transacuons with the Group's joint ventui es and associates, there were no other material related party

transactions

Key management pet sonnel
From | January 2014 the key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Pearson Executive

(see page 9} ltss this commuittee which had responsibiity for planmung, direcung and controfing the actwvities of the
Groupin 2014 Key management personnel compensatonis disclosed below

,;Jfrg.;cnn tmillens o 1044
Short-term employee benefits 10
Retrement benefits |
Shgfe—based payment costs . ) ) o L ‘2_
e ) o T T o 13

Total

There were no other material related party transactions No guar antees have been provided to related parties

38 Events after the balance sheet date

There were no matenal events after the balance sheet date
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MNotes to the consohdated financial staterments continued

39. Accounts and audit exemptions

The Pearson ple subsidiary companies fisted below are exempt from the requirernents of the Companies Act 2006
refatng to the audi of mdmidual accounts by virwse of secuon 4794,

Conpangoumber 0 onapany number
Aldwych Finance Limited 04720439 Pearson Edutaton Limited 00872828
ASET Limited 04231636 Pearson Funding Four ple 07970304
ASET Group Limwed (03964551 Pearson Funding One plc 02911143
ASET Management Limited 03139404 Pearson Funding Two plc 07210654
ASET Solutons Limited 03849880 Pearson Hememann Limued 03099304
Blue What f Limited 04344573 Pearson in Pracuce ATA Limited 07679091
Burmedia Investments Limited 03060487 Pear son in Practice Holdings Limited 06337129
Edexcel Limited 04496750 Pearson in Practice Skills Based

Educauon Development Internaunonal plc 03914767 Learning Limited 03755464

Embankment Finance Limited 04460625 Pearson in Practice Technotogy Limited 03786989

eNVO Limited 03985948 Pearson Internattonal Finance Limited 02496206
EQL Assessment Lumited 05724778 Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unlinuted 05632021
Financial Times (ASC) Limited 00519261 Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Lirmited 05052661
Finaneral Times Group Limited 00879531 Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Limited 02635107
Eronter UK Liruted 05737591 Pearson Loan Finance Unlimited 05144467
FT Business information Limited 00758738 Peai son Management Seraces Linuted 300%6263
ET Labs Limited 04701650 Pearson Overseas Holdings Limited 00145205
FT Personal Finance Limited 03855570 Pearson PRH Holdings Limited 0B361316
Goa Lirited 03566588 Pearson Professtonal Holdings Limited 06149375
Green What f Limited 07009228 Pearson Services Limited 01341060
icodeon Limited 05068195 Pearson Shat ed Services Limited 04623186
Jount Examuning Board Limited 03278422 Peter Honey Publicavens Limited 03754757
Longman Group (Overse.:as Holdings) Sector Training Lirited 05342448
Limited 00690236 St Clements Press (1988) Limited 02174119
Midlands Educational Technology Limited 01448842 Testchange Limited 02496240
Pearson Affordable Learming Fund Limited 08038068 The Coacling Space Limited 05333023
Pearson Amsterdam Finance Limited 03041245 The Financal Times (Benetux) Limited 01613899
Pearson Austraiia Finance Unfimited 05578463 The Financral Times (France) Limited 008671316
Pearsan Books Limited Q2582075 The Financal Times {Japan) Lined {06{3900
Pearson 8razil finance (td 08848874 The Fmanaat Tirmes (M-M U Limited 01398449
Pearson Canada Finance Unlimuted 05578491 The Financiat Times (Spain) Limited 0f2i441 ]
Pearscn Dollar Finance pic 05111013 TQ Catals Limited 07307943
Pearson Dollar Finance Two plc 06507766 TQ Clapham Limuted 07307925
Pearson Educauon Holdings Limited 00210859 TC Global Liniced 07802458

Pearson Education Investments Limited 08444933
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The Pearson plc subsidiary companies ksted below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

1o prepare indwidual accounts by virtue of secoon 394A

Crampang s mber

Cempangrgrahne

Exec-Appointments Limited 04010964 Medley Global Advisois Luvited 0093{507
FO! Intelhgence Limited N1040129 The Financial News Lamited 00607228
Financial Times Business Lutited 0020228( The Financial Times (Switzerland) Limited 01643901
Financial Times Electromic Publishing Limited 02749250 The Finanaal Times (Zhongwen) Limited 01900030
Financial Trimes Investor Limited (04005565 Throgmorton Publications Limited 009056%6
Mandatewire Lt_mlted 03855296 o
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Company balance sheet
As at 3| December 2014

ANl figures i £ mtbons Mows 2014 2013
Assets
Non-current assets
{nvestments i subsidinries b 8,740 8,537
Amounts due from subsidiaries 27 2009
Financial assets — dervative financral mstruments 6 84 I
8851 10,657
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 5220 380
Amounts due from related par tes 54 44
Current income tax assets 28 24
Finanaal assets -- derivauve financial instruments r 24 i3
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 4 i3 394
Orther assets - e R T
Towlases ;s
Liabiities T T s e e o o
Non-current habihities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {2.346) {3.553)
Finanaal habilives - borrowings < 210 (202)
Frnancal hablhqes v-‘denvatwe financal instruments & (73) (48)
I T T T sy e
Current habilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries (4.414) (1,256}
Financial habilises — borrowings 5 (629) (766)
Fmancial habiliwes - dervative financal instruments 6 (1) -
Other labdittes (2) -
Provisions for other liabiliies and charges o T AU .2
s 510 M c D)
Total habilives CorrerTmT e T e (7.275 {5.867)
Net assets T T T T T %S seds
Equity B T e e
Shar e capueal B 205 205
Share premium 8 2,579 2,568
Treasu y shares E t (22}
Specid reserve 447 447
Retamed earruings o R 338 ?_4_4/7_
Total equity attributab ity hok che company o o 65!_7: 5645

Iotql_t_eq_ultr_ _a!_:tr_tlzt_f_t_able to equity holders of the company o 1)

These financiat statements have been appr oved for ssue by the board
behalf by

Robn Freestone Chief inancial officer

rectors on 9 March 2015 and signed on s
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Company statement of changes in equity
Year ended 3| December 2014

£ quiry wwtnbutble ra equ ty holders of che company

Share Share Treasuy Specil Retamned
Al figures i £ millions epieal prommm shares reserve carniap Totat
At i january 2014 205 2,568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profit for the year - - - - | 267 [,267
{ssue of ordinar y shares unde!
shar e opuan schemes! - il - - - il
Purchase of treasury shares - - ) - - (9
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32 -
Duvdends - TS </ B L/
Ae3\Decomber20i4 205 2519 1 a7 385 6517

Eauuty strrdiutab o to ¢ quity hodert ol the company

Share share Tm Ay S it ned

Alfiguresin L vt ons capn i premup shares reserce ~1rnngs Tery
At 1 fanuary 2013 204 2,555 27 447 2,069 5,248
Profit for the year - - - - BOZ 802
issue of ordinary shares under

share option schemes’ { 13 - - - 4
Purchase of reasury shares - - (47) - - (47)
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) -
Dwidends - - - o (_372}.. . __(_32_2_)
A Decomber 20305 258 @) M7 2447 5eds

The special reserve represents the cumulauve effect of cancelfation of the company's share premium account

included within retained earnings 15 an amount of £131m (2013 £131m) refaung to profiton mtra-Group disposals that
is not distributable

*Full detads of the share based payment plans ae duelo cd i note 2€ 1o the consehda od finenciol statements
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Company cash flow statement
Yearended 31 December 2014

ous 204 a3

Adt figures in £ ihans

Cash flows fi om aperatng acuvities

MNetprofit 1,267 802

Adustments for

Income tax {%) (51}
24 Y

Net finance costs

Amounts due to subsidiaries o _(1:958_)"___§1_.953)

Net cash generated/{used in) from operations 224 {135)
fnterest pad 73) (82)
Tax reccived o & 14

Net cash generated/(used n) from operating actvwes 157 (203)

Cash flows from investing activities

Drsposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed - 482
Loans to related partes (10) (44)
Interest receved - 510
Net cash recerved from investng activities ST 448
Cash flows from financing activities

Praceeds fromssue of ordinary shares e i t4
Net purchase of treasury shares (%) {(48)
Repayment of borrowings (250) -
Dwidends paid to company's shareholders ) R .0 B 123,
Net cash used n financing actwies. T s (406)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {15) {8
Klzt.c—:iecrease in cash and cash eq;r;;;l‘er:;' T - (498) o -_(“I 45"_)-

(118)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 {616) {118)
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Notes to the company financial statements

i Accounting policies

The financial statements on pages 196 to 204 comprise the separate financial statements of Pearson plc

As permitted by section 408 of the Cumpanies Act 2006, only the consolidated incomne statement and statement
of comprehensive income have been presented

The company has no employees
The accountng policies applied in the preparation of these company financial statements are the same as those set

outin note | to the consolidated financial statements with the addmon of the following

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment., with the exception of cer tan hedged

investments that are held in a foresgn currency and revalued at each bafance sheet date

2 Investments in subsidiaries

Atfgrememions 77 204 w3
At beginnmng of year 8,537 9.108
Subscripuon for share capital in subsidianes 38 424
Disposals/liquidatons - {985)
Currency revaluations 6 {10
Atendofyear T T T T TR g0 8sw

At end of year

3 Financial risk management

The company’s financial instruments compt 1se amounts due to/fi om subsidiary undertakings, cash and cash
equivalents, dervative financial instruments and current and non-current borrowings Dervatve financial mstruments
are held at farr value, with all other financial nstruments held at amorused cost The company’s approach to the
management of financial nsks 1s consistent with the Group's treasury policy, as discussed i note 19 to the consohdated
financial statements The company beheves the value of its finanaal assets to be fully recoverable

The company designates certain qualfying dervatve finanaal nstruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds (fair
value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these dervative financial instruments are recorded in the income statement
together with any change in the fair value of the hedged liabiiity attributable to the hedged risk

The carrying value of the company's financial instruments 15 exposed to movements 11 (terest rates and forergn
currency exchange rates (priumanly US doltars) The company estimates thata 1% increase minterest rates would
result in a £66m decrease 1n the carry:ng value of its financial nstrurnents, wath a 1% decrease in interest rates resulting
i a £85m increase in their carrying value The company also estmates thata 10% strengthening in sterling would
decrease the carrying value of its firancial instruments by £169m, while a 10% weakening in the value of sterling would
increase the carrying value by £89m These increases and decreases in carrying value would be recorded through the
income staternent Sensitivities are calculated using estimation techmiques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation medels Where modelling an interest rate decrease of (% led to negative interest rates, these points on the

yield curve were adjusted 1o 0%
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

3 Financial risk management continued

The maturity of contracted cash flows on the company's borrowings and all of its dervative financial instruments
are as follows

pLI
Al igurez n 2 mons T s Tow | oke Tel
Not later than one yeai 172 {212) {16) {56)
Later than one year and not later than five years 224 - (%7 127
Later than five years 4i8 - {403} 15
R ™ R 7 N )
Analysedas -
Bonds 224 - - 224
Rate dervatives — inflows (303} (656) {537) (1,496)
Rate denivauves - outflows 893 444 _21 1338
Total e B0 519w
T T T T e e e T T Ty
Aliggaes vr Lonthe s T o e e Tom
Nat {ater than one year {20} 233 6 2129
Later than one year and not later than five years 287 (212) - 75
Later than five years (39 - - 3%
Totad T T 7T Ty T e 2es
;\nalyseg;s o S e
Bonds 219 268 - 487
Rate dervatives — mflows {350} {248) - (598)
Rate dervanives — outflows 359 [ té 376
Towd N~ R T S

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floatng rate are
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset VWhere this 1s not possible, floaung rates are based
oninterest rates prevailing at 31 December in the relevant year All dervative amounts are shown gross, although the
company net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any armounts drawn under revolving credit facifities and commeraal paper are assumed to rmature at the maturity date
of the relevant facfity, with iterest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and including the date of matunity

of the faciliy
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4 Cash and cash equwalents (exc!udmg over drafts)

A!l_ﬁ;u;c:l:f mi't ens 014 ’DB
Cash atbanl and in hand 2 269
Short term | b:mk deposits ( {25

T o _ _ 3 34

Short-term bank deposits are nvested wath banks and earn interest at the prevatkng short-term deposit rates
At the end of 2014 the currency sphit of cash and cash equivalents was 'US dollar 33% (2013 76%). sterling 54% (2013
24%} and other 13% (2013 mil)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to thewr cai rying amounts due to thew short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the foflowing for the purpose of the cash flow statement

Aifguresmfmiors 2014 013
Cash and cash equivalents 13 394
Banic overdf'afts (629) (512}
e T ee _um
§ F_lr_lanssaiﬂabtlttles_ -_—_bgn rowIngs L _ e
Altfigur zsn £ mikons 2014 2003
Non-current
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 {norunal amount $300m) 210 202
e e/ ' T T e 02
Current
Due within one year or on-demand
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 {nerminal amount £250m) - 254
Bank Ioans and overdrafts 629 512
Y TR 773
Y 1

Included m non-current borrowings above s £nil of accrued ntet est (2013 £nil) Included in cunemt borrowings above
is £nil of accrued interest (2043 £3m)
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

5 Financial iabrties - borrowings continued

The mawurity of the company's non-current borrowings is as follows

Al figures n £ enions 2014 23
Between one and two years -
Between two and five years 210 202
Over five year s . i

T B - o 2i0 202

As at 31 December 2014 the exposure to nter est rate changes of the borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries
when the borrowings re-price s as follows

Less than One to More than
All fipures i £ milhions one yeon five years five years Toral
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 629 210 - 839
Amounts due to subsidiaries 4414 960 1.386 6.760
Effect of rate dervatives 1,254 (225 (029 -
e T e s T
The carrying amounts and market values of boi rowings ar e as follows
T T T T T T e T T T T T e T T T T
T lheerwe | Campmg | Maker | Caepep omer
All liguses in £ mions et Lt rate amaune vl moune vilue
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 629 629 512 512
70% Steriing bonds 2014 720% - - 254 262
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 4 69% 210 205 202 195
Ty e e _8-3? -.--H—834 968 969

The market values are based on clean market piices at the year end or, where these are not available, on the quoted
market prices of comparable debt issued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate to the
underlying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the company's borrowings are denominated In the following currencies

All figures In £ mihons 2014 2013
S dallar 477 202
Sterhing 354 762

8 4

Euro

839 %8
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6 Denvative financial instruments

The company’s outstanding derwative financial nstruments are as follows

_ L 2014 o RUE
Gross notonal Gross ot wl

Al figuresin £ milons amaiuns Agsets Ledxlitses RFERINS Aty Labrbit ps
tnterest rate derivatives -
in a far value hedge relationship 92 I8 - 231 22 -
interest rate dervatives - notina
hedge relatonship 2,404 67 {3t) | 842 63 (48)
Cross-cutrency derivatives ) _95%___ 23 43 e 3 -
'licltiai_ o 3 548 o8 (74 2293 R (48)
Analysed as expiring
In less than one year 200 24 {1) 312 I3 -
Later than one year and not later than
five years 1314 61 (8) 1,377 1t -
Later than five years N 2,034 23 {65) 64 - {48)
Total 3,548 o8 {74 2,293 124 (48}

The cai rying value of the above dervauve financial instruments equals their far value Fair values are determined
by using mariet data and the use of established esumation techrigues such as discounted cash flow and option

valuauon models

7 Provisions for other habifities and charges

Provisions in the prior year were comprised of liabilues assumed on the closure of the business of a Group subsidiary

As antcipated, the provisions were utiised duning the year ,
8 Sl'f_rs c_a_gltal and sharepremwum B e
e preom
0005 Zin i
A | january 2013 817 403 04 2555
issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1,537 b {3
At 31 December 2013 T B 818,580 205 2568
ssue of ordinary shares — share option schemes o £33 - i
Ac 31 Dacember 2014 T R

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share) All issued shares are fully patd Al shiares
have the same rights
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

9 Treasuiy shares

Mumberef

" oos o

Ac ! fanuary 2013 10102 27
Purchase of treasui y shates 4.111 47
Release of reasury shates (4931)  (52)
A¢ 31 December 2003 T T H‘?Z_Bi—ﬁ_ n
907 9

Purchase of treasury shares
Relea§e of‘treasury shares ) {2.997) - £32)
7192 )

Ac 3| December 20(4

The company holds 1ts own shares in trust to sausfy its obligations under its restricted share plans These shares are
treated as treasury shares for accounung purposes and have a par value of 25p per share The nominal value of the
company's treasury shares amounts to £1 8m (2013 £2 3m) At 3t December 2014 the market value of the company’s
treasury shares was £85 6m (2013 £124 4m) The gross book value of the shares at 31 December 2014 amounts to
£75m Ths value has been netted off with conmbutions received from operating companies of £76m, rresulung ina
net credit value of £1m

i0 Conungencies

There are conungent labilittes that artse in the normal cour se of business i respect of indemnities, warranues and
guarantees in 1 elation to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidianies In addition there
are contungent habiittes in respect of legal clams None of these claims are expected to resuluin a matenat gain or

Joss to the company
{1 Auditfees
Sratutory audit fees relating to the company wete £35,000 (2013 £35,000)

12 Related party transactions

Subsidiaries
The company transacts and has outstanding balances with its subsidiaries Amounts due from subsidiaries and

amounts due to subsicharies are disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet

Thaese loans are generally unsecured and mnterest is calculated based on marlket rates The company has interest
payable to subsidiaries for the year of £143m (2013 £144m) and interest receivable from substdiaries for the year
of £723m (2013 £59m} Management fees payable to subsidiares in respact of centrally provided services amounted
to £19m (2013 £55m) Dividends received from subsidianies were £1,300m (2013 £1,363m)

Associates
Amounts due from related partes, disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet, relate to loans wo Penguin

Random House, an assouate of the Group Theseloans are unsecured and interest s calculated based on

marlcet rates The amount cutstanding at 31 December 2014 was £54m (2013 £44m) The loans at e prowided under
a worlang capieal facility and fluctuate duving the year The loan outstanding at 31 December 204 was repaid nits
entirety in fanuary 2015

ey management personnel
From 1 fanuary 2014, key management personnel are deemed 1o be the members of the Pearson Execunve

£ ts dus commuttee winch had responsdility for planning, dwecung and controlling the acuviues of the company 1n 2014
Key mandgement pecsonnel compensation is discfosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial staterments

There were no other matenal related party transactions MNo guai antees have been provided to related partes
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Principal subsidiaries

The principal operatng subsidiartes at 31 December 2014 are histed below They operate mainly i the countries
of inco: poration ot registi auon Thenvestments are in equity shate capital and they are afl 100% owned

Country of MErREr o Ve SitAth 0

Pearson Education Inc Us
Pearson Educauon Ltd England
INCS Pearson Inc us
The Financial Times Lid ___ England

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Comparves Act 2006 by prowviding
information only in relation to subsidiar y undet takings whose results or financial positton, i the opinion of the
duectors principally affected the financial statements A complete bist of subsidary and assoctated undertalungs
will be included i the next Pearson plc annual return filed with the Registrar of Companies
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Five-year summary

pIES

At B £3in £ milions 2010 T o restatrd) 011
Sales By geography™

tNorth America 3,073 2974
Core {258 £ 154
Growth 738 746
Conanung 7T asa 478 4959 5069 4874
Disconunued 1,427 | 134 1,153 6}1 L 9
R - T SN )
Sales By line of business*

School 2,303 2,027
Higher Education {664 1,695
Professional 1,102 1,152
Contoumng 4532 4728 4959 5069 4874
D!ionttnued - 1,427 134 1.153 621 9
I ST RTN)
Adjusted operaung profit By geography™

Neorth Amenca 474 464
Core [20 152
Growth 38 35
Penguin Random House - - - 50 69
Continumng T T 732 806 809 682 70
Disconunued » "3196"”____- 132 -..,_-..,J,%i... L M2
Totaladusted operaamgprofic 98 9% 92 0 ne 72
Adjusted operaung profit By line of business*

School 268 236
Higher Educauon 295 309
Professional ! &9 {06
Pengwn Random House - - - S0 69
Conmnung T T T T T Teoe )
Ensconunued 206 132 123 54 2
Tocisised sperongareis . sm v o e

Yeu-ads prorte 2001 bave notheen costaed to rif e the row orzamszuen struceure 88 there by oo app opniate bass for resratement of thase puno'ts
2041 onwardy s flectahe sdopion of FAS 19 1evived and bave Lieen restated as approprate Pron perod. have not boen o md
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B 2013 o
Ali figuras i £ i Hhons 2040 A0 Hit2 emptaied 2014 <
Operating margin — continuing 16 2% F70% 163% {35% {4 8% E
Z
Adjusted earnings ”
Total adjusted operating pi ofit 938 938 932 736 722
Net finance costs (85) {55) (65) (72) (64)
fncome tax {215) {196} (200} {97) (118}
Non-cont olling interest {7 f (3} O { -
Admed e 7T 7T 7T T Tl T Te T e ses séi g
Weighted average number of shares (mitions) BOI 2 80O 2 8043 8078 8109 m
Adpusted earnings per shate 7% s0p 86 T0lp 6670 S
e T T T e e gy T e e T oo
Cash flow
Operaong cash flow 1,057 983 788 588 649
Operatng cash conversion 113% 105% 85% 80% 90% _é"
Operatng fi ee cash flow 904 772 657 324 413 g
Operating fi ee cash flow per share 1128p 96 5p 8l 7p 40 tp 50 %p 2
Total free cash flow 504 772 657 269 a3 3
Total free cash flow per share f128p 26 5p 81 7p 333p 509p g
Netassets 5,605 5.962 5710 5.706 5,985
Net debt 430 499 9i8 1379 1639 o
3
Return on invested capitaf (gross bass) g
Total adjusted operating profit 938 938 932 736 722 -
Cash tax pad (8%) (1540 (65) (e {163)
Rororn | TTITTT T T T T T ey g T e w45 889
Average invested capital 8315 8,731 9,578 10,130 9,900
Return onnvested capital 1Q03% g 0% 9 1% 54% 56%
Onvdendper share 8T M0 A% 8% S0
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Corporate and operating measures

Pearson’s cot porate and operating measures include the results of Mergermarket throvgheut 2013 as the business
was wholly-owned during that pericd

Sales - underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Sales movements exclude Pengumn the mpact of acquisitions disposals and movenients in exchange rates

All figures w £ nvibang 2014
Underlying decrease (2)
Portfolio changes 79
Exchange differences (272}
Total sales deerease 0 T oo _(—@5
Underlyngdecrease 0%
Constant exchange rate increase —_ e e+ e e e . il
Adjusted income statement
Reconctiaton of the consolidated income statement to the adjusted numbers prasented as non-GAAP measures
in the financiaf staternents

e vrys

T semmay  Omener Oderser  Tx Aduited
wicome Discontnued pansand  Acquistion  Intingibie finance Ymorusation ncome

Alt figures nf mihon staement  operanans tosses costs Charges meomelcors benefic  stcement
Operaung profit 398 2 {2) 6 3i8 - - 722
Net finance costs (33) - - - - 29 - {64)
Proficbeforetax 305 2 () 6 38 29 - 58
income tax__ {63 M ___f (DR G N £ R O AL
Proﬁ't f;' the year from o ) - - . S
conunuing operations 242 ! (n 5 245 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
disconunued operatons 228 (D 27y - - - -
Profit for the );:armmm' T W(ZZB) s 245 24 24 540
Non-controllngmterest . o\ Ttz b

Earnings 471 - (228} L i 245 2‘!_ . 24 54|
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Adjusted income statement continued o
2013 S
——- — e e —- s
Starotir ¢ Qrhwernee Othernet Fu Asfuvied <
oo Dracuar e paosand  Acgusion Im ingrale finange  wno asATON neerw z
Alfiguresn £ mhou, SLIRPNND OpEr NG foene s Costs e . Heome/iest. br nef LLAR DT m
Operavng profit 458 54 16 i2 196 - . 736
Net finance costs (78 - - - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 16 12 196 4 - 664
income tax - (87) (18) 2 2 (5t O ___}0 _ (37}
Praofit for the year from -
continuIng operatons 295 36 48 10 (45 3 30 567 2
o
Profit for the year from m
==
discontnued operauons w4 (36 (09) 0 - . L 5
Profit for the year 539 - (sl 10 147 2 30 se7 3
E\ion'conu’o!hng interest ) (N - - - - - - (1} 5
Earnings 538 - (i6l) 10 147 2 30 566
Adjusted operating profit — underlying and constant exchange rate movement
Operating profit movement excluding the impact of acquisiwons, disposals and movements (n exchange rates P
et mrmmm— mme = e emm—am e = e o e trm e e e b w mm mee— us et A ————— = eaee o o
Altfigures n £ meélons 04 :
Underlying increase 35 8
Portfolio changes - -
Exchange differences {49) :?'-;
Total adjusted operating profit decrease ) (14) B
Underlying increase 5%
Constant exchange rate increase . 5%
4]
5]
-
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Free cash flow per share

Operating cash flow for conunuing and discontnued opet ations before tax and finance charges divided by the

weighted average number of shares in 1ssue

AR figures m £ mhans 2014 203
Adjusted operaung profic 722 736
Cash conversion 0% 80%
Operating cash flow 649 588
Operaung tax pad {163 (191)
Net operating finance costs pad (73) (73)
Totaloperaumg frec cash flow 77 74 e
Non operating tax pad - {55}
Total fiee cash flow T s e
Weighted average number of siares i 1ssue (millions) 8109 8078
Operaung free cash flow per share 209 40 1p
Torl e fowperdurs L ow By
Return an invested capital . . _
e o deted
Adfiguresin £ mikons 2014 A1
Total adjusted operating profit 122 736
Operaung tax pard (163) {191
Rewrn T 559 545
Zverage goodwill and othe?mtanglbles o B557 8 90;
Average net operating assets 1,343 1,227
Average invested capital _ B 9900 10,130
ewrnonmvested capical T T T g gy

Return on invested capical

Return on invested capital 1s calculated as total adjusted operating profitless operaung cash tax paid expressed as
a percentage of average invested capnal Invested capital includes the onginal unamerbsed goodwill and intangrbles



Shareholder information

Pearson ordinary shares ar e iisted on the London Stock
Exchange and on the New Yot k Stock Exchange 1n the
farm of Amenican Depositary Receipts

Corporate wabsite

The mvestors' section of our corporate website

www pearson com/nvestors provides a wealth of
information for sharehotders Itis atso possible to sign
up to recewve emalt alerts for reports and press releases
refating to Pearson at www pearson com/news/
newsletter subscrbe html

Shareholder infarmation oniine

Shareholder nformauon can be found on our website
www peal son com/investors/sharehotdernformauon

Our registrar, Equiniti also provides a range of shareholder
informaton online You can check your holding and find
pracucal help on transferring shares or updating your
details at www shareview co uk For more information,
please contact our registrar, Equiniui, Aspect House,
Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA
Telephone 0871 384 2233* or, for those shareholder s
with hearing difficulties, textphone number

0871 384 2255

tnformation abaut the Pearson share price

The company’s share price can be found on our website
at www pearson com it also appears in the financial
columns of the nanonal press

2014 dwidends

Pyymem dae Avaunt fxr shire
Interim 12 September 2014 i7 pence
Final I May 2015 34 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you efect to have your dmvidends paid through
BACS, this can be done directly tnto a banlc or building
society account, with the tax voucher sent to the

shat eholder’s registered address Equiniti canbe
contacied for informaton on 0871 384 2043¢

Orwidend reinvestment plan {DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the right to buy the
company s shares on the Landon stock market with thewr
cash dvidend For further information, please contact
Equinition 0871 384 2268%

Section § "man il st iteinenty 210

Individual Savings Accounes (I5As)

Equunits offers 1SAs i Pearson shares Formare
infor mation, please go to www shareview co uk/dealing
or call customer services on 0845 300 0430”

Share dealing facilities

Equiniti offers telephone and internet services for
dealing in Pearson shares For further mformation,
please contact therr telephone dealing heipline on
08456 037 037* (weekdays only} or, for online dealing,
log on to www shareview co uk/dealing You will need
your shareholder reference number as shown on your
share certificate

A postat dealing service 1s also available through Equinits
Please telephone 0871 384 2248* for details orlog on to
www shareview co uk to download a form

ShareGift

Shareholders with small holdings of shares, whose
value makes thern uneconormuc to sell, may wish

to donate them to ShareGift, the share donation
charity {registered charity number 1052686)

Further nformation about ShareGift and the charities

it has supported may be obtaned from ther website,
www ShareGiit org or by contacting them at ShareGift,
PO Box 72253, London, SWIF9LQ

American Deposicary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearson's ADRs are Iisted on the New York Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbol PSO Each ADR
represents one ordinary share Forenquines regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends, please
contact Banlk of New York Mellon, Shareholder
Correspondence (ADR), PO Box 30170, College
Station, TX 77842-3170 telephone | (866) 259 2289
(toll free within the US) or 00 201 680 6825

{outside the US) Alternatively you may email
shrrelanons@cpushareownerservces com Voting
rghts for registered ADR holders can be exercised
through Bank of New York Mellon and for beneficial
ADR holders (and/or nontnee accounts) through your
S brolker age institugon  Pearson wall fite vath the
Secunttes and Exchange Commussion a Form 20-F

*Culls to dhes rennbers ave ditrped ot Bp parsmnute phus nerwork entas
Lines open B 30amso 5 30prn Honday o Faday
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Shareholder information continued

Share register fraud protecting your investment

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly

10 provide recommendano advice and neither does

it appoint third parves to do so As required by law,

our shareholder cegister s avadable for public inspecton
but we cannot control the use of informaton obtained
by persons inspecting the register Please treat any
approaches purporung to onginate from Pearson

with caution

For mort e informauon, please log on to our
website at www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-informauon htmi

Tips on protecting your shares

» Keep any documentation that contains your
shareholder reference numbern a safe place and
shred any unwanted documentation

r Inform our registrar, Equinmit, promptly when you
change address

» Be aware of dividend payment dates and contact the
registrari{ you do not recerve your dividend cheque o
better sull, make arrangements to have the dividend
paid directly into your bank account

» Consider holding your shares efectrorucally ma CREST
accountwia a nominee

%DIS financial calendar

Ex-dividend date 2 Apnil
Record date 7 Apnl
Last date for dividend reinvesument elecuon 10 April
Payrment date for dvidend and share

purchase date for divwdend reinvestment t May
Annual General Meetng 24 Apri
lnterim results 24 July

Payment date for intersm didend _ 1 Seprember




Reliance on this document

Our strategic report on pages 2 to 56 has been

prepared in accordance with section 414 ('Duty to
prepare astrategic report’) of the Companies Act 2006
(Stratepic Report and Director s* Report) Regudations
2013 fralso ncorporates much of the guidance set cutin
the Accounting Standards Board's Repai ting Stateinent
on the Operating and hinancal Review

Tie intention of this document s to provide information
to shareholders and is not designed to be relied upon by
any other party or for any other purpose

Forwaid-locking statements

Except for the historical infor manon contained heren,
the matters discussed in this documentinciude forward-
looking statements [n particular, all statements that
express forecasts, expectations and projections with
respect to future matters, mcluding trends in results
of operations. margins, growth rates, overall market
wrends, the nmpact of interest or exchange rates, the
availability of financing, anticipated costs savings and
synergies and the execution of Pear son's st ategy, are
forward-looking statements By thew nature, forward-
loolung statements involve risks and uncertainties

IMAGE REMOVED

Desgned and Produced by Friend www fiendsiudin com
Pran Purcprint Group

Pearson has supported the plinung of 167 <quare metres of nuw native
woadland with the Woodfand Trust halpig o remove 6 7 tonnes of
caroon duxide emmsions gener ated by the preduchon of this tepart,
and asscouted documeats

because they relate 1o events and depend on
arrcurnstances that will occur nfuture They are based
an numerous assumptions regarding Pearson’s present
and future business strategres and the env onment

n which it will operate inthe futire Therearea
number of factors which could cause actual 1 esults and
developments te> differ matesially from those expressed
or implied by these forward-looking statemengs,
including a number of factors cutside Pearson’s
control These include intetnavonal, natonal and focal
conditions, as well as compeution They also include
other risks detaided from time to time in Pearson’s
publicly-filed documents and you are advised to read,
m particular, the nisk factors set out in this document
or otherwise 1n Pearson's latest annual report

and accounts, which can be found on its website
{www pearson com/investors] Any forward looking
statements speak only as of the date they are made.
and Pearson pves no undertaking to update forward-
looking statements to reflect any changes in s
expectavons with regard theretc or any changes to
events condigons or arcumstances on which any such
statementis based No reltance should be placed on
forward-locking statements

L lus reporubas been prmted on £ diaon Challenger Offser which
15 FSC* cer ufied and made from 1G0% Demental Chionne Free
(ECF) pulp The mdland the printer ar e both cerufied 10150 1400t
envuoninental management system and registered to ENTAS the
£co managument Avda Scheme The eport was printed wsing
vegetable based inks by a CarborfNeutral pringet
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